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afran and Zodiac Aerospace joined
forces this year to create the world’s
third largest aerospace company
(excluding aircraft manufacturers),
with more than 90,000 employees
worldwide and revenue of around
€21 billion®,

Leveraging the contribution of Zodiac
Aerospace, a leading supplier of aircraft
systems, cabins and seats, the Group will be
able to provide its ever-expanding,
increasingly diversified customer base with
a balanced offering of propulsion and
equipment solutions.

The historic combination reflects the vigorous
momentum generated in 2017, when the
Group successfully demonstrated that it

had the means to reach its goals.

Our revenue grew 7.4% on an organic basis,
beating forecasts to stand at €16.5 billion.
Recurring operating income, representing 15%
of revenue at €2.47 billion, and cash flow of
€1.4 billion, representing 58% of recurring
operating income and nearly 80% of profit
from continuing operations, were in line with
our objectives. In light of these performances,
a dividend of €1.60 per share has been put to
the approval of the Annual General Meeting
for 2017 (€1.52 for 2016).

Apart from the combination agreed with
Zodiac Aerospace, 2017 was shaped by the
ramp-up of the LEAP program, which is
critical to our future. A total of 459 LEAP
engines were delivered, proving that the
transition from the CFM56 has been
practically seamless, an exceptional feat in
the history of the global aerospace industry.

In helicopter turbines, we made the best of
a persistently tense market and are actively
preparing for the future. 2018 is expected
to be a year of recovery.

In aircraft equipment, our competitiveness
drive is continuing to pay off. Faced with

a highly competitive environment, we are
ready to ramp up large-scale programs such
as the A330neo, fitted with our nacelles,
wiring, power transmission and landing
systems. We delivered the first prototypes of
our Electric Taxiing by Safran system in late
2017, demonstrating our ability to differentiate
our offering through continually innovative
technology.

Our Defense business had a successful year,
reporting higher revenue in line with our
projections.

Having moved swiftly on our decision to
refocus operations on aerospace and defense,
we were able to complete the disposal of our
detection and security businesses under
excellent financial conditions in the first half of
2017. Safran Identity & Security and Oberthur
Technologies have combined to form a
leading France-based digital security
company, ldemia.

Our joint venture with Airbus, renamed
ArianeGroup, is set to provide Europe with
independent access to space thanks to its
next generation launch vehicles. Building on
the success of Ariane 5, ArianeGroup is busy
preparing Ariane 6.

In 2018, we will be tackling three main
challenges.

The first is the continued ramp-up of LEAP
production. Between 1,100 and 1,200 LEAP
engines will be delivered in 2018, backed by
clear objectives in terms of delivery
schedules, quality and costs. We will be
relentless in our efforts.

The second is of course the integration of
Zodiac Aerospace. We are working diligently
to make that happen. Everyone is committed
to achieving the expected synergies, securing
the operational turnaround, supporting the
return to confidence among customers and
reaping all the benefits of the merger. It's our
job to unlock the full potential of the new
organization and express all of the qualities
that our two strategically matched,
world-class aerospace groups have to offer.

The third challenge has to do with innovation.
Because, more than anything, innovation

is what will allow us to make further strides
toward greater aerospace fuel economy,

a reduced environmental footprint in line with
society’s expectations, and more electric
aircraft. Against a backdrop of big data,
augmented reality and additive manufacturing,
we need to stay at the cutting edge of
technology across our businesses by digitalizing
our processes, our services and our products.

All of our stakeholders - shareholders,
customers, partners and employees -

are aware that today’s challenges present
a unigue opportunity.

And we are convinced that Safran has the
means at its disposal to write a great new
chapter in its history.

Ross Mclnnes and Philippe Petitcolin

(D Unaudited pro forma results based on the previous 12 months for both companies.
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€1.4 biltion

for continuing
operations

The Group differentiates itself from the
competition through its technological
expertise. Its complementary businesses
give it a genuine advantage, driving
growth and enabling the Group to with-
stand economic cycles. From both a
technological and managerial point of
view, the Group's various businesses are
integrated and complementary.

Safran has a strong positioning in
Aerospace. Its installed fleet of engines,
especially the CFM56°, offers significant
new vistas for value creation thanks to
associated maintenance and overhaul
activities. Its engines and equipment are
present in most current and future aircraft
programs, with the LEAP® engine, which
entered into commercial service in 2016,
emulating the success of the CFM56. The
Group is organized so as to deliver compre-
hensive offerings to aircraft manufacturers
and airlines, such as propulsion and land-
ing systems. Safran has great confidence
that the move toward more electric aircraft
systems represents new opportunities and
is therefore reinforcing its expertise in the
whole electrical energy chain - through its
own growth and through targeted acquisi-
tions - to offer comprehensive, world-class
electrical systems. In Defense, the Group is
renowned for its avionics, electronics, criti-
cal software and optronics technologies,
which contribute to the performance of
armies, navies and air forces in numerous
countries around the world.

0 O o

58,324
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Safran enjoys particularly sound funda-
mentals with front-ranking technical and
commercial positions, profitable and
sustainable recurring service activities
offering high added value, truly innova-
tive research and development, a healthy
financial situation and strong operat-
ing cash flow, which allow it to leverage
opportunities for organic growth and
acquisition-led development. The combi-
nation with Zodiac Aerospace in early
2018, for example, led to the creation of a
global leader in aircraft equipment.

Safran must also integrate corporate
social responsibility into its strategy to
meet the expectations of all of its stake-
holders: employees, partners, customers,
shareholders, suppliers and all of the
communities affected by its business.
This holistic commitment to CSR is based
on ethical standards that are espoused
and embodied by everyone within
the Group. Civic responsibility, people
development and recognition, meeting
commitments and teamwork are the core
values of Safran's corporate culture.

Firmin the belief that sustainably success-
ful businesses are those able to manage
the present in complete harmony with the
vision of the future, Safran is as poised
as it has always been to meet all of the
challenges it encounters both today and
going forward.

s

14,834

engines



> 2017 KEY FIGURES BY BUSINESS

(adjusted data)®
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REVENUE RECURRING OPERATING FREE CASH FLOW®
INCOME

%%’% i 1

0

REVENUE €9,741m €5,415m €1,345m €20m

59% of Group 33% of Group 8% of Group
revenue revenue revenue

RECURRING €1,729m €682m €95m €(36)m

OPERATING 17.7% of t 12.6% of t 7.1% of t
7% of segmen .6% of segmen 1% of segmen
INCUME revenue revenue revenue

(D The table reconciling the consolidated income statement and the adjusted income statement, including a description of the
adjustments made, is presented in section 2.1.1.

(2) Free cash flow represents cash flow from operating activities less any net disbursements relating to acquisitions of property, plant
and equipment and intangible assets.
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> RESULTS

REVENUE RECURRING OPERATING PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE
(adjusted data)® INCOME TO OWNERS OF THE PARENT
(in € millions) (adjusted data)® (adjusted data)®
(in € millions) (in € millions)
15,781 2,404 2,470
1,804
@
+2.%
2016 2017 2016

* Including capital gains on the disposal
of security business.

FREE CASH FLOW

(in € millions)

DIVIDENDS
(in € per share)

1438 152 1.60
1,091
@ €0.69 @
+31.8: 2016 +5.31 Paid
interim in full
dividend {in 2018*
2016 2017 2016 2017

* Dividend payment date: May 31, 2018.

REVENUE
(consolidated data)
(in € millions)

16482 16940

2016 2017
BREAKDOWN OF HEADCOUNT BY GEOGRAPHICAL AREA BREAKDOWN OF HEADCOUNT
- BY BUSINESS
Eu;ope
(excl. France) % §1%
Holding company Aerospace
and other propulsion
,l’-\7r‘§1ericas 637
——\3 France
58,324 )
12% mp"’yees Ll
Defense equipment
4l
5% Asia &
Africa & Oceania
Middle East

(1) The table reconciling the consolidated income statement and the adjusted income statement, including a description of the
adjustments made, is presented in section 2.1.1.
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> CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

MEMBERSHIP STRUCTURE OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors’ main role is to define and oversee the implementation of the Group’s key business priorities
and strategy. Special committees assist the Board in its decisions.

A

Ross Mclnnes Christian Streiff
Chairman of the Board Vice-Chairman of the
of Directors Board of Directors

Philippe Petitcolin

Chief Executive Officer

n-ﬁﬂ*
Odile Desforges

Chair of the Audit
and Risks Committee

in

Daniel Mazaltarim

Monigque Cohen
Chair of the
Appointments and
Compensation
Committee

Jean-Marc Forneri

Gérard Mardiné Lucie Muniesa

4%
[

adn

Jean-Lou Chameau

Hélene Auriol Potier Eliane Carré-Copin

T

Patrick Gandil Vincent Imbert I-3rigiﬂe Lesschaeve
Patrick Pélata Sophie Zurquiyah

BOARD COMMITTEES

THE AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE

5 members — Chair: Odile Desforges

The Audit and Risk Committee’'s main duties involve
examining the financial statements and addressing issues
related to the preparation and auditing of accounting and
financial information.

THE APPOINTMENTS AND COMPENSATION COMMITTEE

7 members — Chair: Monique Cohen

The Appointments and Compensation Committee assists
the Board of Directors in its choice of members and corporate
officers, and makes recommendations and proposals
concerning the compensation of corporate officers.

THE INNOVATION AND TECHNOLOGY COMMITTEE

5 members — Chairman: Christian Streiff

The Innovation and Technology Committee analyzes the
Group’s strategic goals and choices concerning innovation,
research and technology, and the development of new
products and services. It also monitors progress on the
main innovation and technology roadmaps and tracks
technological trends and change.

EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT

Philippe Petitcolin

Chief Executive Officer
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THE GROUP’S POSITIONING

Safran is an international high-technology group operating in the
aircraft propulsion and equipment, space and defense industries,

where it enjoys prime global or European market positions, either €

alone or in partnership with other companies.

2017
REVENUE
(ADJUSTED DATA)

AEROSPACE

Safran businesses cover the full life cycle of engines,

systems and equipment for civil and military aircraft and m
helicopters. Safran facilitates access to space, addressing p

the markets for civil and military launch vehicles®,
propulsion systems and equipment for satellites and space
vehicles, and high-performance space optics.

DEFENSE
Safran addresses the optronics, avionics, inertial navigation,
tactical drones, electronics and critical software markets,
offering a full range of systems and equipment that
contributes to the efficacy of armies, navies and air forces
in many countries.

2017 PROFIT
ATTRIBUTABLE
TO OWNERS
OF THE PARENT
(ADJUSTED DATA)®

€2,623m

SAFRAN QUALITY 2017 INDUSTRIAL
PERFORMANCE AND POLICY INVESTMENTS

Safran pursues an ambitious quality policy
targeting two main goals:

[/ customer satisfaction
[/ continuous performance improvement

(D) Within ArianeGroup, a 50-50 joint venture between Safran and Airbus.
(2) Including capital gains on the disposal of the security businesses (see section 3.1, Note 27).
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1.1 SAFRAN OVERVIEW

1.1.1  History

Safran is an international high-technology group operating
in the aircraft propulsion and equipment, space and defense
industries, where it enjoys prime global or European market
positions, either alone or in partnership with other companies.
Safran is constantly seeking to adapt and reinvent itself to meet
the critical technological and economic challenges of tomorrow.

Safran’s roots and its technological and industrial hub are in
France and Europe. From this base, it has extended its footprint
to the American continent, Africa, the Middle East, Asia and
Oceania. This presence enables the Group to develop and nurture
industrial and commercial relations with the leading prime
contractors and operators at the national level, and to promptly
deliver first-class local service to customers around the world.

Key dates in the Group’s history

Safran was created on May 11, 2005 from the merger of Snecma
and Sagem, and is the world’s oldest aircraft engine manufacturer.

1905 Louis and Laurent Seguin found the Société des Moteurs
Gnome in the Paris suburb of Genneuvilliers. In just a few
short years, their Ghome rotary engines become the

standard for planes around the world.

1912  Louis Verdet founds the engines company Le Rhéne.
Within two years, Le Rhéne becomes Gnome’s main
competitor and is taken over by its rival to form Société
des Moteurs Gnome & Rhone. After the First World War,
Gnome & Rhbéne becomes one of the world’s leading
manufacturers of aircraft engines.

1924  Marcel Mébme creates Société d’Applications Générales
d’Electricité et de Mécanique (Sagem), whose main
business is to supply power to telephone exchanges.
A few years later, Sagem diversifies its business to
include the manufacture of cameras, projectors and
artillery equipment. It also sets up the first ever analog
telephone network. Sagem creates Société d’Application
Téléphonique, which in 1960 becomes Société Anonyme
de Télécommunications (SAT). This company goes on
to design the world’s first infrared guidance system for
air-to-air missiles.

1945 After the Second World War, Ghome & Rhone is
nationalized and renamed Snecma (for Société Nationale
d’Etude et de Construction de Moteurs d’Aviation). It
groups together the majority of French aircraft engine
manufacturers launched since the beginning of the
century (Renault, Lorraine, Régnier, etc.).

1968  Hispano-Suiza, specializing in power transmission for the
engines of civil and military aircraft and helicopters, joins
Snecma. A few years later, it teams up with Messier to
create Messier-Hispano-Bugatti (MHB) and consolidate
all products relating to landing systems.

(1) Source: Ascend - FlightGlobal.
(2) Source: Safran.

1974

1993

1997

2000

2002

2005

2008

2009

2010

20M
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Snecma becomes a civil aircraft engine manufacturer
through a cooperation agreement with General Electric
Aircraft Engines for manufacture of the CFM56° (“CF”
for General Electric’s commercial engine line and “M56”
for Snecma’s fifty-sixth project). This engine currently
represents the world’s largest civil aircraft engine fleet®:
an aircraft powered by the CFM56 takes off every two
seconds®.

Sagem purchases Morpho, a specialist in fingerprint-based
biometric recognition systems.

Snecma takes full control of Société Européenne de
Propulsion (SEP) and enters the space propulsion market
(Ariane launcher).

Aircraft wiring specialist Labinal joins Snecma and
becomes a leading world player in this market. Labinal
helicopter engine manufacturer subsidiary Turbomeca
also joins Snecma, to continue a technology success
story that started in 1938 with company founder Joseph
Szydlowski. Today, the company is the world’s premier
manufacturer of turbine engines for helicopters®.

Hurel-Dubois merges its businesses with the aircraft
engine nacelle business of Hispano-Suiza to become
Hurel-Hispano. Three years later the company is renamed
Aircelle. It is currently one of the key participants in the
aircraft engine nacelle market.

Safran is formed from the merger of Snecma and Sagem.
Safran strengthens its positions in the Security business
with the acquisition of smartcard specialist Orga
Kartensysteme GmbH.

Safran extends its partnership with General Electric
(GE) in the fields of aerospace propulsion and nacelles
through to 2040. Safran’s Security business acquires
Sdu-l in the Netherlands, renamed Morpho BV.

Safran acquires 81% of GE’s Homeland Protection business,
and Motorola’s biometrics business (under the Printak
brand, now MorphoTrak). Then in 2012, Safran acquires
the remaining 19% of GE Homeland Protection, renamed
Morpho Detection Inc.

Labinal completes its acquisition of Harvard Custom
Manufacturing, an American company based in Salisbury
(Maryland).

Safran acquires L-11dentity Solutions, now MorphoTrust USA,
a leading identity management provider in the US
market, to become a front-line world player in identity
solutions and electronic documents. It also acquires SME
(formerly SNPE Matériaux Energétiques), to be merged
with Snecma Propulsion Solide in 2012 to form Herakles.

SAFRAN - 2017 REGISTRATION DOCUMENT
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PRESENTATION OF THE GROUP

Safran overview

2012

2013

2014

2015

In optronics, Safran and Thales form the 50-50 joint
venture Optrolead. The two companies also buy out the
Areva stake to obtain 50% each of Sofradir and transfer
their infrared businesses to this company.

Safran acquires the electrical systems business of Goodrich
(Goodrich Electrical Power Systems - GEPS).

Safran also acquires the 50% interest of Rolls-Royce
(United Kingdom) in their joint RTM322 helicopter engine
program, to strengthen its position on the strategic
heavy-lift helicopters segment.

Safran brings all the Group’s electrical systems operations
together into a single unit to form a leading world player
in aircraft electrical systems: Labinal Power Systems.
Safran also acquires the aerospace power distribution
management solutions and integrated cockpit solutions
businesses of Eaton Aerospace.

Morpho acquires Dictao, a prominent developer of
software solutions for security and digital trust.

Hispano-Suiza and Rolls-Royce found Aero Gearbox
International, a joint venture specializing in design,
development, production and after-sales for accessory
drive trains (ADTSs).

12 SAFRAN - 2017 REGISTRATION DOCUMENT

20

20

16

17

Safran brings all its companies together under the same
banner and includes "Safran” in the corporate name of
its subsidiaries.

Safran and Airbus Group SE finalize the merger of their
launch vehicle businesses in a 50-50 joint venture,
Airbus Safran Launchers (later renamed ArianeGroup),
to support the onset of the Ariane 6 project and provide
Europe with a new family of competitive, versatile and
high-performance launch vehicles.

Safran becomes the sole shareholder in Technofan, later
renamed Safran Ventilation Systems.

Safran and Zodiac Aerospace announce the signature
of a business combination agreement to create a world
leader in aerospace equipment. The planned combination
is approved by the General Shareholders’ Meeting in
June and obtains regulatory clearance in December.
Safran finalizes the disposal of its detection businesses
to Smiths Group.

Safran completes the disposal of its identity and security
businesses to Advent International, owner of Oberthur
Technologies.

Safran sells its stake in Structil to Hexcel, which
designs, produces and sells structural adhesives and
high-performance carbon-fiber composite materials for
aerospace and other high-tech industries.



PRESENTATION OF THE GROUP

Safran overview

1.1.2 Organization and position of the issuer in the Group

Organization

Safran is an industrial group within which each subsidiary directly
manages the operational side of its business activity and takes
responsibility for the internal control system to be implemented
in accordance with Group procedures and internal rules.

The organizational structure is based on:

> a parent company, Safran, the issuer, responsible for the
Group’s strategic management, organization and development;

> companies handling specific business lines, under strategies
determined by the parent company’s Board of Directors.
Executive Management of the parent company ensures that
the strategic orientations defined for each business line are
implemented and complied with at the operational level.

Tier-one entities (shown in section 1.1.3) are responsible for
overseeing the tier-two entities with which they have operational ties.

Role of the issuer within the Group

Safran is listed in compartment A of the Euronext Paris
Eurolist and is eligible for deferred settlement (see Euronext
notice 2005-1865 of May 11, 2005).

As the Group's parent company, Safran performs the following
functions for the Group companies:

> it holds and manages shares in the Group subsidiaries;

> it steers and develops the Group, determining: Group strategy;
research and technology (R&T) policy; sales policy; legal
and financial policy; human resources policy; personnel
training, retraining and skills matching by Safran University;
communications; and oversight of operations;

> it provides:

e support services on legal, taxation and financial matters,
and in particular:

- centralized cash pooling to govern the terms and conditions
of advances and investments between Safran and each
Group company,

- foreign currency management policy to reduce uncertainty
factors and protect the economic performance of operating
subsidiaries from random foreign currency fluctuations
(mainly USD),

- tax consolidation, in jurisdictions such as France where
Safran is liable for the entire income tax charge, additional
income tax contributions and the minimal tax charge due
by the tax group comprising itself and its tax-consolidated
subsidiaries,

e services through Shared Services Centers (SSCs) in the
following areas: payroll administration and management,
recruitment, non-production purchases, materials purchases,
IT, and some transaction accounting (customers, suppliers
and fixed assets).

The list of consolidated companies is presented in section 3.1,
Note 33.

Financial flows between the issuer
and Group companies

Safran receives dividends paid by its subsidiaries compliant with
applicable regulations (see section 3.3, Note 4.3).

It receives payment for services provided to Group companies,
and invoices them for services provided through the
Shared Services Centers (SSCs) (see section 3.3, Note 4.1).

SAFRAN - 2017 REGISTRATION DOCUMENT
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1 PRESENTATION OF THE GROUP

Safran overview

11.3 Simplified organization chart

Safran, the issuer, is the parent company of the Group. The simplified organization chart® as of December 31, 2017 is as follows:

AEROSPACE -
PROPULSION AIRCRAFT
EQUIPMENT DEFENSE
100% SAFRAN 100% SAFRAN 100% SAFRAN
AIRCRAFT ENGINES LANDING SYSTEMS ELECTRONICS & DEFENSE
100% SAFRAN 100% SAFRAN
HELICOPTER ENGINES ELECTRICAL & POWER
100%0 SAFRAN 100% SAFRAN
CERAMICS TRANSMISSION SYSTEMS
1n.5%
67.2% SAFRAN 88.5% SAFRAN
‘ AERO BOOSTERS NACELLES
150%0) 100% SAFRAN
ARIANEGROUP VENTILATION SYSTEMS

The list of consolidated companies is presented in section 3.1, Note 33.

(1) Tier-one operating companies.
(2) Less one share held by the French State.
(3) 50-50 joint venture with Airbus.

14 SAFRAN - 2017 REGISTRATION DOCUMENT



PRESENTATION OF THE GROUP

Safran overview

1.1.4 Main Group companies by business sector

Safran today covers three main markets: Aerospace Propulsion,
Aircraft Equipment and Defense.

Aerospace Propulsion

Safran Aircraft Engines

Engines for commercial and military aircraft, maintenance, repair
and overhaul (MRO) and related services. Electric propulsion
and propulsion systems for satellites and orbital vehicles.

Safran Helicopter Engines

Turboshaft engines for civil and military helicopters, auxiliary
power units (APUs), starting and propulsion systems for missiles,
target drones and unmanned aerial vehicles (UAVs). Maintenance,
repair and overhaul and associated services.

Safran Ceramics

Safran center of excellence in high-temperature composite
materials from research groundwork through to production.
Development of ceramic technologies for Group products.

Safran Aero Boosters

Low-pressure compressors and lubrication equipment for aircraft
engines. Test cells and equipment for engine testing. Regulation
valves for space engines.

ArianeGroup

Design, development, production and sales and marketing of
commercial and military space launchers, propulsion systems
and related equipment, products and services.

Aircraft Equipment

Safran Landing Systems

Aircraft landing and braking systems. Control and monitoring
systems. Capabilities covering the entire product cycle, from
design and production to maintenance, repair and overhaul.

Safran Electrical & Power

Electrical power systems for the aerospace market, covering
all onboard electrical functions (power generation, distribution
and conversion, wiring, load management and ventilation).
Engineering solutions.

Safran Transmission Systems

Mechanical power transmission systems for commercial and
military airplane and helicopter engines. Maintenance, repair,
overhaul and related services. Mechanical components for
airplane and helicopter propulsion systems.

Safran Nacelles

Complete nacelles for all civil aircraft market segments: from
regional and business jets through to the largest airliners.
Customer support and related services. Composite materials
for aerostructures.

Safran Ventilation Systems

Ventilation equipment for civil and military aircraft. Support
and related services.

Defense

Safran Electronics & Defense

Equipment and systems in optronics, avionics, navigation,
tactical drones, electronics and critical software for civil and
defense applications. Customer support for all land, sea, air
and space applications.

SAFRAN - 2017 REGISTRATION DOCUMENT

15




PRESENTATION OF THE GROUP

Group strategy

1.2 GROUP STRATEGY

Safran builds front-line positions with a focus on the aerospace
and defense markets. In all its business areas, it enjoys wide
recognition for technological excellence serving customers’
critical applications.

In 2017, Safran completed its program of refocusing operations
on the aerospace and defense markets, finalizing the disposal
of its detection businesses to Smiths Group on April 7 and of its
identity and security businesses to Advent International, owner
of Oberthur Technologies, on May 31.

Safran takes up positions in long-term markets on which
sustained demand contributes to growth and profitability. Growth
opportunities are found in the strong development potential of
emerging countries, and in mature US and European markets,
where aircraft fleets are under renewal. Safran estimates that
the world fleet of commercial aircraft (36 passengers or more)
will double over the next 20 years, in response to an expected
two-fold increase in passenger traffic in the next 15 years.

In Aerospace Propulsion, Safran is a leading manufacturer of
aircraft engines and helicopter turbines. Safran’s extensive portfolio
and installed base of products in service (the CFM56 engine
in particular) offer significant new vistas for value creation, as
do the related service and maintenance activities. To maintain
its positioning, the Group also places a strong emphasis on
development of innovative engine solutions, as shown from its
investments in the following programs:

> in short- and medium-haul commercial aviation, CFM International,
a 50-50 joint venture between Safran and GE, is developing the
LEAP® engine (successor to the best-selling CFM56) that will
power the Airbus A320neo® (-1A version), the Boeing 737 MAX
(-1B version, sole source) and the COMAC C919 (-1C version,
sole Western source). All three versions of LEAP are now
certified by the authorities. Following successful release of
LEAP-1A in 2016, LEAP-1B came into operation in 2017, and
LEAP-1C made its first flights on development versions of the
C919. In response to customer demand, ramp-up of LEAP
engine production continued in 2017, with 459 deliveries;

> in long-haul commercial aviation, Safran partners GE on
development of the GE9X engine, chosen as the sole source
for the forthcoming Boeing 777X;

> in business aviation, Safran is developing the Silvercrest” engine,
selected by Cessna in November 2016 for its forthcoming
Citation Hemisphere;

> in helicopters, Safran is developing a range of high-power
engines (3,000 shp®) for medium-to-heavy-lift helicopters,
following the 2013 acquisition of Rolls-Royce’s share in the
RTM322 program. This ambitious product strategy bore fruit
in 2017 with the announcement that Leonardo Helicopters
had selected the new Aneto-1K engine as the new option for
its AW189 helicopter;

> in space vehicles, the Ariane 6 program completed its definition
and industrial reviews (maturity gates), authorizing production
release for qualification launch vehicles. ArianeGroup (50-50
joint venture with Airbus) started to sell the new launch
vehicle, signing contracts for the first flights with institutional

(1) neo: new engine option.
(2) Shp. shaft horsepower.
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customers to secure the transition from Ariane 5 to Ariane 6
from 2020. ArianeGroup also launched 11 flights in 2017,
including 6 for Ariane 5, the European heavy launch vehicle,
which made its 82" successful flight.

Safranis also a front-line participant in Aircraft Equipment (landing
systems, wheels and brakes, nacelles, power transmission systems,
electrical systems and wiring systems), and a world leader in
“more electric” aircraft architectures for aircraft manufacturers
and airline companies. It is preparing technological differentiation
in equipment for the future generation (around 2030) of
short- and medium-haul aircraft. In all its Aerospace business
lines, Safran has developed a very strong customer and operator
service capability, notably through rate-per-flight-hour service
contracts that offer customers guaranteed aircraft availability
while improving the visibility and the recurrence of after-sales
revenues for Safran.

In Defense, Safran harnesses its strong innovative capacity to
assert its leadership in optronics, navigation and avionics, and
to develop full onboard solutions with a view to seizing growth
opportunities in emerging countries.

Safran’s development is guided by four main focuses:

> technological innovation, driving long-term growth. In addition
to the research programs run by individual Safran companies,
two Group-wide structures have been running since 2015
to develop technological synergies and step up innovation:
Safran Tech, a Group-wide R&T center, intensifies research
and technology efforts in major technological breakthrough
areas, and Safran Corporate Ventures manages highly
selective investment through minority stakes in high-potential
innovation-oriented startups working on technologies likely
to be relevant to Safran’s businesses;

> front-line positions in its various businesses;

> strong positions on high-growth markets with a substantial
after-sales component bringing recurrent revenue potential;

> a solid financial position that guarantees Safran’s capacity to
manage long-term programs.

To back its strategy, Safran continues to forge alliances and
long-term partnerships, as with GE on engines for short- and
medium-haul aircraft (partnership dating back to 1974, then
renewed in 2008 through to 2040). A further illustration of this
long-term alliance strategy is ArianeGroup, the joint venture
with Airbus, which became fully operational on July 1, 2016.

Where compliant with its financial discipline criteria, Safran is
also attentive to external growth opportunities that will enable
it to strengthen its positions in aviation markets and that are
consistent with the Group’s DNA (high technology, tier-one
supplier, and recurrent after-sales revenue). Following the
consolidation of Goodrich Electrical Power Systems in 2013, the
2014 acquisition of two Eaton Aerospace businesses broadened
the scope of Safran Electrical & Power to cover aircraft electrical
distribution and complemented Safran Electronics & Defense’s
cockpit solution positioning.



The planned acquisition of Zodiac Aerospace announced in
early 2017 meets all the criteria that guide Safran’s external
growth strategy. Zodiac Aerospace specializes in the design,
manufacture and sale of aircraft equipment, is among the
world's leading companies in a variety of sectors, and has a
strong presence with aircraft manufacturers as well as airline
companies. The transaction, finalized on February 13, 2018 with
Safran’s takeover, created a global leader in aircraft equipment
allying the market leading positions, expertise, technologies and
talents of both Safran and Zodiac Aerospace. The new group,
which has revenue of around €21 billion®™ and a workforce of
more than 91,000 people in some 60 countries, combines
Safran’s capabilities in engines, landing gear, wheels and brakes,
nacelles, onboard power systems, actuation and avionics, with
Zodiac Aerospace's positions in seats, cabin interiors, power
distribution, lighting, fuel, oxygen and fluid systems and safety
equipment. In electrical systems, Zodiac Aerospace’s assets
reinforce Safran’s portfolio of technologies and ideally position
the new group for future developments in "more electric aircraft”.
The transaction enables Safran to pursue its growth strategy
focused on the aerospace and defense markets; reinforce its
position as a tier-one aircraft equipment supplier on aircraft
programs, by offering an extended range of products for aircraft
manufacturers and airline companies; and further decorrelate its
revenue from new aircraft production cycles, through after-sales

1.3 GROUP BUSINESSES

1.3.1 Aerospace Propulsion

Safran designs, develops, manufactures and sells engines for
aircraft, helicopters and satellites, either alone or in partnership
with other companies. In 2017, a total of 23,969 Safran employees
contributed to the development of this business.

> AIRCRAFT ENGINES AND SATELLITE
PROPULSION SYSTEMS

¢ Civil aircraft engines
- Business jets
- Regional jets
- Short- to medium-haul aircraft
- Long-haul aircraft
¢ Military aircraft engines
- Fighters
- Training and support aircraft
- Patrol, tanker and transport aircraft
¢ Space vehicle propulsion systems
- Satellites

> HELICOPTER TURBINE ENGINES

¢ Turbine engines for helicopters
- Light helicopters
- Medium-weight helicopters
- Heavy-lift helicopters

> LAUNCH VEHICLES - ARIANEGROUP

¢ Civil space industry
e Military industry
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and cabin refit activities. It will also ensure the turnaround and
competitive performance of Zodiac Aerospace’s aircraft interiors
business, an important factor given the economic environment
of intensifying consolidation worldwide, following the mergers
between UTC and Goodrich, Rockwell Collins and B/E Aerospace,
and, more recently, the announcement of Rockwell Collins’
acquisition by UTC on September 4, 2017.

To ensure the long-term success of its customer-oriented strategy
of sustained profitability and sustainable growth, Safran is also
pushing ahead with its competitive performance improvement plan
across all of its business lines, particularly through development
of its industrial facilities and preparatory work on the Factory
of the Future program, which involves additive manufacturing,
digitization/automation of production processes, industrial
Internet of Things, and maximization of plant utilization rates.

Safran’s financial fundamentals are very sound. Robust cash
flow from operations underpins a strong long-term position at
the technological front line, sustained R&D investments and an
acquisitions policy geared to short- and medium-term growth.

Safran implements its development strategy in accordance with
a firm commitment to sustainability (see section 5, “Corporate
social responsibility”) and strong ethical principles, as set out
in its guidelines on Group values and ethical conduct.

1.3.1.1  Aircraft engines and satellite

propulsion systems
Civil aircraft engines

Key characteristics of the business sector
The civil aviation sector comprises four main segments:

> business jets powered with engines each delivering between
5,000 and 18,000 pounds of thrust;

> regional jets (36 to 100 seats) powered by engines each
delivering between 8,000 and 18,000 pounds of thrust;

> short- and medium-haul aircraft (100 to 200 seats) powered by
engines each delivering between 18,500 and 50,000 pounds
of thrust;

> high-capacity long-haul aircraft (more than 200 seats)
powered by engines each delivering over 50,000 pounds of
thrust (currently up to 115,000 pounds).

In 2017, there were around 21,400 business jets in service
worldwide®. To meet expected demand in this market, some
8,200 aircraft of this type will be delivered over the next ten years®.

(D Pro forma based on Safran’s results for 2016, excluding Safran Identity & Security, and Zodjac Aerospace’s results for 2015/2016

at August 31, 2016.
(2) Source: Safran.
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There were around 22,400 commercial aircraft (regional, short-,
medium- and long-haul) in service in 2017®. In response to the
expected two-fold increase in this number, and the need to
replace aircraft that will be scrapped or dismantled over the
period, some 38,900 commercial aircraft will be manufactured
over the next 20 years®.

ECONOMIC LIFE CYCLE OF AN AIRCRAFT ENGINE PROGRAM®

Entry into service
and first deliveries

In response to aircraft manufacturer requirements for specific

engines for each of these business sectors, engine manufacturers

invest in civil engine programs comprising two types of activity:

> original equipment activity, involving the sale of engines
installed on new aircraft;

> service activity, comprising the sale of spare parts and service
contracts entered into on a case-by-case or long-term basis
with operators and approved maintenance centers.

After-sales, spare parts
and services, including
long-term contracts

Development
and testing

These programs may span more than 40 years and have several
phases. A significant portion of revenue generated by these
programs comes from support services.

Addressing operators’ expectations in this market, there is a
growing tendency to offer long-term rate-per-flight-hour service
contracts. This improves visibility for customers and offers engine
manufacturers a better guarantee of revenues and a smoother
cash profile throughout the engine life cycle.

There are four major engine manufacturers in the sector that
can act as prime contractors: GE (United States), Rolls-Royce
(United Kingdom), Pratt & Whitney (United States) and Safran.

In the industry, the US dollar is used almost exclusively as the
transaction currency.

Alliances and partnerships

Because of the very substantial investment involved in new
engine programs, Safran often works in partnership with other
engine manufacturers.

Partnerships may take the form of joint ventures, as with GE
and UEC Saturn (Russia).

They can also be based on contractual risk-and-revenue-sharing
agreements, under which Safran receives a share of sales
revenue for the final delivered product, corresponding to its
share in the program. The GE9QO program is an example of this
kind of arrangement.

(1) Source: Safran.
(2) For illustrative purposes only.

18 SAFRAN - 2017 REGISTRATION DOCUMENT

Serial production
(installed base)

40 years+

Group products and programs

The Group's operations in the civil aircraft engines segment
mainly involve Safran Aircraft Engines and Safran Aero Boosters.

Low-thrust engines for civil aircraft

This engine family powers regional transport jets and business jets.

Safran is the prime contractor for the SaM146 program, in
partnership with the Russian engine manufacturer, UEC Saturn.
The SaM146 is the sole engine for the Superjet 100, the 70- to
95-seater aircraft made by Russian manufacturer Sukhoi.

Safran also invests in engines for business jets through its
Silvercrest program, in the category of engines delivering
10,000 pounds of thrust. This engine has been selected by
Cessna for its Citation Hemisphere.

The Group also operates in this engine range through the
participation of Safran Aero Boosters in the following GE programs:
> CF34-10 (Embraer 190 and COMAC ARJ 21 regional jets);

> Passport (Bombardier Global 7000 business jet).



Mid-thrust engines for civil aircraft
NUMBER OF PRODUCTION-STANDARD CFM56 AND LEAP ENGINES MANUFACTURED™

2,000
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[ CcFM56

In 2017, the CFM56 and LEAP engine programs (including spare
parts, maintenance and repair sales) generate 56% of Safran’s
Aerospace Propulsion revenue. These engines are developed under
equitable joint cooperation agreements by CFM International,
a 50-50 joint venture between Safran and GE.

The majority of short- and medium-haul aircraft with more than
100 seats delivered over the last 20 years are powered by CFM56
engines. For the Airbus A320ceo (current engine option), the
CFM56 holds a total market share of 59%®™. Competition to
power the Airbus range comes from the V2500 engine made
by the IAE consortium (Pratt & Whitney, MTU Aero Engines and
Japanese Aero Engines Corp).

The current generation of the Boeing 737 NG, like the previous
version (Classic), is powered solely by CFM56 engines.

The success of this program with airline companies has led
to a steady rise in the fleet of CFM56 engines delivered over
the past 35 years. This engine currently represents the world’s
largest engine fleet; more than 32,000 CFM56 units have been
delivered and more than 30,800 are in operation®.

CFM International’s new-generation LEAP engine achieves a
15% reduction in fuel consumption and CO, emissions compared
with the latest generation of CFM56 engines. The new engine
also significantly reduces nitrogen oxide emissions and noise
levels, with limited effect on the reliability or competitive cost
of ownership of CFM International engines.

(1) Source: Safran.

B LEAP

The LEAP engine has so far been selected for use on three aircraft:

> the LEAP-1A version is one of the two engine options for the
new Airbus A320neo, the other being the PurePower PW1000G
developed by Pratt & Whitney;

> the LEAP-IB version is the sole source for the new Boeing 737 MAX;

> the LEAP-1C version is the sole Western source for the
propulsion system (engine plus nacelle) on China-based
COMAC’s C919 aircraft.

By the end of 2017, purchase intention and firm order agreements
for the highly innovative LEAP engine totaled 13,728 units.
This sales success builds on the successful performance of the
LEAP-1A engine in 2016 and the LEAP-1B in 2017. Throughout
2017, a total of 459 LEAP engines were delivered to Airbus and
Boeing. Two COMAC C919 aircraft powered by LEAP-1C engines
made their maiden flights from Shanghai-Pudong airport (China)
during the year.

Taking into account the 474 firm orders and purchase commitments
received for CFM56 engines in 2017, the overall backlog
(CFM56 and LEAP) represents more than 14,834 engines at
December 31, 2017, or almost eight years of production at current
output rates. This success confirms CFM International as leader
in the market for 100+ seater aircraft.
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High-thrust engines for civil aircraft

The Group operates in this engine range as a risk and revenue
sharing partner, primarily with GE. Participation rates vary
between 7% and 24% across several engine programs in series
production, including the CF6 powering the A330 (19.4%) and
the Boeing 767 (10%), and the GE9QO powering the Boeing 777
(23.7% for the -115 version currently in production). Safran is a
partner on the GEnx engine program: 7.7% for the 1B version
powering the Boeing 787 Dreamliner long-haul aircraft and
7.3% for the 2B version powering the Boeing 747-8. Safran also
partners with GE, at 11.2%, on the program for the forthcoming
GE9X engine, the sole source for Boeing’s new 777X long-haul
aircraft, which is slated to come into service in 2020. Finally, as
part of its cooperative arrangements with the Engine Alliance
consortium partners (GE and Pratt & Whitney), Safran has a
17.5% stake in the GP7200 engine which powers the A380.

Spare parts and services for civil aircraft engines

After-sales operations primarily involve the sale of spare parts
and the provision of maintenance, repair and overhaul (MRO)
services. They hold significant growth potential for the Group,
owing to the size and lifespan of the aircraft fleets concerned.

Each CFM56 engine is removed for inspection and servicing in
a maintenance workshop three to five times during its service
life. For several years, the Group has also been developing
long-term service contracts with airline companies and the
main maintenance workshops to assert its position on this
highly competitive market. Sales of spare parts for the fleet of
CFM56 engines in service will thus continue to increase even
after series production of this engine has been discontinued.

New-generation LEAP engines may be sold with contracts
covering the provision of spare parts and/or services, which
contribute to generating long-term revenue. Safran also draws
revenue from sales of spare parts.

On other civil aircraft engine programs, including those for
high-thrust engines in which Safran holds a minority stake
alongside GE or Engine Alliance, the Group also benefits from
revenue from spare parts and service contract sales.

Military aircraft engines

Key characteristics of the business sector

The military aviation sector comprises three main segments:
> fighters and combat drones;

> training and support aircraft;

> patrol, tanker and transport aircraft.

The military aircraft engine and related services market is
dependent on the budgets of customer air forces. The military
market is also influenced by national independence and diplomatic
considerations.

The nature and performance of engines vary considerably
depending on the segment: jet engines with a high thrust-to-
weight ratio for fighters, and jet engines or turboprops closer
to those found in civil aircraft for training and patrol aircraft.

As in the civil aviation sector, military engine programs generally
involve two types of activities, namely original equipment and
after-sales service, the latter comprising the sale of spare parts,
maintenance and repair activities, as well as other customer
services.

Alliances and partnerships between engine manufacturers
have been forged to bring together the best technological
and commercial assets, pool risks, and meet the needs of
pan-European programs.

The majority of civil engine manufacturers are active in military
aircraft engines and benefit from the technical synergies that
exist between the two activities.

The main Western players on the fighter engines market
are Pratt & Whitney, GE, Rolls-Royce and Safran. The main
European participants are: Safran, whose M53 engine powers
the Mirage 2000 and whose M88 engine equips the Rafale;
Rolls-Royce, whose Pegasus engine powers the Harrier; and
the European Turbo-Union consortium®, for the RB199 engine
powering the Tornado fighter. The European Eurojet consortium®
develops the EJ200 engine that powers the Eurofighter Typhoon.

The choice of engines in the training and support aircraft sector
consists mainly of those made by Safran (the Larzac, which powers
the Alpha Jet, and the Adour in cooperation with Rolls-Royce),
Pratt & Whitney (PW500 and PW300) and Honeywell (TFE731
and F124 engine families).

In the engine segment for military tanker, transport and patrol
aircraft, the fleet is primarily made up of the T56 and AE2100
turboprops developed by Rolls-Royce North America (formerly
Allison) and the Tyne engines developed by Rolls-Royce
and made under license by Tyne Consortium (Safran 52%,
MTU Aero Engines 28% and Rolls-Royce 20%). Safran is also
involved in the program for the TP400 engine powering the
A400M European military transport aircraft, with a 32.2% stake
in the Europrop International GmbH (EPI) consortium, which
also includes Rolls-Royce, Industria de Turbo Propulsores - ITP
and MTU Aero Engines.

Group products and programs

Safran’s operations in the military aircraft engines segment mainly
involve Safran Aircraft Engines, Safran Helicopter Engines and
Safran Aero Boosters.

Fighter engines

Historically tied to Dassault Aviation, activity in this segment is
based mainly on the following programs:

> the Atar engine (4.5 to 7.1 metric tons of thrust), which powers
the Super-Etendard jets and the Mirage IlI, IV, 5, F1and 50 family.
A total of 480 engines remain in service with 6 customers;

> the M53 engine (9.5 metric tons of thrust), which powers
the Mirage 2000. There are 577 of these engines in service
with 8 customers;

> the M88 engine (7.5 metric tons of thrust), which powers the
Rafale. There are 400 of these engines in service with 2 customers.

Training and support aircraft engines

Activity in this segment is based on the following programs:

> the Larzac engine (1.4 metric tons of thrust), which powers
Dassault Aviation’s Alpha Jet training aircraft. At the end of
2017, there were 450 engines in service with 7 customers;

> the Adour engine, which delivers thrust of 3.7 metric tons
(with afterburner) or 2.9 metric tons (without afterburner).
Made in cooperation with Rolls-Royce, it powers support and
attack aircraft such as the Jaguar aircraft produced by Dassault
Aviation and BAE Systems, and training aircraft such as the Hawk
produced by BAE Systems and the Goshawk T-45A produced
by Boeing. There are currently 1,J00 Adour engines in service.

(1) The Turbo-Union consortium comprises Rolls-Royce, MTU Aero Engines (Germany,) and Avio (Italy).
(2) The Eurojet consortium comprises Rolls-Royce, MTU Aero Engines, Avio and Industria de Turbo Propulsores - ITP (Spain).
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Patrol, tanker and transport aircraft engines

Activity in this segment is based on the following programs:

> the CFM56 engine powering military versions of the Boeing 707
(CFM56-2), the KC135 tanker aircraft and the Boeing 737
(CFM56-7), the C-40 transport aircraft, the P-8 Poseidon MMA
(Multimission Maritime Aircraft), and the AEW&C (Airborne
Early Warning & Control) aircraft;

> the 4,550 kW Tyne turboprop engine, developed by Rolls-Royce
and manufactured under license by Tyne Consortium. This engine
powers C-160 Transall transport aircraft and Breguet Atlantic
and Atlantique 2 maritime patrol aircraft. Series production of
this program has ceased but it continues to generate revenue
through spare parts and repairs;

> the 8,203 kW TP400 turboprop engine powering the
Airbus A400M European military transport aircraft, with
259 engines in service.

Spare parts and services for military aircraft engines

After-sales operations for military aircraft primarily involve
the sale of spare parts and repair services. These activities are
directly linked to the aircraft availability needs of governments
using military aircraft. Two programs account for the bulk of
these military aircraft service operations today: Mirage 2000
(M53 engine) and Rafale (M88 engine). The Group also continues
to provide services for older aircraft fleets, to meet the needs
expressed by customers.

Because of the extreme operating conditions involved, military
aircraft engines are usually serviced before they reach 1,000 hours
in flight. One of Safran’s constant development objectives is to
lengthen the interval between servicing visits. In 2012, the Group
introduced a new variant of the engine that powers the Rafale,
the M88 Pack CGP, helping to maintain the aircraft in optimal
operating condition. Hot parts and rotating parts have a longer
service life, lengthening inspection intervals for the main engine
modules and considerably reducing the M88 cost of ownership.
Currently, governments generally delegate the management of
their spare parts to the engine manufacturer.

Space vehicle propulsion systems

Key characteristics of the business sector

This business sector covers satellite engines.

Plasma propulsion has emerged as the preferred solution
for satellite orbit raising and attitude and orbit control. This
technology, also referred to as Hall-effect or stationary plasma
propulsion, has a considerable advantage over traditional chemical
propulsion systems as regards take-off mass.

The main participants in the plasma propulsion market, besides
Safran, are EDB Fakel (Russia) and Aerojet Rocketdyne
(United States).

Group products and programs

Safran’s operations in plasma propulsion systems for satellites
and space exploration probes involve Safran Aircraft Engines.

The Group has been developing, integrating, testing and
marketing plasma thrusters and plasma propulsion systems with

(D Source: Safran.

PRESENTATION OF THE GROUP

Group businesses

power ratings from 300 W to 20 kW for more than 30 years.
They can be found on the telecommunication platforms
Eurostar 3000 EOR (Airbus Defence and Space), Alphabus
(Thales Alenia Space and Airbus Defence and Space) and
Electra (OHB - Orbitale Hochtechnologie Bremen, Germany).
Safran plasma thrusters have also been selected for the
SSL telecommunication platforms (United States), on Boeing
commercial platforms and under the European Space Agency (ESA)
Neosat program for the Airbus Defence and Space Eurostar Neo
and the Thales Alenia Space Spacebus Neo platforms.

1.3.1.2 Helicopter turbine engines
and auxiliary power units

Key characteristics of the business sector

The helicopter turbine engine market is characterized by
significant diversity in applications and end-users. With the
exception of armed forces and certain specific civil applications,
current helicopter fleets are small in size.

Some 48,000 helicopters were in service worldwide in 2017,
To meet growing demand and replace helicopters scheduled for
dismantling or decommissioning, a total of around 35,000 helicopters
are expected to be delivered over the next 20 years®.

Helicopter engine size is determined mainly by airframe weight
and mission type. Helicopters may have one, two or sometimes
three engines.

The Group serves:

> government and semi-public applications: police, border
control, medical and emergency services;

> civil applications: offshore oil industry, transportation, tourism
and private ownership, and airborne work such as spraying
and construction;

> military applications: transport, attack and ground support,
maritime patrol.

This diversity, coupled with the fact that engines are tightly
integrated into the helicopter airframe, gives rise to a wide
variety of engines and associated versions.

The helicopter turbine engine market, like the civil aviation
market, has two components:

> sale of turbine engines to helicopter manufacturers for
installation in new airframes (original equipment);

> after-sales activities based on spare part, maintenance and
repair contracts with operators, requiring a major global
customer support network with local reach, given the large
number of users and the helicopter’s limited radius of action.

The profile of a helicopter turbine engine program is extremely
similar to that of a civil aircraft engine program as presented
earlier in the section.

The airframe/engine pairing is often unique and at the origin
of a new model. However, there is a trend toward multiple
engine sizes among some helicopter manufacturers (offering
a choice between two engines). This can also be seen where a
helicopter is adapted for a specific purpose, thereby reintroducing
competition to a given program.
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There are fewer partnerships between engine manufacturers
than in the civil aviation engine sector. The main partnership is
MTRI (MTU Aero Engines, Safran Helicopter Engines, Rolls-Royce
and Industria de Turbo Propulsores - ITP), on the 1,450 shp®
MTR390-E engine powering the Tiger. The growth of the helicopter
market in emerging economies has also led Safran to develop
other types of partnerships with consortiums of helicopter
manufacturers claiming a role in the propulsion sector. This is
the case with HAL (Hindustan Aeronautics Ltd.) in India and
AVIC in China, which are becoming both customers and partners.

The majority of major Western aircraft manufacturer groups
are also present in the helicopter turbine engine market:
Safran, GE, Pratt & Whitney Canada, Rolls-Royce and Honeywell
(United States).

Safran has also developed a range of auxiliary power units, based
on turbine technology and featuring innovations developed
through substantial technological investment and strategic
partnerships.

MARKET SHARE: SALES OF HELICOPTER ENGINES, 2013-2017%

5% 26%
Other Safran
3%

Honeywell

1%

Rolls-Royce

17% 18%
Klimow Pratt & Whitney

and Motor Sich

Canada

Group products and programs

Most of Safran’s helicopter engines are modular turbine units
adaptable to civil and military helicopters. Modularity makes for
more efficient maintenance programs. Safran helicopter engines
are designed with a large additional power potential (up to
15%), which means they address a broad application spectrum.
Through Safran Helicopter Engines, Safran covers all of the
helicopter engine categories described below.

Auxiliary power units are non-propulsive systems that generate
energy on an aircraft for powering onboard systems. Safran fields
a range of auxiliary power units through Safran Power Units.

Turbine engines for light helicopters

For single-engine helicopters from 2 to 3 metric tons and
twin-engine helicopters from 4 to 6 metric tons, Safran offers
three engine families: Arrius (450 to 750 shp), Arriel (590 to
more than 1,000 shp) and Arrano (1,100 to 1,300 shp).

Arrius engines and their derivatives power many civil
helicopters from Airbus Helicopters (H120, H135), Kamov
(Ka-226T) and Bell (Bell 505 Jet Ranger X), along with military
versions from Airbus Helicopters (Fennec) and Leonardo
(A109 LUH - Light Utility Helicopter).

(1) Shp. shaft horsepower.
(2) Ascend - FlightGlobal.
(3) European Aviation Safety Agency.
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Arriel engines and their derivatives power helicopters manufactured
by Sikorsky (576 C++), AVIC (AC311A, AC312) and Airbus Helicopters
(H125, H130, H145, H155, AS365 N3+), as well as military models
manufactured by Airbus Helicopters (H145M, AS565MBe, etc.). These
engines have also been selected by Korea Aerospace Industries
(KAD to power its forthcoming LCH (Light Civil Helicopter) and
LAH (Light Armed Helicopter).

The Arrano will consume 10% to 15% less fuel than the previous
generation of engines in service today, meaning enhanced
performance (range, payload) and a smaller environmental
footprint. Airbus Helicopters selected the Arrano as the sole
source for its twin-engine H160 helicopter (5.5 to 6 metric tons).

Turbine engines for medium-weight helicopters

For helicopters from 5 to 7 metric tons, Safran is present in
the military market for combat helicopters, with the MTR390
(1,250 to 1,450 shp), developed jointly with Rolls-Royce and
MTU Aero Engines, that powers the Airbus Helicopters Tiger,
and the TM333 (900 to 1,100 shp) that powers HAL’s Dhruv. A
special development contract has been signed with Spain for a
more powerful version of the MTR390 for the Tiger.

For helicopters from 5 to 8 metric tons, Safran’s Ardiden range
of engines covers power ratings from 1,400 to 2,000 shp. The
Ardiden 1H1/Shakti powers the Dhruv and twin-engine light
combat helicopters (LCHs) from Indian helicopter manufacturer
HAL. HAL selected the Ardiden 1U variant to power its light
utility helicopters (LUHs). The Ardiden 3G, which obtained
EASA® certification in 2017, is designed for helicopters of
up to 8 metric tons, and has already won orders from Kamov
(Russian Helicopters) for the Ka-62. In China, tests are continuing
on the Ardiden 3C/WZ16 for use with the AC352/Z-15 helicopter.

Turbine engines for heavy-lift helicopters

In the heavy-lift helicopters market, Makila turbine engines
from 1,800 to 2,100 shp are used on helicopters including the
H 225/225M and Super Puma from Airbus Helicopters.

The RTM322 turbine engine, which develops 2,100 to 2,600 shp,
powers the NHIndustries NH9O helicopter, and the Leonardo
AW101 Merlin helicopter and Apache UK fighter helicopter.

In 2017, Safran unveiled its new range of high-power Aneto
engines, which feature advanced technologies developed
as part of the Group’s research work. This engine range will
include models with power ratings from 2,500 to more than
3,000 shp. The Aneto engine range has the advantage of being
25% more powerful than existing engines of the same size.
Enhanced capabilities make the Aneto an attractive choice for
helicopters required to perform missions in harsh environments
(offshore transport, military transport, search and rescue and
firefighting) or “hot and high” conditions. The first model, the
2,500-shp Aneto-1K, was selected by Leonardo to power its
twin-engine helicopter AW189K, which made its maiden flight
in March 2017. This helicopter is set to come into commercial
service in 2018, and certification of the Aneto-1K engine will fit
in with this schedule.



Spare parts and services for helicopter turbine engines

Following the example of its civil aviation activities, Safran has
developed an international structure able to provide customers
with local access to technical and sales support for their turbine
engines, along with spare parts and services. Local coverage
is provided through a worldwide network of repair centers
(performing in-depth maintenance) and service centers.

Aucxiliary power units

The auxiliary power units developed by Safran meet the demanding
requirements of the world’s leading aircraft and helicopter
manufacturers. Safran supplies a large fleet of civil and military
aircraft and helicopters, including Alenia Aermacchi’s M-346,
Dassault Aviation’s Rafale, BAE Systems’ Hawk, NHIndustries’
NH9O0 and Airbus Helicopters’ H225M. Safran auxiliary power
units will also power future business jets from Bombardier (the
Global 7000).

Safran has developed a new auxiliary power unit, the e-APU,
specially designed and optimized to meet the needs of
new-generation business jets and “more electric” helicopters.
This system is used on the Leonardo AW189 helicopter.

Safran also provides after-sales support for these high-technology
systems.

1.3.1.3 Launch vehicles

Key characteristics of the business sector
This business sector comprises three main segments:

> the civil space industry, with launch vehicles for placing
satellites in orbit;

> the military industry, with ballistic and tactical missiles;

> products, equipment and services for satellites and civil
and military launch vehicles, as well as production of critical
infrastructure (satellite integration center, remediation units,
etc.), gas generators for car airbag systems, and production
of parts for the aerospace industry.

In the first two segments, development and engineering programs
tend to be long and financed by institutional budgets, such
as ESA for civil space activities in Europe or national defense
budgets for strategic operations. Tactical missile development
is also financed by customer governments.

In the civil space industry, competition is quite intense. The main
competitors of Arianespace (a subsidiary of ArianeGroup, itself
a 50-50 joint venture with Airbus) in the market for commercial
launch services are the US company Space X, with its Falcon 9
launch vehicle, and the Russian Proton launch vehicle marketed
by ILS (International Launch Services). The relevance of the
forthcoming Ariane 6 launch vehicle becomes clear when
considering that competition is set to intensify from 2020 due to
the number of new launch vehicles currently under development.
These new projects are run by other players, in the United States
(New Glenn and Vulcan), Russia (Angara), India (GSLV), China
(Long March5) and Japan (H3).
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The military launch vehicle segment covers ballistic and tactical
missiles:

> ballistic missiles are an essential component of national nuclear
deterrent forces for countries possessing this capability. In
Western Europe, France is the only country to develop its own
ballistic missiles powered by solid-propellant engines. The main
players in the ballistic missile segment are ArianeGroup in
Europe and Lockheed Martin and Boeing in the United States;

> tactical missiles appear in all battlefield situations. They use
various types of propulsion systems (solid propellant, turbojet
and ramjet). Safran primarily covers the solid-propellant
propulsion sector, through its stakes in Roxel and ArianeGroup,
and the turbojet propulsion sector, through Safran Power Units.
Other main players in the sector of solid-propellant engines
for tactical missiles are Nammo (Norway), Bayern Chemie
(Germany), Avio (ltaly), Aerojet Rocketdyne (United States),
Orbital ATK (United States) Rocketsan (Turkey) and Denel
(South Africa).

The third segment is purely commercial: products, equipment
and services for the main satellite manufacturers, and gas
generators for car airbags.

Group products and programs

Safran covers the civil and military launch vehicle sector through
ArianeGroup®, a 50-50 joint venture with Airbus. ArianeGroup
is the product of the joint ambition of Safran and Airbus to drive
the European space industry to unrivaled heights, in a context
of mounting international competition. It merges both partners’
businesses and expertise in civil and military launch vehicles
into a single, coherent entity.

Safran covers the sector of propulsion systems for tactical missiles
and targets though Roxel and Safran Power Units.

Civil space industry

ArianeGroup is the prime contractor for the Ariane 5 launch
vehicles developed by ESA, which involves coordinating an
industrial network of more than 550 companies in 12 European
countries. It manages the whole of the industrial chain, which
covers plant and equipment, engine manufacture, integration
of the individual stages, then integration of the whole launch
vehicle in French Guiana. ArianeGroup is also prime contractor
on the program for the forthcoming Ariane 6 launch vehicles,
the first flight of which is expected in 2020. It contributes to
the solid propulsion component of the Vega program, and to
prime contractorship for the Russian Soyuz launch vehicle in
French Guiana. Its Arianespace subsidiary, a front-line world
player, takes charge of marketing and operation of these launch
vehicles.

Through its subsidiary Eurockot, ArianeGroup also markets and
operates the light space launcher Rockot.

Ballistic missiles

In the military market, ArianeGroup takes part in the missiles
program for France’s fourth-generation ocean-going strategic
nuclear force (M51). Following the M51.1 version, which came
into operation in 2010, and M51.2, in 2016, the next development
phase, M51.3, will adapt the M51 missile to the geopolitical context
of the coming years.

(1) Airbus Safran Launchers was renamed ArianeGroup on July 1, 2017.
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Tactical missile propulsion

ArianeGroup assembles thrusters for the Mistral missile and the
acceleration and tip-up system (SAB) on the MACN® missile,
for MBDA. It also develops technologies for forthcoming
high-performance propulsion systems (modular propulsion,
DACS®, etc.) under national and international R&T contracts.

Safran covers the sector of solid propulsion systems for tactical
missiles through its stake in Roxel, a 50-50 joint venture with
MBDA. Roxel develops and manufactures a large range of
solid-propellant engines for tactical missiles of international
renown (Milan, MICA®, AASM®_ Exocet, Aster, Meteor, etc.).

Through Safran Power Units, the Group is a leading global
player in jet engines for military applications (missiles and
targets). Safran produced the engines for MBDA’s C22 targets,
the MQM 107 targets used by the US Air Force and the targets
produced by Italian company Galileo for NATO forces in Europe.

1.3.2 Aircraft Equipment

Safran’s Aircraft Equipment business operates in three sectors:

> LANDING AND BRAKING SYSTEMS

e Landing gear

* Wheels and brakes

e Electric taxiing

¢ Landing and braking systems

e Services for landing gear, wheels and brakes
and related systems

> ENGINE SYSTEMS AND EQUIPMENT

* Nacelles and thrust reversers
¢ Power transmissions

> ELECTRICAL SYSTEMS AND ENGINEERING

¢ Electricity generation and distribution

¢ Electrical interconnection systems (wiring)
¢ Ventilation systems and electric motors

¢ Engineering

This business covers the design, manufacture, sale, maintenance
and repair of aircraft equipment, provision of related services and
sale of spare parts. In 2017, a total of 24,471 Safran employees
contributed to the development of this business.

(1) MJCN: naval cruise missile.

(2) DACS:. Divert and Attitude Control System.

(3) MICA: interception, combat and self-defense missile.
(4) AASM: modular air-to-ground weapon.

(5) Source: ArianeGroup.

(6) IRIS-T: Infra Red Imaging System Tail/Thrust Vector-Controlled.

24 SAFRAN - 2017 REGISTRATION DOCUMENT

Products, equipment and services

ArianeGroup currently sells products, equipment and services in
more than 50 countries, and is the supplier to the main satellite
manufacturers. It is also the supplier to a quarter of the European
market and around 7% of the world market for gas generators
in car airbag systems®,

Through its Pyroalliance subsidiary, ArianeGroup provides
pyrotechnic equipment on a broad range of missiles including
MdCN, SCALP, Aster, Exocet, MICA, IRIS-T®, Crotale, Otomat,
Marte and Eryx.

Through its CILAS (Compagnie Industrielle des Lasers) subsidiary,
ArianeGroup develops, engineers and manufactures systems
coupling laser and precision optics technologies in high-tech
military and civil applications.

ArianeGroup’s Sodern subsidiary fields cutting-edge expertise
in space instrumentation, optics and neutronics.

ArianeGroup’s Nuclétudes subsidiary provides prime expertise
in tests and engineering on ruggedization, for the protection of
electronic systems and mechanical structures in harsh radiative
and electromagnetic environments.

The Group enjoys leading positions in each of its sectors in
recent and prospective major short-, medium- and long-haul
commercial aircraft programs by Airbus, Boeing and COMAC,
and in helicopter programs by Airbus Helicopters, Leonardo,
Sikorsky and Bell.

Thanks to its technological expertise in a large number of aircraft
equipment sectors, the Group is a preferred partner of aircraft
manufacturers and is able to offer a comprehensive range of
products and services. Safran is notably the sole comprehensive
“ATA 32” supplier (landing gear + brakes + systems).

Safran’s substantial capacity for innovation has enabled it to
carve out either leading or major positions in its markets. Other
players such as UTC Aerospace Systems (United States) and
Honeywell are present in several sectors of the aircraft equipment
market, whereas Liebherr (Germany), Spirit (United States), Moog
(United States), Thales (France), Meggitt (United Kingdom),
LATelec (France) and GKN (United Kingdom) specialize in only
one or two specific sectors.

Adopting a less systematic approach than in the Aerospace
Propulsion business, Safran has formed a number of alliances and
partnerships in the Aircraft Equipment sector, on an individual
product and program basis.

Market characteristics are outlined individually below, for each
business area.



1.2.2.1 Landing and braking systems
This business comprises three main product lines: landing gear,
wheels and brakes, and landing and braking systems.

Safran has combined these operations within Safran Landing Systems.
This organization is in response to market shifts toward more
tightly integrated offerings addressing both aircraft manufacturers
and airline companies.

Landing gear

Key characteristics of the business sector

The market for commercial aircraft landing gear is shared
by Safran, UTC Aerospace Systems, Liebherr, Héroux-Devtek
(Canada) and a handful of niche players positioned in specific
market segments (business jets, helicopters, drones, etc.).
Technology requirements are high, as landing gear must bear
extreme loads during maneuvers on the ground: it must be
light, compact and robust, while being fully adapted to and
optimized for the aircraft’s profile. The business model includes
along development period - which starts with the initial aircraft
development phase - limited production volumes and regular
service flows. Technological challenges include the use of new
materials to improve the resistance and mass of parts, new, more
eco-friendly production processes (including the elimination of
chrome) and enhanced acoustics.

Group products and programs

Safran addresses the landing gear segment through
Safran Landing Systems, which holds around half the market®
for commercial aircraft landing gear.

Safran designs, manufactures and provides after-sales services
for landing gear for civil and military planes and helicopters of
all sizes. It also handles integrated systems if requested by the
customer, and provides the technical assistance, spare parts
and repair services needed for its equipment.

Safran is worldwide leader® for landing gear structural units,
having equipped a fleet of some 27,000 aircraft. The Group
supplies the world’s major aircraft manufacturers (including
Airbus, Boeing, Bombardier and Dassault Aviation) and military
and civil operators. Among the main commercial aircraft programs
are the entire Airbus range, including the A350, and Boeing’s
787 Dreamliner.

The Group also has a strong presence in military applications,
where it equips the A400M, Rafale, Eurofighter Typhoon, F18
and V22 planes and helicopters from Airbus Helicopters, as well
as in the business jet and regional jet markets (ATR, Bombardier,
Dassault Aviation - Falcon, Sukhoi, Fokker, Piaggio, etc.).

Wheels and brakes

Key characteristics of the business sector

The present-day wheels and brakes market for commercial aircraft
with 100 or more seats splits into two segments: aircraft with
steel brakes (first-generation brakes), which in 2017 account for
22%® of commercial aircraft of 100 or more seats, and aircraft
with carbon brakes, invented by Safran, which account for 78%®.

(1) Source: Safran.
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The market for carbon brakes has developed rapidly since the
1980s, with the increase in air traffic and the gradual phase-out
of steel brakes, replaced by carbon units. The wheels and brakes
market is currently shared among four major global participants:
Safran, UTC Aerospace Systems, Honeywell and Meggitt.

Group products and programs

Safran designs and manufactures wheels and carbon brakes
for aircraft, and provides related after-sales services. It also
provides electronic and electrohydraulic systems for aircraft
braking, tire/brake/landing gear monitoring and landing gear
steering systems.

Safran is a leading player in wheels and brakes, particularly for
civil applications (on the A320ceo, A320neo, A330, A330neo,
A340, A350, Boeing 737 NG, Boeing 737 MAX, Boeing 767,
Boeing 777 and Boeing 787) and the military sector (on the
A400M, Rafale, KC135 refueler and C-17 and KC-390 transport
aircraft).

With almost 9,000 aircraft fitted with Safran wheels and carbon
brakes, the Group holds more than half of the market® for aircraft
with over 100 seats and fitted with carbon brakes. Given the
size of the fleet equipped by Safran, 44% of which is less than
five years old, the business model underpinning this activity
contributes to strong revenue streams.

Electric taxiing

Electric taxiing enables aircraft to taxi at airports without having
to use their main engines or call upon airport towing services.
It primarily addresses economic and environmental challenges,
such as reduction in kerosene consumption, CO, emissions and
noise, and enables more fluid aircraft ground maneuvers.

Three companies including Safran are currently working on
electric taxiing systems.

Landing and braking systems

Key characteristics of the business sector

This market includes braking systems, orientation systems,
landing gear and door extension/retraction systems, and
monitoring systems. The main participants are Safran and US
companies UTC Aerospace Systems, GE Aviation Systems and
Crane Aerospace & Electronics (United States).

Group products and programs

Safran’s operations in the landing and braking system segment
mainly involve Safran Landing Systems. Customers include
Airbus, for all its programs, Boeing for the 747-8, Embraer for
its KC-390 military program, Gulfstream for its G650 program
and Dassault Aviation for its Falcon (7X, 2000 and 900) and
Rafale programs.

In the landing and braking electronic control systems segment,
Safran’s position is buoyed by its technological advance in electric
braking and its ability to propose to customers a comprehensive
offering encompassing landing gear, wheels and brakes, and
associated control systems.
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Services for landing gear, wheels and brakes
and related systems

Safran provides maintenance services for its own products
and for competitor products on commercial aircraft with more
than 100 seats, and, alone or in partnership, for regional jets
and business jets.

To provide maintenance services for landing gear and landing
and braking systems, Safran has developed regional repair
centers in Mexico, the United Kingdom, France, Singapore and
the United States, and will shortly be opening a center in China.
Some of these repair centers are managed as joint ventures
with partners such as Singapore Airlines Engineering Company,
China Eastern Airlines and Dassault Falcon Jet.

1.3.2.2 Engine systems and equipment
Nacelles and thrust reversers

Key characteristics of the business sector

The nacelle is a complex piece of equipment which optimizes
internal and external engine airflows, helps reduce noise and
incorporates safety components. It is made up of an air inlet, a
fairing, a thrust reverser and a nozzle. The thrust reverser, which
reverses the engine’s thrust to help brake the aircraft, represents
more than half the value of the nacelle.

Today’s market for aircraft engine nacelles splits into two main
segments, addressed by:

> nacelle component manufacturers;

> nacelle integrators such as Safran, capable of supplying engine
and aircraft manufacturers with complete nacelles. Nacelle
research requires specific technical expertise in areas such
as achieving acoustic, aerodynamic, thermal and mechanical
performance through the intensive use of composite material
and titanium technologies. Specifications vary with engine
power and location (under the wings for airliners and regional
jets, or at the rear of the fuselage for business jets).

Safran’s main competitor on the integrated nacelles market is
UTC Aerospace Systems.

Group products and programs

As a nacelle integrator, Safran designs, manufactures and
provides after-sales support for aircraft engine nacelles through
Safran Nacelles. On this market, the Group ranks second worldwide,
with market share of more than 17%®.

In the segment of nacelles for commercial aircraft with more
than 100 seats, Safran enjoys a long-standing position as a
manufacturer of complete nacelle systems and large thrust
reversers for the Airbus A320ceo, A320neo, A330, A330neo
and A380 platforms. Boeing selected Safran to supply titanium
exhaust systems for the 777X. Safran also supplies nacelles for
regional jets (Sukhoi Superjet 100, Embraer 170) and is a leading
supplier of nacelles for top-end business jets (Dassault Aviation,
Gulfstream, Bombardier, Cessna and Embraer), with a market
share of more than 28%®.

(1) Source: Safran.
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Safran is working in partnership with a GE subsidiary,
Middle River Aircraft Systems (MRAS), on the development
of the nacelle for the Airbus A320neo version powered by the
LEAP-1A engine from CFM International. Furthermore, Nexcelle,
an alliance entered into with GE in 2009 through its subsidiary
MRAS, developed the COMAC C919 nacelle as part of the CFM
International LEAP-1C "integrated propulsion system” package.
This contract comes with an industrial cooperation agreement
between Safran and the Chinese group AVIC. Nexcelle has also
been selected by GE to supply the nacelle for its Passport engine
on Bombardier Global 7000 business jets.

Services for nacelles and thrust reversers

Safran offers operators service solutions through its Customer
Support and Services Division (CSSD), generating revenue
in preventive maintenance programs, spare parts, services,
maintenance and repair.

Mechanical power transmission systems

Key characteristics of the business sector

The mechanical power transmission market covers a range of
applications, the main ones being accessory gearboxes (which
deliver mechanical energy to engine accessories), reduction
drives (which transfer power to the propeller blades on turboprop
aircraft and are also used in turbofan engines with very high
bypass ratios), and main transmission gearboxes (which transfer
power to the blades on helicopters). The main participants
in this market are the engine and helicopter manufacturers
themselves, along with aerospace equipment suppliers such as
the UTC Aerospace Systems group, GE, KHI (Japan), Triumph
(United States) and Northstar (United States).

Group products and programs

Safran’s operations in the mechanical power transmission sector
involve Safran Transmission Systems.

Safran designs, manufactures, markets and maintains a wide
range of mechanical power transmission systems for civil and
military aircraft engines and for helicopter engines. Recognized
technical expertise in mechanical power transmission systems
is harnessed to develop applications for the world’s leading
aircraft manufacturers and for Airbus Helicopters.

Aero Gearbox International (AGI), a 50-50 joint venture formed
by Safran and Rolls-Royce in 2015, specializes in the design,
development, production (and after-sales service) of power
transmission systems, the first application of which will be on
the A330neo. The company has exclusive coverage of the whole
range of Rolls-Royce’s forthcoming civil aircraft engines, and
strengthens Safran’s position among the leading participants
in this field.

1.3.2.3 Electrical systems
and engineering

The shift toward more electric aircraft systems is a major and
irreversible structural change undertaken by aircraft manufacturers
to increase safety, reduce weight and volume, lower costs, and
simplify aircraft manufacture, assembly and maintenance.



Two recent trends in the aircraft electrical systems market afford
Safran a rare opportunity for development:

> the more electric aircraft, as most of the hydraulic and
pneumatic systems found in present-day aircraft are phased
out by electrical systems. This change calls for a significant
increase in the power ratings of onboard electricity generation
and distribution systems, along with extremely high quality
requirements for electrical signals;

> electric hybridization, with gas turbines backed by electric
motors to reduce the aircraft’s carbon footprint.

Safran has bolstered its legitimacy in electrical systems through
substantial internal efforts in research and technology plus
external growth operations. Safran Electrical & Power brings
together all of Safran’s electrical systems operations under a
single dedicated unit:

> electrical interconnection systems;

> onboard electrical energy (generation and distribution);
> power electronics;

> maintenance and repair of electrical equipment;

> ventilation systems and electric motors;

> engineering, design and production services, especially for
electrical systems.

Electrical power generation and distribution systems

Key characteristics of the business sector

The electrical systems market mostly covers power generation
and distribution functions. This market is currently commanded
by a handful of major players including UTC Aerospace Systems,
Safran, Esterline (United States) and Zodiac Aerospace. Only
UTC Aerospace Systems and Safran field a comprehensive offering
covering main and backup power generation, conversion, and
primary and secondary distribution.

The power electronics market is more recent, arising directly from
developments in electrically powered aircraft functions (electric
thrust reversers, electric brakes, electric load control, etc.).
UTC Aerospace Systems, Honeywell and Safran have expertise
in this field.

Group products and programs

Safran covers these sectors through part of the electrical
businesses of Safran Electrical & Power.

Examples of Safran’s capacity for innovation in power electronics
include ETRAS (Electrical Thrust Reverser Actuation System),
the world’s first electric control system for nacelles, developed
on the A380, and EBAC (Electrical Braking Actuation Controller),
on the Boeing 787. These major technological advances, along
with Safran’s engine and electrical wiring expertise, enable
the Group to offer aircraft manufacturers innovative electrical
aircraft systems for their forthcoming programs.

Safran also provides all emergency backup power and primary and
secondary distribution systems for the Embraer KC-390 military
transport aircraft program, currently at the test-flight stage.

More recently, Safran won new contracts in primary and backup
power generation (Bell 525, MA-700, Boeing 777X and JAS Gripen).

(D Source: Safran.
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Electrical interconnection systems (wiring)

Key characteristics of the business sector

The Group is a leading worldwide supplier® in this market.
Wiring and electrical interconnection systems mainly comprise
electrical harnesses as well as main and secondary transformer
stations and other electrical cabinets.

Much of the aircraft wiring market is still in the hands of aircraft
manufacturers’ internal departments. Safran’s main rivals on
the aircraft wiring market are GKN (United Kingdom), LATelec
(France) and Ducommun LaBarge (United States).

Group products and programs

Safran’s operations in the wiring and electrical interconnection
system segment involve Safran Electrical & Power.

Safran provides electrical and layout design work in addition to
harness production and installation support services at the aircraft
manufacturer’s site, for customers including Airbus, Boeing and
COMAC. If requested, as on upgrade programs, Safran can take
on the planning and onboard installation stages. This can - as
with major programs such as the A380 and A350 - extend to
an “end-to-end” service covering engineering, manufacture and
installation support.

Ventilation systems and electric motors

Key characteristics of the business sector

Ventilation systems comprise various electrical, electronic,
mechanical and pneumatic subsystems.

High-performance ventilation systems perform the following
functions:

> management of air circulation in the cabin and cockpit;
> cooling of aircraft brakes on landing;

> cooling of avionics bays, which house systems including
the main aircraft controllers (flight control systems, digital
cockpit screens, etc.).

Safran, UTC Aerospace Systems and Honeywell are the main
participants with expertise in this field.

Group products and programs

Through Safran Ventilation Systems, Safran designs, manufactures
and markets ventilation systems for aircraft cabins and avionics,
and brake cooling systems for commercial and military aircraft
and helicopters.

Safran supplies all ventilation circuit equipment (valves, air filters,
nozzles, heat exchangers, flowrate sensors, pressure sensors,
etc.) along with the ventilation regulation and control system.
The Group has also developed expertise in electric motors fully
integrated in the aircraft electrical chain.
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Engineering

Key characteristics of the business sector

The engineering market is dependent on major development
programs, some of which have reached completion (Airbus A350
and Boeing 787). This means that major aircraft and equipment
manufacturers experience less need for prime engineering
expertise.

At the same time, major aerospace customers are trimming back
their supplier panels, and this gives rise to consolidation and
opportunities for those suppliers that are selected.

Competitive edge on the engineering services market depends
on the provider’s capacity to accompany its customers on an
international market, to offer offshore capabilities (with a pool
of engineers located in low-cost countries such as India) and
to develop and retain skills.

The Group's main competitors are leading French full-service
engineering groups such as Alten and Altran, and French niche
aviation engineering suppliers including Assystem and Aeroconseil.

1.3.3 Defense

The Defense business can be broken down into two key sectors:

> AVIONICS

¢ Flight control systems

¢ Onboard information systems and data
management and services

» Electronic equipment and onboard critical
software

* Aerospace navigation and sensors
¢ High-performance optics

> DEFENSE

* Optronics and sights

» Soldier modernization

* Navigation and sensors

¢ Seekers and guidance systems
e Drones

Safran is involved in major civil and defense programs, and is one of
the world’s leading providers of solutions and services in avionics,
optronics, electronics and critical software. Prime expertise in
these technologies enables Safran to offer armed forces, security
forces and civil customers optimally cost-effective solutions
matched closely to their needs, in land, sea and air applications.
Safran also draws upon the expertise of its subsidiaries, located
on all continents. In 2017, a total of 7,578 Safran employees
contributed to the development of this business.

In avionics, Safran’s customers include the leading aircraft
and helicopter manufacturers, as well as airline companies, in
particular Airbus Group, Airbus Helicopters, Dassault Aviation,
Hindustan Aeronautics Ltd., Embraer, Bell, Leonardo and COMAC.

In defense, Safran’s main partners and customers are govern-
ments (ministries or armed forces) and European groups such
as Thales, Airbus Group, Nexter (KNDS group), BAE Systems
(United Kingdom), MBDA, Leonardo, Saab AB (Sweden),
Dassault Aviation, Naval Group and CMI (Belgium).
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Safran is present in the engineering market through
Safran Engineering Services. In Europe, North America,
South America and Asia, Safran provides engineering services
in the aviation market and in related markets. Its expertise,
focused on five broad areas (electrical systems architecture,
aerostructures, mechanical systems, onboard systems and
certification support), is used by various Group companies, chief
among which ranks Safran Electrical & Power. Services are also
provided to major aviation customers (Airbus Group, Boeing,
Dassault Aviation, Embraer and COMAC) and land transport
companies (Alstom, Renault, Peugeot and Jaguar Land Rover).

For support in the design of new electrical system architectures,
Safran’s aircraft manufacturer customers see the expertise of
Safran Engineering Services, backed by Safran Electrical & Power,
as a determining factor.

1.5.3.1 Avionics

Key characteristics of the business sector

Safran’s avionics operations span five advanced-technology
product lines: flight controls, onboard information systems,
electronic equipment and critical software, aerospace navigation,
and high-performance optics.

In addressing several different markets and platforms with
common-core technology, Safran enhances competitive
performance and optimizes its product portfolio. It offers a full
range of systems and equipment for civil and military aircraft,
helicopters, drones, telescopes and satellites. These systems and
equipment enjoy wide recognition for performance and efficacy
in key avionics functions: flight controls, guidance, navigation,
onboard information, engine regulation, calibration, braking and
landing controls, observation and maintenance.

Safran’s main competitors in these businesses in France and abroad
include Thales, BAE Systems, Rockwell Collins (United States),
Honeywell and Teledyne (United States).

Group products and programs

Safran’s avionics operations mainly involve Safran Electronics & Defense.

In the aeronautical sector, innovative systems developed by Safran
contribute to pilot comfort, flight safety, navigation and aircraft
performance. Safran is involved in the largest aircraft programs,
including NH90O (NHIndustries), Caracal (Airbus Helicopters),
A400M, A320ceo, A320neo, A380 and A350 (Airbus), Rafale
(Dassault Aviation) and 787 Dreamliner (Boeing). Building on
its extensive expertise in flight data management, Safran also
develops, through its Cassiopée services offering, high-performance
solutions to optimize maintenance costs, reduce CO, emissions
and fuel consumption and improve flight safety.



In the space and astronomy sector, Safran designs and produces
high-precision optical systems for earth and space observation.
These land-based or satellite-borne systems contribute to
the success of major international scientific programs. Safran
has also been selected by ArianeGroup to be the supplier for
SpaceNaute, the inertial reference unit on the new ESA launch
vehicle, Ariane 6.

Flight control systems

As a worldwide leader® in civil and military helicopter flight
control, Safran offers systems, including autopilots, onboard
computers, flight control actuators and navigation systems,
designed to aid the pilot while maintaining a maximum level of
security. Safran flight control systems feature in many programs,
such as the H160 (Airbus Helicopters) and NH90 (NHIndustries)
helicopters and the KC390 (Embraer), ARJ21 (COMAC) and
C919 (COMAQC) planes.

Onboard information systems/data management and services

Safran has developed flight-data recording systems (Aircraft
Condition Monitoring System - ACMS) equipping ATR, Embraer,
Boeing and Airbus civil aircraft. Under Airbus prime contractorship,
Safran also provides the secure gateway between the cockpit
and the cabin information system for the A380 and A350.

Given the extensive fleet it equips among many airline companies,
Safran is ideally placed for developing its Cassiopée data
management service, which inputs recorded flight data to yield
results in areas such as flight analysis (Flight Data Management
- FDM), optimization of fuel consumption (SFCO,) and running
and maintenance costs.

Electronics and critical software

Given the strategic importance of onboard electronics and critical
software today, Safran vertically integrates these technologies
through Safran Electronics & Defense. Safran Electronics & Defense
subsidiaries in Canada, Asia and Europe offer good geographical
reach to customers, for development projects and for repair
and maintenance services.

Safran Electronics & Defense provides all Group companies with
world-leading electronic equipment and critical software. It
develops, produces, and maintains certified onboard computers
for numerous systems, particularly in aviation (FADEC®,
thrust reversers, nacelles, landing gear, braking systems and
flight control systems). With its partners, it has woven strong,
balanced links through FADEC International (joint venture with
BAE Systems) and FADEC Alliance (joint venture between GE
and FADEC International).

Electronic equipment

Safran Electronics & Defense specializes in increasingly integrated
electronic systems for harsh environments (temperature, vibration,
etc.). It designs and produces onboard computers used in engine,
flight, braking and landing gear control systems. Safran designs
and installs electronic control systems for electromechanical
actuators and for Safran Electrical & Power power converters®,

(1) Source: Safran.
(2) FADEC: Full Authority Digital Engine Control.
(3) See section 1.3.2.3, “Electrical systems and engineering”.
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In the space segment, Safran is conducting work on the electronic
propellant flow-rate regulation demonstrator for the future
Ariane 6 engines, and on electronic control systems for plasma
thrusters. Safran’s expertise in the production of electronic circuit
boards and complex computers is maintained through a strong
core of industrial excellence, particularly at its Fougéres plant.

Onboard critical software

Safran Electronics & Defense develops the complex critical
software used in Group onboard systems. Critical software is
software that plays a crucial role in flight safety and must therefore
comply with extremely demanding certification standards, as
regards dependability in harsh environments.

Safran teams handle software specification, architecture, coding,
verification, quality assurance, configuration management
and certification, using modern software platforms that yield
ever-higher efficiency.

Computer maintenance and repair

At its repair centers in France, the United States and Singapore,
Safran Electronics & Defense performs maintenance of its own
onboard computers along with systems from other Group
and third-party manufacturers. It also maintains and repairs
computers and electronic boards for many airline companies
and air forces worldwide.

Aerospace navigation and sensors

Safran holds comprehensive expertise in inertial navigation
technologies (mechanics, laser, fiber optics and resonant
structure), the product of more than 70 years’ experience in
civil and military navigation systems for all environments. For
its recognized capabilities, Safran was selected for the Rafale
fighter (Dassault Aviation), A400M transport aircraft (Airbus)
and Ariane 6 launch vehicle programs.

High-performance optics

Through its Safran Reosc subsidiary, Safran is a leading world player
in the design, manufacture and integration of high-performance
optical systems for astronomy, space, large-scale lasers and the
semiconductor industry.

Customer support

Safran’s customer support in avionics extends to high value-added
services, including repairs, equipment delivery and technical
support. Customer satisfaction is sustained through continuous
improvements in turnaround time (TAT) to achieve industry
benchmark level and thereby ensure the best competitive
performance in equipment availability. Given its highly varied
worldwide avionics customer base, Safran may localize support
services for closer contact with the customer. Customer support
performance is a key issue, providing a long-term revenue source
throughout the life cycle of an avionics product and developing
customer loyalty, thereby influencing customer choices on new
programs.
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1.5.5.2 Defense

Key characteristics of the business sector

As part of military operations, armed forces need equipment
that affords the highest degrees of precision and efficacy. The
defense sector thus covers an extensive range of equipment
and systems for air, land and sea applications, including soldier
modernization systems, combat vehicle digitization, drone systems,
night vision goggles and target identification systems, thermal
cameras, seekers and weapon systems, gyrostabilized sighting
and monitoring systems, navigation systems, and periscopes
and optronic masts for submarines.

Safran’s main competitors in these businesses in France and
abroad include Thales, BAE Systems, Leonardo, Elbit (Israel),
L-3 Wescam (Canada), FLIR Systems (United States) and
Northrop Grumman (United States).

Group products and programs

Safran’'s operations in the defense sector mainly involve
Safran Electronics & Defense businesses.

Safran covers the realtime sensor-to-shooter operational chain
with solutions for all land, sea and air settings, enhancing the
operational performance of units in the field with support in
surveillance, tactical support, information, navigation, orientation,
observation, detection, fire direction and protection.

Optronics and sights

Portable optronic equipment

Safran is a pioneer in portable optronics, and one of Europe’s
leading producers of the technology®. It offers a full range of
hardware and systems for surveillance, detection, pointing,
identification and target designation, for use under day or night
conditions. Its multi-purpose night-vision imagers, such as the
JIM LR long-range multifunction imager and the JIM Compact,
are widely used in overseas operations by French and allied
forces and are considered a global market benchmark.

Onboard systems

Safran equipment provides protection for land combat vehicles
(tanks and light vehicles). Stabilized sighting is a key part of the
performance of target identification and fire direction, under
day or night conditions, including ambulant firing capability.
Safran equips more than 7,000 land vehicles® in France and
other countries (Leclerc, VBCI, BMP3, etc.) with its range of
land vehicle sights, which includes PASEO.

In airborne optronics, Safran participates in major combat
helicopter programs, such as Tiger, NH90, Cougar, Panther
and Caracal. The STRIX and OSIRIS sighting systems meet
requirements on exceptionally demanding operational conditions
and guarantee the performance of the weapons systems. Euroflir
gyrostabilized electro-optical systems provide valuable service
in long-range observation and target location. They feature on
new airborne intelligence systems including the Patroller drone,
the Diamond-42 twin-engine aircraft (in cooperation with DCI)
and the T-C350 aerostat from A-NSE.

(1) Source: Safran.

In the naval field, Safran offers a full range of optronic surveillance,
fire direction and self-protection systems for surface vessels,
and has recognized expertise in optronic masts and periscopes
for conventional and nuclear submarines. Safran contributes to
many platforms, including the Charles-de-Gaulle aircraft carrier,
the ANZAC, FREMM & Horizon frigates, and the Scorpéene and
Agosta submarines. The new generation of nuclear combat
submarines, the Barracuda class, will be equipped with Safran’s
periscope system using non-penetrative optronic masts.

Soldier modernization

Safran harnesses experience from the FELIN® program on soldier
modernization in the French armed forces to offer innovative
and modular solutions, such as the NeoFelis system, addressing
the needs of various armed and security forces in France and
further afield. It builds on this know-how to offer capacity kits
focused on the key infantry combat functions of command,
observation, protection and engagement.

Safran is also pushing ahead with innovation and R&T in areas
such as mobility aids, with development of the exoskeleton, a
wearable biomechanical and electronic structure that provides
powered assistance to body movements. These technologies
hold considerable potential in the military, civil security and
industry sectors.

Navigation and sensors

Safran offers a wide range of inertial and stabilization systems
for all land, sea and air platforms and all performance classes.
This equipment offers high reliability, ultra-high precision and
extreme robustness, for dependable operation in the toughest
environments. Safran leads the European navigation systems
market and is a major supplier of navigation and stabilization
solutions in military deterrent and broader defense applications.

Seekers and guidance systems

Safran couples know-how in optronics and inertial systems to
offer infrared seekers for the main missiles used by the French
army, including Mistral, MICA IR and MMP®, as well as the
French-British light anti-ship missile Sea Venom/ANL®,

The AASM is a high-precision modular air-to-ground weapon
that can be used in all conditions, day or night. It is currently
in service on Rafale fighters belonging to the French air force
and navy as well as in other international air forces. It comes in
several versions and harnesses Safran expertise in many areas,
including infrared and image processing technology, inertial
components with hemispherical resonator gyro (HRG) and
laser guidance. It has proved highly effective in many overseas
operations.

Drones

Safran is active in drone systems through its expertise in critical
function chains, namely navigation and flight control, image
chain and data transmission. Safran tactical drone systems are
used on a daily basis in day- and night-time operations.

(2) FELIN: Fantassin a équipements et liaisons intégrés (infantrymen with integrated equipment and links).

(3) Medium-range missile
(4) Anti-Navire Léger (light anti-ship missile).
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For its experience in high-integrity drone flight control, Safran sits
on the Civil Drone Commission set up by the French Directorate
General for Civil Aviation (DGAC), along with other aerospace
companies, SMEs in the sector and major contractors. The
purpose of this commission is to organize and promote the civil
drone industry in France by drawing up technological roadmaps
for the development of safe civil usages.

The French Directorate General of Weapons Procurement (DGA)
selected Safran’s Patroller as the French army’s tactical drone
system in 2016.

Following on from its work on airborne drone development,
Safran has also developed an autonomous off-road demonstration
vehicle, the eRider, designed for logistics, convoy, perimeter

1.3.4 Security

Safran’s global security businesses include a suite of solutions
designed to increase safety and simplify the lives of individuals
in their roles as citizens, consumers and employers. They also
protect critical infrastructure and ensure travel safety. The security
businesses offer identification solutions based on multibiometric
technologies (fingerprint, iris and face recognition) including
transaction security and authentication solutions (identity
and security solutions), as well as systems for the detection of
dangerous or illicit substances in baggage (detection solutions).

1.4 COMPETITIVE POSITION

Safran covers international high-technology markets in aerospace
and defense.

In all these fields, Safran faces competition from both global
rivals and niche players in some markets.

The Group operates in the strictest observance of all applicable
rules on competitive business practice in all of its host countries,
complying with the specific measures governing competitive
business practice in each market.

1.5 RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

Safran is a high-technology group that offers high-value-added
products and services. In aircraft engines and equipment, and
in defense systems, technology and reliability requirements are
high, consistent with the highly critical nature of the applications
concerned. To meet these requirements, Safran harnesses highly
specialized advanced expertise in many fields: mechanics, metals,
composite materials, fuel and propulsion systems, aerodynamics,
combustion, thermodynamics, electrics, electronics, sensors,
signal processing, digital technologies, modeling and simulation.
Research and technology (R&T) comprises all studies, research
and technological demonstrations needed to develop expertise
for a given product at the lowest possible risk and cost and
within the shortest possible timeframe.
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protection, intelligence and reconnaissance missions. Efficient
partnerships with major groups (Valeo, PSA), innovative SMEs
and civil institutions facilitate the agile development of the
eRider concept with a view to producing the autonomous
vehicles of the future.

Customer support

Safran’s customer support includes high value-added services,
including repairs, equipment delivery, technical support and
training. All strive toward the same goal: ensuring that equipment
is in full working order at all times, a strategy primarily reflected
in Global Support Package contracts.

In 2017, Safran finalized the disposal of all its security businesses:

> on April 7, its detection businesses were sold to Smiths Group
(United Kingdom);

> on May 31, its identity and security businesses were sold
to Advent International (United States), the owner of
Orberthur Technologies (France), which serves various
segments of the security market.

To mobilize sufficient resources and share the industrial risks
involved in innovative and costly programs, participants in the
aviation industry can form partnerships capable of developing
new technologies, products and services. Accordingly, it is not
unusual to find otherwise rival companies joining forces on
certain aviation programs.

Further downstream, research and development (R&D) corresponds
to product design, prototype manufacture, development tests
and certification tests showing that the product meets customer
specifications and applicable regulations.

The Innovation Department spans R&T and R&D to nurture the
emergence of new developments using innovative concepts
and help Group companies identify, produce and validate
proof-of-concept demonstrators, thereby shortening development
lead times to meet time-to-market targets.

Close to 20% of Group employees are involved in R&D activities.
Safran’s R&T and innovation projects are guided by forward-looking
considerations, and the substantial budgets they draw are
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in line with the Group’s current or targeted positions in its
markets. Research, technology, innovation and development
are fundamental to the implementation of the Group’s strategy,
reflecting the importance given to preparing for the future and
developing new products and programs.

Under Safran’s R&T policy, each company in the Group
determines its own research program and concentrates on its
own objectives. In tandem, the Group is constantly working to
develop technology synergies.

R&T operations are guided by roadmaps charting the strategic
challenges faced by Group companies (competitive positioning
sought at different time-frames, along with the corresponding
technological demonstrations and fulfillment levers in terms of
external partnerships and internal synergies). The roadmaps
are analyzed on an annual basis by Group experts, who issue
recommendations accordingly.

1.5.1 Major technological focuses

1.5.1.1  Aircraft engine technologies

and new propulsion
configurations

ARCHITECTURE AND PERFORMANCE

Propulsion performance objectives and acceptability requirements
for future aircraft engines derive from work carried out through
ACARE®. Relative to 2000, objectives are set for two dates:
2020 and 2050. For 2020, aircraft propulsion systems are to
cut fuel consumption by 20%, pollutant emissions by 60% and
noise levels by 50%. The Flightpath 2050 publication specifies
reductions of 75% in greenhouse-gas emissions, 90% in nitrogen
oxide (NOx) emissions and 65% in noise levels by 2050.

The Group’s road map for the aircraft propulsion systems of the
future, through its subsidiary Safran Aircraft Engines, incorporates
two technology stages:

> the first stage is the LEAP turbofan engine, with a very high
bypass ratio. For those modules under the responsibility of
Safran Aircraft Engines in CFM International, this stage covers
advanced technologies such as a highly innovative lightweight
fan made from composite materials and a high-efficiency
low-pressure turbine. The LEAP engine, which came into
commercial operation in 2016, brings major improvements
in line with the ACARE 2020 objective, particularly in terms
of fuel consumption. It has been selected by Airbus for its
A320neo, by Boeing for its 737 MAX and by COMAC for its
C919, and has obtained all three required certifications. R&T
work is in progress on long-term continuous improvement in
engine performance;

(1) ACARE: Advisory Council for Aeronautics Research in Europe.

Safran Tech is the Group’s R&T center, located at the Saclay
high-tech cluster, France’s largest science and technology campus,
near Paris. The center’s more than 400 employees are split into
six units, covering energy & propulsion, materials & processes,
sensor technologies & applications, electrical & electronic systems,
signal & information processing, and modeling & simulation.
Safran Tech also runs platforms specially equipped for developing
next-generation materials and processes: Safran Composites,
Safran Advanced Turbine Airfoils, Safran Additive Manufacturing
and Safran Ceramics.

The Safran Tech center underlines the Group’s resolve to
intensify and mutualize R&T endeavors on major technological
breakthroughs. Safran Tech opens a new dimension to the
Group’s R&T operations, with an emphasis on open innovation.
Universities, public organizations, industrial partners and innovative
startups work with Safran Tech teams in joint laboratories or
on shared platforms, forming a creative, connected, top-level
scientific campus open to the outside world.

> the second stage is more ambitiously innovative, in line with
Flightpath 2050, whose objectives call for breakthroughs in
engine architecture through the exploration of developments
such as the open rotor concept and faired architectures
with very high bypass ratios. These have been addressed by
advanced research under national and European programs
outlined in the seventh FPRTD®, and are to continue under
the eighth FPRTD - Horizon 2020 (H2020). Specific initiatives
here include the Clean Sky Joint Technology Initiative. Safran
put its open-rotor demonstrator through its first ground tests
at the open-air test stand at its Istres facility in southern
France in October 2017.

Safran also cooperates with scientific and academic institutions
on groundwork in future aircraft propulsion configurations. To
this end, Safran founded the AEGIS chair with the ISAE-SupAero
engineering school.

Helicopter turbine engines are subject to similar imperatives
requiring reductions in fuel consumption and environmental
impacts. Through its subsidiary Safran Helicopter Engines, Safran
has undertaken ambitious technology programs to address future
market needs. A number of technologies developed under the
TECHS800 program have been adopted on the Arrano engine,
selected by Airbus Helicopters as the sole source for its new
H160. The Group’s technological progress strategy is backed
by work in close liaison with all its customers to come up with
innovative new engine integration developments such as hybrid
power architecture concepts in drive systems.

Scenarios considering the emergence of hybrid or even fully
electric propulsion are studied for smaller aircraft, “commuters”
or vertical take-off and landing aircraft associated with new uses
over short distances and in urban areas. Analyses and simulations
are also being performed looking at the potential contribution
of propulsion hybridization for short- and medium-haul aircraft
in groundbreaking propulsion configurations such as those
featuring fuselage boundary layer ingestion.

(@) FPRTD: Framework Program for Research and Technological Development.
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The need to lighten planes, helicopters and their equipment
has led to increased use of composite materials. Safran engines
and equipment (whether nacelles, landing gear or brakes) are
characterized by heavy mechanical loads and a more difficult
environment than for other aircraft sections such as airframes.
To develop its composite materials solutions, Safran set up the
Safran Composites Center, now part of Safran Tech, with resources
and expertise in organic matrix composites. Safran Ceramics,
the Group’s center of competence for these technologies,
provides core expertise in thermostructural composites for
aircraft engines, a major technological challenge addressed by
substantial research efforts. This research, along with work on
new metal alloys, and on high-performance coatings compliant
with European REACh® regulations, is coordinated by the
Safran Materials and Processes Department. Two platforms
are being set up, one for developing the new monocrystalline
casting techniques needed for engine development, and one
for additive manufacturing, which offers promising openings
in design, production and repair of mechanical components.

1.5.1.2 Electric technologies and new
power configurations

The move continues toward increased use of electrical energy
for aircraft systems and actuators. The movement, which started
with the A380 and Boeing 787 programs, will be a defining
characteristic of the next generation of short- and medium-haul
aircraft. The ultimate aim is overall aircraft energy optimization,
covering energy production and energy consumption, for both
propulsive and non-propulsive functions. The breadth of its
aircraft engine and equipment expertise allows Safran to explore
a huge spectrum of solutions for making tomorrow’s aircraft
more competitive, in terms of performance, functionality and
cost of ownership.

Expertise in aircraft electrical systems is rolled out through
Safran Electrical & Power and Zodiac Aerospace, giving the Group
some of the best technologies in electricity generation, conversion
and transmission and enabling it to adopt a whole-system
approach to aircraft electricals.

Optimization involves investigation into all forms of electricity
generation, from mechanical engine motion to auxiliary
power units (APUs) in hybrid solutions combining turbines,
fuel cells and batteries. This work involves several Group
companies: Safran Electrical & Power, Safran Power Units,
Safran Aircraft Engines and Safran Helicopter Engines. One of
the units of the Safran Tech innovation center is dedicated to
developing simulation systems for evaluating advanced global
energy and propulsive architectures.

Safranis involved in several technology programs alongside aircraft
manufacturers in a European or French context. Cooperation
on these programs takes various forms:

> academic cooperation, with fifteen or so CNRS® |laboratories
and major research organizations such as ONERA® and CEA®;
> industrial partnerships, such as with Alstom (France) and

Valeo (France), each recognized as technology leaders in
their sectors.

(1) REACh. Registration, Evaluation and Authorization of Chemicals.

(2) CNRS: French National Center for Scientific Research.
(3) ONERA: French National Aerospace Research Office.
(4) CEA: French Atomic Energy Commission.
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1.5.1.5 Digital technologies and digital
transformation

INDUSTRY 4.0

Design, production, maintenance and service tools and resources
benefit from Safran’s investments in digital solutions such as
augmented reality, robotics, imaging, artificial intelligence
and data use. These new applications significantly improve
operational performance in terms of the cycle, cost and quality
of high-tech products developed, manufactured and rolled out
by the Group. Digital solutions also meet the demands of the
Group’s customers, partners, and suppliers wishing to develop
collaborative co-design strategies and optimize their supply
chain and maintenance operations.

Automatic imaging solutions (based on machine learning)
developed by Safran Tech to inspect complex parts are already
used in the Group’s plants.

ADDITIVE MANUFACTURING

Additive manufacturing provides an opportunity to improve
costs, cycles and performance for numerous engine and aircraft
equipment components by reducing the number of parts and
components and introducing new methods of optimizing
design. Certification has already been obtained for the first
parts, which include fuel injector nozzles and combuster swirlers
for helicopter engines produced via selective laser melting,
which replaces an assembly of 15 components by a single part.
Safran Tech’s Safran Additive Manufacturing unit has the
resources to define different additive manufacturing processes
for metallic materials. These resources, along with partnerships
such as the one with Saclay’s Additive Factory Hub and the
specific program organization set up at Safran, help accelerate
the development of these processes for their future use in serial
production and repairs.

DATA PROCESSING

Innovation efforts are called for to address the growing role
played by services in the Group’s business. Techniques used to
diagnose and forecast the condition of airplane and helicopter
equipment and systems bring value for Safran product users,
as regards both operational considerations (optimization of
maintenance), and fleet management support (evaluation of
residual value). To address this need, Safran is developing its
Monitoring Services system for managing fleet equipment
operating data. Initial rollout of the new system has begun on
helicopters.

Big data information extraction techniques offer promising
development opportunities. Here, the Safran Analytics teams
at the Safran Tech site will be stepping up rollout of more agile
services, better oriented to value creation for aircraft operators.
Safran Analytics has designed and rolled out its own big data
platforms to facilitate the Group-wide implementation of data
analytics solutions. One of the first services implemented on
analytics environments consists in rendering aircraft trajectory
data. This allows Group companies to gain a better understanding
of how Safran products are used by customers, and thereby
improve their performance.
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ELECTRONICS, DIGITAL PLATFORMS
AND CRITICAL SOFTWARE

Given that onboard electronics technologies for harsh environments are
a central feature of many Group products, Safran Electronics & Defense
runs ambitious projects on controller architectures featuring more
efficient processors, and on component packaging capable of
withstanding the higher temperature environments of future
aircraft systems. On systems engineering, Safran is working on
process harmonization: a modern software development workshop
has been set up for Group-wide rollout.

1.5.1.4 Navigation and autonomy
technologies

Air, land, sea, satellite and weapons navigation markets are
constantly evolving and expanding: the integration of mobile
units into cooperative groups, increasing autonomy requirements,
and the required land-onboard continuum via secure links are
drivers of renewed demand and associated technologies. Safran’s
approach relies strongly on breakthrough HRG® technology,
whose characteristics make it possible to design and produce
world-leading navigation equipment and weapons at competitive
costs. Through its subsidiary Safran Electronics & Defense and the
Safran Tech sensors unit, the Group continues with the development
of MEMS®-technology accelerometers and gyrometers for
portable geolocation applications. With its prime expertise in
high-integrity navigation systems, Safran Electronics & Defense
leads the field in drone navigation.

Safran Electronics & Defense harnesses advanced optronics
and ICT® to develop innovations that will help the Group offer
enhanced operational efficacy to armies, navies and air forces.
Optronics needs range from imagers operating in one or more
wavelength bands through to full image processing systems
handling monitoring, detection, identification, fire control and
self-protection. Integrated battlefield perception and soldier
support solutions are developed using systems that couple
infrared sensor and light intensification technologies with other
functions such as geolocation and data analysis.

In its infrared sensors, Safran uses technologies from Sofradir,
a joint venture with Thales. Interchange of infrared sensor
technologies between the two partners enables Sofradir to offer
one of the world’s largest product ranges in this field. To extend
its technological sources to other types of sensor and their
integration in intelligent systems, Safran is working in partnership
with Valeo on autonomous vehicle technologies. Safran and
Valeo are also behind a research chair at the Ecole des Mines
engineering school in Paris, and opened a joint laboratory at
Magny-les-Hameaux in the Paris region in 2017.

The use of sensors and artificial intelligence in an integrated
system resulted in eRider, an autonomous vehicle demonstrator
for military applications which can transport infantry equipment
on the ground and navigate autonomously. The demonstrator
helped Safran Electronics & Defense win the Furious contract
put out for tender by the French Directorate General of Weapons
Procurement (DGA). This contract covers autonomous vehicles,
two other smaller robots and a drone, and is designed to lay the
groundwork for the integration of land robots into the French
armed forces as part of the Scorpion modernization program.

1.5.2 Technical and scientific partnerships

In implementing its R&T strategy, Safran draws on partnerships
providing it with scientific and technological expertise. Safran
thereby meets the two prerequisites for success: it identifies
known and latent market needs through customer contact, and
it adopts an open approach to what is an increasingly complex
and multidisciplinary scientific and technological environment.

In 2009, Safran created a scientific council, currently chaired
by Professor Mathias Fink, which comprises eight leading
international scientists bringing expertise in all the scientific
disciplines underlying Group businesses. This council meets every
three months and issues recommendations on the structure and
quality of the Group’s scientific partnerships.

For the first R&T levels, Safran has developed a network of scientific
partners in France in the university and applied research sectors.
Safran implements framework agreements with ONERA, CEA and
CNRS, which offer access to the best in French scientific research.
The Group has long-term partnerships with many research and
higher education organizations, some of whose laboratories form
valuable external research hubs. These partnerships also help
Safran recruit leading talents: Safran finances work on around
180 training-through-research (CIFRE) and technology research
diploma (DRT) courses, runs several international thematic networks
on key issues in aerodynamics, combustion, noise reduction,
mechanics, digital technology, etc., and backs five research chairs.

(1) HRG: hemispherical resonator gyro.
2) MEMS: Micro Electro Mechanical Systems.
(3) ICT: Information and communication technologies.

Safran was actively involved in the foundation of three TRI*
centers. It is also a major participant in several competitiveness
hubs, including System@tic, Aerospace Valley and ASTech.

Safran plays an active role in European Union bodies and programs.
Since 2008, Safran has been closely involved in establishing
the Clean Sky Joint Technology Initiative, bringing together
the leading players in aviation R&D along with the European
Commission in a demonstration program on air-frames, engines
and systems. In 2014, Safran worked to renew this public-private
partnership through to 2024: Clean Sky 2 is now operational.

Safran takes part in many international cooperative research
initiatives, with university laboratories in Europe, the United States,
Singapore and India. Initiatives to support the Group’s international
development are also run in a number of countries investing in
aerospace technologies, such as Brazil and Morocco.

Since 2017, R&T coordination between Safran and ArianeGroup
comes under a research framework agreement enabling the two
groups to organize interaction on scientific matters.

The intellectual property related to this cooperative work is defined
contractually at the beginning of projects between partners.
The general principle is that the intellectual property belongs
to the partners who performed or co-financed the work, and,
at the very least, Safran receives rights of use in its own field.

(4) TRI: technology research institutes formed under France’s PIA Investments for the Future Program.
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1.5.3 Innovation and intellectual property

Innovation is at the heart of Safran’s strategy. The competitiveness
of its products is largely based on the successful integration of
technological innovation or adjustments, providing the customer
with industry-leading performances. Safran’s ability to produce
breakthrough technological innovations is amply demonstrated
across a huge breadth of sectors, such as electric taxiing,
composite fan blades and hemispheric resonator gyros (HRGs).
A proof-of-concept approach involving close liaison across
Group companies affords an efficient and high-performance
organizational structure for managing innovation, typified by
the high-potential projects run by the Innovation Department.
Safran also develops cooperative innovation with its suppliers
and with startups working with the Group. The capacity to
identify then implement efficient cooperative operations with
outside partners helps Safran integrate best practices in order
to offer innovative and mature solutions within short leadtimes.

The development of technical expertise is also key to preparing
for the technological challenges of tomorrow. A process has been
set up to determine companies’ expertise needs Group-wide and
thereby plan ahead for renewals and training of new experts.

Intellectual property is a fundamental component of Safran’s
asset portfolio. The development and protection of intellectual
property is increasingly important given the growing trends toward
market globalization and intensifying competition. Intellectual
property responds to operational imperatives by strengthening
and securing Safran’s positions. The creative and innovative
ability of teams, and the special attention given to protecting
intellectual property, is demonstrated by the number of patents
filed in 2017: close to 850 first patent applications worldwide in

2017, steady with respect to 2016 despite the change of scope in
the security sector. This places Safran among the front-runners
for patents filed with INPI, the French patents office®. In addition,
for the past seven years, the Clarivate Analytics survey® has
consistently ranked Safran among the world’s hundred most
innovative companies and research organizations. Overall, the
Group’s patents portfolio comprises close to 8,000 inventions
and more than 30,000 intellectual property rights around the
world, bolstering Safran’s position in its areas of business.

In addition to patent protection, because of Safran’s international
reach and extensive partnership involvement, the Group gives
great importance to ensuring close control over technology
transfers and defining precise policy on the matter.

Some transfers are essential for market access reasons. Technologies
for transfer, which do not belong to Safran’s core technology
portfolio, must be clearly identified, accurately valued, and covered
by carefully structured long-term partnership arrangements.
Under no circumstances may such partnerships restrict the
Group’s capacity for technological differentiation in the future.

Dependence

Safran has not identified any dependence on patents, licenses,
industrial, commercial or financial contracts, or new manufacturing
processes likely to have a material impact on the Group.

There are risks of production delays and cost penalties for Safran
in the event of supplier or partner shortcomings, as set out in
section 4.3.2.1, “Supplier and partner risks”.

1.5.4 Safran Corporate Ventures and relations with startups

Safran Corporate Ventures is a Safran subsidiary responsible
for financing startups that have developed breakthrough
technologies or business models in the aerospace and defense
industries. In line with the Group’s strategy on innovation and
transformation, Safran Corporate Ventures seeks primarily to
support innovative startups in the following fields:

> Industry 4.0 (non-destructive testing, augmented reality,
Internet of Things for industry, robotics/cobotics, additive
manufacturing and cybersecurity in industry);

> onboard components (critical onboard electronics, onboard
software, connectivity, onboard energy, thermal management,
electric hybridization and cybersecurity);

> new and advanced materials (nanotechnologies, surface
treatment processes, composites, ceramics and advanced
manufacturing processes);

> new services and business models (data analytics, on-demand
aviation, new maintenance modes, co-design and collaborative
engineering);

> new markets and platforms (civil drones, non-conventional
vertical take-off and landing aircraft (VTOL) and new
transportation modes).

Safran Corporate Ventures goes beyond financing to offer
innovative and agile startups valuable development support
in several forms:

> access to an international network of leading experts in
Safran’s areas of business;

> commercial and industrial exposure to Safran companies
worldwide;

> implementation of commercial and development agreements
with Safran entities.

Safran Corporate Ventures has invested in eight young
high-tech companies since its formation in 2015. In 2017, the
Group acquired stakes in the following companies through
Safran Corporate Ventures:

> Prodways Group, one of the European front-runners in
industrial 3D printing;

> SafetyLine, a specialist in big data for aviation operations;

> Kalray, the European number one in new-generation
micro-processors for onboard critical systems;

> CAllabs, a pioneer in breakthrough light shaping technology,
protected by multiple patents.

Throughout 2017, some ten partnerships were signed
between Safran companies and startups through the work of
Safran Corporate Ventures.

At the International Paris Air Show in June 2017, Safran Corporate
Ventures invited around one hundred of its external partners to an
event showcasing instances of successful cooperation between
Safran and the startups in its ecosystem. The event provided an
opportunity to highlight the challenges involved and the various
possible forms of cooperation between an industrial group and
startups.

(1) Third in INPI ranking, March 2018 (for patents filed in France in 2017).
2) Top 100 Global Innovator Report 2017 - Clarivate Analytics - January 20I18.
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1.5.5 Research and development expenditure

Including the portion funded by customers, the total expenditure on
Research, Technology and Development (RTD) was approximately
€1.4 billion in 2017, representing 8% of revenue. RTD operations
in France amounted to €1.2 billion, representing 88% of overall
RTD expenditure. Some 77% of RTD expenditure was self-funded,
and can be broken down as follows:

> Aircraft programs (including LEAP and A350): 42%;
> Helicopter engines: 7%;

> Defense: 10%;

> R&T: 37%;

> Other: 4%.

(in € millions) 2016 m
Total R&D (1,708) (1,367)
Portion of expenditure funded by customers 602 314
Self-funded RTD (1,106) (1,053)
% of revenue 7.0% 6.4%
Research tax credit 139 140
Self-funded RTD after research tax credit (967) (913)
Capitalized expenditure 343 275
Amortization and impairment of R&D expenditure® (104) Qa77)
Impact on recurring operating income (728) (815)
% of revenue 4.6% 4.9%

(D Excluding non-recurring items.

The change in the total R&D figure (€341 million, a decrease of
20%) reflects the combined reductions in self-funded RTD and
customer-funded expenditure.

The portion of expenditure funded by customers figure for
2016 includes six months of space-related operations up until
the transfer of Safran assets and liabilities to ArianeGroup on
June 30, 2016 (see section 3.1, Note 3), and studies for the
Airbus A350 program.

1.6 INDUSTRIAL INVESTMENTS

1.6.1

Safran is an established industry reference and a major participant
in its core businesses of aerospace and defense. Its aim is to
supply its customers with increasingly advanced technological
engines and equipment, meeting ever stricter safety standards,
at a lower cost and with shorter timeframes.

This demand for performance and innovation, which is central to
the success of Safran’s products and services worldwide, is also
present at the level of the Group's plants. The Group’s companies,
working with the Industrial Management Department, focus their
investments and organization on adapting production sites,
preparing for tomorrow’s industrial challenges and developing
competitive advantages: expertise in new production technologies,
supply chain upgrades and talent development.

Through its constant drive for innovation and excellence,
the Group stands at the forefront of “Factory of the Future”
technologies and processes, in France and the rest of Europe.
Safran’s Factory of the Future project, which earned two
industry showcase labels from Alliance Industrie du Futur in
2016, gathered momentum in 2017 with the implementation of
a work program on industrial performance improvement. This

(1) CEA: French Atomic Energy Commission.
(2) Cetim: French Technical Center for Mechanical Industries.
(3) ENSAM: Ecole nationale supérieure d'arts et métiers.
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The decrease in R&D expenditure is mainly explained by the
successful start to operational service for the LEAP-1B in 2017,
following that of the LEAP-1A in 2016 (see section 1.3.1.1). Research
and technology expenditure not directly linked to contracts with
customers increased during the year.

Industrial policy and the factory of the future

involved launching 74 production lines of the future at some
40 industrial sites. The industrial activities covered by these
production lines include manufacturing, assembly and repair.

At the same time, to step up the development of technological
solutions under its Factory of the Future program, Safran took
part in the 2017 launch of Factory Lab, an industry of the future
innovation hub near Paris, alongside other leading industrial
groups (Groupe PSA, Naval Group, Technip FMC, Bureau Veritas,
Dassault Systémes and Actemium), scientific institutions
(CEA® and Cetim®) and academic institutions (ENSAM®),
Factory Lab works in four main areas: flexible digital factories,
physical operator assistance, process and test automation, and
cognitive operator assistance.

Advances in additive manufacturing provide a good example of
Safran’s expertise in factory of the future technologies:

> the first certified series-production parts have been produced,
and industrial investment in this technology has continued
with Safran Aircraft Engines, Safran Helicopter Engines and
Safran Power Units;



> an Additive Manufacturing Program Department was set up in
2017 to accelerate rollout of this technology and thereby support
companies’ production programs and provide complementary
coverage to the Safran Additive Manufacturing platform.

Safran also continued to develop strategic partnerships in this
field in 2017, with the launch of the Additive Manufacturing Hub.
This project, which aims to create an innovation technology
platform specializing in additive manufacturing, includes major
industrial groups (Actemium, Groupe PSA, Dassault Systemes
and Naval Group), Cetim, CEA, laboratories, schools and major
supply-chain players.

Another factory of the future focus - the digital factory - sharpened
in 2017 with the implementation of two of its technological
building blocks:

> simulation of internal factory flows, for site layout and scoping
at Airfoils, a joint venture with Air France Industries, and
for the Saint-Benoit site near Poitiers, which manufactures
mirrors under the European E-ELT project to build the world’s
largest telescope;

1.6.2 Main industrial investments
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> virtual reality and use of a digital mock-up to validate the
location of new workshops, such as the A330neo workshop
at the Safran Nacelles Le Havre site (2017 Innovation Grand
Prix - Safran Group), and the Safran Aircraft Engines metal
workshop in Corbeil.

Safran’s steadfast stance on innovation and excellence is also
apparent in its supply chain transformation endeavor. Control
over physical flows of parts and subassembilies is a key factor in
production ramp-up for new products, and calls for considerable
agility under high production output conditions. To this end,
a Supply Chain of the Future project was launched in 2017 to
provide the Group with a platform for realtime centralization
of all industrial flows.

Workforce support throughout the supply chain transformation
process is essential, and requires skills development for employees
and future talents. In 2017, the Sky Maker application developed
by Safran to introduce young people to the diversity of aerospace
production careers won two awards at the Communication &
Entreprise 2017 Grands Prix.

Safran’s industrial investments totaled €740 million in 2017, more than in 2016.

These investments are intended to prepare the Group for substantial growth in business, and the industrial upgrades needed for

new programs.

Geographical zone (in € millions)

France 483 472
Europe (excluding France) 79 83
Americas 88 131
Asia & Oceania 46 43
Africa & Middle East 8 n
TOTAL 704 740

In 2017, most of Safran’s industrial investments (64%) were made
in France, primarily for the following projects:

> start of construction work for the future Safran Ceramics
infrastructure at the Haillan site, near Bordeaux;

> launch of site preparation work for the Safran Electronics & Defense
facility at Saint-Benoit, near Poitiers, which is to make the mirrors
for the E-ELT (European Extremely Large Telescope) project;

> setup of an experimental foundry for advanced turbine blades
at the Safran Aircraft Engines site in Gennevilliers;

> construction of a building and setup of a SepCarb® IV carbon
plant at the Safran Landing Systems site in Villeurbanne.

Safran’s other investments in France continue the policy of
previous years:

> production ramp-up for LEAP, with investments at Gennevilliers
for the manufacture of titanium fan-blade leading edges and
the forge for rotating parts, and for machining equipment at
the Evry-Corbeil site and the Creusot site;

> production ramp-up for the A320 at Safran Nacelles and
Safran Landing Systems;

> development of R&T capacity (additive manufacturing,
analytics, composites and experimental castings);

> upgrade and modernization of industrial equipment and sites.

Safran’s main investments outside of France were:

> construction work on a new production facility in Sedziszow
Malopolski (Poland), specializing in the manufacture of
low-pressure turbine blades for LEAP engines;

> construction of a third composite fan-blade plant in Querétaro
(Mexico), following those in Rochester (New Hampshire,
United States) and Commercy;

> extension to the Safran Landing Systems site in Walton (Kentucky,
United States) to increase carbon brake production capacity;

> extension to the Safran Electrical & Power plant in Temara
(Morocco);

> extension to the Safran Aircraft Engines industrial site in
Suzhou (China), specializing in machining and assembly of
low-pressure modules and parts.
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1.7 SITES AND PRODUCTION PLANTS

Safran’s headquarters are located in Paris, France.

The map below shows the Group's sites in each geographical region, broken down by the main type of site activity, at December 31, 2017.
Figures and locations shown correspond to companies consolidated under the Group, as defined in section 3.1, Note 33.

FRANCE EUROPE (EXCLUDING FRANCE)

p

5

AMERICAS ' ’ ASIA & OCEANIA
l‘
6

AFRICA &
THE MIDDLE EAST

bisa
4 2
Key: number of sites

d

R&D sites and Service and Commercial and
production facilities maintenance sites administrative sites
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Safran Group sites Service/ Commercial/

December 31, 2017 R&D/production maintenance administrative

Safran Aircraft Engines 13 3 29 n 18
Safran Helicopter Engines 7 - 16 7 9
Safran Ceramics 5 1 6 = 6
Safran Aero Boosters 2 - 2 1 1
Safran Landing Systems 10 1 21 13 8
Safran Electrical & Power 25 1 36 7 29
Safran Ventilation Systems 1 - 2 1 1
Safran Transmission Systems 2 - 2 2 -
Safran Nacelles 6 1 9 6 Z
Safran Electronics & Defense 18 5 24 9 15
Safran 2 5 7 4 3
Other 1 4 5 - 5
TOTAL 92 21 159 61 98

™ Including six sites under financial lease.

The Group owns its major and strategic production sites, and
tends toward rental of its commercial and administrative sites.

The bulk of Group R&D work is carried out at its main production
sites. For this reason, the table shows “R&D” and “production”
in the same column.

Because of the diversity of Safran’s operations, the notion of
“production capacity” does not apply.

1.6 GROUP PURCHASING POLICY

Safran implements a purchasing policy capable of meeting
its objective of excellence and competitiveness, in line with
its industrial policy and in strict compliance with its corporate
social responsibility (CSR) commitments.

Safran’s purchasing policy focuses business on suppliers that
meet its requirements and competitive performance challenges,
that comply with the rules applicable to the aerospace and
defense markets, and that are prepared to commit to long-term
undertakings with Safran on a balanced, mutually beneficial basis.

The policy has four main focuses:
> build a supplier panel that:
e meets Safran’s present and future needs as regards cost,
quality and leadtime performance,
e enables Safran to provide its customers with innovative,
value-creating solutions,
e guarantees that Safran’s CSR commitments will be propagated
down through the whole supplier chain;

> involve Safran suppliers in product development, enabling
them to put forward their innovations and contribute their
expertise and thereby effectively meet the expectations of
the Group and its customers;

> promote methods, management standards and metrics
common across all Group companies, to improve Safran’s

Environmental factors liable to influence the Group’s use of its
property, plant and equipment are presented in section 5.3.2.
The Group has drafted Health, Safety and Environment (HSE)
guidelines that enable it to assess the compliance of its property,
plant and equipment, and its operations, with HSE regulations.
It also regularly conducts self-assessments and audits.

supplier performance monitoring and at the same time ensure
good supplier relations;

> provide support to key Safran suppliers, helping them fortify
their industrial organization and, by extension, their performance
on Safran programs.

The policy is rolled out:

> in strict compliance with the principles of the Group’s Ethical
Guidelines and the best practices set out in its Responsible
Supplier Relations Charter;

> in line with Safran’s commitments to public authorities,
professional organizations and other partners;

> based on constant cooperation with and among Group
companies, and implementation by all Group purchasing
teams of the One Safran practices in the Purchasing process.

Highlights of the rollout of the Safran purchasing policy in
2017 were:

> major contribution to the fulfillment of Group commitments
during the ramp-up of the LEAP program,;

> award of the Responsible Purchasing and Supplier Relations
Label for all France-based operations.
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1.9 SAFRAN QUALITY PERFORMANCE AND POLICY

Safran pursues an ambitious quality policy targeting two main
goals:

> customer satisfaction;
> continuous progress in performance.

This policy involves a permanent drive on innovation, continuous
improvement and risk control. It is based on Group-wide methods
and tools derived from shared experience and best practices
across all Group companies. Rollout of the policy is now well
under way, following the 2016 merger of Safran’s central quality,
progress and internal consulting teams, and the launch of the
One Safran initiative.

One Safran seeks to simplify the Group’s management system and
at the same time implement an operational excellence program
for major processes, with the aim of improving competitive
performance and customer satisfaction. Nearly 100 projects were
launched under this program in 2017, some 50 of which have
been completed. The program is under way on all continents,
and all Safran companies have their own operational excellence
rollout plans for the first processes concerned. Results are
excellent, as regards both impact on performance and buy-in
by teams in the field.

Customer satisfaction performance continued to rise in 2017,
with ongoing expression of confidence in and satisfaction
with Safran teams’ customer relations, attention and response
times. Regular contact between Safran quality teams and major
aircraft manufacturers has been set up to afford a more global
vision of performance and joint action plans, in addition to the
operational vision existing between individual Group companies
and their customers.

Quality performance and policy draw on a deep-rooted Lean Sigma
culture and on networks of quality, progress and business-line
teams working together to fulfill the Group-wide quality vision:
“to be the customer’s preferred supplier”.

Work on the key focuses of the progress initiative, known as
Safran+ since 2009 and enhanced with the arrival of One Safran,
continued to bring performance improvements throughout the
Group. To embed this improvement, Safran+ defines key areas for
progress, sets targets and suggests possible methods. Safran+ is
based on a network with centralized organization, and deployed
within all of the Group’s entities. This network allows for an array
of improvement initiatives, either created by the Group and
applicable to all of its companies, or created by the companies

themselves for their own internal use. These initiatives may
involve either continuous improvement or disruptive projects
put forward and coordinated by the Group.

Other permanent, cross-Group initiatives include:

> participative innovation initiatives enabling employees in all
sectors to put forward ideas for improving their companies’
performance. Close to 110,000 employee ideas were applied
across all the Group’s business sectors in 2017;

> Lean Sigma, with Green Belts, Black Belts and Master Black
Belts driving the Group’s transformation through a structured
and standardized project management approach. Practically
the whole of the Safran workforce has now been familiarized
with Lean Sigma;

> management by sight, coupled with rollout of Lean R&D;

> QRQC®, which has been rolled out across industrial and
technical operations throughout all Group companies. Rollout
of this method is continuing.

Most projects target at least one of the following objectives:
> improving customer satisfaction;

> raising operating profit;

> reducing working capital.

Throughout the year, the managers concerned report on progress

initiatives to Group Executive Management at biannual reviews
carried out at two different sites per company.

The savings achieved by the Safran+ initiative in 2017 break
down as follows:

4% 41%
Non-production Sales
costs development

22%
Internal share
of production
costs

33%

Sourced share
of production
costs

(D QRQC: Quick-Response Quality Control, a fast problem-solving management method that emphasizes constant vigilance and

immediate response.
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2017 ADJUSTED KEY FIGURES

(in € millions)

Revenue 9,391 9,741 5145 5,415 1,238 1,345 7 20 15,781 16,521
Recurring operating income 1,786 1,729 567 682 76 95 (25) (36) 2,404 2,470
Profit from operations 1,789 1,689 562 668 69 81 (34) (58) 2,386 2,380
Free cash flow® 929 1,158 165 328 17 105 (20) (153) 1,091 1,438
Acquisitions of property, plant

and equipment® 401 439 218 204 60 57 25 40 704 740
Self-funded R&D 775 748 218 182 13 123 N/A N/A 1,106 1,053

(D) Free cash flow represents cash flow from operating activities less any net disbursements relating to acquisitions of property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets.

(2) Net of proceeds from disposals.

BUSINESS HIGHLIGHTS
IN 2017

AIRCRAFT o0
EQUIPMENT N

Y

> First flight of the Airbus A330neo
fitted with landing gear, wheels
and carbon brakes®, nacelles,
power transmission systems® and
electrical systems manufactured by
Safran.

NEW RECORD
ENGINE DELIVERIES:
> Record deliveries of nacelles

to power LEAP-1A engines, and 1,903 CFM56

f wiri hi d landi

e shaall  AND LEAP ENGINES,
P

and A320neo). U
1.5%

ON 2016 PRESENTATION
(1,770 UNITS) OF THE ULTRA
LONG-RANGE AIRBORNE
DELIVERY OF OPTRONIC SYSTEM

THE ONE MILLIONTH SECURITY EUROFLIR™410

WIRING HARNESS > Sale of the Detection
FOR THE businesses to Smiths

BUEING 787 Group on April 7. a
> Sale of the Identity and
Security businesses to
Advent International,
the owner of

Oberthur Technologies,
on May 31.

(D) Developed by Goodrich-Messier,
a joint venture between Safran
and UTC Aerospace Systems.

(2) Developed by Aero Gearbox International,
a joint venture between Safran and
Rolls-Royce.
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Comments on the Group’s performance in 2017 based on adjusted data

2.1 COMMENTS ON THE GROUP’S PERFORMANCE IN 2017 BASED ON ADJUSTED DATA

2.1.1 Reconciliation of consolidated data with adjusted data

Foreword revalued at the time of the Sagem/Snecma merger. With
effect from the first-half 2010 interim financial statements,

To reflect the Group’s actual economic performance and enable the Group decided to restate:

it to be monitored and benchmarked against competitors, e the impact of purchase price allocations for business

Safran prepares an adjusted income statement in addition to combinations, particularly amortization charged against

its consolidated financial statements. intangible assets recognized at the time of the transaction

and amortized over extended periods due to the length of

Readers are reminded that Safran: the Group's business cycles, as well as

> is the result of the ng 11, 2005 merger of Sa”gem. and e gains on remeasuring any previously held equity interest
Snecma, accounted for in accordance with IFRS 3, "Business in the event of step acquisitions or transfers made to joint

Combinations”, in its consolidated financial statements;

ventures;
> _recogn'{zes, as of July 1, _200_5’ al! cha_nges ?n t_he fair value of > the mark-to-market of foreign currency derivatives, in order to
its foreign currency derivatives in "Financial income (loss)", better reflect the economic substance of the Group's overall

in accordance with the provisions of IAS 39 applicable
to transactions not qualifying for hedge accounting (see
section 3.1, "Accounting policies"”, Note 1.f).

foreign currency risk hedging strategy:

e revenue net of purchases denominated in foreign currencies
is measured using the effective hedging rate, i.e., including

Accordingly, Safran’s consolidated income statement has been the costs of the hedging strategy,
adjusted for the impact of: o all mark-to-market changes on instruments hedging future
> purchase price allocations with respect to business combina- cash flows are neutralized.

tions. Since 2005, this restatement concerns the amortization The resulting changes in deferred tax have also been adjusted.

charged against intangible assets relating to aircraft programs

Reconciliation of the consolidated income statement with the adjusted
income statement

The impact of these adjustments on income statement items is as follows:

Currency hedges Business combinations
Amortization of

2017 Deferred intangible assets  PPA impacts - 2017

(R RVIGEICM Remeasurement  hedging gain from Sagem/  other business adjusted

(in € millions) data of revenue” (loss)”  Snecma merger®  combinations” data
Revenue 16,940 419) - - - 16,521
Other recurring operating income and expenses (14,323) a9) 7 67 40 (14,228)
Share in profit from joint ventures 154 - - - 23 177
Recurring operating income 2,771 (438) 7 67 63 2,470
Other non-recurring operating income and expenses (90) - - - - (90)
Profit from operations 2,681 (438) 7 67 63 2,380
Cost of debt (57) - - - - (57)
Foreign exchange gain 3,143 438 (3,476) - - 105
Other financial income and expense (22) - - - - (22)
Financial income 3,064 438 (3,476) - - 26
Income tax expense (1,716) - 1,215 (39) (2) (542)
Profit from continuing operations 4,029 - (2,254) 28 61 1,864
Profit from discontinued operations and disposal gain 823 - - - - 823

Loss for the period attributable
to non-controlling interests (62) - - (2) - (64)

PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD ATTRIBUTABLE
TO OWNERS OF THE PARENT 4,790 - (2,254) 26 61 2,623

(D Remeasurement of foreign-currency denominated revenue net of purchases (by currency) at the hedging rate (including premiums on
unwound options) through the reclassification of changes in the fair value of instruments hedging cash flows recognized in profit or loss for
the period.

(2) Changes in the fair value of instruments hedging future cash flows that will be recognized in profit or loss in future periods (a negative
£€3,476 million excluding tax), and the impact of taking into account hedges when measuring provisions for losses on completion (€7 million).

(3) Cancellation of amortization/impairment of intangible assets relating to the remeasurement of aircraft programs resulting from the
application of IFRS 3 to the Sagem,/Snecma merger.

(4) Cancellation of depreciation/amortization/impairment of assets identified during business combinations.
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Comments on the Group’s performance in 2017 based on adjusted data

Readers are reminded that only the consolidated financial state-
ments set out in section 3.1 of this document are audited by the
Group’s Statutory Auditors. The consolidated financial statements
include the revenue and operating profit indicators set out in
the adjusted data in section 3.1, Note 4, “Segment information”.

Adjusted financial data other than the data provided in section 31,
Note 4, "Segment information” are subject to the verification
procedures applicable to all of the information provided in this
Registration Document.

2.1.2 Overview of the Group’'s performance in 2017

Adjusted income statement

2016 2017
adjusted data adjusted data

(in € millions)
Revenue 15,781 16,521
Other income 277 278
Income from operations 16,058 16,799
Change in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress 308 227
Capitalized production 624 501
Raw materials and consumables used (9,347) (9,716)
Personnel costs (4,420) (4,363)
Taxes (286) (284)
Depreciation, amortization and increase in provisions, net of use (516) (966)
Asset impairment (231 (72)
Other recurring operating income and expenses 15 167
Share in profit from joint ventures 99 177
Recurring operating income 2,404 2,470
Other non-recurring operating income and expenses a8) (90)
Profit from operations 2,386 2,380
Cost of net debt (€D (57)
Foreign exchange gain (loss) (35) 105
Other financial income and expense (58) (22)
Financial income (loss) 144) 26
Profit before tax 2,242 2,406
Income tax expense (498) (542)
PROFIT FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS 1,744 1,864
Profit from discontinued operations and disposal gain 17 823
PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD 1,861 2,687
Attributable to:
> owners of the parent 1,804 2,623
e continuing operations 1,689 1,801
e discontinued operations and assets held for sale 715 822
> non-controlling interests 57 64
e continuing operations 55 63
e discontinued operations and assets held for sale 2 7
Earnings per share from continuing operations attributable to owners of the parent (in €)
Basic earnings per share 4.06 4.39
Diluted earnings per share 3.99 4.31
Earnings per share from discontinued operations and assets held for sale attributable
to owners of the parent (in €)
Basic earnings per share 0.28 2.00
Diluted earnings per share 0.27 1.97
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Organic revenue was determined by excluding the effect of
changes in the scope of consolidation (notably €312 million in
first-half 2016 for the space launcher activities since contributed
to ArianeGroup). The net impact of currency variations was a
negative €124 million, reflecting a negative translation effect on
non-euro revenues, principally USD. The average USD/EUR spot
rate was USD 1.13 to the euro in 2017 compared to USD 1.11to the
euro in 2016. The Group’s hedging rate improved to USD 1.21to
the euro for 2017 from USD 1.24 to the euro for 2016.

Review of operations

Adjusted revenue

Safran's adjusted revenue was €16,521 million for 2017, up 4.7%
year-on-year compared to €15,781 million in 2016. This €740 million
increase reflects growth in all sectors.

Aerospace Aircraft Holding co. -
(in € millions) Propulsion Equipment Defense and other Total
2016 9,391 5,145 1,238 7 15,781
2017 9,741 5,415 1,345 20 16,521
Reported growth 3.7% 5.2% 8.6% N/M 4.7%
Impact of changes in the scope of consolidation -3.3% +0.3% - N/A -1.9%
Currency impact -0.5% -1.6% -0.3% N/A -0.8%
Organic growth 7.5% 6.5% 8.9% N/A 7.4%

Adjusted recurring operating income

Adjusted recurring operating margin reached 15.0% of adjusted
revenue. Safran’s adjusted recurring operating income improved
2.7% to €2,470 million compared to €2,404 million in 2016,
including the improvement in the EUR/USD hedge rate.

(in € millions)

As expected, profitability improved strongly in Aircraft Equipment
and Defense activities, whereas Propulsion margin was impacted
by the CFM56-LEAP transition.

In 2017, non-recurring items represented an expense of €90 million,
and notably included €47 million in transaction and integration
costs related to the Zodiac Aerospace acquisition.

2016 2017

Adjusted recurring operating income 2,404 2,470
% of revenue 15.2% 15.0%
Capital gains and losses on disposals of assets - 23
Impairment net of reversals on intangible assets - (23)
Other non-recurring items 18) (90)
ADJUSTED PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS 2,386 2,380
% of revenue 15.1% 14.4%

Adjusted profit from operations

Adjusted profit from operations was stable in 2017, at €2,380 million
(14.4% of revenue) compared to €2,386 million (15.1% of revenue)
in 2016. It was impacted by disposal gains totaling €23 million
and expenses of €23 million on the Falcon 5X program, the
assets of which have been written down. “Other non-recurring
items" represent a net expense of €90 million in 2017 compared
to a net expense of €18 million in 2016. The caption relates to
transaction and integration costs for €61 million, particularly
those relating to Safran’s tender offer on Zodiac Aerospace's
share capital, and the payment of €29 million in respect of an
arbitral award.

Adjusted financial income

The Group reported adjusted financial income of €26 million in
2017, compared to an adjusted financial loss of €144 million in
2016. The caption includes the cost of unwinding discounts on
certain assets and liabilities, mainly provisions and repayable

advances, and the impact of any changes in the discount
rates used. The cumulative impact of these non-cash items
was an expense of €35 million in 2017 versus an expense of
€71 million in 2016. Financial income in 2017 also includes a
non-cash charge totaling €95 million arising on the translation
of provisions denominated in US dollars (non-cash charge of
€27 million in 2016).

Adjusted income tax expense

Adjusted income tax expense increased from €498 million in
2016 to €542 million in 2017, representing an effective tax rate
of 22.5% (22.2% in 2016). The increase in the effective tax rate
was due to income arising on the elimination of the tax on
dividend payouts and on the adjustment of deferred taxes to
reflect the gradual decrease in future corporate income tax rates
(France and Belgium). It also reflects charges resulting from
the introduction of an exceptional contribution and additional
contribution on revenue, and from US tax reform.
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Adjusted profit attributable to owners of the parent

Adjusted profit attributable to owners of the parent was
€2,623 million (€6.39 per share) compared with €1,804 million
(€4.34 per share) in 2016. Adjusted profit from continuing
operations attributable to owners of the parent amounted to

€1,801 million (€4.39 per share) compared with €1,689 million
(€4.06 per share) in 2016. Profit from discontinued operations
and assets held for sale attributable to owners of the parent
totaling €822 million includes the contribution of the Security
business up to the date of its sale, as well as the related post-tax
disposal gain.

2.1.3 Adjusted key figures by business

Summary of adjusted key figures by business

On the basis of continuing operations, new order intake in 2017 was €19.2 billion, reflecting robust market demand. The total backlog
at December 31, 2017 was €68.6 billion, compared with €62.3 billion one year earlier.

Aerospace Propulsion Aircraft Equipment Defense Holding co. and other Total
(in € millons) d o Bl ol ol ol o
Backlog® 39,169 44,673 20,235 21,042 2,916 2,868 N/A N/A 62,320 68,583
Orders recorded
during the year® 1127 13,125 4,928 4,646 1,768 1,422 N/A N/A 17,823 19,193
Revenue 9,391 9,741 5145 5,415 1,238 1,345 7 20 15,781 16,521
Recurring operating income
(loss) 1,786 1,729 567 682 76 95 (25) (36) 2,404 2,470
Profit (loss) from operations 1,789 1,689 562 668 69 81 (34) (58) 2,386 2,380
Free cash flow® 929 1,158 165 328 17 105 (20) (153) 1,091 1,438
Acquisitions of property, plant
and equipment® 401 439 218 204 60 57 25 40 704 740
Self-funded R&D 775 748 218 182 13 123 N/A N/A 1,106 1,053
Headcount® 23,210 23,969 24,721 24,471 7,356 7,578 2,255 2,306 57,542 58,324

(D The backlog corresponds to orders recorded and not yet recognized in revenue.

(2) Orders recorded represent orders received during the year.

(3) Free cash flow represents cash flow from operating activities less any net disbursements relating to acquisitions of property, plant and

equipment and intangible assets.
(4) Net of proceeds from disposals.
(5) Headcount at December 31.
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2.1.21 Aerospace Propulsion

Key figures (adjusted data)

E

2016 Year-on-year change

Quantities delivered

> CFM56 engines 1,693 1,444 -15%
> LEAP engines 77 459 X6
(in € millions)
Backlog 39,169 44,673 +14%
Orders recorded during the year n127 13,125 +18%
Revenue 9,391 9,741 +4%
Recurring operating income 1,786 1,729 -3%
Profit from operations 1,789 1,689 -6%
Free cash flow 929 1,158 +25%
Acquisitions of property, plant and equipment 401 439 10%
Research and development
Self-funded R&D (775) (748) -3%
% of revenue 8.3% 7.7% -0.6 pts
Research tax credit 59 58 -2%
Self-funded R&D after research tax credit (716) (690) -4%
Capitalized expenditure 218 175 -20%
Amortization and impairment of R&D expenditure 46) (78) +70%
Impact on profit from operations (544) (593) +9%
% of revenue 5.8% 6.1% +0.3 pts
Headcount 23,210 23,969 +3%

Aerospace Propulsion activities operate in four key sectors:

Sector

% of business line revenue

Civil aviation
Military aviation
Helicopter turbine engines

Ballistics and space

73% 77%
1% 1%
12% 12%
4% 0%

Review of Aerospace Propulsion operations in 2017

During 2017, orders and commitments were received for
2,870 LEAP engines and the backlog stood at 13,728 engines
at end-2017. Demand for CFM56 engines remains strong: orders
and commitments were placed for 474 engines in 2017 and the
backlog stood at 1,106 units at end-2017.

Aerospace Propulsion recorded revenue of €9,741 million, up
3.7% compared to €9,391 million in 2016. On an organic basis,
Aerospace Propulsion revenue rose 7.5%, driven by the civil
aftermarket business as well as by civil and military OE.

OE sales from civil aircraft engines grew organically in the high
single digits (8%). In unit terms, the increase in LEAP production
more than offset the fall in CFM56 volumes. The total number
of narrowbody aircraft engine deliveries increased from 1,770 to
1,903, a record level. LEAP volumes ramped up to 459 deliveries
in 2017 compared to 77 in 2016 while CFM56 volumes decreased

as planned to 1,444 deliveries in 2017 compared to 1,693 units in
2016. High-thrust engine module deliveries, notably GE9O and
GP7000, were lower in 2017, tracking airframers’ assembly rates.

A decline in OE revenue from helicopter turbines was mostly due
to a shift in mix towards smaller engines. Military OE revenues
increased sharply as revenue was recognized for 33 M88 engines,
of which 17 for export, compared to 11 engines in 2016.

Overall service revenue in Propulsion was up 7.0% in euro terms
and represented 59% of Propulsion revenue in the year. Civil
aftermarket revenue grew by 11.2% in US dollar terms, driven by
latest generation CFM56, and GE9O engine spares and services.
Aftermarket for military engines was down in the low single
digits (by around 2%) compared to a high 2016 comparison
base. Helicopter turbine support also declined in the low single
digits, due to a fall in flight hours particularly among Qil and
Gas customers.
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Recurring operating income, at 17.7% of revenue, was €1,729 million
compared to €1,786 million (19.0% of revenue) in 2016. As
expected, Propulsion margin was negatively impacted by
the ramp down of CFM56 OE, the negative margin on LEAP
deliveries as well as by the estimated cost of actions to ensure
time on wing. The headwind from the CFM56-LEAP transition
amounted to €342 million in 2017.

Lower helicopter turbine activity and higher expensed R&D also
impacted Propulsion margin. Consistent with expectations, these
headwinds were partially offset by civil aftermarket growth,
higher military OE, the contribution from ArianeGroup and the
improvement in the hedging rate.

Safran is executing a strong action plan to continue to progres-
sively reduce the production cost of LEAP engines and achieve
breakeven at gross margin level before the end of the decade.

Commercial and industrial developments
Civil aviation
Low-thrust engines for civil aircraft (regional and business jets)

Silvercrest (9,500 - 12,000 pounds of thrust)

Developed by Safran, Silvercrest engines deliver best-in-class
performances in the market for mid- to high-end business jets.

Silvercrest was chosen by Dassault Aviation in 2013 to power
the company’s Falcon 5X twin-engine business jet, featuring
a large cabin and long range of 5,200 nautical miles, or more
than 9,600 km. In 2016, Silvercrest was also chosen by Cessna
(Textron Aviation) for its future large-cabin Citation Hemisphere
business jet, which will have a range of up to 4,500 nautical
miles (8,300 km).

In the context of its development program, Silvercrest continued
to be tested on the ground and in flight, clocking up more than
2,000 test hours in 2017.

On July 5, 2017, the Falcon 5X took to the air for the first time,
powered by two Silvercrest engines. This first flight marked
the start of a flight test program lasting several months, with
Dassault Aviation completing 30 flights with no engine problems.

During flight tests conducted last September, Safran pinpointed
the need to optimize performance of Silvercrest’s high-pressure
compressor, leading to additional development leadtimes which
Dassault deemed incompatible with its own aircraft development
schedule.

Consequently, in late 2017, Dassault Aviation initiated proceedings
to terminate the Silvercrest contract for the Falcon 5X program
and announced that it would be launching the Falcon 6X, a new
aircraft with a bigger engine than Silvercrest. Following this
decision, Cessna notified its intention to continue developing
the Hemisphere program with the Silvercrest engine.

SaM146 (13,500 -17,800 pounds of thrust)

The SaM146 engine, developed in partnership with Russian
engine manufacturer UEC Saturn, powers Sukhoi’s Superjet 100.

PowerJet is a joint venture set up by Safran Aircraft Engines
and UEC Saturn to manage the engine program in terms of
development, production, marketing and sales, and to provide
customer support, maintenance, repair and overhaul services.
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The 300t SaM146 integrated propulsion system was delivered
during the year, testifying to the success of this industrial alliance.

In all, 70 SaM146 propulsion systems were delivered in 2017
(compared to 52 in 2016), and at the end of the year, SaM146
engines powering in-service Superjet 100 aircraft had clocked
up over 750,000 flight hours.

PowerJet has also been awarded service contracts for 58 aircraft
operated by airline companies Aeroflot, Interket and Cityjet.

Passport (13,000 - 18,000 pounds of thrust)

Through Safran Aero Boosters, Safran has a 7.4% share in
Passport, the new GE engine program designed for the future
long-range (7,400 nautical miles, or 13,700 km) Bombardier
Global 7000 business jet.

Throughout the year, flight tests continued for the Passport
engine on Global 7000 prototypes. Passport is expected to
enter into service on this new aircraft towards the end of 2018,
in line with the aircraft manufacturer’s schedule.

Mid-thrust engines for civil aircraft
(short- to medium-haul aircraft)

CFM56 - LEAP

LEAP-1A is competing with Pratt & Whitney's PurePower PW1100G
for the A320neo program. The LEAP-1B model was chosen as
the sole engine for the Boeing 737 MAX. The LEAP-1C model
is the sole Western source for the propulsion system (engine
plus nacelle) on COMAC’s C919 aircraft.

During the year the LEAP-1B engine successfully entered into
service and the first COMAC C919 flights powered by LEAP-1C
engines were completed from Shanghai Pudong airport in China.
Throughout 2017, Safran continued to develop its production
capacity with a view to achieving a seamless transition from
CFM56 to LEAP and meeting a ramp-up in production.

A total of 1,903 CFM56 and LEAP engines were delivered to
aircraft manufacturers in 2017 (compared to 1,770 CFM56 and
LEAP engines delivered in 2016):

> CFM International has recorded over 32,000 deliveries of
CFM56 engines since the start of the program, including
1,444 CFM56 deliveries during the year (1,693 CFM56 deliveries
in 2016). In-service CFM56 engines, used by 588 customers
and operators, had clocked up over 913 million flight hours
at the end of 2017. The CFM56 has entered aerospace history
as the first range of high-bypass turbofan engines to achieve
more than 900 million flight hours;

> the ramp-up of production for LEAP engines continued in
2017, with 459 engines delivered during the year in line with
aircraft manufacturers (77 LEAP engines delivered in 2016).

The LEAP engine continued to enjoy commercial success,
with 2,870 firm orders and purchase commitments received
in 2017. The backlog for LEAP stood at 13,728 orders and
purchase commitments at the end of the year for the A320neo,
Boeing 737 MAX and COMAC C919 programs.

Taking into account the 474 firm orders and purchase commitments
received for CFM56 engines in 2017, the overall backlog (CFM56
and LEAP) represents 14,834 engines at December 31, 2017, or
almost eight years of production at current output rates. This
success confirms CFM International as leader in the market for
100+ seater aircraft.
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Spare part activities and service agreements

In 2017, maintenance and overhaul agreements for LEAP engines
were signed with Lufthansa Technik and AFI KLM E&M. These
two companies, which already enjoy a long-standing relationship
with CFM International through maintenance agreements for
CFM56 engines, will offer additional capacity for LEAP-1A and
LEAP-1B engines.

New service agreements for LEAP engines were also signed in
2017 with airline companies Air India, Arkia, SAS, Azul, Spice Jet,
Vietjet and Fiji Airways. These agreements offer LEAP engine
customers a wide range of bespoke aftermarket services adapted
to their particular business model and to fleet size and/or
condition. They are also a long-term source of revenue for Safran.

High-thrust engines for civil aircraft (long-haul aircraft)

Deliveries of high-thrust engines declined in 2017, to 486 modules
compared to 686 modules in 2016.

GE90

Safran has an interest of 23.7% in this GE program that currently
enjoys a sole-source position on the Boeing 777, for which it
delivered 162 compressor modules in 2017 compared to 214 in
2016. The downturn in volumes delivered reflects the decrease
in production of the Boeing 777 decided by Boeing in 2017
ahead of the aircraft’s gradual replacement by the Boeing 777X
as from 2020.

GE9X

Since 2014, Safran has participated in the development of GE’s
high-thrust GE9X engine that was chosen by Boeing as the
exclusive powerplant on its new 777X long-haul aircraft. Tests
continued for the certification of the GE9X engine in 2017.

Safran has a stake of 11.2% in this program through
Safran Aircraft Engines and Safran Aero Boosters.

Safran Aircraft Engines is responsible for the design and
production of several critical parts of the engine:

> composite fan blades are manufactured by CFAN, its joint
venture with GE based in San Marcos, Texas (United States);

> fan casings using 3D woven composite parts are produced
through its partnership with Albany International;

> the exhaust casing is manufactured at the French plants of
Safran Aircraft Engines, particularly FAMAT, a joint venture
with GE based in Saint-Nazaire.

The low-pressure compressor and the fan disk are made by
Safran Aero Boosters.

GP7200

Safran has a 17.5% interest in this engine program, which powers
the A380, and delivered nine high- and low-pressure compressor
modules in 2017, compared with 74 in 2016.

GEnx

Safran is a partner on the two GEnx engine programs, with a
7.7% interest in the GEnx-1B version powering the long-haul
Boeing 747-8 and a 7.3% interest in the GEnx-2B version powering
the Boeing 787 Dreamliner. Safran delivered 231 modules in 2017,
50 less than in 2016.

CF6 family - LM6000

A total of 84 modules for the CF6 engine family (powering
certain A330 and Boeing 767 aircraft) and LM6000 gas turbines
were delivered in 2017, compared to 117 in 2016. Safran’s interest
ranges from 10% to 19.4% in the CF6 engine program, and from
8.6% to 12% in the LM600O0 gas turbine program.

Service agreements

Safran has been awarded service agreements by GE and
Engines Alliance, respectively for high-thrust engines GE9O
and GP7200. A number of new agreements for these engines
were also signed or renewed during the year.

Safran provides maintenance, repair and overhaul services for
GE9O0’s high- and low-pressure compressors under support-by-
the-hour contracts, as well as the bulk of maintenance services
for the GP7200’s high-pressure compressor. The Group leverages
its expertise, industrial capabilities and global network to offer
operators continuous support and a comprehensive range of
services.

After its entry into service slated for 2020, Safran will be awarded
service agreements by GE for the GE9X engine.

Industrial operations

During the year, Safran and AFI KLM announced they were
to begin construction of a facility in northern France for
Airfoils Advanced Solutions, their joint venture specializing
in the repair of compressor blades for CFM56, GE90 and
GP7200 engines. Airfoils Advanced Solutions is jointly owned
by Safran Aircraft Engines (51%) and Air France KLM (49%), who
will invest over €20 million in the new company. Operations at
the new facility are expected to start in late 2018. By the time the
facility reaches cruise speed in 2020, Airfoils Advanced Solutions
will have between 200 and 250 employees.

At the end of 2017, a new 4,000 sg.m. extension was unveiled at
Safran’s Le Creusot plant. The extension, which will manufacture
low-pressure turbine disks for the LEAP engine on three
autonomous machines, confirms the Le Creusot plant as a center
of excellence in its field.

Military aviation

M88

A total of 33 engines were delivered for the Rafale in 2017
(22 engines more than in 2016). The worldwide in-service fleet
topped the 574,000 flight hours mark during the year.

Qatar exercised its call option on 12 additional Rafale aircraft
in the year. This new export order comes on top of the order
already placed by Qatar in 2015 for 24 Rafale aircraft.

In 2017, the French Ministry of Defense gave the green light to
preliminary work for the future Rafale F4 standard. Technological
advances proposed by Safran include (i) a new M88 control unit
with enhanced processing capacity and features, together with
a new-generation maintenance system incorporating health
monitoring, trouble-shooting and predictive maintenance, and
(ii) integrated additive manufacturing technologies for engine
maintenance.

Discussions are also underway with other countries.
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TP400

The TP400 is the Western world’s most powerful ever turboprop
engine.

A total of 90 engines were delivered in 2017 (compared to 84 in
2016) and the backlog at the end of the year stood at 413 engines
for the A400M aircraft ordered from Airbus Defence & Space.

ADOUR

A total of 13 Adour engines were delivered in 2017 for the
BAE Systems Hawk trainer aircraft. The backlog at the end of
2017 stood at 12 engines.

Helicopter turbines and auxiliary power units

Safran Helicopter Engines delivered 672 helicopter engines in 2017.

Light helicopters

Developments in this segment continued apace throughout the
year, with the initial test run of the Arriel 2L2 engine. The Arriel 2L.2
is set to power the South Korean military Light Armed Helicopter
(LAH) for Korea Aerospace Industries (KAI). Developed in
partnership with Hanwha Techwin, this engine is the most
powerful engine in the Arriel family, with take-off power of
1,024 shp®. Arriel 2L2 should be certified in late 2020 and is
expected to come into operation in 2022. The civil version of
this helicopter, the Light Civil Helicopter (LCH), will enter into
service in 2020 powered by the Arriel 2C2 engine.

At the Heli-Expo trade show in Dallas, Texas (United States),
Safran and Bell (Textron group) celebrated the first delivery of the
Bell 505 Jet Ranger X helicopter fitted with an Arrius 2R engine.
The entry-into-service of this helicopter was an important milestone
for Safran, as the result of its first-ever partnership with Bell. The
Arrius 2R is the sole powerplant on the Bell 505 Jet Ranger X. At
the end of the year, Safran’s backlog stood at over 140 engines
for Bell 505 Jet Ranger X helicopters on order from Bell.

The Arrano 1A engine, sole source on Airbus Helicopters’ future
twin-engine H160 helicopter, continued to demonstrate its
performance in its ongoing flight test program. Arrano’s first
application, the future H160 helicopter, is set to replace the
Dauphine helicopters that have been in service for the past forty
or so years. Arrano 1A is slated to come into service in 2019, in
line with its development schedule.

Medium-weight helicopters

The Ardiden 3G intended for Russian Helicopters’ multi-purpose
Ka-62 helicopter was awarded standard certification in 2017 by
the European Aviation Safety Agency (EASA). This certification
is an important milestone in the helicopter’s flight test program.
Fitted with two Ardiden 3G engines, the first Ka-62 prototype
completed its first official flight during the year at the manufacturer’s
facilities in Arseniev (Russia).

Ardiden 3C is slated for certification by EASA in 2018. This
engine will power the new French-Chinese AC352/Z-15 helicopter.
The result of close cooperation with China’s CAPI and Dongan,

(1) Shp. shaft horsepower.
(2) AECC: Aero Engine Corporation of China.
(3) CAAC: Civil Aviation Administration of China.
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members of the AECC® consortium, this program will allow Safran
to benefit from opportunities offered by the growing Chinese
helicopter market over the next decade. The Ardiden 3C/WZ16
will be the first helicopter engine to be certified in parallel in
both China and Europe: CAAC® certification as WZ16 is also
scheduled for 2018.

Heavy-lift helicopters

During the summer, the UK and Norwegian regulators announced
that they were lifting restrictions on commercial flights for two
types of Super Puma helicopters (H225LP and AS332L2). This
decision followed EASA’s authorization for the helicopter to
resume flights granted in 2016. While this authorization is good
news for new helicopter sales, Safran’s support activities for
these heavy-lift helicopters in offshore and civil sectors have
been significantly affected since the helicopters were grounded
after an accident in Norway on April 29, 2016.

At the Helitech trade show held in London in early October,
Safran Helicopter Engines unveiled Aneto, its new high-power
engine family. The first model, the 2,500 shp class Aneto-1K engine,
was selected by Leonardo to power its twin-engine AW189K
helicopter. Entry into service on the AW189K is scheduled for
2018. Aneto-1K certification will meet that timetable.

Aneto engines incorporate several groundbreaking new
technologies, such as a gyratory combustion chamber with
unique 3D-printed injectors. The performance of the engine’s
high-pressure turbine was also improved in terms of both design
and by the incorporation of new materials allowing higher
combustion temperatures. Safran also leveraged its advances
in additive manufacturing to design the fuel dispensers and
injectors. Many of these new technologies were developed and
validated on the Tech 3000 demonstrator, supported by Safran
since 2015. This new engine family will be fully compatible with
BOOST (Bank Of Online Services & Technologies), Safran’s highly
secure online engine maintenance service.

At the beginning of 2018, the launch of the Airbus X6 heavy-lift
helicopter powered by Safran engines was postponed.

Helicopter turbine engine services

New support-by-the-hour service agreements were signed in
2017. At the end of the year, despite a challenging environment,
particularly for the oil sector, over 5,200 engines operated
by 500 civil and military customers were covered by service
agreements. This compared to 4,800 engines covered by service
agreements for 450 civil and military customers at the end of 2016.

Several new tools and services were rolled out at different
operators during the year with the aim of supporting Safran
helicopter engines. These include new types of contract for
small-scale operators as well as new support-by-the-hour options.
The digital offer also broadened, thanks mainly to the online
technical publications service Web IETP (Interactive Electronic
Technical Publications). Web IETP includes a 3D graphic interface
and offers a selection of all parts and tools needed to perform
basic or intermediate-level maintenance operations.
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Auxiliary power units

Safran manufactures the leading-edge SPUI50[DA] and
SPU300[BA] auxiliary power units. The SPUI50[DA] is especially
designed for midsize to super midsize business jets. The
SPU300[BA] is designed for long-haul business jets and will
be fitted on Bombardier's Global 7000.

These new business jet APUs continued to be developed
throughout the year in line with the schedule. The SPU300[BA]
APU designed for Bombardier’s Global 7000 business jet has
clocked up more than 2,000 operating hours on flight test
aircraft. The certification documents for this APU were filed
in early 2018.

Modifications in the APU for the Rafale, begun in 2016 in order
to meet new operating requirements in harsh environments
for export markets, were successfully completed, and the first
equipment for flight tests was delivered at the end of 2017.
The modified APUs are expected to enter into service in 2018.

Space propulsion systems

Confirming its position as baseline supplier to major players in the
satellite market, Safran’s electric propulsion thrusters PPS®*5000
were chosen by Boeing for a commercial satellite program.

This order represents two world firsts:

> the first use of a cluster of three Hall Effect plasma thrusters
operating simultaneously, to perform orbital transfer duties;

> the first deployment of a plasma thruster developing 5 kW
of power - 10% more than current models used on telecom-
munications satellites.

This order marks Boeing’s first use of Hall Effect thrusters on
satellites, and confirms Safran’s position as a baseline supplier
to the world’s leading manufacturers of commercial satellites.
Safran will supply the plasma thruster and power processing unit
(PPU), and will take technical responsibility for the interfaces.
The first PPS®5000 delivery is slated for 2018, for a satellite
launch planned in 2019.

Launch vehicles

ArianeGroup® was born out of the shared ambition of Safran
and Airbus to take the European space industry to unscaled
heights in a context of fierce global competition.

Owned equally by Safran and Airbus, ArianeGroup brings together
each company’s activities and expertise in commercial and
military launchers within a single, coherent entity. Boasting over
9,000 highly qualified staff in France and Germany, ArianeGroup
is a global company with 11 subsidiaries and affiliates which are
among the leading players in their respective fields: APP (70%),
Arianespace (74%), CILAS (63%), Eurockot (51%), Eurocryospace
(45%), Europropulsion (50%), Nuclétudes (98.9%), Pyroalliance
(90%), Regulus (40%), Sodern (90%) and Starsem (46%).
ArianeGroup also boasts a broad spectrum of products, equipment
and services able to offer innovative and competitive solutions
to a wide variety of customers across the globe.

Through its subsidiary Arianespace, ArianeGroup can therefore
offer a comprehensive range of launch services with its Ariane,
Vega and Soyuz launch vehicles. Through its subsidiary Eurockot,
ArianeGroup also markets and operates the light space launcher
Rockot.

Ariane, Vega and Soyuz launchers

ArianeGroup is prime contractor for Ariane European space
launchers and also contributes to the Vega launcher.

Since 1996, Arianespace has marketed the Russian Soyuz
launcher through its subsidiary Starsem on the international
market. Since 2011, following the agreement between the ESA
and the Russian space agency Roskosmos, Arianespace is also
responsible for the launch of Soyuz rockets from the Kourou
Space Center (French Guiana).

Its world-leading subsidiary Arianespace is responsible for marketing
and operating these three launch vehicles. Arianespace signed
just under half® of all commercial launcher contracts open on
the global market in 2017, giving the company a backlog worth
€5 billion at the end of the period, covering 29 customers and
58 launches: 18 Ariane 5 launches, 2 Ariane 6 launches, 29 Soyuz
launches and 9 Vega/Vega C launches.

Arianspace had an excellent year in 2017, with 11 successful
launches and 20 satellites put into orbit from the Kourou Space
Center (French Guiana):

> the Ariane 5 heavy launcher successfully performed six launches.
Ariane thereby recorded its 82" consecutive successful launch,
confirming the system’s excellent reliability;

> Vega launchers successfully performed three launches,
representing the ninth, tenth and eleventh successful launches
for Vega since its first flight in 2012;

> Soyuz also performed two successful launches in the first
half of the year.

Throughout 2017, the development program for the future Ariane 6
launcher continued on track and in line with the schedule, with
a view to completing its first lift-off in 2020:

> a major milestone was successfully reached during the year,
validated by an independent review, and allowing serial
production to be launched for the Ariane 6 launcher;

> construction began of the combustion chamber for the first
Vinci cryogenic engine intended to fly. Restartable in flight,
this engine will power the upper stage of the Ariane 6, allowing
the launcher to increase its mission potential and enabling
several satellites to be positioned on different orbits in a
single mission. After having been successfully tested with
development models over 120 times, the start of construction
on this first engine intended to fly is a major step towards
Ariane 6’s first successful lift-off;

> the first contract was signed with the European Space Agency
on behalf of the European Commission. Under this contract,
between the end of 2020 and mid-2021, Arianespace will
put four new satellites into orbit intended for its Galileo
navigation system;

> work on the new launch site intended to host the future
launcher in the Guiana Space Center is progressing well, with
the start of construction on the jet vanes.

Lastly, in January 2018, the Vulcain® 2.1 engine which will power
the main stage of Ariane 6, was successfully tested for the first
time on a test bench.

Military industry

Regarding the naval component of France’s nuclear deterrent,
the development of the future M51.3 strategic missile continues
in line with the development schedule, with the completion of
the Preliminary System Design Review. Both types of third-stage
thrusters were also successfully bench-tested.

(D On July 1, 2017, Airbus Safran Launchers was renamed ArianeGroup.

(2) Source: ArianeGroup.
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2.1.3.2 Aircraft Equipment

Adjusted key figures
Backlog 20,235 21,042 +4%
Orders recorded during the year 4,928 4,646 -6%
Revenue 5145 5,415 +5%
Recurring operating income 567 682 +20%
Profit from operations 562 668 +19%
Free cash flow 165 328 +99%
Acquisitions of property, plant and equipment 218 204 -6%
Research and development
Self-funded R&D (218) (182) -17%
% of revenue 4.2% 3.4% -1.2 pts
Research tax credit 44 45 +2%
Self-funded R&D after research tax credit 74) a37) -21%
Capitalized expenditure 82 56 -32%
Amortization and impairment of R&D expenditure “4n 77) +88%
Impact on profit from operations (133) (158) +19%
% of revenue 2.6% 2.9% +0.3 pts
Headcount 24,721 24,471 -1%

Safran’s Aircraft Equipment business operates in three sectors:

Sector

% of business line revenue

Landing and aircraft systems
Engine systems and equipment

Electrical systems and engineering

48% 48%
24% 26%
28% 26%

Review of Aircraft Equipment operations in 2017

The Aircraft Equipment segment reported revenue of €5,415 million,
up 5.2% compared to 2016. On an organic basis, revenue was
up 6.5%.

Equipment OE revenue increased by 4.4%. Revenue growth
was driven by increased volumes of equipment for the A350
(landing gear and wiring systems, power transmission systems),
as well as by deliveries of nacelles for the LEAP-1A powering the
A320neo (235 nacelles in 2017 compared to 65 units in 2016).
Shipments of landing and wiring systems for A320ceo, A320neo
and A330 also contributed positively. Headwinds included lower
A380 volumes: as expected, 49 nacelles were shipped in 2017
compared to 99 in 2016.
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Service revenue represented 32.3% of revenue and grew 7.0%
compared to 2016, thanks to continuing momentum in carbon
brakes and a higher contribution from landing gear MRO and
nacelle service activities.

Recurring operating income was €682 million, an increase of
20.3% compared to €567 million in 2016. Recurring operating
margin increased by 160 basis points to 12.6%. Growing volumes
coupled with strong cost reduction and productivity actions
(including measures to optimize the industrial footprint) yielded
broad-based profitability increases. The improved hedging rate
also contributed positively. The rise of expensed R&D had a
negative impact on recurring operating income.
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Commercial and industrial developments

Landing and aircraft systems

Landing gear

In all, 1,315 landing gear units were delivered by Safran in 2017
(compared to 1,281 units in 2016).

A total of 590 units were delivered for the A320 family including
the A320neo (559 in 2016), 78 units were delivered for the A330
including the A330neo (60 in 2016), and 81 units were delivered
for the A350 (56 in 2016). Safran delivered 134 landing gear
units in 2017 (128 in 2016) to meet the needs of the ramp-up in
production of the Boeing 787.

Landing system maintenance and repair contracts were signed
by Safran during the year, particularly for Southwest Airlines,
American Airlines, Singapore Airlines, Easyjet and Air France fleets.

Wheels and brakes

At the end of 2017, with almost 9,000 aircraft equipped with
Safran carbon brakes, the Group has a share of over 50%"
of the market for 100+ seater civilian aircraft equipped with
carbon brakes.

Safran’s market share on Airbus A320ceo aircraft fitted with
carbon brakes represented 73%" at December 31, 2017. Safran
was selected by Airbus to supply carbon brakes meeting the
requirements of its new A320neo single-aisle aircraft. At end-2017,
31 airline companies representing a total of 1,193 aircraft have
selected Safran carbon brakes, while 114 in-service A320neo
aircraft are currently fitted with the brakes.

In December 2017, EASA® certified Safran’s new “Long-Life”
brakes for the Airbus A320 family (ceo and neo). These new
brakes feature SepCarb IV®, the latest-generation carbon which
will provide significant durability gains for airline companies.

Safran’s market share on Boeing 737 NG aircraft fitted with
carbon brakes represented 66%® at December 31, 2017. A
long-standing partner of Boeing, Safran was selected by the
US aircraft manufacturer in 2014 to supply wheels and carbon
brakes for all models of the Boeing 737 MAX (new engine
option). At end-2017, 26 airline companies had selected Safran
carbon brakes on the Boeing 737 MAX, representing a total of
1,119 aircraft. In all, 23 in-service Boeing 737 MAX are fitted with
Safran carbon brakes.

At December 31, 2017, electric brake orders for the Boeing 787
Dreamliner related to 744 aircraft operated by 43 airline companies.
Safran’s electric brakes were fitted on 364 in-service Boeing 787
Dreamliners at December 31, 2017, with a market share of 58%®.

Electric taxiing

In 2017, Safran and Airbus signed an agreement to market an
electric taxiing system to airline companies for the A320 family.

(1) Source: Safran.
(2) EASA: European Aviation Safety Agency.

Landing and braking control systems

In all, 1,263 landing and braking control systems and associated
systems equipment were delivered by Safran to customers’
assembly lines in 2017.

Lifting, steering and braking systems continued to be delivered
for the A350 in the context of a major ramp-up.

In the field of innovation, Safran continues to offer its customers
services that draw on the analysis of data from equipment and
control systems so that it can offer preventive maintenance and
therefore increase operational fleet availability, particularly for
Airbus, in order to address the shift to more integrated equipment
offers, for both aircraft manufacturers and airline companies.

Industrial operations

In July, Safran reinforced its presence on the Chinese market,
laying the cornerstone of its future center of excellence for
landing gear maintenance, repair and overhaul on the A320
and Boeing 737 aircraft. Based in Xi'an (China), this 11,000 sg.m.
center of excellence, of which 8,700 sg.m. will house workshops,
will be managed by XIESA (Xi'an CEA Safran Landing Systems
Services), a joint venture created in 2016 between Safran and
the Chinese airline company, China Eastern Airlines. This center,
which will be operational in 2019, will primarily target the Chinese
domestic market, whose fleets of single-aisle jets are reaching
maturity and therefore requiring landing gear overhauls.

Engine systems and equipment

Nacelles and thrust reversers
A number of decisive advances were made in 2017:

> the integrated propulsion system (nacelle and LEAP-1C engine)
powering the C919 aircraft completed its first flight tests;

> on the A320neo program, Safran has developed the industrial
capacity to keep pace with the ramp-up in production of the
integrated propulsion system (nacelle and LEAP-TA engine)
and to offer, along with its partner, GE subsidiary Middle River
Aircraft System (MRAS), the support and services expected
by airline companies;

> Safran delivered on schedule the Boeing 777X exhaust systems
for the development tests on the GE9X engine. The serial
design has been fixed and serial production is underway for
the flight test equipment;

> the A330neo fitted with Safran nacelles (and powered by
Rolls-Royce Trent7000 engines) began its flight tests;

> flight tests continued for the prototypes of the Global 7000
future long-range business jet fitted with Safran nacelles
and GE Passport engines. Bombardier’s Global 7000 jet is
expected to enter into service at the end of 2018.

In 2017 Safran launched a new automated non-destructive
testing (NDT) solution for composite panels of aircraft nacelles
for the LEAP-TA (Airbus A320neo) and Trent7000 (A330neo)
programs, at its Burnley plant in the United Kingdom. This NDT
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process is based on a robot named IRIS (Infra Red Inspection
System), which uses infrared thermography to read data.
After data processing, the information is then analyzed by an
inspector using special viewing software. Finally, if needed, it is
projected on the part via augmented reality. The use of infrared
thermography and augmented reality is a world first.

Mechanical power transmission systems

At the Paris Air Show in Le Bourget, Safran unveiled its new
mechanical power transmission architecture. Known as AGB®
Next Generation, this new architecture is designed to meet the
requirements of the next generation of aircraft engines, set to
hit the market towards 2025.

Developed within the scope of the European research program
Clean Sky 2, the AGB Next Generation features an innovative
architecture that facilitates its integration with the engine and
nacelle. The new position of accessories on the AGB NG also
helps reduce size and weight compared to a conventional
system. Traditionally placed at the edge of the fan, the AGB NG
is now located near the high-pressure compressor. Changing
this location helps reduce fuel consumption because it allows
a smaller diameter nacelle, which in turn reduces aerodynamic
drag. The AGB NG also simplifies access to accessories, thus
facilitating maintenance operations.

To meet the growing needs of the LEAP program, in 2017 Safran
continued to expand its specialist gears, casings and engine
component production activities in Sedziszéw (Poland).

Electrical systems and engineering

Power generation and distribution systems

In the first half of 2017, Safran signed a five-year contract with
Air France Industries to provide auxiliary power unit (APU)
maintenance on its Airbus A330 and A340 aircraft. The contract
covers 160 aircraft operated by Air France and airline customers
of Air France Industries.

Through its subsidiary Aerolec (a 60/40 joint venture with Thales),
Safran signed an MRO agreement with Lufthansa Technik for
electrical power equipment on the A380 aircraft, manufactured
at the Pitstone plant (United Kingdom). This agreement
allows Safran to expand its MRO activities for equipment on
the Airbus A380. Under the agreement, Safran provides MRO
for a five-year period for its onboard equipment on A380s
operated by Lufthansa as well as Emirates, Etihad Airways,
Qantas, Malaysia Airlines and Air France.

Safran developed a new variable-frequency generator on
Boeing’s eco-demonstrator, for which the first dynamic full-speed
bench tests proved satisfactory. During the year, Safran also
delivered prototypes to General Electric for its aircraft flight
tests expected to begin in the first quarter of 2018.

(1) AGB: accessory gearbox.

Safran also successfully completed certification tests for the
KC-390 electrical system. Embraer will now process the results
and complete the certification documents before submitting
them to ANAC®, which will rule on certification before the
summer of 2018.

Safran was selected by airline companies lberia and Vueling to
repair the Ram Air Turbine (RAT) on their A320 and A330 fleets.

In 2017, the Group’s efforts were recognized and rewarded by
Airbus on several occasions:

> Safran picked up the “Best Performer Gold” trophy for its
exceptional performance on the manufacturer’s production
programs;

> Aerolec was named “Best Improver” for its ongoing improve-
ment efforts that enabled it to achieve record quality and
on-time delivery rates;

> Safran also collected the “Best Performer” award for its
performance and commitment in program management and
technical problem resolution.

Electrical wiring interconnection systems (EWIS)

In 2017 Safran celebrated the delivery of its one-millionth wiring
harness for the Boeing 787. Seven of its production facilities are
manufacturing parts for the Boeing 787 program, involving some
1,300 people across the globe (Everett, Charleston, Denton and
Wichita in the United States, Chihuahua in Mexico, Casablanca in
Morocco and Nagoya in Japan) working in related management,
engineering, production and installation activities.

Saifei (a joint venture between COMAC and Safran) delivered
all wiring harnesses for the first two prototypes of China’s C919
aircraft, which took to the air for the first time in early 2017.

Safran was selected to repair CFM and GE engine harnesses as
well as landing gear harnesses. These activities were successfully
developed after being transferred to the Vichy site.

Safran signed a five-year agreement with Kaman Aerospace
(United States) to supply wiring harnesses on Kaman helicopters.
The first harnesses were delivered in November from Mexico’s
Chihuahua plant.

Safran’s efforts in terms of quality, service and on-time delivery
were recognized and rewarded during the year. In early March,
at Safran’s first plant in Chihuahua (Mexico), Safran teams
celebrated the on-schedule delivery of over 10,000 wiring
harnesses for the fuselage and wings of the A380 aircraft
throughout the last four years (i.e., the equivalent of around
100 aircraft). Since the plant opened in 2003, Safran’s teams
in Mexico have advanced in terms of stability and maturity
and have improved their time management to achieve this
excellent T00% on-time delivery rate.

Lastly, Safran signed a technological and business cooperation
agreement with Diota, a leading publisher of augmented reality
software solutions for industry. This agreement covers R&D
work on the design, development and operation of innovative
solutions using augmented and optimized reality for Safran
products, tools and services.

2) ANAC: Agéncia Nacional de Aviacdo Civil (Brazil National Civil Aviation Authority).
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Ventilation systems and electrical engines

In 2017, Safran announced the signature of several agreements
concerning ventilation systems and electrical engines for aircraft:

> at the MRO Americas trade show in Orlando (United States),
Safran announced that it had signed an agreement with Turkish
Technic Inc. (a Turkish Airlines subsidiary) to provide electrical
equipment maintenance services for Airbus A320 and A330
aircraft operated by airline companies in Europe, in former
countries of the Commonwealth of Independent States, and
in Asia. This five-year agreement covers maintenance services
for airplane fans, brake cooling systems and APU generators
supplied by Safran to a fleet of 173 aircraft;

> at the Paris Air Show in Le Bourget, Safran announced
that it had been selected by Irkut Corporation (United Air
Corporation - Russia) to provide development, qualification,
serial production and aftermarket services for the entire
ventilation system on the new Russian single-aisle MC-21
aircraft. This system is composed of eight pieces of equipment
ensuring cabin air and avionic bay cooling functions.

2.1.3.3 Defense

During the year, Safran Ventilation Systems was chosen by Cessna
Aircraft (a Textron subsidiary) to supply avionic cooling systems
on the Denali program (single-engine turbojet private aircraft).

Lastly, in recognition of the Group’s performance and improvement
plans for support and services, Airbus Helicopters named Safran
“Best Performer in Service & Support”.

Industrial operations

Safran completed its plan to optimize its industrial facilities in
the United States, bringing together the repair and overhaul
business inherited from its acquisition of Aerosource in 2011 at its
Sarasota facility in Florida. In this context, Aerosource received
FAA certification for its maintenance and services business.

The sale of the Salisbury site in Maryland was finalized. The sale
was part of Safran’s reorganization plan for its North American
activities begun in 2015 and completed at the end of 2016. Safran
has now centralized its entire US electrical interconnections
business at its site in Denton, Texas.

Adjusted key figures
Backlog 2,916 2,868 -2%
Orders recorded during the year 1,768 1,422 -20%
Revenue 1,238 1,345 +9%
Recurring operating income 76 95 +25%
Profit from operations 69 81 +17%
Free cash flow 17 105 N/A
Acquisitions of property, plant and equipment 60 57 -5%
Research and development
Self-funded R&D m3) (123) +9%
% of revenue 9.1% 9.1% N/A
Research tax credit 36 37 +3%
Self-funded R&D after research tax credit (77) (86) +12%
Capitalized expenditure 43 44 +2%
Amortization and impairment of R&D expenditure a7 22) +29%
Impact on profit from operations (€)) (64) +25%
% of revenue 4.1% 4.8% +0.7 pts
Headcount 7,356 7,578 +3%

The Defense business operates in two key sectors:

% of business line revenue

Sector 2016
Avionics 48% 42%
Defense 52% 58%
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Review of Defense operations in 2017

Revenue was €1,345 million, up 8.6% (8.9% organically) compared
to €1,238 million in 2016. The Defense division resumed organic
growth in 2017, supported by the ramp-up of recently awarded
contracts both for the French and export markets. Commercial
momentum continued throughout 2017, with new orders
representing €1.4 billion supporting the outlook for growth.

In 2017, growth was primarily driven by military sales, with
strong increases in guidance systems, drones and sighting
systems, partially offset by lower helicopter flight control system
shipments in avionics.

Recurring operating income was up 25% at €95 million compared
to €76 million in 2016. Recurring operating margin increased
100 bps to 71% of revenue in 2017. Higher volumes related to
military contracts drove profitability. Strong cost control and
industrial performance measures implemented continued to
contribute positively to the margin. R&D charged to recurring
operating income was a headwind as self-funded R&D intensity was
sustained, at 9.1% of revenue, in order to maintain technological
leadership.

Commercial and industrial developments

Safran Electronics & Defense streamlined its organization in
2017, moving from three divisions to two (Avionics and Defense)
and bringing its R&D teams together under a single technical
management division. This new streamlined organization simplifies
relations with customers and also facilitates research programs,
synergies and integrated solutions.

Activities related to flight controls, avionics, FADEC and aerospace
were absorbed into the Avionics division, which also includes
navigation systems for civil and military aircraft.

Guidance systems and seekers, drones, digital combat, sights
and optronic equipment were incorporated into the Defense
division. This division also includes navigation systems for sea
and land applications, and high-performance inertial sensors.

Avionics

Flight control systems

In 2017, Safran was selected to supply the throttles on Embraer’s
Phenom300.

Onboard information systems/Data management and services

Safran’s WEFA® system was selected by various airline companies
throughout the year, and over 1,000 commercial aircraft are to
be fitted with the system (A320ceo, A320neo, Boeing 737 NG,
ATR-500 and -600). The WEFA system enables the transfer
of a large volume of flight data from the aircraft to the ground
through a secure and entirely automated connection. Using this
data, airline companies can immediately study safety reports,
plan ahead for maintenance and reduce their operating costs.

The success of this system has placed Safran as a leader in the
fast-growing sector of flight data management services for
airline companies and aircraft manufacturers.

In 2017, Safran acquired the French SME ISEI, a specialist in flight
data acquisition systems and associated services for helicopters
and light airplanes. The systems developed and produced by
ISEI round out Safran’s Cassiopée range of aircraft products
and services, which was designed to optimize operations for
airline operators.

Safran also extended its Cassiopée products and services to
LEAP engines fitted on the Airbus A320neo. This new application
for Safran’s Cassiopée offer allows operators to collect data
directly from FADEC engine control units as well as operational
information from onboard the aircraft. The new service meets
the needs of airline companies in terms of monitoring the
situation of their aircraft.

Electronic equipment and onboard critical software

FADEC Alliance, a joint venture between GE and FADEC International
(itself a joint venture between Safran and BAE Systems), supplies
the new-generation FADEC 4 control units currently fitted onto
LEAP and Passport engines.

The year confirmed the success of the FADEC programs, with:

> a ramp-up in production of control units for the LEAP-1A,
LEAP-1B and Passport engines respectively powering the
Airbus A320neo, Boeing 737 MAX and Bombardier’s new
Global 7000;

> delivery of control units for tests on the GE9X program, the
sole power source on the future Boeing 777X.

In 2017, Safran embarked on new in-house studies including the
development of a new version of the control unit for the M88
engine powering Rafale aircraft, and also launched the FADEX
program for helicopter engine controls.

Aerospace navigation and sensors

During the year Safran was chosen by Dassault Aviation to
supply Sigma navigation systems for Rafale aircraft for the
Indian armed forces.

On the civil aircraft market, Safran will fit out Alstom’s new tilting
train with Quapason™ vibrating gyroscope inertial sensors.

High-performance optics

Safran was selected by the European Southern Observatory
(ESO), a European organization for astronomical research, to
polish, mount and test all segments in the M1 primary mirror for
the future Extremely Large Telescope (ELT). With a diameter of
39 meters, the M1 will be the largest primary mirror ever built
worldwide. Under the contract, the Group is responsible for
polishing and integrating four of the five mirrors forming the
largest optical telescope in the world. “First light” (entry-into-
service) of the ELT, which is located in Chile, is expected in 2024.

(D) WEFA: Wireless Extension For ACMS (Aircraft Condition Monitoring System).
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In 2017, Safran produced and delivered all of the path mirrors
for the high-performance Apollon laser built by the CILEX
interdisciplinary extreme light center. One of the largest and
most powerful lasers in the world, Apollon will be operated
by the high-power laser laboratory LULI (Laboratoire pour
I'Utilisation des Lasers Intenses), a joint organization comprising
CNRS®, the Ecole Polytechnique engineering school, Université
Pierre-et-Marie-Curie and the French Alternative Energies and
Atomic Energy Commission.

Defense

Optronics and sights

Land: As part of the Scorpion program to modernize the French
army’s combat capabilities, in 2017 the Ministry of Defense
placed a first order for armored vehicles (319 Griffon and
20 Jaguar), for which Safran is to supply the optronic sights
and navigation system.

Air: At the Paris Air Show in Le Bourget, Safran unveiled Euroflir™ 410,
a long-range portable optronic system for aircraft, helicopters,
aerostations and drones. Both day and night, Euroflir™ 410
offers unrivaled capabilities for the most demanding missions
engaging armies and security forces: intelligence, surveillance,
targeting, protection, intervention, search and rescue.

Regarding STRIX sights on French army Tiger helicopters, Safran
signed a contract to supply 18 new Strix optronic sights with the
Organization for Joint Armament Cooperation (OCCAR) and
will provide maintenance support for sights already delivered.

Sea: Safran signed a first sales contract for its PASEO NS (Naval
System) sights in 2017. PASEO NS are part of Safran’s new PASEO
Marine line of naval products and are used for surveillance and
fire control of naval guns of all calibers. These systems offering
day/night target designation and surveillance capabilities will
outfit new frigates deployed by an Asian navy as from 2018.

Soldier modernization

The various new portable optronics contracts won in 2017
confirm the good positioning of Safran technology.

The industry-leading JIM LR long-range multifunction goggles
have been adopted by the armed forces of over 40 countries. New
orders were booked in 2017, bringing the number of goggles in
service or on order across the globe to almost 10,000, including
more than 3,500 for the French armed forces.

(1) French National Center for Scientific Research.

The success of the new Compact JIM goggles when they were
first unveiled at the Eurosatory defense fair in 2016 continued
in 2017, with a seventh NATO country selecting the goggles for
its armed forces. These goggles are more compact, lightweight
(2 kg with batteries), hardwearing, and offer intuitive ergonomic
features.

Safran was selected by the United States Marine Corps to supply
its ultralight gun-mounted rangefinder (I-CUGR)®. This new
equipment gives the USMC the ability to quickly range targets
without taking hands off their rifles, providing more accurate
first round hits. The first -CUGR were delivered in 2017.

Navigation and sensors

A European leader in inertial navigation and avionics®, Safran
delivered its 150,000 resonating gyro in 2017 since the start
of serial production in the 2000s.

Safran also signed a contract for the supply of EpsilonOne inertial
ground navigation systems and technical integration services
to outfit a first armored brigade of a Middle Eastern country.
The procurement program encompasses more than 12 different
vehicle types, from all-terrain 4WD and troop transport vehicles
to infantry fighting vehicles and main battle tanks.

Seekers and guidance systems

Throughout the year, Safran also successfully managed the
ramp-up of AASM®™ production, enabling it to meet the projected
delivery schedule following the orders placed in 2016.

In July, the MMP mid-range missile system for which Safran
supplies the seekers and firing posts, was qualified by the DGA®,
A first batch of 50 missiles and 20 firing posts were delivered
to the French armed forces in late 2017.

Drones

Patroller tactical drones

Thanks to its close cooperation with the French armed forces and
Directorate General of Weapons Procurement (DGA), Safran’s
Patroller drone took part in the July 14 Bastille Day parade, flying
over the Champs Elysées and transmitting images recorded by
the gyro-stabilized gimbal Euroflir™ 410.

Tactical land-based robot

At the end of 2017, Safran was contracted by the DGA’s “Furious”
Science and Technology (PST) project to lay the groundwork
for the future integration of land robots into the French armed
forces, as part of phase Il of the Scorpion modernization program.
Safran has sought additional expertise from academia and small
to medium-sized businesses to fulfill this contact, which involves
the development of three robot demonstrators, including the
eRider autonomous vehicle and a drone.

2) I-CUGR: Integrated Compact Ultralight Gun-mounted Rangefinder.

(3) Source: Safran.

(4) AASM: Armement air-sol modulaire (Modular Air-to-Ground Weapon).

(5) DGA: French Directorate General of Weapons Procurement.
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2.1.5.4 Security

The financial statements relating to the Security business are included in section 3.1, Note 27 of this Registration Document.

The Security business operates in two sectors:

Sector

% of business line revenue

2016

Identity and Security

Detection

86% 93%
14% 7%

Commercial and industrial developments

Identity and Security

Government solutions

Up to the sale of its Identity and Security business to Advent
International on May 31, 2017, Safran provided identification
solutions to governments under various agreements. These
included population enrollment, as well as production and
personalization of identity documents. Safran offered a
comprehensive range of solutions and services to governments,
from ID document management to use.

Business solutions

In early March 2017, StarChip, a subsidiary of Safran Identity & Security,
announced the shipment of its one-billionth secure microcontroller.
This milestone placed StarChip as a key player in the secure
chip market.

Public security

Up to the sale of its Identity and Security business to
Advent International, the owner of Oberthur Technologies, at
the end of May 2017, Safran helped police forces and government
bodies detect and identify potential threats in public places in
order to protect people and property.

(1) TSA: Transportation Security Administration.
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Detection

Safran was mainly active in air transport security, supplying baggage

explosive detection systems (EDS) using X-ray tomography

and X-ray diffraction, along with equipment to analyze traces

of explosives (vapors or particles). Up to April 7, the date on

which its Detection business was sold to Smiths Group, Safran

notably announced that:

> it had been selected by Cardiff airport (United Kingdom) to
supply CTX 9800 DSi™ hold baggage explosives detection
systems;

> it had taken an order worth over USD 40 million from the
TSA® to supply explosives detection systems;

> its CTX explosives detection systems had been chosen by
Manchester Airports Group (MAG) to outfit three UK airports.



REVIEW OF OPERATIONS IN 2017 AND OUTLOOK FOR 2018 2

Comments on the consolidated financial statements

2.2 COMMENTS ON THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.2.1 Consolidated income statement

The simplified consolidated income statement for the year ended December 31, 2017 presented below was taken directly from the
consolidated financial statements included in section 3.1 of this Registration Document.

Revenue 16,482 16,940 +2.8%
Other operating income and expenses (13,579) (14,323)
Share in profit from joint ventures 87 154
Recurring operating income 2,990 2,771 -7.3%
Other non-recurring operating income and expenses 349 (90)
Profit from operations 3,339 2,681 =19.7%
Financial income (loss) (1,052) 3,064
Income tax expense (398) (1,716)
Profit from continuing operations 1,889 4,029
Profit from discontinued operations and assets held for sale 74 823
Loss for the period attributable to non-controlling interests (55) (62)
PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE PARENT 1,908 4,790

Consolidated revenue

Consolidated revenue climbed 2.8% year-on-year to €16,940 million
in 2017 from €16,482 million in 2016.

The difference between adjusted consolidated revenue and
consolidated revenue is due to the exclusion of foreign currency
derivatives from the adjusted figures (see section 2.1.1). Neutralizing
the impact of foreign currency hedging in 2017 increased
consolidated revenue by €419 million. This year-on-year change
in the revenue impact of foreign currency hedging results
from movements in average exchange rates with regard to the
effective hedging rates for the period on the portion of foreign
currency denominated flows hedged by the Group. For example,
the hedged EUR/USD rate in 2017 was 1.21, against an annual
average rate of 113, which explains why netting out the effect
of foreign currency hedging gives a consolidated revenue figure
that is higher than adjusted consolidated revenue.

Year-on-year changes in revenue excluding the impact of adjusting
items are analyzed below (see section 2.1.2).

Recurring operating income

Recurring operating income was €2,771 million in 2017 versus
€2,990 million in 2016. The difference between recurring
operating income and adjusted recurring operating income
(see section 2.1.2), which came in at €2,470 million, reflects:

> amortization charged against intangible assets measured
when allocating the purchase price for business combinations,
representing €67 million in relation to the May 2005
Sagem/Snecma business combination;

> amortization charged against intangible assets measured when
allocating the purchase price for other business combinations,
representing €63 million;

> a positive €438 million impact resulting from foreign currency
hedging transactions.

Changes in adjusted recurring operating income are analyzed
above (see section 2.1.2).

Profit from operations

Profit from operations was down 19.7% year-on-year to €2,681 million
in 2017 from €3,339 million in 2016. Profit from operations includes
recurring operating income of €2,771 million (€2,990 million in
2016) and other non-recurring items, representing an expense
of €90 million (income of €349 million in 2016).

Consolidated other non-recurring items in 2016 (income of
€349 million) differed from adjusted other non-recurring items
(loss of €18 million) since they included the remeasurement gain
on the Group’s contributions to ArianeGroup totaling €367 million.

Changes in profit from operations are analyzed above
(see section 2.1.2).
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Financial income (loss)

Safran reported financial income of €3,064 million in 2017
compared to a financial loss of €1,052 million in 2016.

Two items account for the difference between consolidated and
adjusted financial income for 2017 (see section 2.1.2):

> changes in the fair value of currency instruments hedging
future cash flows, which had a positive impact of €3,476 million
in 2017. This amount is recognized in full in financial income
(loss) in the consolidated financial statements. However, the
impact of changes in financial instruments hedging future
cash flows is neutralized in the adjusted financial statements.
These changes relate to volatility in the EUR/USD exchange
rate, since the currency hedging portfolio was priced based
on a year-end exchange rate of 1.20 at December 31, 2017,
and 1.05 at end-2016;

> the impact of foreign currency hedging on the portion of
foreign exchange denominated flows hedged by the Group,
representing a positive €438 million impact in 2017. This impact
is recognized in financial income (loss) in the consolidated
financial statements and within profit from operations (mostly
in revenue) in the adjusted income statement.

Income tax benefit (expense)

The Group reported income tax expense of €1,716 million in 2017,
compared with income tax expense of €398 million in 2016.

Changes in the tax effect are primarily due to changes in the
fair value of currency instruments hedging future cash flows,
representing a positive impact of €3,476 million in 2017 recorded
in financial income (2016: negative impact of €186 million
recorded in this caption).

Consolidated profit attributable
to owners of the parent

This caption represented profit of €4,790 million for 2017
compared to profit of €1,908 million for 2016. It consists of
€823 million in profit from discontinued operations, including
€824 million arising on the sale of the Security business and a
loss of €1 million arising on this business prior to the sale (2016:
€74 million in profit from discontinued operations).

2.2.2 Simplified consolidated balance sheet

The simplified consolidated balance sheet at December 31, 2017 presented below was taken directly from the consolidated financial

statements included in section 3.1 of this Registration Document.

(in € millions) 2016 m
Assets

Goodwill 1,864 1,831
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 8,347 8,759
Investments in equity-accounted companies 2175 2,119
Other non-current assets 1,733 466
Derivatives (positive fair value) 620 582
Inventories and work-in-progress 4,247 4,496
Trade and other receivables 6,252 6,371
Other current assets 660 2,709
Cash and cash equivalents 1,926 4,914
Assets relating to discontinued operations 3,234 -
TOTAL ASSETS 31,058 32,247
Equity and liabilities

Share capital 6,809 10,624
Provisions 3,264 3,403
Borrowings subject to specific conditions 699 569
Interest-bearing financial liabilities 3,337 4,636
Derivatives (negative fair value) 4,385 805
Other non-current liabilities 992 1,030
Trade and other payables 10,242 10,822
Other current liabilities 536 358
Liabilities relating to discontinued operations 794 -
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 31,058 32,247
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS IN 2017 AND OUTLOOK FOR 2018

Comments on the consolidated financial statements

The year-on-year change in the Group’s net debt for 2016 and 2017 can be summarized as follows:

(in € millions)

2016 2017

Cash flow from operations 2,651 2,410
Change in working capital (168) 316
Acquisitions of property, plant and equipment (704) (740)
Acquisitions of intangible assets (324) (262)
Capitalization of R&D expenditure (364) (286)
Free cash flow 1,091 1,438
Net debt at December 31 - discontinued operations and assets held for sale e7) -
Dividends paid (642) (372)
Divestments/acquisitions of securities and other (917) 611
NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (635) 1,677
Net debt at January 1 (748) (1,383)
Net debt at December 31 (1,383) 294

Cash flow from operations is calculated by taking profit or
loss before tax and adjusting for income and expenses with
no cash impact, for example net charges to depreciation,
amortization and provisions, and changes in the fair value of
financial instruments hedging future cash flows®. The Group’s
ability to finance working capital needs, acquisitions of property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets and dividends out
of operating activities fell by €241 million over the year, from
€2,651 million in 2016 to €2,410 million in 2017.

Operations generated €1,438 million of free cash flow (58% of
adjusted recurring operating income in 2017 compared to 45%
in 2016), a rise of €347 million compared to the previous year.
Free cash flow generation of €1,438 million results from cash
from operations of €2,410 million, a decrease of €316 million
in working capital needs (related to the Group’s businesses
and necessary efforts to meet output rates), and a fall in R&D
expenses (impact of the entry-into-service of LEAP programs
(see section 1.3.1.1)).

(1) See section 3.1, “Consolidated statement of cash flows”.

Dividends paid in the year include the final dividend payment
of €0.83 per share in respect of 2016.

Divestments/acquisitions of securities primarily relate to the
pledge of €2,000 million in money market funds during the
tender offer for Zodiac Aerospace (see section 3.1, Note 16), and
to €3,060 million in net cash received on disposals of securities,
particularly the Security business (see section 3.1, Note 3).

The net debt position was €294 million at December 31, 2017,
compared to €1,383 million at December 31, 2016.

At end-2017, Safran had €4,914 million of cash and cash
equivalents, as well as a confirmed undrawn credit facility
totaling €2,520 million.
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2.3 COMMENTS ON THE PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.3.1 Safran income statement

Safran’s simplified income statement for the year ended December 31, 2017 presented below was taken directly from the parent
company financial statements included in section 3.3 of this Registration Document.

(in € millions) 2016 m
Revenue 525 552
Other operating income and expenses (601 (586)
Loss from operations (76) 34)
Financial income 523 1,225
Non-recurring items 323 25
Income tax benefit 200 144
PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD 970 1,360

Revenue came in at €552 million in 2017 versus €525 million in
2016, and chiefly includes billings of general assistance services
provided by the parent company to its subsidiaries, as well as
specific amounts billed to certain subsidiaries (rent, employees, IT
services) and miscellaneous services related to projects (research
projects for example) managed by the parent company on behalf
of all of its subsidiaries. The €27 million year-on-year increase
in revenue results primarily from centralized research projects.

Other operating income and expenses represented a net expense
of €586 million in 2017 versus a net expense of €601 million in
2016, reflecting a continued tight rein on costs.

Safran reported a loss from operations of €34 million in 2017
and €76 million in 2016.

Safran reported financial income of €1,225 million in 2017 and
€523 million in 2016. Financial income includes dividends received
from subsidiaries totaling €1,262 million, compared to €514 million
in 2016. Lower dividends paid in 2016 were mainly attributable
to the interim dividends paid in 2015 by Safran Aircraft Engines
(€380 million) and Safran Electronics & Defense (€427 million).
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This caption also includes a net interest expense of €3 million
in 2017 (net interest income of €7 million in 2016) and foreign
exchange losses of €36 million (€15 million in foreign exchange
losses in 2016).

Safran reported non-recurring income of €25 million in 2017 and
€323 million in 2016. Non-recurring items in 2017 mainly relate to:

> the sale of the “Morpho” brand as part of the sale of Safran’s
Identity and Security businesses for €15 million. The Morpho
brand was not carried on the balance sheet;

> the sale of Embraer shares, generating a net capital gain of
€3 million.

Income tax represented a benefit of €33 million under the
Group’s tax consolidation regime, compared to a benefit of
€53 million in 2016. This caption also includes a net reversal
from the provision for the transfer of the tax saving arising on
the French tax group from Safran to its loss-making subsidiaries
in an amount of €111 million in 2017 (€147 million in 2016).

On account of the above, profit for the year came in at
€1,360 million, compared to €970 million in 2016.



2.3.2 Simplified balance sheet

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS IN 2017 AND OUTLOOK FOR 2018

Comments on the parent company financial statements

Safran’s simplified balance sheet at December 31, 2017 presented below was taken directly from the parent company financial

statements included in section 3.3 of this Registration Document.

(in € millions) 2016
Assets

Non-current assets 10,821 12,946
Cash equivalents and marketable securities 1,820 4,829
Other current assets 3,904 2,446
TOTAL ASSETS 16,545 20,221
Equity and liabilities

Share capital 7,274 8,289
Provisions 570 468
Borrowings 3,040 4,342
Other payables 5,661 7122
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 16,545 20,221

The increase in equity in 2017 reflects profit for the year totaling
€1,360 million, dividends paid in 2017 for a total of €340 million
in respect of the remaining dividend balance for 2016, and a
net reversal from tax-driven provisions amounting to €5 million.

The increase in non-current assets is chiefly attributable to
the pledge of €2,000 million worth of money market funds in

connection with the Zodiac Aerospace acquisition and to the
purchase of treasury shares for €403 million in the context of
the share buyback program (see section 2.2.3).

The increase in borrowings results mainly from Safran’s issue of
€1,000 million in floating-rate bonds, divided into two tranches
(see section 3, Note 22, “Interest-bearing liabilities™).
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2.3.3 Other information

Supplier and customer payment periods

Pursuant to Article D.441-4 of the French Commercial Code, the table below shows outstanding invoices due and past due at the

end of the reporting period:

Article D.441 1.-1: Invoices received but not settled at December 31, 2017

Article D.441 1.-2: Invoices issued but not settled at December 31, 2017

0 days 1t030 31to60 61t090 Morethan Total (1or 0 days 1t030 31to60 61t090 Morethan  Total (10r

(indicative) days days days  90days moredays) (indicative) days days days 90days  more days)
(A) Breakdown of past due payments
Number of invoices
concerned - 79 - 290
Total amount of
invoices concerned
including VAT (€) - 255800 70910 1734 356,009 684,454 - 3473847 28505 29698 1,037,013 4,569,064
% total purchases in
2017 including VAT - 01% 0.0% 0.0% 0.1% 0.2%
% revenue in 2017
including VAT - 05% 00% 0.0% 0.1% 0.6%
(B) Invoices excluded from (A) relating to disputed or unrecognized payables and receivables
Number of invoices
excluded 332 6
Total amount of
invoices excluded (€) 2,433,094 126,991

(C) Reference payment terms used (contractual or statutory terms pursuant to Article L.441-6 or L.443-1 of the French Commercial Code)

Reference payment
terms used to
calculate past due
payments

W Contractual terms: CONTRACTUAL TERMS
[ Statutory terms: (specify)

® Contractual terms: CONTRACTUAL TERMS
Q Statutory terms: (specify)

Non-deductible expenses

Non-deductible expenses (Article 223 quater and Article 39.4
of the French Tax Code) amounted to €0.1 million in 2017 as in
2016, and relate to the non-deductible portion of vehicle lease
payments and depreciation.

Dividends

Dividends that have not been claimed within five years are
time-barred and paid over to the French State in accordance
with the applicable legislation.

Future dividends will depend on Safran’s ability to generate
profits, its financial position and any other factors deemed
relevant by the Company’s corporate governance bodies.

Details of previous dividend payments are included in the
proposed appropriation of profit for 2017 and the five-year
financial summary of the Company set out below.
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Proposed appropriation of 2017 profit

The Board of Directors recommends appropriating profit for
2017 as follows:

Profit for 2017 €1,359,762,344.15

Retained earnings® €1,801,147,979.31

Profit available

for distribution €3,160,910,323.46
Appropriation:
Dividend €709,889,028.80

Retained earnings €2,451,021,294.66

(D Including €7.301,487.92 corresponding to the 2016 dividend
due on shares held in treasury at the dividend payment date.

Accordingly, the dividend will be €1.60 per share and will be
paid on May 31, 2018. The ex-dividend date will be May 29, 2018.

Individual shareholders domiciled for tax purposes in France are
eligible for 40% tax relief on the full amount of their dividend
pursuant to Article 158, 3-2° of the French Tax Code.
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The dividends not payable on shares held in treasury will be credited to retained earnings.

The dividends paid for the past three years were as follows:

Number
of shares carrying Net dividend
Year dividends rights™ per share Total payout®
2016 409,239,433 €1.52 €626,602,111.28
2015 416,410,610® €1.38 €574,637,624.40
2014 416,459,463 €1.20 €499,711,590.56

(D Total number of shares making up the Company’s capital (417,029,585), less the number of Safran shares held in treasury at the
dividend payment date.

(2) An interim dividend (€0.69) was paid on 415,845,481 shares and the remainder of the dividend (€0.83) was paid on 409,239,433 shares.

(3) An interim dividend (€0.60) was paid on 416,395,581 shares and the remainder of the dividend (€0.78) was paid on 416,410,610 shares.

(4 An interim dividend (€0.56) was paid on 416,388,454 shares and the remainder of the dividend (€0.64) was paid on 416,459,463 shares.

(5) Fully eligible for the 40% tax relief provided for under Article 158, 3-2° of the French Tax Code.

Five-year financial summary of the Company

(in € 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

Capital at December 31

Share capital 83,405,917 83,405,917 83,405,917 83,405,917 83,405,917
Number of ordinary shares outstanding 417,029,585 417,029,585 417,029,585 417,029,585 417,029,585

Financial results

Profit before tax, statutory employee profit-sharing,
depreciation, amortization and provisions 351,489,419 218,114,906 1,564,574,645 767,391,743 1,251,397,582

Income tax expense (benefit) (49,857,914) (135,606,853) (102,700,757) (52,805,019) (33,064,752)
Statutory employee profit-sharing for the fiscal year - - - - -

Profit after tax, statutory employee profit-sharing,
depreciation, amortization and provisions 327,839,113 654,303,872 1,648,209,397 969,870,638 1,359,762,344

Dividend payment 467,073,135 500,435,502 575,500,827 633,884,969 667,247,336

Per share data

Profit after tax, statutory employee profit-sharing,
depreciation, amortization and provisions

> divided by the number of shares outstanding 0.96 0.85 4.00 1.97 3.08

Profit after tax, statutory employee profit-sharing,
depreciation, amortization and provisions

> divided by the number of shares outstanding 0.79 1.57 3.95 2.33 3.26
Net dividend

> per ordinary share outstanding 112 1.20 1.38 1.52 1.60
Employees
Average number of employees during the fiscal year 1,21 1,370 1,519 1,577 1,624
Total payroll 109,929,617 124,923,990 133,628,961 140,807,877 145,288,974
Social security and other social welfare contributions 71,358,273 75,609,338 88,424,113  88,550,754®  95,952,479®

(D Including €3.7 million in respect of the international free share plan, of which the full amount of €3.7 million was rebilled to the
European subsidiaries employing the beneficiaries.

@) Including €7.4 million in contributions paid to the insurer that manages the defined benefit pension plan.

(3) Including €5.0 million in contributions paid to the insurer that manages the defined benefit pension plan.

(4) Including €6.6 million in contributions paid to the insurer that manages the defined benefit pension plan.
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2., OUTLOOK FOR 2018

2018 guidance is established considering the full application of the
new IFRS 15 revenue recognition standard and is based on continuing
operations (Aerospace Propulsion, Aircraft Equipment, Defense,
Holding & Others) at the Group’s scope as of January 1, 2018.

Compared to its 2017 estimated restated key metrics for the
application of IFRS 15, Safran expects for the full year 2018:

adjusted revenue to grow between 2% and 4% on an organic
basis. At an estimated average spot rate of USD 1.23 to the
euro in 2018, adjusted revenue is expected to be flat;

adjusted recurring operating income to grow between 7% and
10% (at a hedged rate of USD 1.18 to the euro);

free cash flow to be above 50% of adjusted recurring operating
income, an element of uncertainty being the rhythm of
payments by state-clients.

The guidance is based notably on the following assumptions:

increase in aerospace OE deliveries, despite a fall in high
thrust engine module volumes;

civil aftermarket growth in the high single digits;

2.5 ACQUISITION OF ZODIAC AEROSPACE

2017 key stages

January 19, 2017: Announcement of
an initial planned business combination

Safran and Zodiac Aerospace announce that they are in
exclusive negotiations with a view to a business combination.
This initial plan is for a public tender offer to be launched by
Safran for Zodiac Aerospace shares, followed by a merger of
Zodiac Aerospace into Safran.

Following Zodiac Aerospace’s publication of profit warnings
for the 2016/2017 fiscal year (ended February 28, 2017) on
March 14, 2017 and April 28, 2017, Safran and Zodiac Aerospace
continued their exclusive negotiations and Safran conducted
additional due diligence, enabling it to confirm the compelling
strategic interest of an acquisition and the potential for value
creation.

May 24, 2017: Announcement of new
terms for the Offer

At the end of this process, Safran and Zodiac Aerospace entered
into a business combination agreement under new terms,
consisting of a tender offer on a principal basis, together with
a capped subsidiary exchange offer (together, the “Offer”) and
published a press release announcing the new terms of their
combination.

CFM56 - LEAP transition: overall negative impact on
Propulsion adjusted recurring operating income in the range
of €150 million to €200 million, which represents a significant
reduction compared to 2017;

e lower CFM56 OE volumes,

e negative margin on LEAP deliveries;

reduction of self-funded R&D® of the order of €150 million;

positive impact on recurring operating income after activation

and amortization of capitalized R&D;

capex outflows at a similar level to 2017;

continued benefits from productivity improvements.
Regarding the acquisition of Zodiac Aerospace, an integration
team is in place and already hard at work tasked notably with
deploying Safran processes and methodologies and delivering

the synergies. Additional information will be provided to the
market over the coming months, starting in April.

Factors with a potential impact
on results

Major risk factors that could have an adverse impact on the
Group’s business, financial position or results of operations are
described in chapter 4.

On May 23, 2017, the new terms of the transaction were unanimously
approved by Safran’s Board of Directors and by the Management
Board and Supervisory Board of Zodiac Aerospace.

Between end-May and end-June 2017:
Signature of agreements with Zodiac
Aerospace’s reference shareholders
and information/consultation
proceedings with the employee
representative bodies of both groups

Safran signed agreements with Zodiac Aerospace’s reference
shareholders comprising (i) holding and tender agreements with
Zodiac’s largest institutional shareholders (FFP, FSP - Fonds
Stratégique de Participation and certain family shareholders)
representing around 27% of the share capital, and (ii) residual
interest undertakings with certain Zodiac Aerospace family
shareholders covering at least 5% of the share capital.

In parallel, Safran fulfilled its information obligations and
Zodiac Aerospace its information and consultation obligations
with regard to employee representative bodies. On June 23,
2017, Zodiac Aerospace’s Works Committee issued a unanimous
favorable opinion on the transaction.

(D In application of IFRS 15, self-funded R&D for the period includes some development spending to be funded by customers

and recognized in OE revenue at a later date.
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June 15, 2017: Safran Shareholders’
Meeting

At Safran’s Extraordinary Shareholders’ Meeting, Safran shareholders
approved the resolutions authorizing the issue, in the event the
offer were to be successful, of class A preferred shares to Zodiac
Aerospace shareholders having tendered their shares to the
Subsidiary Exchange Offer (see chapter 7, sections 7.1.2.2 and
7.1.2.3 for a description of class A preferred shares).

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS IN 2017 AND OUTLOOK FOR 2018

Acquisition of Zodiac Aerospace

December 2017: Filing of the draft
Offer with the AMF and acceptance
of the Offer

On December 6, Safran’s Board of Directors unanimously decided
to file the draft Offer with the French financial markets authority
(Autorité des marchés financiers - AMF). On the same date,
Zodiac Aerospace’s Supervisory Board, after having considered
an independent fairness opinion, issued a unanimous informed
opinion recommending that shareholders tender their shares to
the Offer. On December 21, 2017, the AMF published a favorable
opinion on the Offer, allowing the initial Offer period to run from
December 27, 2017 to January 31, 2018.

Rationale for the business combination

Safran is an international high-technology group operating in the
aircraft propulsion and equipment, space and defense markets.

Zodiac Aerospace specializes in the design, manufacture,
marketing and sale of aircraft equipment and is a world leader in
many different segments (pilot and passenger seating, onboard
toilets and sanitation systems, flight systems, safety equipment
and technological equipment), and has a strong presence in
North America.

The transaction has created a world leader in aircraft equipment,
allying the market-leading positions, expertise, technologies and
talents of both Safran and Zodiac Aerospace. The new entity
will combine Safran’s capabilities in landing gear, wheels and
brakes, nacelles, power systems, actuation and avionics with
Zodiac Aerospace’s leading positions in seats, cabin interiors,

power distribution, lighting, fuel, oxygen and fluid systems and
safety equipment.

In electrical systems, Zodiac Aerospace’s assets will reinforce
Safran’s portfolio of technologies and position the group ideally
for future development towards the “more electrical aircraft”.

On a pro forma basis, the combined group would have over
91,000 employees (of which more than 45,000 in France),
around €21 billion in adjusted revenue, and around €2.7 billion
in adjusted recurring operating income®.

On this basis, the combined group would form the third largest
player worldwide in the aerospace sector®. The combined
group would become the second largest player worldwide in
aircraft equipment, with pro forma revenue in this business of
some €10 billion® and would be present in over 60 countries.

Success of the Offer and takeover of Zodiac Aerospace by Safran

On February 6, 2018, the AMF published the results of the initial
Offer. Safran acquired a total of 233,664,224 Zodiac Aerospace
shares in the context of the Offer, representing 79.74% of the
company’s share capital and 71.87% of its voting rights®. This
exceeded the acceptance threshold, set at 50% of Zodiac Aerospace’s
share capital or voting rights, and the withdrawal threshold, set
at 66.67% of the voting rights exercisable at a shareholders’
meeting. Safran therefore owns around 88.23% of Zodiac
Aerospace’s share capital, given (i) the treasury shares held by
Zodiac Aerospace, representing 4.31% of its share capital and
which were not tendered to the Offer, and (ii) Zodiac Aerospace
shares covered by the residual interest undertaking, representing
around 4.18% of its share capital.

On February 13, 2018, the settlement date for the initial
Offer, Safran obtained exclusive control of Zodiac Aerospace.
On the same date, Safran issued 26,651,058 class A preferred
shares in consideration for the 88,847,828 Zodiac Aerospace

shares effectively tendered to the Subsidiary Exchange Offer
(after application of the reductions provided for). Safran’s
bylaws were amended accordingly, pursuant to the terms of
the thirty-second and thirty-third resolutions approved by the
General Shareholders’ Meeting of June 15, 2017.

On February 13, 2018, Zodiac Aerospace’s Supervisory Board

met and:

> placed on record the resignation of eight of its members;

> approved the appointment of five of its members put forward
by Safran;

> appointed Louis Desanges as new Chairman of the Supervisory
Board and appointed Bernard Delpit as Vice-Chairman;

> appointed a new Management Board comprising three members
put forward by Safran, including the Chairman, Vincent Mascré,
formerly Chairman of Safran Landing Systems.

(D Pro forma based on Safran’s results for 2016, excluding Safran Identity & Security, and Zodjac Aerospace’s results for 2015/2016

at August 31, 2016.
(2) Excluding aircraft manufacturers and system builders.

(3) Pro forma based on Safran’s results for 2016 and Zodiac Aerospace’s results for 2015/2016 at August 31, 2076.
(4) Based on share capital comprising 293,046,975 shares, representing a maximum of 325,122,966 theoretical voting rights, given the
cancellation of at least 51,484,780 double voting rights attached to Zodiac Aerospace shares held in registered form and tendered

to the Offer.
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS IN 2017 AND OUTLOOK FOR 2018

Subsequent events

On March 8, 2018, the AMF published the results of the
Subsequent Offer (for the tender offer portion) which ran from
February 19 to March 2, 2018 and which was designed to enable
any Zodiac Aerospace shareholders who had not yet done so
to tender their shares to the Offer.

Mandatory squeeze-out

On March 23, 2018, Zodiac Aerospace’s shares were delisted
after Safran implemented a mandatory squeeze-out of
Zodiac Aerospace’s shares, pursuant to articles L.433-4 Il of the
Monetary and Financial Code and 237-14 et seq. of the AMF’s
General Regulations.

The mandatory squeeze-out procedure targeted all Zodiac Aerospace
shares not tendered to the Offer, with the exception of (i) the
12,625,784 Zodiac Aerospace treasury shares being treated
as Zodiac Aerospace shares held by Safran, (ii) the 12,565,235
Zodiac Aerospace shares which remain targeted by the residual

Next steps

Merger

Safran reserves the right to consider the best ways in which
Zodiac Aerospace can be integrated within the Group and to
merge Zodiac Aerospace into Safran by any means subsequent
to the Offer. The terms and conditions of any such merger
would be subject to prior consultation with the employee
representative bodies of Safran and Zodiac Aerospace in the
allotted timeframes, and where appropriate to a review by the
AMF in compliance with applicable regulations.

2.6 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

None.
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Safran acquired 27,310,744 additional Zodiac Aerospace shares in
the context of the Subsequent Offer, bringing the total number
of shares acquired in the Offer to 286,241,204, representing
97.67% of the share capital and at least 96.61% of the voting
rights of Zodiac Aerospace.

interest undertaking described in paragraph 1.4.3 of Safran’s
information memorandum, and (iii) the 384,717 free shares in
their holding period and shares blocked in Zodiac Aerospace’s
company savings plan (plan d’épargne d’entreprise — PEE)
with respect to which a call option has been granted to Safran
under the liquidity mechanism described in paragraph 1.4.4 of
Safran’s information memorandum. The mandatory squeeze-out
targeted a total of 6,829,279 Zodiac Aerospace shares, and was
executed at the same price as that of the Offer, i.e., a price of
€25 per Zodiac Aerospace share (net of all expenses).

Business combination: operational
issues

On December 1, 2017, Safran appointed Hélene Moreau-Leroy to
head up the Zodiac integration project, responsible for:

> structuring and leading the project;

> putting in place measures to guarantee business continuity;
> delivering on synergies;

> rolling out methodological processes and tools;

> optimizing corporate support functions and processes driving
customer satisfaction and operational efficiency.
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IN BRIEF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

The consolidated financial statements of Safran and
its subsidiaries have been prepared in accordance
with the International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS) adopted by the European Union at the date
the consolidated financial statements were approved
by the Board of Directors.

2017
Revenue 16,482 16,940
Recurring operating income 2,990 2,771
Profit from operations 3,339 2,681
Attributable profit 1,908 4,790

PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

The parent company financial statements for the year
ended December 31, 2017 have been prepared in
accordance with the rules and regulations applicable
in France pursuant to Regulation 2016-07 of
November 4, 2016 issued by the French accounting
standards-setter (Autorité des Normes Comptables -
ANC) as well as the subsequent opinions and
recommendations issued by the ANC.

2017
Revenue 525 552
Profit from ordinary activities before tax 447 1,191
Profit for the year 970 1,360
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IN ACCORDANCE WITH ARTICLE 28
OF REGULATION (EC) 809/2004 OF
THE EUROPEAN COMMISSION,

THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION

IS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE
IN THIS REGISTRATION DOCUMENT:

> The consolidated and parent company
financial statements for the year ended
December 31, 2015 and the corresponding
audit reports as presented in sections
3.2 and 3.4 of the 2015 Registration
Document filed with the AMF on
March 30, 2016 under number D. 16-0225;
the consolidated financial statements
were prepared in accordance with IFRS
as adopted by the European Union;

> The consolidated and parent company
financial statements for the year ended
December 31, 2016 and the corresponding
auditreports as presentedinsections 3.2
and 3.4 of the 2016 Registration
Document filed with the AMF on March
30, 2017 under number D. 17-0275; the
consolidated financial statements were
prepared in accordance with IFRS as
adopted by the European Union.

Those sections of the 2015 and 2016
Registration Documents that are not
incorporated by reference in this
document are either considered no
longer pertinent for investors or are
dealt with in another section of the 2017
Registration Document.



FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Group consolidated financial statements at December 31, 2017

3.1 GROUP CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT DECEMBER 31, 2017

Consolidated income statement

(in € millions) Note 2016 2017

Revenue 5 16,482 16,940
Other income 5 277 278
Income from operations 16,759 17,218
Change in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress 308 227
Capitalized production 624 501
Raw materials and consumables used 5 (9,340) (9,709)
Personnel costs 5 (4,406) (4,353)
Taxes (286) (284)
Depreciation, amortization and increase in provisions, net of use 5 (634) (1,078)
Asset impairment 5 (237) 72)
Other recurring operating income and expenses 5 15 167
Share in profit from joint ventures 13 87 154
Recurring operating income 2,990 2,771
Other non-recurring operating income and expenses 5 349 (90)
Profit from operations 3,339 2,681
Cost of net debt (51 (57)
Foreign exchange gain (loss) (943) 3,143
Other financial income and expense (58) (22)
Financial income (loss) 6 (1,052) 3,064
Profit before tax 2,287 5,745
Income tax expense 7 (398) 1,716)
Profit from continuing operations 1,889 4,029
Profit from discontinued operations and disposal gain 27 74 823
PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD 1,963 4,852
Attributable to:
> owners of the parent 1,908 4,790
continuing operations 1,836 3,968
discontinued operations 72 822
> non-controlling interests 55 62
continuing operations 53 61
discontinued operations 2 7
Earnings per share from continuing operations attributable to owners of
the parent (in €) 8
Basic earnings per share 4.41 9.67
Diluted earnings per share 4.33 9.50
Earnings per share from discontinued operations attributable to owners
of the parent (in € 8
Basic earnings per share 0.17 2.00
Diluted earnings per share 017 1.97
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Group consolidated financial statements at December 31, 2017

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

(in € millions) Note 2016

Profit for the period 1,963 4,852

Other comprehensive income

Items to be reclassified to profit 12 (517)

Available-for-sale financial assets 12 ) (7)

Foreign exchange differences and net investment hedges 9 21)

Income tax related to components of other comprehensive income

to be reclassified to profit 8 (40)

Share in other comprehensive income of equity-accounted companies

to be reclassified to profit (net of tax) 13 n (33)

Items related to discontinued operations to be reclassified to profit 8 (220)

Income tax on items related to discontinued operations to be reclassified

to profit - )

Items not to be reclassified to profit (109) 34

Actuarial gains and losses on post-employment benefits 20.c asmn 43

Income tax related to components of other comprehensive income

not to be reclassified to profit 24 @)

Share in other comprehensive income of equity-accounted companies

not to be reclassified to profit (net of tax) [©) 2)

Items related to discontinued operations not to be reclassified to profit

(net of tax) Q) o

Other comprehensive income (expense) for the period (97) (483)

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE PERIOD 1,866 4,369

Attributable to:

> owners of the parent 1,81 4,312
continuing operations 1,730 3,716
discontinued operations 87 596
> non-controlling interests 55 57

continuing operations 53 56
discontinued operations 2 1

In 2017:

Other comprehensive income relating to foreign exchange
differences and net investment hedges includes:

> €13 million in foreign exchange losses (gains of €7 million in
2016) arising in the period on long-term financing for foreign
subsidiaries. This financing meets the criteria for classification
as a net investment in a foreign operation and is treated in
accordance with the applicable provisions of IAS 21,

€138 million in foreign exchange gains (losses of €36 million
in 2016) arising in the period on the February 2012 issue by
Safran of USD 1.2 billion in senior unsecured notes on the
US private placement market, classified as a hedge of the
net investment in some of the Group’s US operations; and

€336 million in foreign exchange losses (gains of €20 million
in 2016) arising in the period on foreign operations.
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Other comprehensive income relating to equity-accounted
companies (net of tax) includes (see Note 13, “Investments in
equity-accounted companies”):

> €49 million in translation losses (gains of €11 million in 2016)
arising in the period on foreign joint ventures;

> a positive amount of €16 million relating to cash flow hedges
of joint ventures (nil in 2016); and

> €2 million in actuarial losses arising on employee benefit
obligations for joint ventures (losses of €1 million in 2016).

Items of comprehensive income to be reclassified to profit
relating to discontinued operations comprise pre-tax income
of €220 million in unrealized foreign exchange differences
reclassified to profit further to the disposal of the Security
businesses during the first half of 2017, and mainly relate to
the US entities sold as part of this divestment. The related tax
reclassified to profit represents income of €6 million.



FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Group consolidated financial statements at December 31, 2017

Consolidated balance sheet

Assets
(in € millions) Note Dec. 31, 2016
Goodwill 9 1,864 1,831
Intangible assets 10 5178 5,241
Property, plant and equipment n 3,169 3,518
Non-current financial assets 12 382 324
Investments in equity-accounted companies 13 2175 2,119
Non-current derivatives (positive fair value) 26 28 16
Deferred tax assets 7 1,351 142
Non-current assets 14,147 13,191
Current financial assets 12 147 213
Current derivatives (positive fair value) 26 592 566
Inventories and work-in-progress 14 4,247 4,496
Trade and other receivables 15 6,252 6,371
Tax assets 7 513 596
Cash and cash equivalents 16 1,926 4,914
Current assets 13,677 19,056
Assets related to discontinued operations 27 3,234 -
TOTAL ASSETS 31,058 32,247

Equity and liabilities

(in € millions) Note Dec. 31,2016
Share capital 18 83 83
Consolidated retained earnings 18 4,495 5,420
Net unrealized gains on available-for-sale financial assets 18 35 28
Profit for the period 1,908 4,790
Equity attributable to owners of the parent 6,521 10,321
Non-controlling interests 288 303
Total equity 6,809 10,624
Provisions 19 1,706 1,497
Borrowings subject to specific conditions 21 699 569
Non-current interest-bearing financial liabilities 22 2,392 3,246
Non-current derivatives (negative fair value) 26 - =
Deferred tax liabilities 7 987 1,022
Other non-current financial liabilities 24 5 8
Non-current liabilities 5,789 6,342
Provisions 19 1,558 1,906
Current interest-bearing financial liabilities 22 945 1,390
Trade and other payables 23 10,242 10,822
Tax liabilities 7 179 214
Current derivatives (negative fair value) 26 4,385 805
Other current financial liabilities 24 357 144
Current liabilities 17,666 15,281
Liabilities related to discontinued operations 27 794 -
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 31,058 32,247
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Group consolidated financial statements at December 31, 2017

Consolidated statement of changes in shareholders’ equity

Foreign Actuarial
exchange Consolidated gains and
Available- differences reserves losseson  Profit Equity
Additional for-sale and net and post-  (loss) attributable
Share paid-in Treasury  financial investment retained employment  for the (TS Non-controlling
(in € millions) capital capital  shares assets hedges  earnings benefits  period  Other JERUTYEICE interests
At January 1, 2016 83 3,360 19) 11 522 2,229 (363) (424) 198 5,627 266 5,893
Comprehensive
income (expense)
for the period - - - (6) 8 - (131) 1,908 320 1,811 55 1,866
Acquisitions/
disposals of treasury
shares - - (38) - - - - - - (38) - (38)
Dividends - - - - - (325) - - - (325) (30)  (355)
2016 interim
dividend - - - - - (287) - - - (287) - (@287)
OCEANE 2016-2020
bond - - - - - 44 - - - 44 - 44
Share buyback
program - - 42) - - (208) - - - (250) - (250)
Acquisition of
non-controlling
interests - - - - - - - - (6 (6) m @
Other movements,
including
appropriation
of profit - - - - - (439) 15 424 (55) (55) (@) 57)
At December 31, 2016 83 3,360 (99) 35 530 1,014 (479) 1,908 169 6,521 288 6,809
Comprehensive
income (expense)
for the period - - - (@) (474) 16 40 4,790 (53)® 4,312 57 4,369
Acquisitions/
disposals of treasury
shares - - ®) - - - - - - (8) - (€))]
Dividends - - - - - (340) - - - (340) (32) (372)
Share buyback
program - - (402) - - 208 - - - (194) - (194)
Acquisition of
non-controlling
interests - - - - - - - - - - - -
Other movements,
including
appropriation
of profit - - - - - 1,902 6 (1908) 30 30 0) 20
At December 31, 2017 83 3,360 (509) 28 56 2,800 (433) 4,790 146 10,321 303 10,624

() See table below:

Tax impact on actuarial ~ Tax impact on foreign
(in € millions) gains and losses  exchange differences Total

Comprehensive income (expense) for 2016 (attributable to owners
of the parent) 24 8 32

Comprehensive income (expense) for 2017 (attributable to owners
of the parent) (@] (46) (53)
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Group consolidated financial statements at December 31, 2017

Consolidated statement of cash flows

(in € millions) Note 2016 2017

I. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit attributable to owners of the parent 1,908 4,790
Depreciation, amortization, impairment and provisions® 927 1,080
Share in profit (loss) from equity-accounted companies (net of dividends received) 13 (63) (Mo)
Change in fair value of currency and commodity derivatives® 26 81 (3,608)
Capital gains and losses on asset disposals® (364) (20)
Profit (loss) from discontinued operations and disposal gain (before tax) Mmo) (990)
Profit attributable to non-controlling interests 55 62
Other® 217 1,206
Cash flow from operations, before change in working capital 2,651 2,410
Change in inventories and work-in-progress 14 (347) (308)
Change in operating receivables and payables® 15, 23, 26 219 561
Change in other receivables and payables 15, 23 40) 63
Change in working capital (168) 316
TOTAL I® 2,483 2,726
Il. CASH FLOW USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Capitalization of R&D expenditure™ 10 (364) (286)
Payments for the purchase of intangible assets, net of proceeds® (324) (262)
Payments for the purchase of property, plant and equipment, net of proceeds® (704) (740)
Payments arising from the acquisition of investments or businesses, net (810) (54)
Proceeds arising from the sale of investments or businesses, net 2 3,060
Proceeds (payments) arising from the sale (acquisition) of investments and loans‘® 5 (1,974)
TOTAL Il (2,195) (256)

11l. CASH FLOW FROM (USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Change in share capital - owners of the parent - -

Change in share capital - non-controlling interests 9 4)
Acquisitions and disposals of treasury shares 18.b (38) (449)
Repayment of borrowings and long-term debt 22 (73) (66)
Increase in borrowings 22 682 1,058
Change in repayable advances 21 24) (25)
Change in short-term borrowings 22 10 449
Dividends and interim dividends paid to owners of the parent 18.e (612) (340)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests (30) (32)

TOTAL Il (94) 591
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES OF DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS TOTAL IV 171 14
CASH FLOW USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES OF DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS TOTAL V an) (52)
CASH FLOW USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES OF DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS TOTAL VI (8) (198)
EFFECT OF CHANGES IN FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATES TOTAL VII 15 Qa7)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 1+1+I+IV+V+VI+VII 261 2,808
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 1,659 1,926
Cash and cash equivalents of discontinued operations at beginning of period 186 180
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 16 1,926 4,914
Cash and cash equivalents of discontinued operations at end of period 180 -
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 261 2,808

(D Including in 2017: depreciation and amortization for €802 million (€726 million in 2016), impairment for €73 million (€243 million in 2016)
and additions to provisions for €205 million (reversals of provisions for €42 million in 2016).

(2) Including losses of €3,604 million arising on currency derivatives (gains of €131 million in 2016) (see Note 26, "Management of market risks
and derivatives”).

(3) Including in 2016: a revaluation gain of €367 million in respect of the contribution to ArianeGroup.

(4) Including in 2017: deferred tax income of €1,197 million arising on the change in fair value of currency derivatives (deferred tax expense of
€54 million in 2016).

(5) Including in 2017: net premiums on currency options for €50 million (see Note 26, “Management of market risks and derivatives”), shown on
the balance sheet under current derivatives with a negative fair value (net premiums paid for €20 million in 2016).

(6) Including in 2017: €582 million in taxes paid (€292 million in taxes paid in 2016), of which €72 million in interest paid (€50 million in 2016)
and €24 million in interest received (€20 million in 2016).

(7) Including in 2017: capitalized interest of €11 million (€20 million in 2016).

(8) Including in 2017: €291 million in disbursements for acquisitions of intangible assets (€313 million in 2016), €16 million in proceeds from
disposals (zero proceeds in 2016) and changes in amounts payable on acquisitions of non-current assets representing a positive €13 million
(a negative €11 million in 2016).

(9) Including in 2017: €786 million in disbursements for acquisitions of property, plant and equipment (€738 million in 2016), changes in
amounts payable on acquisitions of non-current assets representing a positive €24 million (a negative €5 million in 2016) and €22 million in
proceeds from disposals (€39 million in 2016).

(10) Including in 2017: €2,000 million arising from money market funds pledged during the tender offer for Zodiac Aerospace, reclassified under
other financial assets (see Note 12, “Current and non-current financial assets”).
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Safran (2, boulevard du Général-Martial-Valin - 75724 Paris
Cedex 15, France) is a société anonyme (joint-stock corporation)
incorporated in France and permanently listed on Compartment
A of the Euronext Paris Eurolist market.

The consolidated financial statements reflect the accounting
position of Safran SA and the subsidiaries it controls, directly
or indirectly and jointly or exclusively, as well as entities over
which it exercises a significant influence (the “Group”).

NOTET ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements of Safran and its subsidiaries
have been prepared in accordance with the International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) published by the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and adopted by the
European Union (available from http://ec.europa.eu/finance/
accounting/ias/index_en.ntm) at the date the consolidated
financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors.
They include standards approved by the IASB, namely IFRS,
International Accounting Standards (IAS), and interpretations
issued by the International Financial Reporting Interpretations
Committee (IFRIC) or its predecessor, the Standing Interpretations
Committee (SIC).

Changes in accounting policies

New IFRS standards, amendments

and interpretations effective

as of January 1, 2017

> Amendments to IAS 7, “Statement of Cash Flows” - Disclosure
Initiative.

> Amendments to IAS 12, “Income Taxes” - Recognition of
Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealized Losses.

These standards, interpretations and amendments effective for
reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2017 do not
have a material impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

New published IFRS standards,
amendments and interpretations
early adopted by the Group

as of January 1, 2017

None.

New published IFRS standards,
amendments and interpretations
not yet effective or not early
adopted by the Group

> IFRS 9, “Financial Instruments”.

> IFRS 15, “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”.
> IFRS 16, “Leases”.

> IFRS 17, “Insurance Contracts”.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Group consolidated financial statements at December 31, 2017

The consolidated financial statements are drawn up in euros
and all amounts are rounded to the nearest million unless
otherwise stated.

The Board of Directors’ meeting of February 26, 2018 adopted and
authorized for issue the 2017 consolidated financial statements.
The consolidated financial statements will be final once they
have been approved by the General Shareholders’ Meeting.

> Amendments to IAS 28, “Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures” - Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures.

> Amendments to IAS 28, “Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures”, and IFRS 10, “Consolidated Financial Statements”
- Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture.

> Amendments to IAS 40, “Investment Property” - Transfers
of Investment Property.

> Amendments to IFRS 2, “Share-based Payments” - Classification
and Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions.

> Amendments to IFRS 9, “Financial Instruments” - Prepayment
Features with Negative Compensation.

> Annual Improvements to IFRSs published in December 2016
(2014-2016 cycle).

> Annual Improvements to IFRSs published in December 2017
(2015-2017 cycle).

> IFRIC 22, “Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance
Consideration”.

> IFRIC 23, “Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments”.

With the exception of IFRS 9 and IFRS 15, which are effective
for financial periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018,
and IFRS 16, effective for financial periods beginning on or
after January 1, 2019, these new standards, amendments and
interpretations have not yet been adopted by the European Union
and cannot therefore be applied ahead of their effective date.

The Group is in the process of assessing the impacts resulting
from the first-time application of these standards, amendments
and interpretations.

The analyses carried out on the hedging provisions of IFRS 9
indicate that most of the derivative instruments used by the
Group as part of its foreign currency hedging policy will not
be eligible for hedge accounting within the meaning of the
standard. The Group will not therefore be able to apply hedge
accounting in managing its foreign currency risk on future foreign
currency cash flows (see Note 1.f, “Translation of foreign currency
transactions and foreign currency derivatives”). Concerning the
classification/measurement of financial assets/liabilities and the
impairment of financial assets (trade receivables, loans, etc.)
(see Note 1.m, “Equity investments, loans and receivables”), the
negative impact on equity of applying IFRS 9 using the “limited
retrospective” approach at January 1, 2018 will be less than
€10 million. This impact results solely from the new financial
asset impairment method, which takes into account an estimate
of expected losses. The comparative 2017 data included in the
2018 financial statements will not be restated in this respect.
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Regarding the application of IFRS 15, the main changes in
accounting treatment at Group level are described below (for
the current treatment of revenue, see Note 1.g, “Revenue”).

Sales of original equipment engines and spare
engines, serial production equipment and spare parts

Revenue relating to serial products and spare parts is currently
recognized on delivery of the goods and the application of
IFRS 15 will not change this pattern of recognition.

Concerning the transaction price to adopt for these contracts
under IFRS 15, few changes are expected as compared to current
practices, except for the treatment of certain performance
warranties in the Aerospace Propulsion and Aircraft Equipment
segments. Performance warranties granted to customers along
with extended warranties will be recognized as a deduction from
revenue, whereas they are currently recognized in expenses.

In the Aircraft Equipment segment, the Group expects changes
in the accounting for trade concessions granted to customers
in the form of goods free of charge. In accordance with IFRS 15,
these will be deducted from the transaction price, whereas they
are currently recognized in expenses. The pattern in which they
are recognized in income may also be altered.

Contracts with multiple elements

The main change resulting from the application of IFRS 15 in
the Defense sector concerns contracts with “multiple elements”,
which include development work, sales of goods and sales of
services. Most of the Group’s “multiple-element” contracts are
found in the Defense sector.

Revenue from these contracts is currently recognized as an
overall performance obligation, either as technical milestones
are achieved or based on the percentage-of-completion
(cost-to-cost method).

Applying IFRS 15 will require the Group to identify separate
performance obligations for each contract and to determine
the time at which each obligation is satisfied. Accordingly, this
may alter the pattern in which the Group recognizes revenue
and margins under these contracts.

> Generally speaking, the portion of the contract concerning
specific development work or customization assignments
will not represent a specific performance obligation since the
development and customization are inseparable from serial
production. Financing received from the customer will be
recognized in revenue as and when the various performance
obligations are satisfied.

> The costs associated with development and installation will be
recognized as the contract “fulfillment cost” and accounted
for in expenses over the contract term.

> Revenue generated on the serial production portion of the
contract will be recognized either on delivery of the goods, or
on a percentage-of-completion basis (cost-to-cost method),
depending on the nature of the performance obligation.

Sales of time and materials service contracts

Services under these contracts are generally provided over the
short term. Revenue generated on these contracts is currently
recognized once the repair service has been provided. There will
be no change to this accounting treatment as a result of IFRS 15.

Concerning the transaction price to adopt for such contracts
under IFRS 15, few changes are expected as compared to current
practices, except for the treatment of certain performance
warranties in the Aerospace Propulsion segment. Performance
warranties granted to customers will be recognized as a deduction
from revenue, whereas they are currently recognized in expenses.
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Sales of installed base maintenance and support
contracts

> Inthe Aerospace Propulsion and Aircraft Equipment segments,
certain maintenance and support contracts require a fleet of
engines or various equipment to be kept in flying condition.
Revenue under these contracts is currently recognized in
line with the flying hours/landings billed. Under IFRS 15,
the different services provided under each such contract
represent a single performance obligation and the related
revenue is to be recognized on a percentage-of-completion
basis (cost-to-cost method).

This represents the biggest change for the Group resulting
from IFRS 15 in terms of both revenue recognition and the
accounting for the associated margins.

Concerning the transaction price for these contracts, few
changes are expected when applying IFRS 15 as compared
to current practices, except for the treatment of certain
performance warranties discussed in the section on time and
materials service contracts.

> In the Defense sector, the pattern of revenue recognition under
certain fixed-price maintenance contracts may alter depending
on the type of service. Revenue will be recognized based on
the percentage-of-completion (cost-to-cost method) rather
than on billing milestones.

Sales of studies

Sales of studies include standalone sales and development sales
associated with the delivery of the goods.

Under IFRS 15, the Group will be required to identify the separate
performance obligations existing in the contract for each of
these sales.

> Sales of studies

Each study to be completed generally represents a separate
performance obligation.

The pattern of recognizing revenue will depend on how control
is transferred: i.e., over time or at a given point in time.

Revenue under these contracts is currently recognized based
on the percentage-of-completion (cost-to-cost method) or
on the achievement of billing milestones.

Under IFRS 15, revenue will be recognized based on the
percentage of costs incurred (transfer over time) or once the
performance obligation has been satisfied.

Sales of studies only represent a very minor part of the Group’s
business and are found in all of its business activities.

> Sales of development work associated with serial production
deliveries.

Development work may be carried out prior to production
and be wholly or partly financed by the customer.

Sales of development work primarily concern the Aircraft
Equipment and Defense sectors.

In the Group’s contracts, financed development work is
generally inseparable from serial production and does not
therefore represent a separate performance obligation. Under
IFRS 15, client-financed development work is to be recognized
in full within “serial” revenue on the delivery of the goods,
whereas currently it is generally recognized within sales of
studies during the development phase, based on either the
percentage-of-completion (cost-to-cost method), on billing
milestones, or on delivery of serial production.



Estimated impacts

IFRS 15 will be applied with effect from January 1, 2018 using
the “full retrospective” approach.

Accordingly, opening equity at January 1, 2017 will be restated for
the impacts of the first-time application of the new standard, and
the comparative data for 2017 presented in the 2018 consolidated
financial statements will also be restated.

The impact on opening equity results from the retrospective
application of IFRS 15, which in certain cases (notably for
maintenance contracts based on flying hours/landings and for
contracts where revenue is based on the percentage-of-completion)
gives rise to deferred recognition of revenue and of the associated
margins as compared to current accounting practice.

The Group estimates a negative impact on consolidated equity
at January 1, 2017 of around €0.8 billion, taking account of the
related deferred tax effect. At this stage, the estimated impact
may evolve as the impact assessment calculations are finalized.

Consolidated revenue and recurring operating income will be

impacted by:

> a base effect relating to the reclassification of expenses as
a deduction from revenue. This essentially concerns certain
warranties, concessions and penalties. The base effect should
be marginal with regard to the volume of revenue and neutral
with regard to profit from operations;

> an effect resulting from the deferred recognition of revenue
and of the associated margins, attributable to:

e revenue under maintenance contracts henceforth being
recognized on a percentage-of-completion basis (cost-
to-cost method),

e various performance obligations being identified within
contracts for which the pattern of revenue recognition
will differ,

e the total transaction price of a contract being allocated
to each identified performance obligation, along with the
appropriate pattern of revenue recognition (inclusion of
certain rebates, warranties, various obligations, etc.).

The impact of applying IFRS 15 on the 2017 consolidated
income statement (revenue and recurring operating income)
is estimated at:

> a negative €0.6 billion on 2017 revenue totaling €16.9 billion;

> a negative €0.3 billion on 2017 recurring operating income
totaling €2.8 billion.

The impact of applying IFRS 15 to 2017 adjusted revenue and
recurring operating income is estimated at:

> a negative €0.6 billion on 2017 adjusted revenue totaling
€16.5 billion;

> a negative €0.3 billion on 2017 adjusted recurring operating
income totaling €2.5 billion.

These estimates may evolve as the impact assessment calculations
are finalized.

IFRS 15 has no impact on the related cash flows.

Regarding IFRS 16, “Leases”, the Group is in the process of
identifying leases so as to be able to apply the “modified
retrospective” approach at January 1, 2019, with the impact of
applying the standard being recorded against equity at that
date. Accordingly, the comparative 2018 data included in the
2019 financial statements will not be restated.
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a) Basis of measurement used
to prepare the consolidated
financial statements

The consolidated financial statements are prepared on a historical
cost basis except for certain assets and liabilities, as allowed by
IFRS. The categories of assets and liabilities not measured at
historical cost are disclosed in the sections below.

b) Consolidation

Basis of consolidation

Entities over which Safran directly or indirectly exercises
permanent de facto or de jure control are fully consolidated
when their contribution to certain consolidated indicators is
material or when their business is strategic for the Group. These
are entities over which the Group has the power to direct the
relevant activities in order to earn returns and can affect those
returns through its power over the investee. Power generally
results from holding a majority of voting rights (including potential
voting rights when these are substantive) or contractual rights.

Entities controlled jointly by Safran and another group, known
as joint arrangements, are entities for which decisions about the
relevant activities (budget, management appointments, etc.)
require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.
There are two types of joint arrangement:

> joint operations are entities where, based on the structure
and legal form of the arrangement, the terms agreed by
the parties in the contractual arrangement, or other facts
and circumstances, the parties that have joint control of the
arrangement have rights to the assets, and obligations for the
liabilities, relating to the arrangement. Each partner accounts
for the assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses relating to
its involvement in a joint operation, unless the arrangement
specifies otherwise;

> joint ventures are entities where the parties that have joint
control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of
the arrangement only. Each partner recognizes its share in the
net assets of the venture using the equity method.

Entities over which Safran exercises significant influence
(associates) are accounted for under the equity method.
Significant influence is presumed to exist when the Group holds
at least 20% of the voting rights. However, significant influence
must be demonstrated when the Group holds less than 20% of
the voting rights. The fact that the Group is represented on its
investee’s management body (Board of Directors, etc.) indicates
that it exercises significant influence over that investee.

A company effectively enters the scope of consolidation at the
date on which sole or joint control is acquired or significant
influence is exercised.

The removal of a company from the scope of consolidation is
effective as of the date sole or joint control or significant influence
is relinquished. If the loss of control occurs without any transfer
of interest, for example due to dilution, the company’s removal
from the scope of consolidation is simultaneous with the event
that triggers such loss of control or significant influence.

Non-controlling interests represent the portion of profit and
net assets not held by owners of the parent, and are presented
separately in the income statement, statement of comprehensive
income and shareholders’ equity.
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IFRS 10 states that any changes in the percent interest in a fully
consolidated company that do not result in the loss or acquisition
of control are to be recognized in equity attributable to owners
of the parent. This applies to acquisitions of additional shares
in a subsidiary after control has been obtained in a previous
acquisition or to sales of shares that do not result in a loss of
control.

Sales of shares that result in a loss of control are to be recognized
in profit or loss and the gain or loss on disposal is to be calculated
on the entire ownership interest at the date of the transaction.
Certain other items of comprehensive income attributable to
majority shareholders will be reclassified to income. Any residual
interest retained is to be remeasured at fair value through profit
or loss when control is relinquished.

Acquisitions of shares that give the Group sole control over
an entity will be recognized in accordance with the policies
governing business combinations described in Note 1.c.

Intragroup transactions

All material transactions between fully consolidated companies
are eliminated, as are internally generated Group profits.

When a fully consolidated company carries out a transaction
(e.g., sale or transfer of an asset to a joint operation, joint venture
or associate), any resulting gains or losses are recognized in the
consolidated financial statements solely to the extent of the
percentage interest held in the joint operation, joint venture or
associate outside the Group.

However, when a fully consolidated company carries out a
transaction (e.g., purchase of an asset) with one of its joint
operations, joint ventures or associates, the Group’s share of
the gain or loss is only recognized in the consolidated financial
statements when the fully consolidated entity resells that asset
to a third party.

Such transactions are not eliminated when the joint operation acts
solely as an intermediary (agent) or renders balanced services
for the benefit of, or as a direct extension of, the businesses of
its various shareholders.

¢) Business combinations
The Group applies the revised IFRS 3.

Acquisition method

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method at the date on which control is obtained:

> identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed are measured
at their acquisition-date fair value;

> where applicable, non-controlling interests in the acquiree are
measured either at fair value or at the Group’s share in the
acquiree’s net identifiable assets (including fair value adjustments).
This option is available for all business combinations based
on a case-by-case analysis of each transaction;

> acquisition-related costs (transaction fees) must be recognized
separately from the combination as expenses in the period
in which they are incurred,;

> adjustments to contingent consideration for a business
combination are measured at fair value at the acquisition
date, even if it is unlikely that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation. After the acquisition date,
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any adjustments to the consideration are measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting period. The cost of the
combination, including where appropriate the estimated fair
value of any contingent consideration, is finalized within the
12 months following the acquisition (measurement period).
Any changes in the fair value of such consideration more than
12 months after the measurement period are recognized in
profit or loss. Only items that should have been taken into
account at the date of the combination but for which the
acquirer did not hold all of the relevant information at that
date can give rise to an adjustment in the purchase price
consideration.

Any previously held interests in the acquiree are remeasured to fair
value, with the resulting gain or loss recognized in profit or loss.

Goodwill

At the acquisition date, goodwill is measured as the difference
between:

> the acquisition-date fair value of the consideration transferred,
plus the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree,
measured based on the share in the net assets acquired
(including fair value adjustments), or on the overall value of
the acquiree; and

> the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed.

When goodwill arises on the acquisition of fully consolidated
companies or interests in joint operations, it is carried under
assets in the balance sheet under the heading “Goodwill”.
Negative goodwill is recorded immediately in profit or loss.
However, goodwill arising on the acquisition of interests in joint
ventures and associates is recorded on the line “Investments
in equity-accounted companies”, in accordance with IAS 28.

Goodwill may be adjusted within 12 months of the acquisition to
take into account the definitive estimate of the fair value of the
assets acquired and liabilities assumed. Only new information
about facts and circumstances existing at the date of the
combination can give rise to an adjustment against goodwill.
Beyond this period, adjustments are recorded in profit or loss.

Goodwill arising as part of a business combination is allocated
to cash-generating units (CGUs), as described in Note 1.,
“Impairment of non-current assets”. It is not amortized but is
tested for impairment at least annually and whenever there are
events or circumstances indicating that it may be impaired, as
described in Note 1.1, Impairment is taken to profit or loss and
may not be reversed.

d) Discontinued operations
and assets (or disposal groups)
held for sale

A non-current asset or group of non-current assets and directly
associated liabilities are classified as held for sale if their carrying
amount is expected to be recovered principally through a sale
transaction rather than through continuing use. For this to be
the case, the asset (or disposal group) must be available for
immediate sale and its sale must be highly probable within a
maximum period of one year. Non-current assets or disposal
groups held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying
amount and fair value less costs to sell, and are presented on
separate lines of the consolidated balance sheet.



In accordance with IFRS 5, a discontinued operation represents a
separate major line of business or geographic area of operations
for the Group that either has been disposed of, or is classified as
held for sale. The income, expenses and cash flows attributable
to the operations disposed of or held for sale are presented
on separate lines of the consolidated financial statements for
all periods presented. The assets and liabilities attributable to
the operations disposed of or held for sale are presented on
separate lines of the consolidated balance sheet for the last
period presented only.

In accordance with IFRS 5, further to classification as discontinued
operations or assets held for sale:

> the activities are measured at the lower of their carrying
amount and their fair value less estimated costs to sell;

> depreciation/amortization of the non-current assets relating
to the activities ceases;

> the non-current assets included in the discontinued operations
are no longer tested for impairment;

> symmetrical positions on the balance sheet between
continuing operations and discontinued operations continue
to be eliminated.

e) Translation methods

The financial statements of subsidiaries with a different functional
currency than that used by the Group are translated into euros
as follows:

> assets and liabilities are translated at the year-end closing
exchange rate, while income statement and cash flow items
are translated at the average exchange rate for the year;

> translation gains and losses resulting from the difference
between the closing exchange rate at the previous year-end
and the closing exchange rate at the end of the current
reporting period, and from the difference between the average
and closing exchange rates for the period, are recorded in
equity as translation adjustments.

On disposal of a foreign operation, cumulative foreign exchange
differences are recognized in profit or loss as a component of the
gain or loss on disposal. For any disposal, the foreign exchange
differences recognized in profit or loss are determined based
on direct consolidation of the foreign operation in the Group’s
financial statements.

Note 1v discusses the net investment hedge set up by the Group
for some of its foreign operations.

f) Translation of foreign currency
transactions and foreign
currency derivatives

Transactions denominated in currencies other than the presentation
currencies of Group entities are translated into euros at the
exchange rate prevailing at the transaction date.

At the end of the reporting period, monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the closing rate.
Any resulting foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized
in “Financial income (loss)” for the period, except for translation
differences relating to a financial instrument designated as a net
investment hedge, which are reported in other comprehensive
income (see Note 1v). Advances and downpayments paid or
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received continue to be recorded at the initial amount for which
they were recognized.

Long-term monetary assets held by a Group entity on a foreign
subsidiary for which settlement is neither planned nor likely to
occur in the foreseeable future, represent an investment in a
foreign operation. In accordance with IAS 21, “The Effects of
Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates”, foreign exchange differences
arising on these items are recorded in other comprehensive
income (OCI) up to the date on which the investment is sold,
when they are recognized as part of the gain or loss on disposal.
If the transaction does not qualify as a net investment in a
foreign operation, the corresponding exchange differences are
recognized in the income statement.

The Group uses currency derivatives to manage and hedge its
exposure to fluctuations in exchange rates which can impact
revenue net of foreign currency denominated purchases. The
Group’s forex hedging policy along with the forward currency
contracts and options it uses are described in Note 26,
“Management of market risks and derivatives”.

Pursuant to IAS 39, these foreign currency derivatives are
recognized in the balance sheet at their fair value at the end of
the reporting period. In view of the constraints resulting from
applying IFRS 3 to the Sagem-Snecma business combination,
the Group decided that none of its foreign currency derivatives
qualified for hedge accounting. Accordingly, any changes in
the fair value of these derivatives are recognized in “Financial
income (loss)”.

The main changes in accounting treatment relating to the
application of IFRS 9, “Financial Instruments”, effective for financial
periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018, are described in
the “Changes in accounting policies” section of this note.

g) Revenue

The main types of contracts identified in the Group are serial
product and spare part sales contracts, installed base maintenance
and/or support contracts, and design sales contracts.

If a payment deferral has a material impact on the calculation
of the fair value of the consideration to be received, the future
payments are discounted in order to calculate the fair value. This
reduces the revenue recognized in proportion to the financial
component inherent to the payment deferral.

Conversely, when the Group receives payments on account
from customers, the revenue recognized is not increased by
the financial component inherent to prepayments.

Serial product and spare part sales
contracts

Revenue is only recognized if the Group has transferred to the
buyer the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the
goods and if it is probable that the economic benefits associated
with the transaction will flow to the entity. Revenue on serial
product and spare part sales contracts is generally recognized
on delivery of the goods, net of any discounts granted. If
there is a risk that the transaction will be canceled or that the
receivable identified at the inception of the contract will not
be collected, no revenue is recognized. When this is no longer
the case, revenue is recorded.
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Under certain serial product sales contracts, customers are
explicitly required to fund development:

> when the Group collects the financing from the customer
during the development phase, the associated revenue is
recognized on a percentage-of-completion basis by reference
to the costs incurred to complete the development, or as
and when the contractually defined technical milestones are
met. In this last case, the development costs incurred are
first recognized in “Inventories and work-in-progress”. These
costs are then expensed as and when the technical milestones
defined upstream are met, at which time a portion of the
financing received is recognized in revenue;

> when the financing for these contracts is contractually
guaranteed by the customer for a specific number of units
to be produced and delivered during the serial production
phase, the design and development costs incurred are first
recognized in “Inventories and work-in-progress”. On delivery
of each unit, a portion of these costs is expensed and the
related guaranteed financing is booked in revenue.

Service contracts (including design sales
contracts, installed base maintenance
and support contracts)

Under service contracts, revenue may only be recognized if:
> the stage of contract completion can be measured reliably; and

> the costs incurred in respect of the contract and the costs to
complete the contract can be measured reliably.

Revenue from Group service contracts is chiefly recorded as
and when billings are made, which in turn is based on units of
labor such as flying hours (for installed base maintenance and
support contracts, for example), or on technical milestones
formally set down in such contracts (for example in the case
of multiple-element Defense contracts which include the sale
of both the development and the serial production). Revenue
earned on certain design sales contracts is recognized based
on the percentage of costs incurred.

If contract income cannot be measured reliably, revenue is only
recognized to the extent of the contract costs incurred.

If revenue billed to the customer is representative of the contractual
stage of completion, the costs to be recognized are measured
on the basis of the margin set forth in the contract. If calculated
costs are less than actual costs, the temporarily excess costs
are maintained in inventories and work-in-progress. If calculated
costs are greater than actual costs, a provision for services to
be rendered is recognized for the difference.

Forecast contract margins are reviewed on a regular basis. A
provision is set aside for any losses on completion as soon as
such losses are foreseeable.

The main changes in accounting treatment relating to the
application of IFRS 15, “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”,
effective for financial periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018,
are described in the “Changes in accounting policies” section
of this note.
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h) Current and deferred tax

Tax expense (tax income) is the aggregate of current tax and
deferred tax recorded in the income statement.

Current tax expense is the amount of income tax payable for
a period, calculated in accordance with the rules established
by the relevant tax authorities on the basis of taxable profit
for the period. Current tax expense also includes any penalties
recognized in respect of tax adjustments recorded in the period.
The tax expense is recognized in profit or loss unless it relates
to items recognized directly in equity, in which case the tax
expense is recognized directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are calculated for each entity
on temporary differences arising between the carrying amount
of assets and liabilities and their corresponding tax base. The tax
base depends on the tax regulations prevailing in the countries
where the Group manages its activities. Tax losses and tax
credits that can be carried forward are also taken into account.

Deferred tax assets are recognized in the balance sheet if it is
likely that they will be recovered in subsequent years. The value
of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each annual
reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when tax is levied
by the same tax authority and offsetting is permitted by the
local tax authorities.

The liability method is applied and the impact of changes in
tax rates is recognized in profit or loss for the period in which
the corresponding tax law was enacted and the change in tax
rate decided, unless the transactions concerned are recognized
directly in equity.

The 3% tax on dividend distributions applicable in France is
recognized as a tax expense in the period in which the related
dividends were paid. Following the legality of this tax being
called into question during 2017, the Group received a partial
repayment. This partial repayment and the balance due at the
end of the reporting period are recognized as tax benefits in
the 2017 accounts.

Research tax credits in France, or any similar tax arrangements
in other jurisdictions, are considered as operating subsidies
related to research and development expenses incurred during
the period. Accordingly, they are classified under the heading
“Other income” in the income statement, and not as a decrease
in income tax expense. The recognition of all or part of research
tax credits received in the year as revenue can be deferred over
several periods provided the tax credits relate to development
expenditures capitalized in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

The CICE tax credit introduced to boost competitiveness and
employment in France is also recognized in “Other income” as
it is treated as an operating subsidy.

i) Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing profit by
the weighted average number of ordinary shares issued and
outstanding during the period, less the average number of
ordinary shares purchased and held as treasury shares.



Diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing profit by
the weighted average number of shares issued or to be issued
at the end of the reporting period, excluding treasury shares
and including the impact of all potentially dilutive ordinary
shares, particularly those resulting from convertible bonds or
an outstanding share buyback program. The dilutive impact of
convertible bonds results from the shares that may be created
if all bonds issued were to be converted. The dilutive impact of
share buyback programs is calculated using the reverse treasury
stock method which compares the closing share price with the
average share price for the period concerned.

j) Intangible assets

Intangible assets are recognized on the balance sheet at fair
value, historical cost or production cost, depending on the
method of acquisition. Borrowing costs directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of an intangible asset
are included in the cost of that asset when a significant period of
time is needed to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale
(generally more than 12 months). The initial amount recorded
on the balance sheet is reduced by accumulated amortization
and impairment losses, where appropriate.

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination

These assets are recognized at fair value at the date control
was acquired and are amortized on a straight-line basis, as
described below:

> intangible assets recognized at the time of the 2005 Sagem-
Snecma merger and on the acquisition of Rolls Royce’s
stake in the RTM322 program and classified under “Aircraft
programs” are accounted for by program (the fair value of
each recognized aircraft program, covering several types of
intangible asset such as technologies, backlogs and customer
relations) and are amortized over the residual useful life of
the programs, not to exceed 20 years;

> intangible assets acquired as part of a business combination
carried out since the Group was established (also including
technologies, customer relations and other intangible assets
acquired) are amortized over the estimated useful life of each
identified intangible asset (3 to 23 years).

Separately acquired intangible assets

Software is recognized at acquisition cost and amortized on a
straight-line basis over its useful life (between one and five years).

Patents are capitalized at acquisition cost and amortized over
their useful life, i.e., the shorter of the period of legal protection
and their economic life.

Contributions paid to third parties in connection with aircraft
programs (participation in certification costs, etc.) are considered
as acquired intangible assets and are therefore capitalized unless
the program proves unprofitable.
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Research and development costs

Research and development costs are recognized as expenses
in the period in which they are incurred. However, internally
financed development expenditures are capitalized if the entity
can demonstrate all of the following:

> the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset
and the intention and ability (availability of technical, financial
and other resources) to complete the intangible asset and
use or sell it;

> the probability that future economic benefits will flow from
the asset;

> the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable
to the intangible asset during its development.

In the Group’s businesses, all criteria for capitalizing development
expenditures are met when the decision to launch the development
concerned is taken by management and program/project
profitability as validated by relevant internal or external sources
can be demonstrated. Development expenditures cannot be
capitalized before this time.

Capitalization of development expenditures ceases as soon as the
product to which the expenditures relate is brought into service.

Capitalized development expenditures are stated at production
cost and amortized using the straight-line method as from the
initial delivery of the product, over a useful life not exceeding
20 years.

Intangible assets are tested for impairment in accordance with
the methods set out in Note 1.I.

k) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are recorded in the balance sheet
at historical purchase cost or production cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of an item of property, plant and equipment are
included in the cost of that item when a significant period of
time is needed to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale
(generally more than 12 months).

Replacement and major overhaul costs are identified as
components of property, plant and equipment. Other repair
and maintenance costs are expensed as incurred.

For finance leases, the capitalized asset and the borrowing cost
at the inception of the lease are stated at the lower of market
value and the present value of minimum lease payments.

During the lease period, payments are apportioned between the
finance cost and the reduction of the debt in order to produce
a constant periodic rate of interest for the remaining balance
of the liability for each period.

The gross amount of items of property, plant and equipment
is depreciated over the expected useful life of their main
components, mainly using the straight-line method.
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If the transfer of ownership at the end of a finance lease term is
certain, the item of property, plant and equipment is depreciated
over its useful life. Otherwise, the item of property, plant and
equipment is depreciated over the shorter of its useful life and
the term of the lease.

The main useful lives applied are as follows:

Buildings 15-40 years;
Technical facilities 5-40 years;
Equipment, tooling and other 5-15 years.

Property, plant and equipment are tested for impairment in
accordance with the methods set out in Note 1.I.

) Impairment of non-current
assets

Non-current assets, and particularly goodwill acquired in a
business combination, are allocated to cash-generating units
(CGUs)®. Two types of CGUs are defined within the Group:

> CGUs corresponding to programs, projects, or product families
associated with specific assets: development expenditures,
property, plant and equipment used in production;

> CGUs to which goodwill is allocated, corresponding to the
business segments monitored by Group management and
relating chiefly to the Group’s main subsidiaries.

In the event of a sale or restructuring of the Group’s internal
operations which affects the composition of one or more of the
CGUs to which goodwill has been allocated, the allocations are
revised using a method based on relative value. This method takes
the proportion represented by the business sold or transferred
in the cash flows and terminal value of the original CGU at the
date of sale or transfer.

Impairment tests are performed at least once a year (in the
first half of the year) on assets with indefinite useful lives
or on non-amortizable assets such as goodwill. Impairment
tests are also carried out on amortizable assets, where the
amortization/depreciation period has not yet begun. Impairment
testing is carried out whenever there is an indication of impairment
irrespective of whether the assets are amortizable/depreciable.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group’s entities assess
whether there are events or circumstances indicating that an
asset may be impaired. Such events or circumstances notably
include material adverse changes which in the long term impact
the economic environment (commercial prospects, procurement
sources, index or cost movements, etc.) or the Group’s assumptions
or objectives (medium-term plan, profitability analyses, market
share, backlog, regulations, disputes and litigation, etc.).

If such events or circumstances exist, the recoverable amount
of the asset is estimated. If the carrying amount of the asset
exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered as
impaired and its carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable
amount by recognizing an impairment loss under “Profit from
operations”.

Recoverable amount is defined as the higher of an asset’s or
group of assets’ fair value less costs to sell and value in use.

Value in use is the present value of expected future cash flows,
determined using a benchmark discount rate that reflects the
Group’s weighted average cost of capital (WACC). This discount
rate is a post-tax rate applied to post-tax cash flows, which
gives the same result as that which would have been obtained
by applying a pre-tax rate to pre-tax cash flows, as required
by IAS 36.

Future cash flows are calculated differently depending on the
assets tested:

> assets allocated to programs, projects or product families:
expected future cash flows are projected over the life of the
development programs or projects, capped at 40 years, and
are discounted at the benchmark rate. Certain programs or
projects are also subject to a specific risk premium. This long
timeframe better reflects the characteristics of the Group’s
operating cycles (aircraft and defense), where assets tend to
have a long useful life and slow product development;

> goodwill: expected future cash flows are calculated based on
the medium-term plans established for the next four years
and estimated cash flows for years five to ten (or beyond
year ten for certain activities with a longer development and
production cycle), and are discounted at the benchmark rate.
The value in use of the assets is the sum of the present value
of these cash flows and the terminal value, calculated based
on standardized flows representing long-term activities for
years five to ten (or beyond year ten for certain activities),
taking into account a perpetual growth rate.

Should a test on a CGU’s assets indicate an impairment loss,
the Group first establishes the recoverable amount of the assets
considered separately. Any impairment loss is initially allocated
to goodwill and then to the assets of the CGU pro-rata to their
carrying amount.

In the event of an identified loss in value, any impairment loss
recognized against goodwill cannot be reversed. For other
assets, indications of impairment are analyzed at the end of each
subsequent reporting period, and if there are favorable changes
in the estimates which led to the recognition of the impairment,
the impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss.

m) Equity investments, loans
and receivables

In accordance with IAS 39, “Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement”, equity investments in non-consolidated companies
are classified as available-for-sale and therefore measured at
fair value. For listed securities, fair value corresponds to market
price. If fair value cannot be measured reliably, investments
are recognized at cost, less any impairment losses. Changes
in fair value are recognized directly in equity, unless there is
an objective indication that the financial asset is impaired (see
below). In this case, an impairment loss is recognized in profit
or loss. The impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss
only on the disposal of the investments.

Loans and receivables are carried at historical cost and may be
written down if there is an objective indication of impairment.
The impairment loss corresponds to the difference between the
carrying amount and the recoverable amount, and is recognized
in profit or loss. It may be reversed if the recoverable amount
subsequently increases to above the carrying amount.

(1) ACGUisthesmallestidentifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the

cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets.
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An objective indication of impairment is a significant or prolonged
reduction in the value of the asset:

> for assets available for sale, an objective indication results
from a significant drop in the estimated future cash flows
associated with these assets, major difficulties of the issuer,
a substantial drop in the expected return on these assets,
or a significant or prolonged fall in the fair value of listed
financial assets;

> for loans and receivables, an objective indication results from
the Group’s awareness that the debtor is in financial difficulty
(payment default, liquidation, etc.).

The main changes in accounting treatment relating to the
application of IFRS 9, “Financial Instruments”, effective for financial
periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018, are described in
the “Changes in accounting policies” section of this note.

n) Inventories and
work-in-progress

Inventories and work-in-progress are measured at the lower of
cost determined using the weighted average cost formula, and
net realizable value.

Cost is calculated based on normal production capacity and
therefore excludes any idle capacity costs.

Net realizable value represents the estimated selling price less
the costs required to complete the asset or make the sale.

Borrowing costs incurred during the production phase are included
in the value of inventories when the eligibility conditions are met.

o) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include available funds, highly liquid
short-term investments (three months or less) and term deposits
with exit options exercisable at no penalty within less than
three months that are readily convertible into known amounts
of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

These assets are recognized at market value (fair value) or
amortized cost, as appropriate.

Cash equivalents subject to usage restriction (e.g., pledges)
are recorded under other financial assets for the duration of
the restriction.

The main changes in accounting treatment relating to the
application of IFRS 9, “Financial Instruments”, effective for financial
periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018, are described in
the “Changes in accounting policies” section of this note.

p) Treasury shares

All treasury shares held by the Group are deducted from
consolidated equity based on their acquisition price, regardless
of whether they were repurchased in connection with a liquidity
agreement or under a share buyback program initiated by the
Group. Gains and losses on the disposal of treasury shares are
recorded directly in equity and do not impact profit or loss for
the period.

For share buyback programs outstanding at the end of the
reporting period, the firm obligation to repurchase shares is
recognized in the form of a liability for the acquisition of shares,

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Group consolidated financial statements at December 31, 2017

against a reduction in consolidated retained earnings. This liability,
which is not included in calculations of the Group’s net financial
position, is cleared as and when the disbursements relating to
the share buybacks are made.

d) Share-based payment

The Group occasionally grants various share-based payments
to its employees, including free shares, long-term variable
compensation and leveraged or unleveraged savings plans.

In accordance with IFRS 2, Share-based Payment, these
arrangements are measured at fair value taking into account any
lock-up period for shares granted. The fair value of equity-settled
instruments is determined at the grant date. The fair value of
cash-settled instruments is revised up to the date of payment.
These employee benefits represent personnel costs and are
recognized on a straight-line basis over the period during
which the rights vest, with an offsetting entry to consolidated
retained earnings for equity-settled plans and to liabilities for
cash-settled plans.

r) Provisions

The Group records provisions when it recognizes a present
probable or potential (in the event of a business combination)
legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event for
which an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of that obligation.

For taxes levied by public authorities, the liability is recognized
at the date of the obligating event for each levy, such as that
defined by applicable local regulations.

Provisions for losses on completion and
losses arising on delivery commitments

A provision for losses on completion is recognized for contracts
managed on a percentage-of-completion basis, and a provision
for losses arising on delivery commitments is recognized for
sales contracts, when:

> a contract (or combination of contracts), signed before the
end of the reporting period, gives rise to obligations for the
Group in the form of the delivery of goods, the provision of
services or the payment of termination indemnities;

> the Group’s obligation and the expected economic benefits
can be measured reliably;

> it is highly probable that the contract (or combination of
contracts) will be onerous (the unavoidable costs of meeting
the obligations under the contract [or combination of contracts]
exceed the expected economic benefits).

Unavoidable costs for which a provision is recognized represent
the lower of the net cost of executing the contract (i.e., the
forecast loss on the contract) and the cost of failing to execute the
contract (e.g., withdrawal costs in the event of early termination).

In the case of original equipment sales contracts, the expected
economic benefits correspond to the contract cash flows
associated with the highly probable cash flows from the spare
part activities provided under the contracts.

The cash flows used in this analysis are discounted to take into
account their spread over time.
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Under onerous contracts, losses arising on delivery commitments
are recognized primarily as a deduction from inventories and
work-in-progress (for the completed portion of the contract and
directly related to the contract or combination of contracts),
and shown in provisions for work to be completed.

Provisions for financial guarantees
on sales

As part of its civil engine sales campaigns, the Group grants
two types of guarantees to its customers:

> financial guarantees, under which it provides a guarantee to
the lending institutions that finance its customer;

> guarantees covering the value of assets, under which Safran
grants the customer an option to return the aircraft at a given
date for an agreed price.

These commitments are undertaken by the Group together with
its partner General Electric, and form part of financing packages
proposed by aircraft manufacturers to airline companies. They
generally correspond to the share represented by Group engines
in the financing of the aircraft.

Financial commitments are generally granted on signature of
the sales agreement, but do not actually take effect until the
customer so requests.

These guarantees generate risks. However, the total gross amount
of the guarantees does not reflect the net risk to which the
Group is exposed, as the commitments are counter-guaranteed
by the value of the underlying assets, i.e., the aircraft pledged.

A provision is recognized in respect of these guarantees,
reflecting events likely to generate a future outflow of resources
for the Group.

Provisions for operating warranties,
performance warranties, and standard
warranty extensions

These provisions are recorded to cover the Group’s share of
probable future disbursements with respect to operating and
performance warranties on deliveries of engines and equipment
and standard warranty extensions that may be granted. Operating
warranties generally cover a period of one to three years
depending on the type of equipment delivered. Performance
warranties are generally granted for longer periods. These
provisions are calculated as appropriate based on technical
files or statistics, particularly with respect to the return of
parts covered by operating warranties, and standard warranty
extensions or performance tracking indicators (consumption,
noise, emissions, etc.) for performance warranties.

The main changes in accounting treatment relating to the
application of IFRS 15, “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”,
effective for financial periods beginning on or after January 1,
2018, are described in the “Changes in accounting policies”
section of this note.
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s) Post-employment benefits

In compliance with the laws and practices of each country in which
it operates, the Group grants its employees post-employment
benefits (pensions, termination payments, early retirement
plans, etc.) as well as other long-term benefits including
long-service awards, jubilee benefits and loyalty premiums.

For its basic plans and other defined contribution plans, the
contribution paid in the period is recognized in expenses when
due. No provision is recorded.

Provisions recognized for obligations under defined benefit
plans are measured using the projected unit credit method.
This determines, for each employee, the present value of the
benefits to which the employee’s current and past services
will grant entitlement on retirement. The actuarial calculations
include demographic (retirement date, employee turnover
rate, etc.) and financial (discount rate, salary increase rate, etc.)
assumptions, and are performed at the end of each reporting
period for which accounts are published.

When plans are funded, the plan assets are placed with entities
that are responsible for paying the benefits in the countries
concerned. These assets are measured at fair value. Provisions
are recorded to cover shortfalls in the fair value of plan assets
compared with the present value of the Group’s obligations.

An asset surplus is only recognized in the balance sheet when
it represents future economic benefits effectively available to
the Group.

In accordance with the revised IAS 19, changes in actuarial gains
and losses arising on defined benefit plans are recognized in
“Other comprehensive income” within equity and not subsequently
reclassified to profit.

The Group distinguishes between operating components and
financial components when presenting defined benefit expense:

> service cost for the period is shown in profit from operations,
along with past service costs arising on the introduction of a
new plan or curtailments or settlements of an existing plan,
which are recognized immediately in this caption;

> the cost relating to unwinding the discount on the net pension
liability (asset) is shown in financial income (loss).

t) Borrowings subject to specific
conditions

The Group receives public financing in the form of repayable
advances to develop aircraft and defense projects. These
advances are repaid based on the revenue generated by future
sales of engines or equipment.

Repayable advances are treated as sources of financing and
are recognized in liabilities in the consolidated balance sheet
under the heading “Borrowings subject to specific conditions”.

At inception, they are measured at the amount of cash received
or, when acquired, at the value of probable future cash flows
discounted at market terms at the acquisition date. They are
subsequently measured at amortized cost at the end of each
reporting period, taking into account the most recent repayment
estimations.



The present value of estimated repayments, based on management’s
best estimates, is regularly compared with the net carrying
amount of repayable advances, defined as the sum of amounts
received, plus any interest capitalized at the end of the reporting
period, less repayments made. If as a result of this analysis the
present value of estimated repayments is durably more or less
than the carrying amount of the repayable advances over three
consecutive years, that unrecognized portion of the present
value of the advance which is higher or lower than the carrying
amount is taken to profit or loss.

For certain contracts, the Group has to pay a fee based on
replacement sales realized under the program once the advance
has been fully repaid. This fee is not considered as repayment
of an advance but as an operating expense.

The main changes in accounting treatment relating to the
application of IFRS 9, “Financial Instruments”, effective for financial
periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018, are described in
the “Changes in accounting policies” section of this note.

u) Interest-bearing financial
liabilities

On initial recognition, interest-bearing financial liabilities are

measured at the fair value of the amount received, less any directly

attributable transaction costs. Besides the specific conditions

applicable to hedge accounting (Note 1v), interest-bearing

financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost
using the effective interest rate method.

The main changes in accounting treatment relating to the
application of IFRS 9, “Financial Instruments”, effective for financial
periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018, are described in
the “Changes in accounting policies” section of this note.

v) Derivatives and hedge
accounting

The Group uses derivative instruments to hedge potential
risks arising from its operating and financial activities. These
instruments are primarily used to hedge its exposure to the
risk of fluctuations in exchange rates. The derivatives used
can include forward currency contracts and currency options
or interest rate swaps. The Group’s market risk management
policy is described in Note 26, “Management of market risks
and derivatives”.

Most derivatives are traded over-the-counter and no quoted
prices are available. Consequently, they are measured using
models commonly used by market participants to price such
instruments (discounted cash flow method or option pricing
models). Counterparty risk and proprietary credit risk are taken
into account when measuring derivatives.

For a derivative or non-derivative hedging instrument to be
eligible for hedge accounting, the hedging relationship must
be formally designated and documented at inception and its
effectiveness must be demonstrated throughout the life of the
instrument using documented effectiveness tests.

The accounting principles applicable to foreign currency derivatives
used to hedge foreign exchange risk are set out in Note 1.f.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Group consolidated financial statements at December 31, 2017

The Group contracted a net investment hedge of some of its US
operations using USD debt. Changes in the fair value of the debt
attributable to the hedged foreign exchange risk are recognized
within other comprehensive income for the effective portion of
the hedge. Changes in fair value attributable to the ineffective
portion of the hedge are taken to profit or loss. Amounts carried
in equity are taken to profit or loss when the hedged investment
is sold or unwound. The interest rate component of the hedging
instrument is shown in “Financial income (loss)”.

Certain derivatives used to hedge interest rate risk on fixed-rate
financial assets and liabilities may be designated as hedging
instruments in a fair value hedging relationship. In this case,
the borrowings hedged by the interest rate derivatives (mainly
interest rate swaps) are adjusted to reflect the change in fair
value attributable to the hedged risk. Changes in the fair value
of hedged items are taken to profit or loss for the period and
offset by symmetrical changes in the fair value of the interest
rate swaps (effective portion).

The Group may use derivative instruments to hedge the risk of
fluctuations in the price of certain listed commodities. This price
risk affects its purchases of semi-finished products with a high
commodity component. Pursuant to IAS 39, these commodity
derivatives are recognized in the balance sheet at their fair value
at the end of the reporting period and the Group recognizes
changes in the fair value of these instruments in “Financial income
(loss)” if it is unable to apply hedge accounting.

The main changes in accounting treatment relating to the
application of IFRS 9, “Financial Instruments”, effective for financial
periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018, are described in
the “Changes in accounting policies” section of this note.

w) Sale of receivables

The Group sells some of its trade receivables to financial institutions,
generally within the scope of confirmed factoring facilities. The
related assets may only be removed from the balance sheet
if the rights to the future cash flows from the receivables are
transferred, along with substantially all of the associated risks
and rewards (payment default, late-payment risk, etc.).

The main changes in accounting treatment relating to the
application of IFRS 9, “Financial Instruments”, effective for financial
periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018, are described in
the “Changes in accounting policies” section of this note.

X) Structure of the consolidated
balance sheet

The Group is engaged in a variety of activities, most of which
have long operating cycles. Consequently, assets and liabilities
generally realized or unwound within the scope of the operating
cycle (inventories and work-in-progress, receivables, advances
and downpayments received from customers, trade and other
payables, and foreign currency and commodity derivatives, etc.)
are presented with no separation between current and non-current
portions. However, other financial assets and liabilities as well
as provisions are considered as current if they mature within 12
months of the end of the reporting period. All other financial
assets, liabilities and provisions are considered non-current.
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y) Recurring operating income

To make the Group’s operating performance more transparent, it
includes an intermediate operating indicator known as “Recurring
operating income” in its reporting.

This sub-total includes the share of profit from joint ventures
accounted for under the equity method, since all joint ventures
are involved in businesses directly related to the Group’s core
activities.

This sub-total excludes income and expenses which are largely
unpredictable because of their unusual, infrequent and/or
material nature, such as:

> impairment losses recognized against goodwill, impairment
losses or reversals of impairment losses recognized against

NOTEZ  MAIN SOURCES OF ESTIMATES

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS) described above requires management to make certain
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
consolidated assets, liabilities, income and expenses.

The assumptions used vary from one business to the next,
but are considered reasonable and realistic in all cases. The
resulting estimates are based on the Group’s past experience
and factor in the economic conditions prevailing at the end of
the reporting period and any information available as of the
date of preparation of the financial statements, in particular of
a contractual or commercial nature.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis.

When unforeseen developments in events and circumstances
occur, particularly as regards global economic trends and the
Group’s own business environment, actual results may differ
from these estimates. In such cases, the assumptions and
where appropriate the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
concerned, are adjusted accordingly.

The Group also tests its sensitivity to changes in the assumptions
underlying its main estimates in order to anticipate the impact of
volatility and lack of visibility in the global economic environment
and particularly in certain Group segments. These analyses are
regularly reviewed by management.

The main accounting policies which require the use of estimates
are described below.

a) Estimates relating to programs
and contracts

The main material estimates used by the Group to prepare its
financial statements relate to forecasts of future cash flows under
programs and contracts (business plans). Forecast future total
cash flows under programs and contracts represent management’s
best estimate of the rights and obligations expected to derive
from the program or contract.

The assumptions applied and resulting estimates used for
programs and contracts cover periods that are sometimes
very long (up to several decades), and take into account the
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intangible assets relating to programs, projects or product
families as a result of an event that substantially alters the
economic profitability of such programs, projects or product
families (e.g., significant decrease in forecast volumes, difficulties
encountered during the development phase, renegotiated
sales agreements, changes in the production process, etc.);

> capital gains and losses on disposals of operations;

> gains on remeasuring any previously held equity interests in the
event of step acquisitions or transfers made to joint ventures;

> other unusual and/or material items not directly related to
the Group’s ordinary operations.

technological, commercial and contractual constraints of each
such program and contract.

These estimates primarily draw on assumptions about the
volumes, output and selling prices of products sold, associated
production costs, exchange rates for foreign currency-denominated
sales and purchases as well as normal risks and uncertainties
in respect of forecast cost overruns and, for discounted future
cash flows, the discount rate adopted for each contract. Where
such information is available, particularly for major civil aviation
programs and contracts, volume and output assumptions used
by the Group for products sold are analyzed in light of the
assumptions published by major contractors.

Cash flow forecasts, which may or may not be discounted, are
used to determine the following:

> impairment of non-current assets: goodwill and assets allocated
to programs (aircraft programs, development expenditures
and property, plant and equipment used in production) are
tested for impairment as described in Note 1.I. The recoverable
amount of these assets is generally determined using cash
flow forecasts based on the key assumptions described above;

> capitalization of development expenditures: the conditions
for capitalizing development expenditures are set out in
Note 1.j. Determining whether future economic benefits are
expected to flow to the Group is instrumental in deciding
whether project costs can be capitalized. This analysis is
carried out based on future cash flow forecasts drawing on
the key assumptions described above. The Group also uses
estimates when determining the useful life of its projects;

> profit (loss) on completion of contracts accounted for under
the percentage-of-completion method: the Group uses the
percentage-of-completion method to account for certain
contracts. Under this method, it recognizes revenue based on
the percentage of work completed, calculated by reference to
the contract milestones met or costs incurred. This method
requires an estimate of results on completion using future cash
flow forecasts that take into account contractual indexes and
commitments as well as other factors inherent to the contract
based on historical and/or forecast data. This method also
requires an estimate of the contract’s stage of completion.

When the total costs that are necessary to cover the Group’s
risks and obligations under the contract are likely to exceed
total contract revenue, the expected loss is recognized within
losses on completion;



> losses arising on delivery commitments: sales contracts (or
combinations of contracts) may be onerous. For all sales
contracts or combinations of contracts, the Group estimates
the volume of goods to be delivered as well as spare parts
and services directly related to the delivery commitment,
which may be contractual or highly probable. Accordingly,
the Group recognizes a provision for losses arising on delivery
commitments when the combination of contracts is onerous
and a loss is likely to be incurred. It uses estimates, notably as
regards the volume of goods to be produced and delivered
under the sales contracts or combinations of contracts, as
well as the volume of directly-related spare parts and services,
projected production costs and the expected economic benefits;

> repayable advances: the forecast repayment of advances
received from public bodies is based on revenue from future
sales of engines, equipment and spare parts, as appropriate.
As a result, the forecasts are closely related to the business
plans prepared by the operating divisions using the main
assumptions discussed above.

Any changes in estimates and assumptions underlying cash
flow forecasts for programs and contracts could have a material
impact on the Group’s future earnings and/or the amounts
reported in its balance sheet. Consequently, the sensitivity of
key estimates and assumptions to such changes is systematically
tested and the results of these tests reviewed by management
on a regular basis.

b) Provisions

Provisions reflect management’s best estimates using available
information, past experience and, in some cases, estimates by
independent experts.

When estimating provisions relating to the Group’s contractual
commitments on timeframes and technical specifications in
connection with the development phase, the general stage of
development of each of the Group’s programs is taken into
account, particularly as regards changes made to specifications
during the development phase. Contractually defined liability
limits are also taken into account.

Contractual provisions relating to performance warranties given
by the Group take into account factors such as the estimated
cost of repairs and, where appropriate, the discount rate applied
to cash flows. The value of these commitments may be based
on a statistical assessment.

Provisions relating to financial guarantees given by the Group
are based on the estimated value of the underlying assets, the
probability that the customers concerned will default, and, where
appropriate, the discount rate applied to cash flows.

The costs and penalties actually incurred or paid may differ
significantly from these initial estimates when the obligations
unwind, and this may have a material impact on the Group’s
future earnings.

At the date of this report, the Group has no information suggesting
that these inputs are not appropriate taken as a whole.
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¢c) Post-employment benefits

The Group uses statistical data and other forward-looking inputs
to determine assets and liabilities relating to post-employment
benefits. These inputs include actuarial assumptions such as
the discount rate, salary increase rate, retirement age, and
employee turnover and mortality. Actuarial calculations are
performed by independent actuaries. At the date of preparation
of the consolidated financial statements, the Group considers
that the assumptions used to measure its commitments are
appropriate and justified.

However, if circumstances or actuarial assumptions - especially
the discount rate - prove significantly different from actual
experience, the amount of post-employment liabilities shown in
the balance sheet could change significantly, along with equity.

d) Trade and other receivables

The Group estimates any collection risks based on commercial
information, prevailing economic trends and information
concerning the solvency of each customer, in order to determine
any necessary write-downs on a case-by-case basis.

The specific nature of any receivables from governments
or government-backed entities is taken into account when
determining bad debt risk for each receivable and therefore
when estimating the amount of any impairment loss.

e) Allocation of the cost
of business combinations

Business combinations are recorded using the acquisition
(purchase) method. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
and contingent liabilities assumed are measured at fair value
at the date control is acquired.

One of the most important areas in which estimates are used in
accounting for a business combination concerns the calculation
of fair value and the underlying assumptions applied. The fair
value of certain items acquired in a business combination can be
measured reliably, for example property, plant and equipment
using market prices. However, the fair value of other items
such as intangible assets or contingent liabilities may prove
more difficult to establish. These complex measurements are
usually performed by independent experts based on a series of
assumptions. These experts are generally required to estimate
the impact of future events that are uncertain at the date of
the combination.

f) Disputes and litigation

Certain Group subsidiaries may be party to regulatory, legal
or arbitration proceedings which, because of their inherent
uncertainty, could have a material impact on the Group’s financial
position (see Note 31, “Disputes and litigation”).
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The Group’s management takes stock of any outstanding
proceedings and monitors their progress. It also decides
whether to book a provision or adjust the amount of any existing
provision if events arise during the proceedings that require
a reassessment of the risk involved. The Group consults legal
experts both within and outside the Group in determining the
costs that may be incurred.

NOTES  SCOPE OF CONSOLIDATION

Main changes in the scope
of consolidation in 2017

Sale of the Security businesses

Safran announced on April 7, 2017, that it had finalized the sale of
Morpho Detection LLC, Morpho Detection International LLC and
other detection assets to Smiths Group Plc for an enterprise value
of USD 710 million. The divested companies were deconsolidated
as from that date.

On May 31, 2017, Safran finalized the disposal of its identity and
security businesses to Advent International for an enterprise value
of €2.4 billion. The divested companies were deconsolidated
as from that date.

These transactions generated a disposal gain recognized in
“Profit from discontinued operations” in a post-tax amount of
€824 million (see Note 27, “Discontinued operations”).

Safran granted vendor warranties as part of these disposals (see
Note 30.b., “Off-balance sheet commitments and contingent
liabilities relating to the Group’s scope of consolidation™).

Structil

On October 2, 2017, Safran Ceramics and Mitsubishi Chemical
Corporation finalized the sale of all shares and voting rights
attached to the share capital of Structil, which they held at 80.05%
and 19.95% respectively, to the Hexcel group. Structil specializes
in high-performance carbon-fiber composite materials for the
aerospace industry and other high-tech industries.

In Safran’s consolidated financial statements, the sale of shares
and land for €38 million generated a capital gain of €25 million,
net of selling costs. This is recognized in “Non-recurring operating
income” (see Note 5, “Breakdown of the main components of
profit from operations”).

Safran granted a vendor warranty as part of this disposal (See
Note 30.b., “Off-balance sheet commitments and contingent
liabilities relating to the Group’s scope of consolidation™).

Other transactions that may
impact the scope of consolidation

Tender offer for Zodiac Aerospace

On January 19, 2017, Safran announced its intention to acquire
Zodiac Aerospace through an agreed public tender offer and
a subsequent merger, after approval of the main terms and
conditions of the transaction by the Board of Directors of Safran
and the Supervisory Board of Zodiac Aerospace.
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The decision to book a provision in respect of a given risk and
the amount of any such provisions are based on an assessment
of the risk associated with each individual case, management’s
estimate of the likelihood that an unfavorable decision will be
issued in the proceedings in question, and the Group’s ability
to estimate the amount of the provision reliably.

On May 24, 2017, Safran and Zodiac Aerospace announced that
they would no longer pursue this transaction structure and had
entered into a new business combination agreement.

Pursuant to this agreement, Safran filed a Tender Offer for
Zodiac Aerospace’s shares on December 7, 2017 (declared
compliant by the AMF on December 21, 2017), consisting of:

> a primary cash offer targeting 100% of Zodiac Aerospace’s
shares (excluding any treasury shares held by Zodiac Aerospace)
at a price of €25 per Zodiac Aerospace share;

> asubsidiary exchange offer pursuant to which Zodiac Aerospace
shareholders would receive a number of Safran preferred
shares determined on the basis of a ratio between a value
of €24 per Zodiac Aerospace share and the market price of
Safran ordinary shares, within a +5%/-5% collar mechanism,
resulting in an exchange ratio of 0.300 to 0.332 Safran
preferred shares per Zodiac Aerospace share. The number
of Zodiac Aerospace shares that could be tendered to the
subsidiary exchange offer was capped at 88,847,828 shares.

The final exchange ratio was set on January 17, 2018, at 0.300
Safran preferred shares for 1 Zodiac Aerospace share, in accordance
with the terms set out in the information memorandum.

Upon completion of the initial Offer period, which ran from
December 27, 2017 to January 31, 2018, 91,414,451 Zodiac Aerospace
shares had been tendered under the Principal Tender Offer,
and 142,249,773 Zodiac Aerospace shares under the Subsidiary
Exchange Offer. As the limit of Zodiac Aerospace shares which
could be tendered to the Subsidiary Exchange Offer, set at
88,847,828 Zodiac Aerospace shares, was exceeded, 53,401,945
Zodiac Aerospace shares were carried over to the Principal
Tender Offer. In the overall context of the Offer, Safran therefore
acquired a total of 233,664,224 shares, representing 79.74% of
Zodiac Aerospace’s share capital, excluding treasury shares. In
its declaration submitted to the AMF on February 7, 2018, Safran
stated that it held 88.23% of the share capital of Zodiac Aerospace
considering (i) the shares tendered to the Offer, (ii) the 12,625,784
treasury shares held by Zodiac Aerospace, representing 4.31%
of the share capital of Zodiac Aerospace and which were not
tendered to the Offer, and (iii) the remaining Zodiac Aerospace
shares covered by the residual interest undertaking described in
section 1.4.3 of the information memorandum prepared by Safran
(i.e., around 4.18% of the share capital of Zodiac Aerospace).
Since both the acceptance threshold set at 50% of the share
capital or voting rights of Zodiac Aerospace, and the withdrawal
threshold set at 66.67% of the voting rights exercisable at a
Zodiac Aerospace Shareholders’ Meeting, had been exceeded,
the Offer had a positive outcome.

The settlement of the initial Offer took place on February 13,
2018 and accordingly, an amount of €3,620 million was paid
to Zodiac Aerospace shareholders in consideration for the
144,816,396 Zodiac Aerospace shares tendered or carried over
to the Principal Tender Offer, and 26,651,058 Safran preferred
shares were issued at a price of €84.18 in consideration for the
88,847,828 Zodiac Aerospace shares effectively tendered to



the Subsidiary Exchange Offer. Accordingly, the share capital of
Safran increased by the amount of €5 million from €83 million
to €89 million, with an issue premium of €2,238 million.

The Offer was reopened from February 19, 2018 to March 2, 2018,
to enable Zodiac Aerospace shareholders who have not yet
done so to tender their shares to the Offer.

In the United States of America, the Tender Offer was open
only to qualified institutional buyers. Outside of France, it was
not open in any jurisdiction where authorization for the offer
would be required.

Main changes in the scope
of consolidation in 2016

Airbus Safran Launchers (ASL)
Joint Venture

On January 14, 2015, Airbus Group and Safran completed the
first phase of the creation of their 50-50 joint arrangement,
Airbus Safran Launchers (ASL). During this phase, the coordination
and the management of all existing civil launchers programs
along with Safran’s investments in Europropulsion, Regulus and
Arianespace were contributed to the joint venture. In return for
these first phase contributions, Safran received 50% of the shares
issued by ASL, which were recognized within “Investments in
equity-accounted companies” for €69 million. A revaluation gain
of €36 million on the activities and investments contributed
during this first phase was recognized in first-half 2015 within
“Other non-recurring operating income and expenses”. On
August 12, 2015, the European Space Agency awarded ASL the
Ariane 6 development contract.

On May 20, 2016, Airbus Group and Safran signed the phase
2 Master Agreement fully enabling the joint venture to design,
develop, produce and market all activities related to civil and
military launchers and associated propulsion systems, and
completing the coordination and the management of all civil
launchers programs and associated investments, already managed
by ASL since the completion of the first phase.

NOTE 4 SEGMENT INFORMATION

Segments presented

In accordance with IFRS 8, “Operating Segments”, segment
information reflects Safran’s different businesses.

The Group’s operating segments reflect the organization of
subsidiaries around tier-one entities (“consolidation sub-groups”).
These consolidation sub-groups are organized based on the type
of products and services they sell. Three operating segments
have been identified based on these criteria.

The Security segment has been classified within “discontinued
operations” since 2016 (see Note 27).
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Pursuant to this agreement, on June 30, 2016 Safran contributed
to the joint venture all the assets and liabilities relating to the
design, development, production and commercial activities related
to launcher propulsion systems for civil and military applications,
as well as its investments in Pyroalliance and APP Beheer BV.
In order to respect the 50-50 balance between both partners,
Safran subscribed to two reserved capital increases carried
out by ASL Holding SAS for a total amount of €750 million.
In return for these contributions and capital increases, Safran
received 50% of the shares issued by ASL Holding SAS, which
were recognized within “Investments in equity-accounted
companies” for €1,398 million. The loss of control in the activities
and the investments contributed during this second phase led
to the recognition of a revaluation gain of €367 million in “Other
non-recurring operating income and expenses” for 2016, exempt
from tax pursuant to deferred tax rules.

To complete the last phase of the project, ASL’s acquisition of
CNES’ 34.68% stake in Arianespace was approved by the European
Commission in mid-July 2016 and finalized at end-December
2016, bringing ASL’s interest in Arianespace to 74%. Changes
in Arianespace’s share ownership mark the new governance
arrangements in place for European launchers.

The allocation of the purchase price to the acquired entity’s
amortizable intangible assets finalized in June 2017 generated an
amortization expense net of the deferred tax effect of €44 million
in 2017, before the impact of the future tax rate decrease
(€12 million in second-half 2016). (See Note 13, “Investments in
equity-accounted companies”.)

On July 1, 2017, Airbus Safran Launchers (ASL) became ArianeGroup
following the change of its corporate name.

Safran Ventilation Systems

On June 15, 2016, the AMF approved Safran’s public tender
offer followed by a mandatory squeeze-out of the 4.85% of
Technofan’s share capital not owned by Safran on the date
the offer was registered. The offer applied to 30,495 shares at
a price per share of €245, equal to a total acquisition price of
€7.5 million, to acquire Technofan’s non-controlling interests,
reducing consolidated equity by €6 million at December 31, 2016.

Aerospace Propulsion

The Group designs, develops, produces and markets propulsion
systems for commercial aircraft, military transport, training
and combat aircraft, business aircraft, rocket engines, civil and
military helicopters, tactical missiles and drones. This segment
also includes maintenance, repair and overhaul (MRO) activities
and the sale of spare parts.
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Aircraft Equipment

Safran covers the full life cycle of systems and equipment for
civil and military aircraft and helicopters. The Group is involved
in landing gear and brakes, engine systems and associated
equipment such as thrust reversers and nacelles, and mechanical
power transmission systems. The Group is also present at
the different stages of the electrical power generation cycle,
associated engineering services, and ventilation systems. Aircraft
Equipment also includes maintenance, repair and related services
and the sale of spare parts.

Defense

Defense includes all businesses serving naval, land and aviation
defense industries. The Group designs, develops, manufactures
and markets optronic, avionic and electronic solutions and
services, and critical software for civil and defense applications.

Safran develops inertial navigation systems for aviation, naval
and land applications, flight commands for helicopters, tactical
optronic systems and drones (gyrostabilized optronic pods,
periscopes, infrared cameras, multifunction binoculars, and air
surveillance systems), as well as defense equipment and systems.

Holding company and other

In “Holding company and other”, the Group includes Safran SA’s
activities and holding companies in various countries.

Business segment performance
indicators

The segment information presented in the tables below is
identical to that presented to the Chief Executive Officer,

At December 31, 2017

who - in accordance with the Group’s governance structure - has
been designated as the “Chief Operating Decision Maker” for
the assessment of the performance of business segments and
the allocation of resources between the different businesses.

The assessment of each business segment’s performance by
the Chief Executive Officer is based on adjusted contribution
figures as explained in the Foreword (see section 2.1).

Data for each business segment are prepared in accordance
with the same accounting principles as those used for the
consolidated financial statements (see Note 1, “Accounting
policies”), except for the restatements made in respect of
adjusted data (see section 2.1).

Inter-segment sales are performed on an arm’s length basis.

Free cash flow represents cash flow from operating activities
less any net disbursements relating to acquisitions of property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets.

Gross operating working capital represents the gross balance
of trade receivables, inventories and trade payables.

Segment assets represent the sum of goodwill, intangible assets,
property, plant and equipment, investments in joint ventures and
all current assets except cash and cash equivalents and tax assets.

Non-current assets comprise goodwill, property, plant and
equipment, intangible assets and investments in equity-accounted
associates and joint ventures.

Quantified segment information for 2016 and 2017 is presented
below.

Segment information

The operating segments and key indicators shown are defined
in Note 4.

Total JLGIGITN] Total Impacts of Total
Aerospace Aircraft (NHE M company JELTSCHE  Currency business EEIEVTECH
(in € millions) Propulsion Equipment Defense (L UENGE and other data hedges  combinations data
Revenue 9,741 5,415 1,345 16,501 20 16,521 419 - 16,940
Recurring operating income (loss) 1,729 682 95 2,506 (36) 2,470 431 (130) 2,771
Other non-recurring operating
income and expenses 40) a4) a4 (68) (22) (90) - - (90)
Profit (loss) from operations™ 1,689 668 81 2,438 (58) 2,380 431 (130) 2,681
Free cash flow 1,158 328 105 1,591 (153) 1,438 - - 1,438
Gross operating working capital (215) 1,284 317 1,386 (178) 1,208 - - 1,208
Segment assets® 15,003 5,993 2,151 23,147 3,107 26,254 - - 26,254
(D) Of which depreciation,
amortization and increase in
provisions, net of use (639) (245) (63) 947) a9)  (966) ) (105) 1,078)
Of which impairment 29) 37) (6) 72) - 72) - - 72)

(2) The increase in Holding company and other segment assets in 2017 is mainly due to the reclassification of €2,000 million in money
market funds which were pledged during the tender offer for Zodiac Aerospace. These money market funds could not be classified
under cash and cash equivalents during the offer period due to their usage restriction (see Note 16, “Cash and cash equivalents”).
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At December 31, 2016

Holding

i(1c1W company Total Impacts of Total

Aerospace Aircraft operating and ELISCHM Currency business JEIENIGEIE

(in € millions) Propulsion  Equipment Defense JEENIENIA other (EIcE hedges combinations data

Revenue 9,391 5145 1,238 15,774 7 15,781 701 - 16,482

Recurring operating income (loss) 1,786 567 76 2,429 (25) 2,404 712 (126) 2,990
Other non-recurring operating income

and expenses 3 (5) (@) 9 9 18) - 367 349

Profit (loss) from operations®™ 1,789 562 69 2,420 (34) 2,386 712 2941 3,339

Free cash flow 929 165 17 1,1 (20) 1,091 - - 1,091

Gross operating working capital (92) 1,215 392 1,515 (67) 1,448 - - 1,448

Segment assets 14,463 6,088 2,01 22,562 1,062 23,624 - - 23,624

(D) Of which depreciation, amortization
and increase in provisions, net of use 248) 90 46) (485) 3D (516) 4) a4 (634)

Of which impairment 207) a8) (©))] 234) 3 230D ®) - 237)

Revenue (adjusted data)

(in € millions) 2016 2017

Aerospace Propulsion

Original equipment and related products and services 3,801 3,915
Services 5,350 5,726
Sales of studies 204 65
Other 36 55
Sub-total 9,391 9,741

Aircraft Equipment

Original equipment and related products and services 3,182 3,364
Services 1,635 1,749
Sales of studies 199 169
Other 129 133
Sub-total 5,145 5,415
Defense

Sales of equipment 799 887
Services 325 333
Sales of studies m 123
Other 3 2
Sub-total 1,238 1,345

Holding company and other

Sales of studies and other 7 20
Sub-total 7 20
TOTAL 15,781 16,521
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Information by geographic area

At December 31, 2017

Total Total

Europe Asia and Africa & EELITTHET Currency ELEIEICTH

(in € millions) France (excl. France) Americas Oceania Middle East data hedges data

Revenue by location of customers 3,214 4,366 5,259 2,468 1,214 16,521 419 16,940
% 20% 26% 32% 15% 7%

Non-current assets by location® 9,885 1,509 993 259 63 12,709
% 78% 12% 8% 2% 0%

(D Excluding financial assets, derivatives and deferred tax assets.

At December 31, 2016

Total Total

Europe Asia and Africa & JEEL[THC Currency JMLENIIGEICT]

(in € millions) France (excl. France) Americas Oceania Middle East data hedges data

Revenue by location of customers 3,262 3,439 5,345 2,368 1,367 15,781 701 16,482
% 21% 22% 34% 15% 8%

Non-current assets by location® 9,580 1,515 991 236 64 12,386
% 77% 12% 8% 2% 1%

(D Excluding financial assets, derivatives and deferred tax assets.

As in the previous year, the Safran Group carried out sales with > Boeing Group: sales of original equipment engines for aircraft
three major customers during 2017: for the Aerospace Propulsion operating segment; and landing
and braking systems, wiring and electrical connection systems

> Airbus Group: sales of original equipment engines for aircraft : " ’
for the Aircraft Equipment operating segment;

and helicopters for the Aerospace Propulsion operating
segment; landing and braking systems, wiring and electrical > General Electric Group: sales of fleet maintenance spare parts
connection systems and nacelles for the Aircraft Equipment for the Aerospace Propulsion operating segment.
operating segment; and navigation systems, flight control

systems and flight-data recording systems for the Defense

operating segment;

NOTES  BREAKDOWN OF THE MAIN COMPONENTS OF PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS

Revenue

(in € millions) 2016 m
Original equipment and related products and services 8,116 8,363
Services 7,648 8,020
Sales of studies 535 372
Other 183 185
TOTAL 16,482 16,940
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Other income

(in € millions) 2016 2017

Research tax credit® 139 140
Competitiveness and employment tax credit (CICE) 37 41
Other operating subsidies 81 78
Other operating income and expenses 20 19
TOTAL 277 278

(D Of which €8 million in connection with additional research tax credits in respect of 2016, included in 2017 income (€5 million in respect
of 2015 included in 2016 income).

Raw materials and consumables used

This caption breaks down as follows for the period:

(in € millions) 2016 2017

Raw materials, supplies and other (2,531) (2,829)
Bought-in goods ms) (143)
Changes in inventories 36 79
Sub-contracting 4,179) (4,428)
Purchases not held in inventory (479) (444)
External service expenses (2,069) (1,944)
TOTAL (9,340) (9,709)

Personnel costs

(in € millions) 2016
Wages and salaries (2,720) (2,666)
Social security contributions 1041 amns)
Statutory employee profit-sharing 142) 44)
Optional employee profit-sharing (165) aern)
Additional contributions (54) (64)
Corporate social contribution (74) 77)
Other employee costs mo) (126)
TOTAL (4,406) (4,353)
The decrease in personnel costs primarily relates to the transfer Full-time equivalent employees of consolidated companies,
of 3,500 employees further to the contribution at June 30, 2016 excluding jointly controlled entities, represented 55,238 people
of the space business to the Airbus Safran Launchers joint on average in 2017 (56,976 people on average in 2016).

venture (renamed ArianeGroup on July 1, 2017).

Depreciation, amortization and increase in provisions, net of use

(in € millions) 2016 2017

Net depreciation and amortization expense

> intangible assets (333) (382)
> property, plant and equipment (393) (420)
Total net depreciation and amortization expense® (726) (802)
Net increase in provisions 92 (276)
DEPRECIATION, AMORTIZATION AND INCREASE IN PROVISIONS, NET OF USE (634) (1,078)

(D) Of which depreciation and amortization of assets measured at fair value at the time of the Sagem-Snecma merger: €67 million in 2017
and €70 million in 2016, and during recent acquisitions: €40 million in 2017 and €44 million in 2016.
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Asset impairment

(in € millions)

Impairment expense Reversals

2016 2017 [ 2017

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 40) (74) 4 4
Financial assets (€)) 44) 10 2
Inventories and work-in-progress (506) (500) 324 493
Receivables (55) (46) 35 98
TOTAL (610) (664) 373 592

Other recurring operating income and expenses

(in € millions)

2016 2017

Capital gains and losses on asset disposals 2 ()
Royalties, patents and licenses (23) (26)
Losses on irrecoverable receivables an (7)
Other operating income and expenses® 147 206
TOTAL 15 167

(D) Of which income of €136 million in 2017 relating to the review of the probability that borrowings subject to specific conditions will be
repaid (income of €9 million in 2016) (see Notes 1.t. and 21, “Borrowings subject to specific conditions”).

Other non-recurring operating income and expenses

(in € millions)

2016 2017

Gains on remeasuring previously held equity interests 367 -
Capital gains on asset disposals - 23
Impairment net of reversals on intangible assets - (23)
Other non-recurring items a8) (90)
TOTAL 349 (90)

For 2017, “Capital gains on asset disposals” (€23 million)
corresponds mainly to the sale of Structil (see Note 3, “Scope
of consolidation”).

The Group also decided to analyze the situation of the assets
associated with the Falcon 5X program following Dassault
Aviation’s announcement on December 13, 2017 that it had decided
to initiate proceedings to terminate the Silvercrest contract,
leading to the cancelation of the Falcon 5X program. These
analyses led the Group to write down assets it had specifically
committed to this program for an amount of €23 million. As
a reminder, the intangible assets relating specifically to the
development of the Silvercrest engine and certain other specific
assets relating to this program were written down in full for an
amount of €654 million in 2015.

“Other non-recurring items” include €61 million in transaction and
integration costs, particularly those relating to Safran’s tender
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offer on Zodiac Aerospace’s share capital (see Note 3, “Scope
of consolidation”), and the payment of €29 million in respect
of an arbitral award (see Note 31 “Disputes and litigation”).

At December 31, 2016, the revaluation gain arising from the
loss of control in the activities and the investments transferred
during the second phase of the creation of ASL (since renamed
ArianeGroup), the 50-50 joint arrangement between Airbus Group
and Safran, was included within “Other non-recurring operating
income and expenses” for €367 million (see Note 3, “Scope of
consolidation”).

Besides this gain, other non-recurring items chiefly included
€15 million in transaction and integration costs arising on
business combinations.
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(in € millions)
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Financial expense on interest-bearing financial liabilities 71 (81
Financial income on cash and cash equivalents 20 24
Cost of net debt (51) (57)
Gain (loss) on foreign currency hedging instruments (186) 3,476
Foreign exchange gains and losses (730) (428)
Net foreign exchange gains (losses) on provisions 27) 95
Foreign exchange gain (loss) (943) 3,143
Gain or loss on interest rate and commodity hedging instruments 15 4
Capital gains or losses on financial asset disposals - 17
Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets 3 (@)
Dividends received 2 3
Other financial provisions 4 -
Interest component of IAS 19 expense e) 12)
Impact of discounting 7n (35)
Other m 5
Other financial income and expense (58) (22)
FINANCIAL INCOME (LOSS) (1,052) 3,064

of which financial expense (1,104) (558)

of which financial income 52 3,622

In 2017, the €3,476 million gain on foreign currency hedging
instruments reflects changes in the fair value of these instruments
attributable to cash flows that will be recognized in profit or loss
in future periods. This gain results chiefly from the change in
the EUR/USD closing exchange rate (1.20 at December 31, 2017
versus 1.05 at December 31, 2016).

NOTE7  INCOME TAX

Income tax expense

Income tax expense breaks down as follows:

(in € millions)

The €428 million foreign exchange loss includes €438 million
relating to the loss on unwinding currency derivatives hedging
operating cash flows recognized in profit or loss in the period.
This foreign exchange loss reflects the fact that the currency
derivatives unwound in the period broadly guaranteed a EUR/USD
exchange rate of USD 1.21 for €1, which proved less favorable
than the actual exchange rate observed during the period.

Current income tax benefit (expense) (348) (GI5)
Deferred tax benefit (expense)® (50) (1,201)
TOTAL TAX BENEFIT (EXPENSE) (398) (1,716)

(D Including €1,198 million in deferred tax expense in 2017 arising on fair value adjustments to currency derivatives (deferred tax of

€64 million in 2016).
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Effective tax rate

The effective tax rate breaks down as follows:

(in € millions)

Profit before tax (A) 2,287 5,745
Standard tax rate applicable to the parent company 34.43% 34.43%
Tax expense at standard rate (787) (1,978)
Impact of permanent differences 86 22
Impact of research and CICE tax credits 59 61
Impact of different tax rates (France/international) 28 64
Impact of unrecognized tax 1 10
Positive impact of tax reassessments 31 -
Impact of tax on dividends paid by Safran 8) 76
Impact of changes in tax rates on deferred taxes 172 130
Impact of joint ventures 29 54
Impact of other items 1 (155)
Current income tax benefit (expense) recognized in profit or loss (B) (398) (1,716)
EFFECTIVE TAX RATE (B)/(A) 17.40% 29.87%

The increase in the effective tax rate between 2016 and 2017 is
mainly attributable to the impact of the recognition of significant
fair value adjustments in connection with the currency hedging
portfolio in 2017 pre-tax profit.

In France, the 2018 Finance Act had the following impacts on
the Group’s 2017 income tax expense:

> the French Constitutional Council’s decision to rule uncons-
titutional the 3% contribution on dividends, has given rise
to the repayment of the corresponding levy previously paid
since 2013. The Group therefore recognized net current
tax income of €76 million in 2017 within “Impact of tax on
dividends paid by Safran”;

> in parallel, an exceptional contribution of 15% and an additional
contribution of 15% were introduced for groups whose
revenue exceeds €3 billion. This generated a current income
tax expense for the Group of €115 million for 2017 recorded
under “Impact of other items”;

> the Group recognized net deferred tax income of €120 million
in 2017 within “Impact of changes in tax rates on deferred
taxes”, further to the progressive decrease in the corporate
tax rate to 25% by 2022 (25.83% including the additional
contribution), in line with the 2017 and 2018 Finance Acts.
Consequently, deferred tax assets and liabilities expected to
reverse in 2021 were calculated at a rate of 26.5% (27.37%
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including the additional contribution), and items expected to
reverse in 2022 and beyond were calculated at 25% (25.83%
including the additional contribution).

Belgium also voted to cut the corporate tax rate in two stages:
first in 2018 and 2019, the corporate tax rate will decrease
from 33% (33.99% including the additional crisis contribution)
to 29% (29.58% including the additional contribution). It will
subsequently be cut to 25% in 2020. This change in corporate
tax rate gave rise to the recognition in 2017 of net deferred tax
income of €28 million within “Impact of changes in tax rates
on deferred taxes”.

US tax reform voted at the end of 2017 included two measures
with significant implications for the Group’s tax charge:

> firstly, the corporate tax rate was cut from 35% to 21%, effective
January 1,2018. As a result, a deferred tax expense of €18 million
was recognized in the 2017 consolidated financial statements
within “Impact of changes in tax rates on deferred taxes”;

> secondly, a toll charge transition tax was introduced for
unremitted post-1986 accumulated earnings in non-US
subsidiaries owned at more than 10%. This led to a current
income tax expense for the Group of €54 million, recorded
under “Impact of other items”.
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities

Deferred tax assets (liabilities) in the balance sheet

(in € millions) Assets Liabilities Net
Net deferred tax assets (liabilities) at December 31, 2016 1,351 987 364
Deferred taxes recognized in profit or loss® 1176) 25 (1,201
Deferred taxes recognized directly in equity 4) 19 (23)
Reclassifications a8 (€)) as)
Foreign exchange differences 4) 2 ®)
Changes in scope of consolidation (7) 8) 1
NET DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (LIABILITIES) AT DECEMBER 31, 2017 142 1,022 (880)

(D Including €1,198 million in deferred tax expense in 2017 arising on fair value adjustments to currency derivatives (deferred tax of
€64 million in 2016).

Deferred tax asset bases

(in € millions) Dec. 31, 2016 Dec. 31, 2017

Deferred tax asset bases

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (4,585) (4,581)
Inventories 184 248
Current assets/liabilities 390 123
Financial assets/liabilities 3,870 248
Provisions 1,417 1,247
Tax adjustments (447) (530)
Losses carried forward and tax credits 366 225
TOTAL DEFERRED TAX ASSET BASES 1,195 (3,020)
Total gross deferred tax balance (A) 470 (852)
Total unrecognized deferred tax assets (B) 106 28
TOTAL NET DEFERRED TAXES RECOGNIZED (A)-(B) 364 (880)

Current tax assets and liabilities

Current tax assets and liabilities break down as follows:

(in € millions) Assets Liabilities Net
Net tax assets (liabilities) at December 31, 2016 513 179 334
Movements during the period m 3 108
Current taxes recognized directly in equity - 45 45)
Foreign exchange differences (25) a3 a2y
Other movements (3 - 3
NET TAX ASSETS (LIABILITIES) AT DECEMBER 31, 2017 596 214 382
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NOTES  EARNINGS PER SHARE

s o [
Numerator (in € millions)

Profit for the period attributable to owners of the parent (A) 1,908 4,790
Profit from continuing operations attributable to owners

of the parent O] 1,836 3,968
Profit from discontinued operations attributable to owners

of the parent (@) 72 822
Denominator (in shares)

Total number of shares (B) 417,029,585 417,029,585
Number of treasury shares held © 1,838,487 7,742,624
Number of shares excluding treasury shares (D)=(B-C) 415,191,098 409,286,961
Weighted average number of shares (excluding treasury shares) (D" 416,325,118 410,241,043
Potentially dilutive ordinary shares (B) 7,293,830 7,277,205
Weighted average number of shares after dilution (F)=(D’'+E) 423,618,948 417,518,248
Ratio: earnings per share from continuing operations (in €)

Basic earnings per share (K)=*1million)/(D’) 4.41 9.67
Diluted earnings per share (L)=*1million)/(F) 4.33 9.50
Ratio: earnings per share from discontinued operations (in €)

Basic earnings per share (M)=(J*Imillion)/(D*) 017 2.00
Diluted earnings per share (N)=(J*Imillion)/(F) 0.17 1.97

At December 31, 2017, potentially dilutive ordinary shares
comprise shares that may be issued if all of the options issued
by the Group on January 5, 2016 as part of the issue of bonds
convertible and/or exchangeable for new and/or existing
shares (OCEANE - see Note 18.c., “Convertible bond issues”)
are converted.
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The calculation of earnings per share in 2017 does not include the
issuance of 26,651,058 Class A Preferred Shares on February 13, 2018
to the shareholders of Zodiac Aerospace who tendered their
shares to the subsidiary exchange offer (see Note 3, “Scope of
consolidation”). The Class A Preferred Shares bear dividend
rights as from their date of issuance.



NOTEY  GOODWILL

Goodwill breaks down as follows:
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Price adjustments

Changes and allocation to Translation

Dec. 31,2016 in scope of identifiable assets adjustments TR VAINY)
(in € millions) Net  consolidation Impairment and liabilities and other Net
Safran Aircraft Engines 392 - - - - 392
Safran Helicopter Engines 306 - - - 1 307
Safran Aero Booster 47 - - - - 47
Other 1 - - - - 1
Total Aerospace Propulsion 746 - - - 1 747
Safran Nacelles 213 - - - - 213
Safran Engineering Services 78 - - - - 78
Safran Landing Systems 188 - - - 2 190
Safran Ventilation Systems 10 - - - - 10
Safran Electrical & Power 491 - - - 27) 464
Total Aircraft Equipment 980 - - - (25) 955
Safran Electronics & Defense 138 - - - (€)) 129
Total Defense 138 - - - 9) 129
TOTAL 1,864 = S = (33) 1,831

Annual impairment tests

The Group tests goodwill for impairment during the first half
of the year.

The Group performed annual impairment tests on the cash-generating
units (CGUs) presented above, by comparing their value in use
with their net carrying amount.

The main assumptions used in determining the value in use of
CGUs are described below:

> expected future cash flows are determined over a period
consistent with the useful life of the assets included in
each CGU. This is generally estimated at 10 years but may
be extended for businesses with longer development and
production cycles;

> operating forecasts used to determine expected future cash
flows take into account general economic data, specific
inflation rates for each geographic area, a USD exchange
rate based on available market information and mid- to
long-term macroeconomic assumptions. These projections
and assumptions are based on the Group’s medium-term plan
for the next four years, while projections and assumptions
beyond this period are based on management’s best case
long-term scenario;

> the value in use of CGUs is equal to the sum of these discounted
estimated future cash flows plus a terminal value, calculated by
applying the growth rate expected for the relevant businesses
to standardized cash flows representing long-term business
activity, which usually corresponds to the last year in the
long-term plan;

> the growth rate used to calculate terminal value was set at
1.5% for the Defense CGU (unchanged from 2016) and at 2%
for the Aerospace Propulsion and Aircraft Equipment CGUs
(unchanged from 2016);

> the average USD exchange rate adopted is 1.18 for years 2018
to 2020 and 1.35 thereafter. These exchange rate assumptions
were used for forecasting during the first half of the year, and
take into account the foreign currency hedging portfolio (see
Note 26, “Management of market risks and derivatives”);

> the benchmark post-tax discount rate used is 7.5% (unchanged
from 2016) and is applied to post-tax cash flows.

Based on these tests, no impairment was deemed necessary in
addition to that already recognized against individual assets.
Furthermore, the recoverable amount of each CGU wholly
justifies the goodwill balances recorded in Group assets. No
impairment of goodwill was recognized as a result of the annual
impairment tests in 2016.

A sensitivity analysis was carried out in respect of the Group’s
main goodwill balances, by introducing the following changes
to the main assumptions:

> a 5% increase or decrease in the USD/EUR exchange rate;
> a 0.5% increase in the benchmark discount rate;

> a 0.5% decrease in the perpetual growth rate.

In 2017 as in 2016, the above changes in the main assumptions

taken individually do not result in values in use lower than the
carrying amounts of goodwill balances.
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NOTE 10 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intangible assets break down as follows:

Amortization/ Amortization/
(in € millions) Gross impairment Net Gross impairment Net
Aircraft programs 2,367 (1,326) 1,041 2,363 (1,459) 904
Development expenditures 3,946 (1,265) 2,681 4,185 (1,384) 2,801
Commercial agreements and concessions 973 (312) 661 1,096 (354) 742
Software 523 (452) 71 547 467) 80
Commercial relationships 227 (90) 137 198 (80) n8
Technology 93 (22) 71 83 (25) 58
Other 642 (126) 516 683 (145) 538
TOTAL 8,771 (3,593) 5,178 9,155 (3,914) 5,241
Movements in intangible assets break down as follows:
Amortization/

(in € millions) Gross impairment Net
At December 31, 2016 8,771 (3,593) 5,178
Capitalization of R&D expenditure® 286 - 286
Capitalization of other intangible assets nz - nz
Acquisitions of other intangible assets 174 - 174
Disposals and retirements (50) 33 arn
Amortization - (382) (382)
Impairment losses recognized in profit or loss - (73) (73)
Reclassifications (80) 69 an
Changes in scope of consolidation (5) 6 1
Foreign exchange differences (58) 26 (32)
AT DECEMBER 31, 2017 9,155 (3,914) 5,241

(D Including €11 million in capitalized interest on R&D expenditure at December 31, 2017 (€20 million at December 31, 2016).

Research and development expenditure recognized in recurring
operating income for the period totaled €955 million including
amortization (€867 million in 2016). This amount does not
include the research tax credit recognized in recurring operating
income within other income (see Note 5, “Breakdown of the
main components of profit from operations™).

Amortization was recognized in respect of intangible assets for
€107 million relating to the remeasurement of aircraft programs
resulting from the application of IFRS 3 to the Sagem-Snecma
merger (€67 million), and to assets identified as part of other
business combinations (€40 million).
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As a result of the impairment tests carried out at December 31, 2017,
assets that the Group had specifically committed to the Falcon 5X
program were written down in an amount of €23 million (see
Note 5, “Breakdown of the main components of profit from
operations™), while intangible assets relating to an Aircraft
Equipment program were written down in an amount of €34 million.

No impairment losses were recognized as a result of the
impairment tests carried out in 2016.
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NOTE 1T PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment break down as follows:

Dec. 31, 2016 Dec. 31, 2017

Depreciation/ Depreciation/
(in € millions) Gross impairment Net Gross impairment Net
Land 209 - 209 204 = 204
Buildings 1,559 (687) 872 1,624 (750) 874
Technical facilities, equipment and tooling 4,416 (3,028) 1,388 4,71 (3127) 1,584
Assets in progress, advances 690 (78) 612 750 (76) 674
Site development and preparation costs 50 (28) 22 51 (30) 21
Buildings on land owned by third parties 92 (34) 58 90 (€))) 59
Computer hardware and other equipment 369 (361) 8 459 (357) 102
TOTAL 7,385 (4,216) 3,169 7,889 (4,371 3,518

Movements in property, plant and equipment can be analyzed as follows:

Depreciation/

(in € millions) Gross impairment Net
At December 31, 2016 7,385 (4,216) 3,169
Internally produced assets 1o - 1o
Additions® 678 - 678
Disposals and retirements (202) 174 28)
Depreciation - (420) (420)
Impairment losses recognized in profit or loss - a4) a4)
Reclassification® 81 14 95
Changes in scope of consolidation 24) 21 3
Foreign exchange differences (139) 70 (69)
AT DECEMBER 31, 2017 7,889 4,371 3,518

(D Including €2 million in assets held under finance leases.
(2) €102 million, corresponding to the cumulative elimination of intragroup transactions entered into between the Group and a joint
venture in prior periods, was reclassified from property, plant and equipment to investments in equity-accounted companies.

Assets held under finance leases and recognized in property, plant and equipment break down as follows:

Dec. 31, 2016 Dec. 31, 2017

Depreciation/ reciation/
(in € millions) Gross impairment Net Gross ENE
Land 16 - 16 16 - 16
Buildings 236 (58) 178 235 (67) 168
Technical facilities, equipment and tooling 18 (7 n 18 (8) 10
Site development and preparation costs 7 (2) 5 10 3 7
Buildings on land owned by third parties 18 - 18 18 () 16
Computer hardware and other equipment 20 (20) - 20 (20) -
TOTAL 315 (87) 228 317 (100) 217
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NOTE 12 CURRENT AND NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS

Financial assets include:

Dec. 31, 2016 Dec. 31, 2017

(in € millions) Gross Impairment Net Gross Impairment Net
Non-consolidated investments® 488 (188) 300 442 (216) 226
Other financial assets 316 87) 229 2,298 87) 2,21
TOTAL 804 (275) 529 2,740 (303) 2,437

(D Of which Embraer listed securities for €39 million at December 31, 2016, classified in Level 1 of the IFRS 13 fair value hierarchy. The
Embraer shares were sold in 2017 for €41 million.

Non-consolidated investments are classified as available-for-sale needed to be recognized based on available information and
and measured at fair value or at cost if fair value cannot be the current market climate.

reliably measured.
No material write-downs were recognized in 2017.

The Group reviewed the value of each of its available-for-sale
investments in order to determine whether any impairment loss

Other financial assets

Other financial assets break down as follows:

(in € millions) Dec. 31, 2016 Dec. 31, 2017

Loans to non-consolidated companies 152 108
Loans to employees 32 31
Deposits and guarantees 7 2,007
Loans linked to sales financing 1 -
Other 37 65
TOTAL 229 2,21
Non-current 82 98
Current 147 2,113

Loans to non-consolidated companies correspond to revolving credit agreements.

The table below shows movements in other financial assets:

(in € millions)

At December 31, 2016 229
Increase 34
Decrease (60)
Reclassifications 2,01
Changes in scope of consolidation 3
AT DECEMBER 31, 2017 2,211
The increase in Other financial assets in 2017 is mainly due to the These money market funds could not be classified under cash
reclassification of €2,000 million in money market funds which and cash equivalents during the offer period due to their usage
were pledged during the tender offer for Zodiac Aerospace. restriction (see Note 16, “Cash and cash equivalents”).
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NOTE 13 INVESTMENTS IN EQUITY-ACCOUNTED COMPANIES

The Group’s share in the net equity of equity-accounted companies

breaks down as follows:

(in € millions) Dec. 31,2016 m
ArianeGroup 1,484 1,550
Other joint ventures 691 569
TOTAL 2,175 2,119
Movements in this caption during the period break down as follows:

(in € millions)

At December 31, 2016 2,175
Share in profit from ArianeGroup 86
Share in profit from other joint ventures 68
Dividends received from joint ventures (44)
Changes in scope of consolidation 34
Reclassification® (106)
Foreign exchange differences a7
Other movements a7z
AT DECEMBER 31, 2017 2,119

(D €106 million, corresponding to the cumulative eliminations of intragroup transactions generated between the Group and a joint venture
In prior periods, was reclassified from property, plant and equipment (€102 million) and inventories (€4 million) to investments in

equity-accounted companies.

The Group’s off-balance sheet commitments with joint ventures
are described in Note 29, “Related parties”.

The Group has interests in the following joint ventures which
are accounted for using the equity method:

> Airbus Safran Launchers (ASL), which changed corporate
name to ArianeGroup on July 1, 2017: launchers;

> Shannon Engine Support Ltd: leasing of CFM56 and LEAP
engines, modules, equipment and tooling to airline companies;

> ULIS: manufacture of uncooled infrared detectors;
> SOFRADIR: manufacture of cooled infrared detectors;

> Safran Martin-Baker France: manufacture of ejectable seating;
> A-Pro: repair of landing gear for regional and business jets;
> CFM Materials LP: sale of used CFM56 parts;

> Roxel SAS: holding company;

> Roxel France SA: motors for tactical missiles;

> Roxel Ltd: motors for tactical missiles;

> SAIFELI: electrical wiring;

> Fadec International LLC: digital engine control systems.

ArianeGroup is the Group’s sole material joint venture.
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Financial information for ArianeGroup can be summarized as follows:

(in € millions) Dec. 31, 2016
Non-current assets 1,093 1,167
Current assets 5,518 5,335
of which: cash and cash equivalents 797 807
Non-current liabilities (526) (496)
of which: non-current financial liabilities (35) [€1))
Current liabilities (6,511) (6,470)
of which: current financial liabilities (333) 36)
Non-controlling interests 8 7
Net assets of ArianeGroup (excl. goodwill and PPA) - attributable to owners of the parent
(based on a 100% interest) 434) 471)
Equity share in net assets of ArianeGroup (excl. goodwill and PPA) (based on a 50% interest) 217) (236)
Purchase price allocation, net of deferred taxes® 350 609
Safran equity share - Net assets of ArianeGroup® 133 374
Goodwill” 1,351 1,176
CARRYING AMOUNT OF INVESTMENT IN ARIANEGROUP 1,484 1,550

(D Provisional allocation of the purchase price at December 31, 2016, final allocation of the purchase price at June 30, 2017.

(in € millions) 2016
Profit for the period attributable to owners of the parent 100 218
Other comprehensive income 4) 28
Total comprehensive income attributable to owners of the parent 96 246
Safran equity share - Profit for the period 50 109
Amortization of purchase price allocation, net of deferred taxes® 2) (44)
Deferred tax rate change® 21
Safran equity share in profit of ArianeGroup 38 86
Safran equity share - Other comprehensive income (2) 14
Safran equity share in comprehensive income of ArianeGroup 36 100

(D Provisional allocation of the purchase price at December 31, 2016, final allocation of the purchase price at June 30, 2017.
(2) Impact of the future corporate tax rate reduction following the amending Finance Act for 2017 on deferred tax liabilities on final

allocation of the purchase price (see Note 7, “Income tax”).

In 2017, ArianeGroup paid €50 million in interim dividends (of which €25 million for Safran).

The contribution of other joint ventures to the Group’s comprehensive income was as follows:

(in € millions) 2016
Profit from continuing operations 49 68
Profit from discontinued operations 1 -
Other comprehensive income m (49)
Total comprehensive income 61 19
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NOTE 14 INVENTORIES AND WORK-IN-PROGRESS

Inventories and work-in-progress break down as follows:

Dec. 31,2016

(in € millions) Net Net
Raw materials and supplies 519 562
Finished goods 1,995 2,127
Work-in-progress 1,721 1,782
Bought-in goods 12 55
TOTAL 4,247 4,496
Movements in inventories and work-in-progress can be analyzed as follows:

(in € millions) Gross Impairment Net
At December 31, 2016 5,063 (816) 4,247
Movements during the period 308 - 308
Net impairment expense - 12) 12)
Reclassification™ 24 8) 16
Changes in scope of consolidation - [©) m
Foreign exchange differences an 9 (62)
AT DECEMBER 31, 2017 5,324 (828) 4,496

(D €4 million, corresponding to the cumulative elimination of intragroup transactions entered into between the Group and a joint venture
in prior periods, was reclassified from inventories and work-in-progress to investments in equity-accounted companies.

NOTE 15 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Movements Changes

Dec. 31,2016  during the Impairment/ in scope of LELSETNN Dec. 31,2017
(in € millions) Net period reversal consolidation Reclassifications adjustments Net
Operating receivables 5,696 (¢)) 58 6 (O] (34) 5,724
Debit balances on trade payables/advance
payments to suppliers 224 193 - - [@)) m 414
Trade receivables 5,462 (189) 58 6 1 (33) 5,305
Current operating accounts 1 - - - - - 1
Employee-related receivables 9 (5) - - - - 4
Other receivables 556 44 1 55 - (9) 647
Prepayments 30 n - - (2) [©) 38
VAT receivables 461 80 - - - (5) 536
Other State receivables n - - - - - n
Other receivables 54 “47) 1 55 2 3) 62
TOTAL 6,252 43 59 61 m 43) 6,371

In both 2017 and 2016, the Group sold trade receivables under an agreement requiring derecognition under IFRS. The terms and

conditions of this agreement are presented in Note 22, “Interest-bearing financial liabilities”.
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The table below provides a breakdown of the carrying amount of trade receivables by maturity:

Carrying Neither Past due but not impaired at Dec. 31 (in days) Total
amount past due past due but  Past due and
(in € millions) atDec.31  nor impaired <30 31-90 90-180 181-360 > 360 EETENC impaired™
At December 31, 2016
Trade receivables 5,462 4,962 n7z 140 64 62 36 419 81
AT DECEMBER 31, 2017
Trade receivables 5,305 4,860 106 136 60 31 53 386 59

(D Certain receivables are only partially written down.

NOTE 16 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(in € millions) Dec. 31, 2016
Money-market funds 21 1,293
Short-term investments 1m3 2,077
Sight deposits 792 1,544
TOTAL 1,926 4,914
Money-market funds are classified within level 1 of the IFRS 13 fair value hierarchy.

The table below presents changes in cash and cash equivalents:

(in € millions)

At December 31, 2016 1,926
Movements during the period 4,983
Changes in scope of consolidation 16
Foreign exchange differences an
Reclassifications (2,000)
AT DECEMBER 31, 2017 4,914

During 2017, €2,000 million in money market funds which were
pledged during the tender offer for Zodiac Aerospace was
reclassified under other financial assets (see Note 12, “Current
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and non-current financial assets”). These money market funds
could not be classified under cash and cash equivalents during
the offer period due to their usage restriction.
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The table below presents the carrying amount of the Group’s financial assets at December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2017:

At December 31, 2016
(in € millions)

Carrying amount

At amortized cost

At fair value

Loans and
receivables (A)

Assets held to
maturity (B)

Financial assets at
fair value (through
profit or loss) (C)

Financial assets
available for sale
(through equity) (D)

Non-current financial assets

Non-consolidated investments 300 300
Non-current derivatives (positive fair value) 28 28
Other non-current financial assets 82 82
Sub-total non-current financial assets 82 - 28 300 410
Other current financial assets 147 147
Current derivatives (positive fair value) 592 592
Trade receivables 5,462 5,462
Current operating accounts and other receivables 55 55
Cash and cash equivalents 1,905 21 1,926
Sub-total current financial assets 7,569 - 613 - 8,182
TOTAL FINANCIAL ASSETS 7,651 - 641 300 8,592

Carrying amount

At amortized cost

At fair value

Financial assets at

Financial assets

At December 31, 2017 Loansand  Assets held to fair value (through available for sale

(in € millions) receivables (A) maturity (B) profit or loss) (C)  (through equity) (D) = A+B+C+D
Non-current financial assets

Non-consolidated investments 226 226
Non-current derivatives (positive fair value) 16 16
Other non-current financial assets 98 98
Sub-total non-current financial assets 98 - 16 226 340
Other current financial assets 213 213
Current derivatives (positive fair value) 566 566
Trade receivables 5,305 5,305
Current operating accounts and other receivables 63 63
Cash and cash equivalents 3,621 1,293 4,914
Sub-total current financial assets 11,102 - 1,859 - 12,961
TOTAL FINANCIAL ASSETS 11,200 - 1,875 226 13,301

The Group did not reclassify any financial assets between the amortized cost and fair value categories in 2016 or 2017.
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Fair value of financial assets

The fair value of financial assets recorded at amortized cost is
close to their carrying amount.

Safran uses the fair value hierarchy set out in IFRS 13 to determine
the classification of financial assets at fair value:

Group consolidated financial statements at December 31, 2017

> Level 1: inputs that reflect quoted prices for identical assets
or liabilities in active markets;

> Level 2: directly or indirectly observable inputs other than
quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in active markets;

> Level 3: unobservable inputs.

The Group’s financial assets carried at fair value at December 31, 2016 are shown below:

(in € millions) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Non-consolidated investments* 39 - - 39
Derivatives (positive fair value) - 620 - 620
Cash and cash equivalents 21 - - 21
TOTAL 60 620 - 680
() Excluding investments at cost.
The Group’s financial assets carried at fair value at December 31, 2017 are shown below:
(in € millions) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Non-consolidated investments* - - - -
Derivatives (positive fair value) - 582 - 582
Cash and cash equivalents 1,293 - - 1,293
TOTAL 1,293 582 - 1,875
(") Excluding investments at cost.
In 2017 and 2016, no items were transferred between level 1and level 2, and none were transferred to or from level 3.
Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities
Net amounton  Amount subject to offset
At December 31, 2016 Gross carrying amount Amount offset the balance sheet”  agreement but not offset Net
(in € millions) (A) (B) (C) (D) (C) - (D)
Derivatives (positive fair value) 620 - 620 617 3

(D) See Note 26, “"Management of market risks and derivatives”.

Gross carrying amount
(A)

At December 31, 2017
(in € millions)

Derivatives (positive fair value) 582

Net amount on
Amount offset  the balance sheet

(B) (€
- 582

Amount subject to offset
agreement but not offset

(D)
508

74

(D) See Note 26, “Management of market risks and derivatives”.

The tables above show the financial assets for which an offsetting
agreement exists with respect to financial liabilities.

At both December 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, the Group did
not offset any financial assets and liabilities on its balance sheet,
since it did not meet the conditions specified in IAS 32. Master
offsetting (netting) agreements governing the subscription of
OTC derivatives with bank counterparties provide for a right of
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set-off only in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of
one of the parties to the agreement.

The amounts subject to an offset agreement but not offset
comprise a portion of the Group’s derivatives with a negative
fair value, since amounts can only be offset if they relate to the
same counterparty.



FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Group consolidated financial statements at December 31, 2017

NOTE 16 CONSOLIDATED SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

a) Share capital
At December 31, 2017, Safran’s share capital was fully paid up and comprised 417,029,585 shares, each with a par value of €0.20.

Safran’s equity does not include any equity instruments issued other than its shares.

b) Breakdown of share capital and voting rights

Changes in the breakdown of share capital and voting rights are as follows:

December 31, 2016

Number of
Shareholders Number of shares % share capital voting rights® % voting rights"
Private investors 318,282,922 76.32% 335,107,792 64.90%
French State 58,393,131 14.00% 116,786,262 22.62%
Employees® 38,515,045 9.24% 64,409,240 12.48%
Treasury shares 1,838,487 0.44% - -
TOTAL 417,029,585 100.00% 516,303,294 100.00%
(D Exercisable voting rights.
(2) Employee shareholding within the meaning of Article L.225-102 of the French Commercial Code (Code de commerce).
December 31, 2017

Number of
Shareholders Number of shares % share capital voting rights® % voting rights"
Private investors 320,032,130 76.74% 336,208,280 66.12%
French State 58,393,131 14.00% 116,786,262 22.97%
Employees® 30,861,700 7.40% 55,471,370 10.91%
Treasury shares 7,742,624 1.86% - -
TOTAL 417,029,585 100.00% 508,465,912 100.00%

(D) Exercisable voting rights.

(2) Employee shareholding within the meaning of Article L.225-102 of the French Commercial Code.

Each share carries entitlement to one vote. Shares held in
registered form for over two years have double voting rights.

The 7,742,624 treasury shares have no voting rights.

Treasury shares

The number of treasury shares has increased since December 31,2016
following:

> the purchase of 96,948 shares under the Group’s liquidity
agreement, net of shares sold;

> the purchase of 5,807,189 shares in connection with the
implementation of the share buyback program.

On May 19, 2016, the Shareholders’ Meeting authorized the Board
of Directors to buy and sell shares in the Company in accordance
with the applicable laws and regulations, at a maximum purchase
price of €80 per share. This authorization was renewed by the
Shareholders’ Meeting of June 15, 2017, which set the maximum
purchase price at €95 per share.

Pursuant to these authorizations and to the liquidity agreement
signed in 2012 with Oddo BHF, the Company purchased 3,700,272
shares for €284 million, and sold 3,603,324 shares for €278 million.

At December 31, 2017, 195,356 shares were held in connection
with the liquidity agreement.

On December 12, 2016, Safran announced a buyback program for
up to €450 million worth of its own shares in order to neutralize
the dilutive effect of equity instruments on its balance sheet.

> on December 8, 2016, Safran signed a share purchase agreement
with a bank for an initial buyback tranche of up to €250 million;

> on February 27, 2017, Safran signed a share purchase agreement
with a different investment services firm for a second tranche
of up to €200 million.

Within the scope of these agreements, at December 31, 2017,
the two tranches had been successively completed for a total
of 6,428,664 shares at a value of €444 million.
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c) Convertible bond issues

On January 5, 2016, Safran issued 7,277,205 bonds convertible
and/or exchangeable for new and/or existing shares (“OCEANE”
bonds) for a total nominal amount of €650 million.

The bonds do not carry any coupon.

Bondholders have the option of converting their bonds into
shares on a one-for-one basis. This option can be exercised at
any point after the issue date and up to the seventh trading day
preceding the standard or early redemption date.

The bonds come with an early redemption option that the issuer
may trigger if the share price exceeds 130% of par value and
that the bearer may trigger in the event of a change of control.

Unless converted, redeemed or bought back and canceled prior to
maturity, the bonds are redeemable at par on December 31, 2020.

OCEANE convertible bonds are deemed a hybrid instrument
comprising equity and debt.

NOTE 19 PROVISIONS

Provisions break down as follows:

The effective annual interest rate on the liability component is
1.50% including issuance fees.

d) Dividend distribution

A dividend payout of €1.52 per share was approved in respect of
2016, of which an interim dividend of €0.69 per share was paid
in that year, representing a total of €287 million. The balance
of €0.83 per share was paid in first-half 2017, representing a
payout of €340 million.

At the Shareholders’ Meeting to be held on May 25, 2018 to approve
the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2017,
the Board of Directors will recommend payment of a dividend
of €1.60 per share in respect of 2017, representing a total payout
of €710 million for 443,680,643 shares comprising the share
capital at the time the dividend is paid. The 26,651,058 Class A
Preferred Shares issued on February 13, 2018 in consideration
for the 88,847,828 Zodiac Aerospace shares tendered to the
Subsidiary Exchange Offer, bear dividend rights as from their
issuance date.

Reversals Changes
in scope of

(in € millions) Dec. 31, 2016 Additions  Utilizations Reclassifications Surplus consolidation (1[4 CT @ Dec. 31, 2017
Performance warranties 780 367 (92) - (267) - 25 813
Financial guarantees 14 - - - ()] - - 5]
Services to be rendered 849 591 (381) - @a3n - 5) 1,013
Post-employment benefits 867 67 (€D - [©) [©) (38) 813
Sales agreements and long-term
receivables 301 136 e) - 27) - 35 429
Provisions for losses on completion and
losses arising on delivery commitments 138 24 a9 (O] (34) - (50) 58
Disputes and litigation 39 13 12) - (2) - 1 39
Other 276 94 47) (45) (22) - (23) 233
TOTAL 3,264 1,292 (648) (46) (393) m (65) 3,403
Non-current 1,706 1,497
Current 1,558 1,906

On December 13, 2017, Dassault Aviation announced that it had
initiated the procedure to terminate the Silvercrest contract
with Safran. For this program, the Group recorded all necessary

The impacts on the income statement can be analyzed as follows:

provisions to cover its contractual commitments as they currently
stand, including the penalties payable to Dassault in connection
with the development phase.

(in € millions)
Net amount recognized in profit from operations (290)
Net reversals recognized in financial income (loss) 85
TOTAL (205)
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NOTE 20 POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

The Group has various commitments in respect of defined
benefit pension plans, retirement termination benefits and
other commitments, mainly in France and the United Kingdom.
The accounting treatment applied to these commitments is
detailed in Note 1.s.

a) Presentation of
post-employment benefits

France

Defined benefit pension plans

At December 31, 2017, the Group closed the defined benefit
supplementary pension plan set up in France in late 2013. It
also froze all conditional entitlements at December 31, 2016.

The beneficiaries of this closed plan are Group executive managers
with five years’ service at December 31, 2017.

The conditional entitlements, which remain subject to the terms
and conditions set when the plan was originally put in place,
were frozen accordingly:

> the cut-off date for calculating length of service was
December 31, 2016; no additional conditional entitlements
were accrued after that date;

the benefit payable is calculated based on length of service
as at December 31, 2016 in the beneficiary category (up to 10
years) and on the average compensation for the years 2014
to 2016, revised annually using the actuarial assumptions
applied to calculate retirement benefit provisions;

the additional benefits payable are capped at three times the
annual social security ceiling (“PASS”) in France. Total benefits
under all regimes cannot exceed 35% of the benchmark
compensation.

b) Financial position

The closure of this plan is part of a change in supplementary
pension arrangements for Group executive managers, with the
introduction of an “Article 83” supplementary defined benefit
plan (mandatory collective plan) and an “Article 82” defined
contribution plan (voluntary collective plan) as of January 1, 2017.

Retirement termination henefits

This heading includes obligations in respect of statutory
termination benefits due on retirement and supplementary
payments required by the collective bargaining agreement for
the metallurgy industry.

Other long-term benefits

In France, other long-term benefits mainly comprise obligations
in respect of long-service awards and bonuses.

United Kingdom

Defined benefit pension plans

There are three pension funds in place at Safran Landing Systems
UK Ltd/Safran Landing Systems Services UK Ltd, Safran Nacelles Ltd
and Safran UK. These pension funds have been contracted out,
which means they replace the mandatory supplementary pension
plan. The plans are managed by trusts. Beneficiaries no longer
accrue any rights under these plans.

Rest of the world

The Group offers its other employees post-employment benefits
and long-service bonuses in accordance with local laws and
practices. The main regions concerned in relation to continuing
operations are:

Americas: pension funds in Canada; retirement termination
benefits in Mexico;

Europe: pension funds in Switzerland; pension funds and retirement
termination benefits in Belgium, retirement termination benefits
and long-service bonuses in Poland.

(in € millions) Dec. 31, 2016 m France  United Kingdom  Rest of the world
Gross obligation 1,513 1,467 623 600 244
Fair value of plan assets 646 665 8 509 148
Provision recognized in the accounts 867 813 615 102 96
> Defined benefit pension plans 268 201 30 102 69
> Retirement termination benefits 559 568 543 - 25
> Long-service bonuses and other employee
benefits 40 44 42 - 2
RECOGNIZED NET PLAN ASSETS - () - an -
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(in € millions)

Dec. 31, 2016 Dec. 31, 2017

Defined benefit
pension plans

Retirement
termination benefits

Long-service bonuses and
other long-term benefits

Gross obligation 1,513 1,467 855 568 44
Fair value of plan assets 646 665 665 - -
Provision recognized in the accounts 867 813 201 568 44
RECOGNIZED NET PLAN ASSETS - an an - -

The decrease in the gross obligation results from the following
factors:

> an increase of €22 million following updates to demographic
assumptions (mortality tables) used in actuarial assumptions
of obligations in the UK;

> adecrease in the obligation due to foreign exchange differences

arising on foreign operations, particularly €23 million in
differences arising on subsidiaries in the UK; and

> a limited effect from changes in actuarial assumptions
(0.10 point increase in the discount rate for the eurozone and
0.15 point decrease for the UK).

The value of plan assets also rose due to the return generated
by the investment strategies adopted by, and contributions paid
to, pension funds in the UK, despite foreign exchange losses
arising on the translation of GBP-denominated assets.

The cost of the Group’s pension obligations in 2016 and 2017 can be analyzed as follows:

(in € millions)

2016 2017

Current service cost (48) (55)

Actuarial gains and losses (on other long-term benefits) (2) ©)

Change in retirement plans (implementation, curtailment and settlement) 1 3

Plan administration costs - m

Total operating component of the pension expense 49) (54)

Interest cost on the net benefit obligation (16) a2)

Total financing component of the pension expense (16) 12)

TOTAL (65) (66)
The Group expects to pay a total of €34 million into its defined benefit pension plans in 2018.

Main assumptions used to calculate the gross benefit obligation:

Eurozone United Kingdom

Discount rate Dec. 31, 2016 1.30% 2.75%

Dec. 31, 2017 1.40% 2.60%

Inflation rate Dec. 31, 2016 1.75% 3.35%

Dec. 31, 2017 1.75% 3.20%

Rate of annuity increases Dec. 31, 2016 1.00% 3.35%

Dec. 31, 2017 1.00% 3.20%

Rate of future salary increases Dec. 31, 2016 112%-5.00% N/A

Dec. 31, 2017 1.12%-5.00% N/A

Retirement age Dec. 31, 2016 Managerial: 64/65 years 65 years

Non-managerial: 62/65 years
Dec. 31, 2017 Managerial: 64/65 years 65 years

Non-managerial: 62/65 years

The discount rates are determined by reference to the yield on private investment-grade bonds (AA), using the Iboxx index for the

Group’s two main regions (Eurozone and United Kingdom).
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Sensitivity analysis

A 0.5% increase or decrease in the main actuarial assumptions would have the following impacts on the gross value of the projected
benefit obligation at December 31, 2017:

(in € millions)

Sensitivity (basis points) -0.50% +0.50%
Discount rate n3 (103)
Inflation rate (55) 53
Rate of future salary increases 47) 42

For the purpose of the analysis, it was assumed that all other variables remained the same.

The change in the value of the gross projected benefit obligation would have mainly affected actuarial gains and losses recognized
in other comprehensive income.

¢) Change in the gross benefit obligation and plan assets

Change in gross benefit obligation

Defined Retirement Other
benefit termination employee
(in € millions) Dec. 31,2016 EEEAEIMIIVE pension plans benefits benefits
GROSS BENEFIT OBLIGATION AT BEGINNING OF PERIOD 1,457 1,513 914 559 40
A. Pension expense
Current service cost 48 55 n 40 4
Actuarial gains and losses (on other long-term benefits) 2 1 - - 1
Change in retirement plans (implementation, curtailment
and settlement) () (&) (&) ) 1
Interest cost 35 28 21 7 -
Total expense recognized in the income statement 84 81 29 46 6
B. Actuarial gains and losses arising in the period
on post-employment plans
Actuarial gains and losses resulting from changes in demographic
assumptions 1 (23) (25) 2 -
Actuarial gains and losses resulting from changes in financial
assumptions 230 n 20 ()] -
Experience adjustments - 9 an 2 -
Total revaluation recognized in other comprehensive income
for the period 231 (21) (16) (5) -
C. Other items
Employee contributions 2 1 1 - -
Benefits paid (83) (74) 40) 3N )
Changes in scope of consolidation (70) m - [©) -
Other movements m = - - -
Foreign exchange differences (83) (32) (33) - 1
Reclassification within discontinued operations 24) - - - -
Total other items (259) (106) (72) (32) (2)
GROSS BENEFIT OBLIGATION AT END OF PERIOD 1,513 1,467 855 568 44
Average weighted term of pension plans 16 15 18 12 9
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Change in fair value of plan assets

Defined Retirement Other
benefit termination employee
(in € millions) Dec. 31,2016 EEOEIAEIMIIVA pension plans benefits benefits
FAIR VALUE OF PLAN ASSETS AT BEGINNING OF PERIOD 602 646 646 - -
A. Income
Interest income on plan assets 19 16 16 - -
Plan administration costs [©) ©) m - -
Total income recognized in the income statement 18 15 15 - -
B. Actuarial gains and losses arising in the period
on post-employment plans
Return on plan assets (excluding interest income component) 100 21 21 - -
Total revaluation recognized in other comprehensive income
for the period 100 21 21 - -
C. Other items
Employee contributions 2 1 1 - -
Employer contributions 27 45 45 - -
Benefits paid (33) (38) (38) - -
Changes in scope of consolidation - - - - -
Other movements - m m - -
Foreign exchange differences (69) 24) 24) - -
Reclassification within discontinued operations [©) - - - -
Total other items (74) a7z a7) - -
FAIR VALUE OF PLAN ASSETS AT END OF PERIOD 646 665 665 - -
d) Asset allocation
United Kingdom Other European countries
% allocation at % allocation at
Dec. 31, 2016 Dec. 31, 2017 Dec. 31, 2017
Shares 31.79% 33.88% 18.79% 19.22%
Bonds and debt instruments 30.04% 28.98% 60.67% 60.78%
Property 713% 710% 7.76% 7.80%
Mutual funds and other diversified funds 26.93% 27.98% 0.00% 0.00%
Cash and cash equivalents 411% 2.06% 317% 2.69%
Other 0.00% 0.00% 9.61% 9.51%

An active market price exists for all plan assets except property.

In the United Kingdom, the Group’s long-term aim is to limit its
exposure to defined benefit plans and ultimately endeavor to
contract out these obligations to insurance firms under favorable
market conditions. In the meantime, the Group is committed
to ensuring that its pension obligations are adequately funded.
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The Group’s investment policy for pension funds in the UK
combines safe harbor investments (in monetary funds, government
bonds, bond funds), to secure the medium-term funding of
obligations, with riskier investments such as in equity funds and
real estate funds, whose expected profitability over the long
term guarantees the financial stability of the plans.



e) Contributions to defined
contribution plans

The expense for 2017 in respect of defined contribution plans
amounts to €224 million (€217 million in 2016).

These contributions relate to statutory pension plans and
mandatory collective defined contribution supplementary
pension plans, known as “Article 83” plans, for the Group’s
companies in France.

A Group agreement signed on November 6, 2017 harmonized all
supplementary pension plans for engineers and managerial-grade
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staff in France and introduced the plan for companies which
had not previously had such a plan in place, effective from
January 1, 2018.

The Group also introduced two new supplementary pension
plans in France from January 1, 2017:

> a mandatory collective defined contribution plan, known as
an “Article 83” additional plan, for managerial-grade staff
whose compensation is more than four times the social
security ceiling;

> a voluntary collective defined contribution plan, known as an
“Article 82” plan, for executive managers whose compensation
is more than seven times the social security ceiling.

NOTE 27 BORROWINGS SUBJECT TO SPECIFIC CONDITIONS

This caption mainly includes repayable advances granted by public bodies.

Movements in this caption break down as follows:

(in € millions)

At December 31, 2016 699
New advances received 13
Advances repaid (38)
Sub-total: changes giving rise to cash flows (25)
Cost of borrowings and discounting 33
Foreign exchange differences 2)
Adjustments to the probability of repayment of advances® (136)
Sub-total: changes with no cash impacts (105)
AT DECEMBER 31, 2017 569

(D) See Note 5, "“Breakdown of the main components of profit from operations.”

Estimates as to the repayable amounts and the timing of repayments are made regarding borrowings subject to specific conditions.
No reliable estimate can be made of the fair value of such borrowings.
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NOTE 22 INTEREST-BEARING FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Breakdown of interest-bearing financial liabilities

(in € millions) Dec. 31, 2016
Bond issue 215 1,209
OCEANE convertible bond 613 622
Senior unsecured notes in USD 1154 1,006
Finance lease liabilities 165 140
Other long-term borrowings 245 269
Total non-current interest-bearing financial liabilities (portion maturing in more than 1 year
at inception) 2,392 3,246
Finance lease liabilities 25 26
Other long-term borrowings 223 258
Accrued interest not yet due 15 15
Current interest-bearing financial liabilities, long-term at inception 263 299
Commercial paper 250 850
Short-term bank facilities and equivalent 432 241
Current interest-bearing financial liabilities, short-term at inception 682 1,091
Total current interest-bearing financial liabilities (less than 1 year) 945 1,390
TOTAL INTEREST-BEARING FINANCIAL LIABILITIES™ 3,337 4,636
Movements in this caption break down as follows:
(in € millions)
At December 31, 2016 3,337
Increase in long-term borrowings at inception (excluding finance lease liabilities) 1,058
Decrease in long-term borrowings at inception (66)
Change in short-term borrowings 449
Sub-total: changes giving rise to cash flows 1,441
Increase in finance lease liabilities 2
Accrued interest -
Changes in scope of consolidation 2
Foreign exchange differences 142)
Change in the fair value of borrowings hedged with interest rate instruments® a2)
Reclassifications and other 8
Sub-total: changes with no cash impacts 142)
AT DECEMBER 31, 2017 4,636
(D) See Note 26, “"Management of market risks and derivatives”.
Analysis by maturity:
(in € millions) Dec. 31,2016
Maturing in:
1year or less 945 1,390
More than 1 year and less than 5 years 1,101 2,552
Beyond 5 years 1,291 694
TOTAL 3,337 4,636
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Analysis by currency:

Dec. 31, 2016 Dec. 31, 2017

(in millions of currency units) Currency EUR Currency EUR
EUR 1,81 1,81 3,450 3,450
UsD 1,596 1,515 1,384 1,154
Other N/A n N/A 31
TOTAL 3,337 4,636
Analysis by type of interest rate:

> Analysis by type of interest rate (fixed/floating), before hedging:

Total Non-current Current

Dec. 31,2016 LT}V Dec. 31, 2016 Dec. 31, 2017 Dec. 31, 2016 Dec. 31, 2017

Average Average Average Average

interest interest interest interest
(in € millions) Base rate Base rate rate rate
Fixed rate 2,405 2,912 2,044 3.27% 1,892 317% 361 0.33% 1,020 0.10%
Floating rate 932 1,724 348 0.89% 1,354 0.33% 584 0.29% 370 0.56%
TOTAL 3,337 4,636 2,392 2.92% 3,246 1.99% 945 0.31% 1,390 0.22%
> Analysis by type of interest rate (fixed/floating), after hedging:

Total Non-current Current

Dec. 31,2016 EOLIAEIRvIIY) Dec. 31, 2016 Dec. 31, 2017 Dec. 31, 2016 Dec. 31, 2017

Average
interest

Average
interest

Average Average

interest

interest
(in € millions) Base rate Base rate rate rate

Fixed rate 1,183 1,823 822 2.04% 805 1.97% 361 0.33% 1,018 0.10%
Floating rate 2,154 2,813 1,570 2.4% 2,441 1.62% 584  0.29% 372  0.56%
TOTAL 3,337 4,636 2,392 2.28% 3,246 1.71% 945 0.31% 1,390 0.22%
The Group’s net debt position is as follows:

(in € millions) Dec. 31, 2016 Dec. 31, 2017
Cash and cash equivalents (A)® 1,926 4,914
Interest-bearing financial liabilities (B) 3,337 4,636
Fair value of interest rate derivatives hedging borrowings (C) 28 16
TOTAL (A) - (B) + (C) (1,383) 294

(D During 2017, €2,000 million in money market funds which were pledged during the tender offer for Zodiac Aerospace was reclassified
under other financial assets (see Note 12, “Current and non-current financial assets”). These money market funds could not be classified
under cash and cash equivalents during the offer period due to their usage restriction.

Since this issue is classified as a net investment hedge, the
offsetting entry was an increase in consolidated equity (see the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income).

Safran’s issue of USD 1.2 billion in senior unsecured notes on the
US private placement market on February 9, 2012 was maintained
in US dollars and no currency swaps were taken out in this respect.
Changes in the euro value of this issue had a positive impact
of €138 million on the Group’s net debt at December 31, 2017.

The Group’s gearing ratio is shown below:

Dec. 31, 2016 Dec. 31, 2017

(in € millions)

Net debt (1,383) 294
Total equity 6,809 10,624
GEARING RATIO 20.31% N/A
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Main long-term borrowings at inception

> On February 9, 2012, Safran issued USD 1.2 billion in senior
unsecured notes on the US private placement market, which
included:
e USD 155 million of 7-year notes due February 2019 at a
3.70% fixed-rate coupon (tranche A);
e USD 540 million of 10-year notes due February 2022 at a
4.28% fixed-rate coupon (tranche B);
e USD 505 million of 12-year notes due February 2024 at a
4.43% fixed-rate coupon (tranche C).
A USD interest rate hedge (floating-rate swap on 6-month US
Libor) was taken out in respect of tranches B and C, issued at 10
and 12 years, respectively. Tranche A has been kept at a fixed rate.

The issue’s initial fixed-rate interest came out at 3.70% in 2017
after taking account of interest rate derivatives.

> Issuance on June 28, 2017 of floating-rate bonds for a total

> Employee savings financing under the Group employee savings

plan: €351.2 million (€305.7 million at December 31, 2016).

The maximum maturity is five years and the amount falling
due within one year is €218 million. The interest rate is set
annually and indexed to the five-year French treasury bill rate
(BTAN), i.e., 0.70% for 2017 and 0.87% for 2016.

Safran Helicopter Engines real estate lease financing contract:
€24 million (€30 million at December 31, 2016), of which
€6 million was due within one year. The lease bears fixed-rate
interest of 4.7% and expires in November 2021.

Safran University real estate lease financing contract: €39 million
(€43 million at December 31, 2016), of which €4 million was
due within one year. The lease bears floating-rate interest
and expires in October 2026.

Safran R&T Center real estate lease financing contract: €36 million
(€38 million at December 31, 2016), of which €4 million was
due within one year. The lease bears floating-rate interest
and expires in February 2026.

amount of €1 billion in two tranches:

e €500 million of two-year bonds due June 2019 at a fixed-rate
coupon of 3-month Euribor +30 basis points (floor at 0%),
issued at 100.059% of nominal (tranche 1);

e €500 million of four-year bonds due June 2021 at a fixed-rate
coupon of 3-month Euribor +57 basis points (floor at 0%),
issued at 100% of nominal (tranche 2).

These bonds have been maintained at variable rates.

Bonds convertible and/or exchangeable for new and/or existing
shares (“OCEANE” bonds) on January 5, 2016 for a nominal
total amount of €650 million. These bonds do not carry a
coupon and were offered at an issue price of €676 million,
or 104% of par, corresponding to a gross yield-to-maturity
of -0.78%. Unless converted, redeemed or bought back and
canceled prior to maturity, the bonds are redeemable at par
on December 31, 2020. The effective annual interest rate on
the liability component is 1.50% including issuance fees (see
Note 18.c, “Convertible bond issues”).

Ten-year bonds: €200 million issued to French investors on
April 11, 2014 and maturing on April 11, 2024. The interest
rate on these bonds was hedged by a floating-rate swap on
3-month Euribor.

The issue’s initial fixed-rate interest came out at 1.20% in 2017
after taking account of interest rate derivatives.

European Investment Bank (EIB) borrowings: €112.5 million
(€150 million at December 31, 2016). These borrowings bear
floating-rate interest indexed to 3-month Euribor plus 0.73%
and are repayable in equal yearly installments between
December 17, 2013 and December 17, 2020.
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The Group’s other long- and medium-term borrowings are not
material taken individually.

Main short-term borrowings

> Commercial paper: €850 million (€250 million at
December 31, 2016).

This amount comprises several drawdowns made under market
terms and conditions, with maturities of less than one year.

> Financial current accounts with joint ventures: €93 million
(€87 million at December 31, 2016). Interest is indexed to Euribor.

Other short-term borrowings consist mainly of bank overdrafts.

Sale of receivables without recourse

Net debt at both December 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016
does not include the CFM Inc. trade receivable assigned without
recourse.

This confirmed 364-day facility for USD 2,350 million with a
syndicate of nine banks led by Crédit Agricole CIB (USD 2,350 million
at December 31, 2016), due to expire in December 2017, was
extended by addendum to February 2018 in November 2017.
USD 1,862 million (USD 931 million at 50%) had been drawn
from the facility at December 31, 2017, versus USD 1,768 million
(USD 884 million at 50%) at December 31, 2016.
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NOTE 23 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Movements Changes Foreign

during the in scope of exchange
(in € millions) Dec. 31, 2016 period  consolidation differences Reclassifications [T RVIIVi
Operating payables 9,243 533 (36) (50) (5) 9,685
Credit balances on trade receivables 2,001 (395) - - - 1,606
Advance payments from customers 3,832 734 [©) ) - 4,560
Trade payables 2,250 134 (35) 40) ) 2,304
Current operating account 2 1 - - - 3
Employee-related liabilities 1,158 59 - ) - 1,212
Other liabilities 999 97 64 (20) (&) 1,137
State aid, accrued payables 19 [©)] - - - 18
State, other taxes and duties 181 44 - m - 224
Deferred income 661 105 - (©)) 2 761
Other 138 D 64 16) m 134
TOTAL 10,242 630 28 (70) (3) 10,822

Deferred income primarily concerns revenue billed on a percentage-of-completion basis and revenue deferred.

Trade and other payables fall due as shown below:

(in € millions) Total Less than 12 months  More than 12 months
Operating payables® 9,685 7,681 2,004
Other liabilities 1,137 982 155
TOTAL 10,822 8,663 2,159

(D Operating payables maturing in more than 12 months correspond essentially to advances and downpayments received from customers.

NOTE 24 OTHER CURRENT AND NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Movements Changes Foreign

during the in scope of exchange
(in € millions) Dec. 31, 2016 period  consolidation differences (i T8 Dec. 31,2017
Payables on purchases of property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets 108 37 2 - - 147
Payables on purchases of investments 254 (248) [©)] - - 5]
TOTAL 362 (211) 1 - - 152
Non-current 5 8
Current 357 144

A payable of €250 million relating to the share buyback program launched on December 8, 2016 was settled in the first quarter of 2017.
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NOTE 25 SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

The table below presents the carrying amount of the Group’s financial liabilities at December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2017:

At December 31, 2016

Carrying amount

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities

(in € millions) at amortized cost" at fair value

Borrowings subject to specific conditions 699 699
Non-current interest-bearing financial liabilities 2,392 2,392
Current interest-bearing financial liabilities 945 945
Trade payables 2,250 2,250
Payables on purchases of investments 254 - 254
Payables on purchases of property, plant and equipment and intangible

assets 108 108
Current operating accounts 2 2
Current derivatives (negative fair value) 4,385 4,385
TOTAL FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 6,650 4,385 11,035

(D Including financial liabilities hedged by fair value hedging instruments.

At December 31, 2017

Carrying amount

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities

(in € millions) at amortized cost" at fair value

Borrowings subject to specific conditions 569 569
Non-current interest-bearing financial liabilities 3,246 3,246
Current interest-bearing financial liabilities 1,390 1,390
Trade payables 2,304 2,304
Payables on purchases of investments 5 - 5
Payables on purchases of property, plant and equipment and intangible

assets 147 147
Current operating accounts 3 3
Current derivatives (negative fair value) 805 805
TOTAL FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 7,664 805 8,469

(D Including financial liabilities hedged by fair value hedging instruments.

The fair value of financial liabilities is determined by reference to
the future cash flows associated with each liability, discounted at
market interest rates at the end of the reporting period, with the

exception of borrowings subject to specific conditions, whose
fair value cannot be estimated reliably given the uncertainties
regarding the amounts to be repaid and the timing of repayment.
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At December 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, the fair value of financial liabilities approximates their carrying amount, except in the

case of the following items:
2016 2017

(in € millions) Carrying amount Fair value Carrying amount Fair value
Borrowings subject to specific conditions 699 N/A 569 N/A
Interest-bearing financial liabilities® 3,337 3,424 4,636 4,710

(D This fair value measurement relates to Level 2 in the fair value hierarchy (see Note 17, “Summary of financial assets”).

Safran uses the fair value hierarchy described in Note 17 to determine the classification of financial liabilities at fair value.

The Group’s financial liabilities carried at fair value at December 31, 2016 are shown below:

(in € millions) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Derivatives (negative fair value) - 4,385 - 4,385
TOTAL - 4,385 - 4,385

The Group’s financial liabilities carried at fair value at December 31, 2017 are shown below:

(in € millions) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Derivatives (negative fair value) - 805 - 805
TOTAL - 805 - 805

In 2017 and 2016, no items were transferred between level 1 and level 2, and none were transferred to or from level 3.

Offsetting of financial liabilities and financial assets

At December 31, 2016

Net amount on the  Amount subject to offset

Gross carrying amount Amount offset balance sheet” agreement but not offset Net
(in € millions) (A) (B) (C) (D) (C) - (D)
Derivatives (negative fair value) 4,385 - 4,385 617 3,768

(1) See Note 26, “Management of market risks and derivatives”.

At December 31, 2017

Net amount on the  Amount subject to offset

Gross carrying amount Amount offset balance sheet” agreement but not offset Net
(in € millions) (A) (B) (C) (D) (C) - (D)
Derivatives (negative fair value) 805 - 805 508 297

(D See Note 26, “Management of market risks and derivatives”.

The tables above show the financial liabilities for which an
offsetting agreement exists with respect to financial assets.

At both December 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, the Group
did not offset any financial liabilities and financial assets on its
balance sheet, since it did not meet the conditions specified in
IAS 32. Master offsetting (netting) agreements governing the
subscription of OTC derivatives with bank counterparties provide

for a right of set-off only in the event of default, insolvency or
bankruptcy of one of the parties to the agreement.

The amounts subject to an offsetting agreement but not offset
comprise a portion of the Group’s derivatives with a positive
fair value, since amounts can only be offset if they relate to the
same counterparty.
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NOTE 26 MANAGEMENT OF MARKET RISKS AND DERIVATIVES

The main market risks to which the Group is exposed are foreign currency risk, interest rate risk, listed commodity price risk,

counterparty risk and liquidity risk.

The carrying amount of derivatives used to manage market risks is shown below:

Dec. 31, 2016

Dec. 31,2017

(in € millions) Assets Liabilities
Interest rate risk management 28 - 16 -
Fixed-for-floating interest rate swaps 28 - 16 =
Foreign currency risk management 592 (4,385) 566 (805)
Currency swaps - - - -
Purchase and sale of forward currency contracts 97 (2,065) 135 (349)
Currency option contracts 495 (2,320) 431 (455)
TOTAL 620 (4,385) 582 (805)

Foreign currency risk management

Most Aerospace Propulsion and Aircraft Equipment revenue is
denominated in US dollars, which is virtually the sole currency
used in the civil aviation industry. The net excess of revenues
over expenses for these activities totaled USD 7.3 billion for 2017.

To protect its earnings, the Group implements a hedging policy
(see below) with the aim of reducing uncertainty factors affecting
operating profitability and allowing it to adapt its cost structure
to a volatile monetary environment.

Hedging policy
Two basic principles underscore the foreign currency risk
management policy defined by Safran for most of its subsidiaries:

> to protect the Group’s economic performance from random
fluctuations in the US dollar;

> to optimize the quality of hedging whenever possible, without
jeopardizing the Group’s economic performance (first principle).

Protecting economic performance means setting a minimum
USD exchange rate parity over an applicable term. Minimum
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parity corresponds to a USD exchange rate that allows Safran
to meet its operating profit targets. Hedging arrangements have
been made accordingly over a four-year timeframe.

Management policy

The hedging policy is based on managing the financial instrument
portfolio so that the exchange rate parity does not fall below a
pre-defined minimum threshold.

In building up its hedging portfolio, the Group primarily uses
forward sales, accumulators and the combination of optional
instruments with or without barriers.

Optimization measures are also used with a view to improving
the minimum exchange rate parity, and seek to protect the
Group’s economic performance at all times. They are based
on products that allow the Group to take advantage of any
improvement in the underlying exchange rate parities, without
calling into question the original minimum threshold.

These products consist chiefly of forward purchases, accumulators
and the combination of optional instruments with or without
barriers.
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Foreign currency derivatives

The portfolio of foreign currency derivatives breaks down as follows:

Dec. 31, 2016 De 017
Notional ~Less than Notional  Less than

(in millions of currency units) Fairvalue”  amount Tyear 1to5years [EIAEIUCAET TG Tyear 1to5 years
Forward exchange contracts (1,967) (215)
Short USD position (1,962) 14,266 12,516 1,750 e4) 10,253 10,203 50

Of which against EUR (1,918) 13,678 11,978 1,700 (165) 10,097 10,097 o
Long USD position 82 (632) (247) (385) 16) (1,069) (869) (200)

Of which against EUR 82 (632) 247) (385) 14) (851 (651) (200)
Short EUR position against GBP 2) (210) (210) - - - - -
Short EUR position against CAD 9 - 40 40) 7 16 3 13
Long PLN position against EUR - (195) (75) (120) - 40) (40) =
Long MXN position against USD (94) (5,850) (3,050) (2,800) 42) (4,000) (2,650) (1,350)
Currency option contracts (1,826) (24)
USD put purchased 149 10,350 8,550 1,800 309 13,795 12,795 1,000
USD call purchased 178 (4,720) (3,260) (1,460) 28 (4,60) (2,800) (1,360)
USD call sold (2,215) 25,910 19,360 6,550 (239) 29,859 25,867 3,992
USD put sold (45)  (9,440) (6,520) (2,920) 175) (6,520)  (3,800) (2,720)
EUR put purchased - - - - 7 300 300 -
EUR call sold (20) 210 210 - 4 600 600 ®
Accumulators - sell USD@® 27 1,790 1,790 - 10 774 = 774
Accumulators - buy USD® 154 (4,22) (552) (3,570) 44 (2,580) (2,580) -
Accumulators - buy GBP® - - - - 1 (541) (541) -
TOTAL (3,793) (239)

(D Fair values are expressed in millions of euros, notional amounts are expressed in millions of currency units.
(2) Notional amounts for accumulators represent the maximum cumulative amount until the instrument is unwound.

In the balance sheet, the €3,554 million increase in the fair value
of foreign currency derivatives between December 31, 2016
and December 31, 2017 reflects a €3,604 million increase in the
fair value of currency hedging instruments not yet settled at
December 31,2017 and a €50 million decrease in net premiums.

In the income statement, in view of the accounting constraints
resulting from the application of IAS 39 and the nature of the
hedging instruments used, the Group decided not to apply hedge
accounting and therefore to recognize all changes in the fair
value of its derivatives in “Financial income (loss)”.

Accordingly, changes in the fair value of derivatives not yet
settled at December 31, 2017 (increase of €3,604 million) along

with changes in the fair value of derivatives settled in 2017

(increase of €17 million) following the collection of advances

from customers in foreign currency, representing a positive

amount of €3,621 million, are included in “Financial income

(loss)” for the period, as follows:

> €3,476 million in “Gain (loss) on foreign currency hedging
instruments”, corresponding to derivatives hedging revenue
net of future purchases;

> €70 million in “Foreign exchange gains and losses”, corresponding
to derivatives hedging balance sheet positions; and

> a positive €75 million in “Foreign exchange gains and losses”,
corresponding to premiums due over the period.
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Exposure and sensitivity to foreign currency risk

The exposure of the Group’s financial instruments to EUR/USD foreign currency risk can be summarized as follows:

(in USD millions) Dec. 31, 2016
Total assets excluding derivatives 1,662 2,078
Total liabilities excluding derivatives (2,714) (2,621)
Derivatives hedging balance sheet positions® (507) (819)
NET EXPOSURE AFTER THE IMPACT OF DERIVATIVES HEDGING BALANCE SHEET POSITIONS (1,559) (1,362)

(D) Notional amount.

Assets and liabilities excluding derivatives primarily consist of
operating receivables and payables denominated in USD in the
balance sheets of Group subsidiaries whose functional currency
is the euro, and unsecured notes issued by Safran on the US
private placement market for USD 1.2 billion.

In addition to this net exposure, the Group has EUR/USD
currency derivatives hedging revenue net of future purchases.
These had a negative fair value of USD 272 million, compared
to a total negative fair value of USD 258 million for EUR/USD
currency derivatives at December 31, 2017 (negative fair value
of USD 3,765 million and USD 3,821 million, respectively, at
December 31, 2016).

The sensitivity of financial instruments to a 5% increase or decrease in the EUR/USD exchange rate is as follows:

Impact on balance sheet positions (in € millions)

Dec. 31, 2016 Dec. 31, 2017

Closing rate

EUR/USD exchange rate change assumptions
EUR/USD exchange rate used for sensitivity analysis
Impact recognized through profit or loss (before tax)

Impact recognized through equity (before tax)

1.05 1.20
-5% +5% -5% +5%
1.00 m 114 1.26
(1,810) 1,399 (501 (CD)
©n 56 (54) 49

Interest rate risk management

The Group’s exposure to fluctuations in interest rates covers
two types of risk:

> fair value risk in respect of fixed-rate financial assets and
liabilities. Interest rate fluctuations impact the market value
of these assets and liabilities;

> cash flow risk in respect of floating-rate financial assets and
liabilities. Interest rate fluctuations have a direct impact on
the Group’s profit or loss.

These swaps are eligible for fair value hedge accounting.

Within the framework of its interest rate risk management policy,
the Group arbitrates between these two types of risks using
financial instruments specific to fixed-income markets (interest
rate swaps and options, etc.).

Exposure to euro interest rate risk

An interest rate swap was taken out to convert the fixed rate
payable on the €200 million bond issue carried out in first-half
2014 and maturing in April 2024 to a floating rate.

Dec. 31, 2016 Dec. 31, 2017
Notional Notional
amount  Less than More than amount  Less than More than
(in € millions) Fair value (€) Tyear 1to5years 5years [EHAEIT (€) Tyear 1to5years 5 years
Interest rate swaps
Fixed-for-floating 17 200 - 200 12 200 - - 200
TOTAL 17 12

For the €200 million bond issue, changes in the fair value of the hedging instrument and the hedged item within the scope of this

hedge are recognized in “Financial income (loss)” as follows:

(in € millions)

Dec. 31, 2016 Dec. 31, 2017

Change in fair value of hedging instrument

Change in fair value of hedged item

5 (©)
5 5

IMPACT OF FAIR VALUE INTEREST RATE HEDGES ON PROFIT
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Exposure to euro interest rate risk before and after hedging:

Dec. 31, 2016 Current Non-current
(in € millions) Fixed rate  Floating rate Fixed rate  Floating rate
Interest-bearing financial liabilities 16 567 887 34 903 908
Other financial assets 35 103 - 74 35 177
Cash and cash equivalents 25 1,628 - - 25 1,628
Net exposure before hedging (44) (1,164) 887 267 843 (897)
Derivatives® - - (200) 200 (200) 200
Net exposure after hedging 44) (1,164) 687 467 643 (697)
(1) Notional amount.

Dec. 31, 2017 Current Non-current Total

(in € millions) Fixed rate  Floating rate Fixed rate  Floating rate Fixed rate  Floating rate
Interest-bearing financial liabilities 871 349 883 1,347 1,754 1,696
Other financial assets - 2,109 - 70 = 2,179
Cash and cash equivalents 24 4,556 - - 24 4,556
Net exposure before hedging 847 (6,316) 883 1,277 1,730 (5,039)
Derivatives® - - (200) 200 (200) 200
Net exposure after hedging 847 (6,316) 683 1,477 1,530 (4,839)

(1) Notional amount.

Fixed-rate borrower/floating-rate lender swaps for a nominal
amount of USD 960 million were contracted in November and
December 2017 in connection with a financing transaction. The
swaps are for a term of between one and three months and were

Exposure to USD interest rate risk

The interest rate on the Group’s February 9, 2012 issue of
USD 1.2 billion in senior unsecured notes on the US private

placement market (USPP) has also been partially converted to a
floating rate. At their inception, floating-rate borrower/fixed-rate
lender USD swaps were set up on the 10-year and 12-year
tranches, for USD 540 million and USD 505 million, respectively.
The 7-year tranche for USD 155 million has been kept at a fixed
rate. These swaps are eligible for fair value hedge accounting.

Dec. 31, 2016

taken out on behalf of a joint arrangement 50%-owned by the
Group. Since the arrangement classifies as a joint operation, it
gives rise to a floating-rate borrower/fixed-rate lender swap for a
nominal amount of USD 480 million after elimination of intragroup
items. These swaps are not eligible for hedge accounting.

Dec. 31, 2017

Notional
amount  Less than

(in € millions) Fair value (usp) 1 year

1to 5 years 5 years

Notional

More than
1to 5 years 5 years

amount  Less than
Fair value (USD) 1 year

More than

USD interest rate swaps

Fixed-for-floating n 1,245 200 - 1,045 4 1,525 480 540 505
Floating-for-fixed - 400 400 - - - 960 960 - -
TOTAL n 4

Changes in the fair value of the hedging instrument and hedged item within the scope of the hedge of the senior unsecured notes

issue are recognized in “Financial income (loss)” as follows:

(in € millions)

Dec. 31,2016 Dec. 31, 2017

Change in fair value of hedging instrument

Change in fair value of hedged item

a3 @
13 7

IMPACT OF FAIR VALUE INTEREST RATE HEDGES ON PROFIT
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Exposure to USD interest rate risk before and after hedging:

Dec. 31, 2016 Current Non-current
(in USD millions) Fixed rate  Floating rate Fixed rate  Floating rate
Interest-bearing financial liabilities 361 16 1,219 - 1,580 16
Other financial assets 2 6 9 - n 6
Cash and cash equivalents 76 61 - - 76 61
Net exposure before hedging 283 (51 1,210 - 1,493 (51)
Derivatives® 200 (200) (1,045) 1,045 (845) 845
Net exposure after hedging 483 (251) 165 1,045 648 794
(1) Notional amount.

Dec. 31, 2017 Current Non-current Total

(in USD millions) Fixed rate  Floating rate Fixed rate  Floating rate Fixed rate  Floating rate
Interest-bearing financial liabilities 154 21 1,209 - 1,363 21
Other financial assets 2 1 7 - 9 1
Cash and cash equivalents 87 189 - - 87 189
Net exposure before hedging 65 (169) 1,202 - 1,267 (169)
Derivatives® 480 (480) (1,045) 1,045 (565) 565
Net exposure after hedging 545 (649) 157 1,045 702 396

(1) Notional amount.

Sensitivity to interest rate risk

The aggregate sensitivity of net exposures to EUR and USD interest rate risk after the impact of hedging is shown below:

Impact of changes in interest rates (in € millions) Dec. 31,2016 Dec. 31, 2017
Interest rate assumptions used +1% +1%
Impact on profit or loss (before tax) 0] 45

Impact on equity (before tax) - _

Management of commodity risk

Since 2009, the Group’s policy had been to hedge its exposure
to fluctuations in the price of certain listed commodities (nickel,
platinum and oil). The policy sought to protect the Group’s
economic performance from commodity price volatility.

The Group decided to discontinue this hedge at the end of 2016
as the risk was not deemed material for the Group.

Equity risk management

The Embraer shares that Safran held until 2017 were its only
source of exposure to the risk of fluctuations in the stock market.
These shares were sold in the second half of 2017 for €41 million.
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Counterparty risk management

The Group is exposed to counterparty risk on the following:
> short-term financial investments;

> derivatives;

> trade receivables;

> financial guarantees granted to customers.

Financial investments are diversified and consist of blue-chip
securities that are traded with top-tier banks.

The sole purpose of the Group’s derivative transactions is to
reduce the overall exposure to foreign currency, interest rate and
commodity risks resulting from its ordinary business activities.
Transactions are either carried out on organized markets or
over-the-counter with top-tier intermediaries.

Counterparty risk related to trade receivables is limited due to
the large number of customers in the portfolio and their wide
geographic spread.

Note 15 provides a breakdown of trade receivables by maturity.



Liquidity risk management

Treasury management is centralized within the Group. Where
permitted by local legislation, all surplus cash is invested with,
and financing requirements of subsidiaries met by, the parent
company on an arm’s length basis. The central cash team manages
the Group’s current and forecast financing requirements, and
ensures it has the ability to meet its financial commitments while
maintaining a level of available cash funds and confirmed credit
facilities commensurate with its scale and debt repayment profile.

Since the Group has an undrawn, confirmed liquidity line at
December 31, 2017, it is relatively insensitive to liquidity risk. This
€2,520 million line was set up in December 2015 and expires in
December 2020. It includes two successive one-year extension
options. Both these options have been exercised, meaning that
the line is currently set to expire in December 2022. This line is
not subject to any financial covenants.

Further to the announcement on January 19, 2017 of the planned
acquisition of Zodiac Aerospace, Safran signed a €4 billion
bridge loan with a banking syndicate. The bridge facility has a
maturity of 12 months, with two six-month extension options.
Further to Safran’s €1 billion bond issue on June 28, 2017, the
total amount available under the bridge facility was reduced by
approximately the same amount, to €3 billion. On July 10, 2017,
Safran signed an addendum to the bridge facility in order to
adapt it to the revised transaction structure for the planned
acquisition of Zodiac Aerospace, which was announced on
May 24, 2017, and reduced the amount available under the
bridge facility to €1 billion.

NOTE 27 DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

All of the activities comprising the Security segment, which
were presented within assets held for sale at December 31, 2016,
were sold during the first half of 2017 (see Note 3, “Scope of
consolidation”).

The vendor warranties granted in connection with these disposals
are presented in Note 30.b., “Off-balance sheet commitments
and contingent liabilities relating to the Group’s scope of
consolidation”.

(in € millions)
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During the tender offer for Zodiac Aerospace, Safran pledged
€2 billion in money market funds. As a result, these could not
be recognized under cash and cash equivalents for the offer
period (see Note 16, “Cash and cash equivalents”).

A number of financial covenants apply to the EIB borrowings
set up in 2010 (see Note 22).

The following two ratios apply:
> net debt/EBITDA <2.5;
> net debt/total equity <1.

The “net debt/EBITDA <2.5” covenant also applies to the senior
unsecured notes issued on the US private placement market
(see Note 22).

The terms “net debt”, “EBITDA” and “total equity” used in
connection with the EIB borrowings and senior unsecured notes
issued on the US private placement market are defined as follows:

> net debt: borrowings (excluding borrowings subject to
specific conditions) less marketable securities and cash and
cash equivalents;

> EBITDA: the sum of profit (loss) from operations and the
net charge to depreciation, amortization and provisions for
impairment of assets (calculated based on adjusted data);

> total equity: equity attributable to owners of the parent and
non-controlling interests.

In accordance with IFRS 5, “Profit from discontinued operations”
as presented in the consolidated income statement for 2017
includes the contribution of discontinued operations up to the
finalization date of each of the disposals (i.e., three months
for the detection businesses, five months for the identity and
security businesses), the disposal gain net of disposal costs and
the associated tax effect:

Revenue 1,972 748
Recurring operating income 91 39
Profit (loss) for the period 74 (@)
Post-tax disposal gain on detection and security businesses - 824
Profit from discontinued operations and disposal gain 74 823
Attributable to:

> Owners of the parent 72 822

> Non-controlling interests 2 1

Amortization and depreciation were no longer charged against
intangible assets and property, plant and equipment (i) as
of April 30, 2016 for the detection businesses, and (ii) as of
September 30, 2016 for the identity and security businesses.
Discontinuing amortization and depreciation had an overall
positive impact of €65 million on pre-tax profit (€42 million on
net profit) of discontinued operations in 2017 (€60 million impact
on pre-tax profit and €38 million impact on net profit in 2016).

Other comprehensive income relating to discontinued operations
and reclassified to profit at the disposal date are presented
separately in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
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NOTE 28 INTERESTS IN JOINT OPERATIONS

The Group has interests in a number of joint operations whose

contribution is recognized line-by-line in the financial statements.

The joint operations are:

> CFM International Inc. and CFM International SA: coordination
of the CFM56 and LEAP engine programs with General Electric
and program marketing;

> Famat: manufacture of large casings subcontracted by
Safran Aircraft Engines and General Electric;

> Matis: manufacture of aircraft wiring;
> CFAN: production of composite fan blades for turbo engines;

> Propulsion Technologies International: engine repair and
maintenance.

The table below shows the Group’s share in the various financial indicators of these joint operations, which is included in the

consolidated financial statements:

(in € millions)

Current assets

Non-current assets

Current liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Operating income

Operating expenses

Financial income (loss)

Income tax expense®

Profit (loss) for the period

Other comprehensive income
Comprehensive income

Cash flow from operating activities®
Cash flow used in investing activities

Cash flow used in financing activities®

125 14
185 166
178 180
n 25
79 72
GH (44)
(€)) ®
2 (43)
18 24)

3 an

21 (35)
12 20
12) a3)
an (6)

(D Including an expense of €35 million in 2017 in connection with the tax on repatriated profits at CFM Inc. (see Note 7. “Income tax”).
(2) See Note 22, “Interest-bearing financial liabilities” - trade receivables factoring programs at CFM Inc.

NOTE 29 RELATED PARTIES

In accordance with IAS 24, the Group’s related parties are
considered to be its owners (including the French State), companies
in which these owners hold equity interests, associates, joint
ventures and management executives.

The French State also holds a golden share in Safran Ceramics
(formerly Herakles, renamed Safran Ceramics on June 30, 2016
following the contributions made to Airbus Safran Launchers)
allowing it to veto any change in control of the Company or
sale of company assets.

The following transactions were carried out with related parties other than joint ventures:

(in € millions)

Sales to related parties other than joint ventures

Purchases from related parties other than joint ventures

2,982 3,329
(78) 61
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(in € millions) Dec. 31,2016 Dec. 31, 2017
Amounts receivable from related parties other than joint ventures 1,371 1,486
Amounts payable to related parties other than joint ventures 1,661 2,036
(in € millions) 2016 2017
Commitments to related parties other than joint ventures® 2,408 2,158

(D See Note 30.a., “Off-balance sheet commitments and contingent liabilities relating to the Group’s operating activities”.

Transactions with related parties other than joint ventures primarily concern the delivery of aviation products to Airbus and the

French Defense Procurement Agency (DGA).

The following transactions were carried out with joint ventures:

(in € millions)

Sales to joint ventures®

Purchases from joint ventures

Dec. 31,2016 Dec. 31, 2017
255 450
(108) (106)

(in € millions)

Amounts receivable from joint ventures

Amounts payable to joint ventures

Dec. 31, 2016 Dec. 31, 2017
35 141
64

(in € millions)

I ()]

2016 2017

Commitments given to joint ventures®

- 131

(D Mainly with Shannon Engine Support Limited.
(2) See Note 13, “Investments in equity-accounted companies”.

Management compensation

Management executives comprise members of the Board of
Directors and Executive Management, as well as any persons
with the power to take management decisions with regard to
Safran’s strategy and future development, or with regular access
to privileged information directly or indirectly concerning the
Group.

Management executives comprise the 17 members of the Board
of Directors, including the Chairman of the Board and the Chief

(in € millions)

Executive Officer, as well as the five officers considered as
having the power to take management decisions with regard
to Safran’s strategy and future development, or with regular
access to privileged information concerning Safran.

All compensation and benefits awarded to members of the
Board of Directors and to members of Executive Management
are shown on a gross basis, including the fixed portion of
compensation and the provision for the variable portion to be
paid in the subsequent year.

Short-term benefits®
Post-employment benefits
Other long-term benefits
Termination benefits

Share-based payment

2016 2017
8.9 10.4
11 0.8
0.6 =
1.0 2.0

(1) Compensation, social security contributions, attendance fees and benefit payments, where applicable.

The Group’s total post-employment benefit commitments and other long-term benefit commitments in respect of management
executives amounted to €12.0 million at December 31, 2017 and €11.4 million at December 31, 2016.
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NOTE 30 OFF-BALANCE SHEET COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

a) Off-balance sheet commitments and contingent liabilities relating

to the Group’s operating activities

Commitments given and contingent liabilities

The Group granted the following commitments in connection with its operating activities:

(in € millions) Dec. 31, 2016 m
Purchase commitments on intangible assets 245 95
Purchase commitments on property, plant and equipment 368 363
Guarantees given in connection with the performance of operating agreements 4,269 3,590
Operating lease commitments 429 317
Financial guarantees granted on the sale of Group products 29 29
Other commitments given 262 369
TOTAL* 5,602 4,763

™) Including the Security segment for €395 million at December 31, 2016 (the Security segment businesses were sold in 2017).

Guarantees given in connection with the performance
of operating agreements

These guarantees relate mainly to guarantees granted by Safran
to customers and principals (essentially aircraft manufacturers)
in which Safran or the subsidiary provide a joint and several
guarantee that its subsidiaries will perform their duties under their

Operating lease commitments

Commitments under operating leases can be analyzed as follows:

contractual obligations. These guarantees are given in respect
of research, design, development, manufacturing, marketing and
product support programs in place at Group subsidiaries. They
are generally granted for the term of the program concerned,
and are capped at a certain amount.

Guarantees granted to Airbus are shown within “Guarantees
granted to related parties” in Note 29, “Related parties”.

Dec. 31, 2016 Period to maturity
(in € millions) Total Less than 1 year 1to 5 years Beyond 5 years
Operating lease commitments 429 317 56 185 76
TOTAL* 429 317 56 185 76

() Including the Security segment for €125 million at December 31, 2016

Financial guarantees granted on the sale
of Group products

The financial guarantees shown in this table concern aerospace
financing arrangements in place at the end of the period,
granted to support sales of civil engines. These arrangements
take the form of aircraft financing or guarantees covering the
value of assets.

The Group’s gross exposure in respect of these financing
commitments in their transaction currency represents USD 35 million
at December 31, 2017 (USD 31 million at December 31, 2016), or
€29 million (€29 million at December 31, 2016). However, these
amounts do not reflect the actual risk to which Safran is exposed.
In view of the value of the underlying assets pledged as security,
the net exposure represents USD 20 million at December 31, 2017
(USD 25 million at December 31, 2016), for which a provision,
based on an assessment of the risk, is booked in the financial
statements (see Note 19, “Provisions”).
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(the Security segment businesses were sold in 2017).

Financing commitments granted in principle to clients alongside
aircraft manufacturers in connection with certain civil engine
sales campaigns form part of financing packages proposed
by aircraft manufacturers to airline companies and generally
correspond to the share represented by Group engines in the
financing of the aircraft concerned. These commitments are
not included in the gross exposure since (i) the probability that
they will be called by the airline companies is too uncertain
because the deliveries are too far in the future, and (ii) in the
past, few commitments have been called due to their dissuasive
conditions and to the fact that they represent a “last recourse”
after the active banking, credit insurance and investor markets.

Contingent liabilities arising on ordinary activities

As part of their ordinary activities, Safran, some of its subsidiaries,
or certain joint arrangements or consortia in which they are
shareholders or members, may be subject to various claims
from customers. These claims usually consist of compensation



claims for failing to meet technical specifications, a delay in the
development phase, late completion and/or for additional work
in connection with product performance and reliability falling
outside the scope of the warranties and commitments provisioned
or included within contract costs (see Note 2.b, “Provisions”,
and Note 19, “Provisions”). While the initial amount of any such
claim may be material in certain cases, it does not necessarily
have any bearing on the costs that may be ultimately incurred

Commitments received

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Group consolidated financial statements at December 31, 2017

to satisfy the customer. As these claims represent contingent
liabilities, no provision has been recognized beyond contractual
liability limits, if any.

In the absence of an agreement between the parties, certain of
these claims may give rise to litigation, the most significant of
which are indicated in Note 31, “Disputes and litigation”.

The Group was granted the following commitments in connection with its operating activities:

(in € millions)

Dec. 31, 2016 Dec. 31, 2017

Commitments received from banks on behalf of suppliers 33 18
Completion warranties 30 21
Endorsements and guarantees received 3 5
Other commitments received 9 96
TOTAL* 75 138

(™ Including the Security segment for €9 million at December 31, 2016 (the Security segment businesses were sold in 2017).

b) Off-balance sheet commitments and contingent liabilities relating
to the Group’s scope of consolidation

Vendor warranties are given or received on the acquisition or sale of companies.

Vendor warranties given

(in € millions)

Dec. 31, 2016 Dec. 31, 2017

Vendor warranties given*

5 S5

() Vendor warranties, the amount of which may be fixed or determinable.

Vendor warranties received

(in € millions)

Vendor warranties received*

[0}

3

™) Including the Security segment for €3 million at December 31, 2016 (the Security segment businesses were sold in 2017).

Vendor warranties granted in connection
with the disposal of the Security businesses
(see Note 3, “Scope of consolidation”)

In connection with the sale of the identity and security businesses
on May 31, 2017, Safran granted Advent International a vendor
warranty valued at €180 million at December 31, 2017, as well as
a specific indemnity capped at BRL 200 million (€50 million at
December 31, 2017) to cover any financial consequences arising
from the dispute between Morpho do Brasil and the Brazilian tax
authorities concerning the calculation method for value added
tax on certain products.

In connection with the sale of the detection businesses on
April 7,2017, Safran granted Smiths Group Plc a vendor warranty
valued at USD 74 million (€62 million at December 31, 2017).

In connection with the sale of Structil on October 2, 2017,
Safran Ceramics granted the Hexcel Group a vendor warranty
valued at €37 million at December 31, 2017.

¢) Off-balance sheet commitments
and contingent liabilities
relating to the Group’s
financing

Commitments received in respect of financing relate to:

> the unused portion of the trade receivables factoring facility
requiring deconsolidation of the receivables concerned (see
Note 22, “Interest-bearing financial liabilities™);

> the confirmed, undrawn syndicated credit line (see Note 26,
“Management of market risks and derivatives”); and

> the bridge facility set up as part of the acquisition of
Zodiac Aerospace (see Note 26, “Management of market
risks and derivatives”).
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NOTE 37 DISPUTES AND LITIGATION

Safran and certain Group subsidiaries are party to regulatory,
legal or arbitration proceedings arising in the ordinary course of
their operations. Safran and certain Group subsidiaries are also
party to claims, legal action and regulatory proceedings outside
the scope of their ordinary operations. The most important are
described below.

The amount of the provisions booked is based on the level of
risk for each case, as assessed by Safran and its subsidiaries and
largely depends on their assessment of the merits of the claims
and defensive arguments, bearing in mind that the occurrence
of events during the proceedings can lead to a reassessment
of the risk at any time.

A provision is only booked to cover the expenses that may result
from such proceedings when the expenses are probable and
their amount can be either quantified or reasonably estimated.

Safran considers that the provisions booked are adequate to
cover the risks it incurs.

> A number of civil and/or criminal lawsuits have been filed
against certain Safran subsidiaries in connection with aviation
accidents. The Group’s insurance policy would cover any civil
damages payable by Safran or its subsidiaries under these
proceedings.

> At the end of 2002, a group of French manufacturers, including
the former Snecma Group, was collectively the subject of a
request for arbitration as part of a dispute with the Republic
of China relating to a former business contract. After
withdrawal of this request, the customer then filed another

NOTE 32 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

None.
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request for arbitration in November 2012 on similar grounds
to those invoked in 2002. The three manufacturers were
jointly ordered to pay a total sum of €227 million (including
interest) to the Republic of China under an arbitration award
notified to them on October 25, 2017. Safran Aircraft Engines
paid €29 million, including fees, corresponding to its share of
the award. The corresponding expense was recorded under
other non-recurring operating income and expenses in the
Group’s 2017 accounts.

As no party appealed the decision, the proceedings are now
closed.

> On April 2, 2014, Safran was fined by the European Commission
relating to the activities of Silec Cable, a former subsidiary
of Sagem SA which was sold to General Cable at the end
of 2005. General Cable, which was also fined, filed a claim
against Safran under the sale agreement in order to protect
its rights. Safran paid the €8.5 million fine in 2014. Relying on
the European Commission’s findings, a number of cable buyers
have initiated proceedings for reimbursement of overcharges
against the companies fined by the Commission. Safran’s joint
and several liability with other suppliers has been alleged in
one such legal action, and the Group could be at risk of further
claims in Europe. At the date of this report, it is not possible
to evaluate any potential financial risk.

To the best of Safran’s knowledge and that of its subsidiaries,
there are no other ongoing regulatory, legal or arbitration
proceedings that could have a material impact on the financial
position of the Company and/or Group.
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NOTE 33 LIST OF CONSOLIDATED COMPANIES

Consolidation Consolidation
Country method % interest method % interest

Safran SA France Parent company

Aerospace Propulsion

Safran Aircraft Engines France FC 100.00 FC 100.00
CFAN United States JO 50.00 JO 50.00
CFM International SA France JO 50.00 JO 50.00
CFM International, Inc. United States JO 50.00 JO 50.00
CFM Materials LP United States EQ 50.00 EQ 50.00
Famat France JO 50.00 JO 50.00
Fan Blade Associates, Inc. United States FC 100.00 FC 100.00
Safran Aero Composite France FC 100.00 FC 100.00
Safran Aerospace Composites, LLC United States FC 100.00 FC 100.00
Shannon Engine Support Limited Ireland EQ 50.00 EQ 50.00
Safran Aircraft Engines Mexico Mexico FC 100.00 FC 100.00
Safran Aircraft Engines Poland® Poland - - FC 100.00
Safran Aircraft Engine Services Americas Mexico FC 100.00 FC 100.00
Safran Aircraft Engine Services Morocco Morocco FC 51.00 FC 51.00
Safran MDS, S.A. de CV. Mexico FC 100.00 FC 100.00
Snecma Participations France FC 100.00 FC 100.00
Snecma Participations, Inc. United States FC 100.00 FC 100.00
Safran Aircraft Engine Services Brussels Belgium FC 100.00 FC 100.00
Snecma Suzhou Co, Ltd China FC 100.00 FC 100.00
Safran Aircraft Engines Guiyang China FC 90.00 [FC 90.00
Propulsion Technologies International, LLC United States JO 50.00 JO 50.00
Safran Aero Boosters Belgium FC 67.19 FC 67.19
Safran Test Cells, Inc. United States FC 6719 [FC 67.19
Safran Aero Boosters Programs, LLC United States FC 6719 FC 6719
Safran Aero Boosters, Inc. United States FC 6719 FC 6719
Safran Helicopter Engines France FC 100.00 FC 100.00
Safran Power Units France FC 100.00 FC 100.00
Safran Power Units San Diego, LLC United States FC 100.00 FC 100.00
Turbomeca Africa® South Africa FC 51.00 - -
Turbomeca America Latina® Uruguay FC 100.00 - -
Safran Helicopter Engines Asia Pte. Ltd Singapore FC 100.00 FC 100.00
Safran Helicopter Engines Australia Pty Ltd Australia FC 100.00 FC 100.00
Safran Moteurs d’Hélicopteres Canada Inc. Canada FC 100.00 FC 100.00
Safran Helicopter Engines Brasil Industria e Commercio

do Brasil Ltda Brazil FC 100.00 FC 100.00
Safran Helicopter Engines Germany GmbH Germany FC 100.00 FC 100.00
Safran Helicopter Engines Tianjin Co. Ltd China FC 100.00 FC 100.00
Safran Helicopter Engines UK Limited United Kingdom FC 100.00 FC 100.00
Safran Helicopter Engines USA, Inc. United States FC 100.00 FC 100.00

FC: Full consolidation. JO: Joint operation. EQ: Equity method.

(D First-time consolidation in 2017,
(2) Divested in November 2017.
(3) Left the Group in 2017.
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2016
Consolidation

Country method % interest % interest
Safran Helicopter Engines Mexico Mexico FC 100.00 FC 100.00
Safran Helicopter Engines South Africa® South Africa - - FC 100.00
Roxel France France EQ 50.00 EQ 50.00
Roxel Limited United Kingdom EQ 50.00 EQ 50.00
Roxel France EQ 50.00 EQ 50.00
Structil® France FC 80.00 - -
ArianeGroup Holding France EQ 50.00 EQ 50.00
Aircraft Equipment
Safran Nacelles France FC 100.00 FC 100.00
Safran Nacelles Limited United Kingdom FC 100.00 FC 100.00
Safran Nacelles Morocco Morocco FC 100.00 [FC 100.00
Aircelle Europe Services® France FC 100.00 - -
Safran System Aerostructures France FC 100.00 FC 100.00
Safran Landing Systems France FC 100.00 FC 100.00
Aero Precision Repair & Overhaul Company, Inc. United States EQ 50.00 EQ 50.00
Safran Landing Systems Services Dinard France FC 100.00 [FC 100.00
Safran Landing Systems Kentucky, LLC United States FC 100.00 FC 100.00
Safran Landing Systems Wheel & Brake Services, LLC® United States - - FC 100.00
Safran Landing Systems Malaysia Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia FC 100.00 FC 100.00
Safran Landing Systems Canada Inc. Canada FC 100.00 FC 100.00
Safran Landing Systems UK Ltd United Kingdom FC 100.00 FC 100.00
Safran Landing Systems México S.A. de C\V. Mexico FC 100.00 FC 100.00
Safran Landing Systems Services Américas S.A. de C\V. Mexico FC 100.00 FC 100.00
Safran Landing Systems Services Singapore Pte. Ltd Singapore FC 60.00 FC 60.00
Safran Landing Systems Services Miami, Inc. United States FC 100.00 FC 100.00
Safran Landing Systems Services UK Ltd United Kingdom FC 100.00 FC 100.00
Safran Landing Systems Services Querétaro S.A. de CV. Mexico FC 100.00 FC 100.00
Safran Landing Systems Holdings Singapore Pte. Ltd Singapore FC 100.00 FC 100.00
Safran Filtration Systems France FC 100.00 [FC 100.00
Safran Landing Systems Suzhou Co., Ltd China FC 100.00 FC 100.00
Safran Electrical & Power France FC 100.00 FC 100.00
Aerosource Inc. United States FC 100.00 [FC 100.00
Safran Electrical & Power Chihuahua S.A. de CV. Mexico FC 100.00 FC 100.00
Safran Engineering Services GmbH Germany FC 100.00 FC 100.00
Labinal Investments, LLC United States FC 100.00 FC 100.00
Safran Electrical & Power USA, LLC United States FC 100.00 [FC 100.00
Safran Electrical & Power Morocco S.A Morocco FC 100.00 [FC 100.00
Safran Electrical & Power Mexico SA de CV Mexico FC 100.00 [FC 100.00
Labinal Salisbury, LLC® United States FC 100.00 - -
Matis Aerospace Morocco JO 50.00 JO 50.00

FC: Full consolidation. JO: Joint operation. EQ: Equity method.

(D) Merged into Safran Nacelles on January 1, 2017.
(2) First-time consolidation in 2017.

(3) Merged into Safran Electrical & Power USA, LLC on March 31, 2017,

(4) Divested on October 2, 2017.
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Consolidation solidation

Country method % interest method % interest
Safran Engineering Services France FC 100.00 FC 100.00
Safran Engineering Services India Pvt Ltd India FC 100.00 FC 100.00
Safran Engineering Services Maroc Morocco FC 100.00 [FC 100.00
Safran Engineering Services UK Ltd United Kingdom FC 100.00 FC 100.00
Safran Electrical & Power UK Ltd United Kingdom FC 100.00 FC 100.00
Safran Power USA, LLC United States FC 100.00 [FC 100.00
Safran Ventilation Systems France FC 100.00 FC 100.00
Safran Ventilation Systems USA, LLC United States FC 100.00 [FC 100.00
Shanghai SAIFEI Aviation EWIS Manufacturing Co., Ltd China EQ 49.00 EQ 49.00
Safran Transmission Systems France FC 100.00 FC 100.00
Safran Transmission Systems Poland S.p. Z.0.0. Poland FC 100.00 FC 100.00
Safran Martin-Baker France France EQ 50.00 EQ 50.00
Defense
Safran Electronics & Defense France FC 100.00 FC 100.00
Optics 1, Inc. United States FC 100.00 [FC 100.00
Safran Electronics & Defense Services Asia Pte Ltd Singapore FC 60.00 FC 60.00
Safran Electronics & Defense Canada Inc. Canada FC 100.00 [FC 100.00
Safran Electronics & Defense Avionics USA, LLC United States FC 100.00 [FE 100.00
Safran Electronics & Defense Germany GmbH Germany FC 100.00 FC 100.00
Sofradir France EQ 50.00 EQ 50.00
ULIS France EQ 50.00 EQ 50.00
Safran Vectronix AG Switzerland FC 100.00 FC 100.00
Sagem USA, Inc. United States FC 100.00 FC 100.00
Fadec International, LLC® United States - - EQ 50.00
Safran Reosc France FC 100.00 FC 100.00
Safran Colibrys SA Switzerland FC 100.00 FC 100.00
Security*

Divested on May 31, 2017:

Safran Identity & Security France FC 100.00 - -
Aleat Albania FC 75.00 @ =
Bioscrypt Inc. Canada FC 100.00 - -
Electronic Identity Management & Security United Arab

Solutions, LLC Emirates EQ 40.00 - -
L-1 Secure Credentialing, LLC United States FC 100.00 - -
Morpho Australasia Pty. Ltd Australia FC 100.00 - -
Morpho B.V. Netherlands FC 100.00 - -
Morpho Canada, Inc. Canada FC 100.00 - -
Morpho Maroc Groupe Safran Morocco FC 100.00 - -
Morpho South Africa (Pty) Ltd South Africa FC 100.00 - -
MorphoTrak LLC United States FC 100.00 - =
MorphoTrust USA, LLC. United States FC 100.00 - -
Morpho UK Ltd United Kingdom FC 100.00 - -
Morpho USA, Inc. United States FC 100.00 - -

FC: Full consolidation. JO: Joint operation. EQ: Equity method.
*  Classified under discontinued operations at December 31, 2016 and divested in 2017.
(D First-time consolidation in 2017.
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2016
Consolidation nsolidation

Country method % interest method % interest
Trans Digital Technologies Limited Liability Company United States FC 100.00 - -
Morpho Cards GmbH Germany FC 100.00 - -
Morpho Cards Sdn. Bhd Malaysia FC 100.00 - -
Morpho do Brasil S.A. Brazil FC 100.00 - -
Morpho Cards de Colombia SAS Colombia FC 100.00 - -
PT. Morpho Cards Indonesia Indonesia FC 100.00 - -
Morpho Cards (Singapore) Pte. Ltd Singapore FC 100.00 - -
Morpho Cards Peru Peru FC 100.00 - -
Morpho Cards Lda Portugal FC 100.00 - -
Morpho Cards Romania SRL Romania FC 100.00 - -
Morpho N.A. Inc. United States FC 100.00 = =
Morpho South Africa (Pty) Ltd South Africa FC 100.00 - -
CPS Technologies France FC 100.00 - -
Morpho Cards Czech S.R.O Czech Republic FC 100.00 - -
Smart Chip Limited India FC 95.89 -
Syscom Corporation Limited India FC 95.89 - -
Orga Zelenograd Smart Cards and Systems, ZAO Russia FC 100.00 - -

United Arab

Morpho Cards FZ-LLC Emirates FC 100.00 - -
Morpho Cards Mexico Mexico FC 100.00 - -
Morpho de Argentina SA Argentina FC 100.00 - -
Divested on April 7, 2017:
Morpho Detection, LLC. United States FC 100.00 - =
Morpho Detection International, LLC United States FC 100.00 - -
Morpho Detection Germany GmbH Germany FC 100.00 - -
Morpho Detection UK Limited United Kingdom FC 100.00 - -
Syagen Technology LLC United States FC 100.00 - -
Holding co. and other
Etablissements Vallaroche France FC 100.00 FC 100.00
Safran Ceramics France FC 100.00 FC 100.00
Safran UK Ltd United Kingdom FC 100.00 FC 100.00
Safran USA Inc. United States FC 100.00 [FC 100.00
Société de réassurance Vallaroche SA Luxembourg FC 100.00 [FC 100.00

FC: Full consolidation. JO. Joint operation. EQ. Equity method.
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NOTE 34 AUDIT FEES

Pursuant to Standard No. 2016-09 issued on December 2, 2016
by the French accounting standards-setter (Autorité des normes
comptables - ANC), the following table shows the amount of
fees paid to the Group’s Statutory Auditors as included on
the consolidated income statement for the year, a distinction

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Group consolidated financial statements at December 31, 2017

being made between fees charged for the statutory audit of the
consolidated financial statements and those charged for other
services, where applicable. The fees shown for subsidiaries are
those consolidated according to the full consolidation method.

Ernst & Young Mazars Total
Amount Amount Amount
(excl. VAT) % (excl. VAT) % (excl. VAT) %

(in € millions) 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 m 2017
A) Statutory audit services

A1) Safran (issuer) 0.63 0.83 13% 17% 0.63 0.79 12% 17% 1.26 1.62 12% 17%
A.2) Subsidiaries 3.74 2.92 76% 61% 3.33 2.77 61% 60% 7.07 5.69 68% 60%
Sub-total 4.37 3.75 89% 78% 3.96 3.56 73% 77% 8.33 7.31 80% 77%
B) Other services

B.1) Safran (issuer) 0.32 0.86 7% 18% 0.38 0.94 7% 20% 0.70 1.80 7% 19%
B.2) Subsidiaries 0.22 0.21 4% 4% 112 0.13 20% 3% 1.34 0.34 13% 4%
Sub-total 0.54 1.07 1% 22% 1.50 1.07 27% 23% 2.04 2.14 20% 23%
TOTAL 4.91 482 100% 100% 5.46 4.63 100% 100% 10.37 9.45 100% 100%

Statutory audit fees

These are payable for all work that is an integral part of the
statutory audit, i.e., all work necessary to produce audit reports
or any other reports or representations to be made available
to the Ordinary Shareholders’ Meeting called to approve the
financial statements.

Services are provided by the Statutory Auditors and other persons
responsible for audits, members of their networks, certifying the
parent company and consolidated financial statements of the
parent company and fully consolidated subsidiaries in France
and other countries.

Fees for other services

These services concern work falling within the scope of
services usually rendered in conjunction with the statutory
audit engagement (drafting of specific reports and statements,
due diligence procedures) or any other specific engagement,
generally representing one-off or agreed-on services.
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3.2 STATUTORY AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended December 31, 2017

This is a free translation into English of the statutory auditors’ report on the consolidated financial statements of the Company issued
in French and it is provided solely for the convenience of English speaking users.

This statutory auditors’ report includes information required by European regulation and French law, such as information about the
appointment of the statutory auditors or verification of the information concerning the Group presented in the management report.

This report should be read in conjunction with, and construed in accordance with, French law and professional auditing standards

applicable in France.

To the Shareholders of Safran SA,

Opinion

In compliance with the engagement entrusted to us by your
Annual General Meeting, we have audited the accompanying
consolidated financial statements of Safran for the year ended
December 31, 2017.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the assets and liabilities and of the financial
position of the Group as at December 31, 2017 and of the results
of its operations for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the
European Union.

The audit opinion expressed above is consistent with our report
to the Audit and Risk Committee.

Basis for Opinion

Audit Framework

We conducted our audit in accordance with professional standards
applicable in France. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

Our responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the Statutory Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

Independence

We conducted our audit engagement in compliance with
independence rules applicable to us, for the period from
January 1, 2017 to the date of our report and specifically we
did not provide any prohibited non-audit services referred to
in Article 5(1) of Regulation (EU) No 537/2014 or in the French
Code of ethics (Code de déontologie) for statutory auditors.

Justification of Assessments
- Key Audit Matters

In accordance with the requirements of Articles L.823-9 and
R.823-7 of the French Commercial Code (Code de commerce)
relating to the justification of our assessments, we inform you of
the key audit matters relating to risks of material misstatement
that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period, as well as how we addressed those risks.
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These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
specific items of the consolidated financial statements.

Recognition of revenue and margins
under support-by-the-hour contracts

Notes 1.g, 2.a and 5 to the consolidated financial statements

The Group has entered into support-by-the-hour engine maintenance
contracts with certain customers spanning several years.

As described in Notes 1.g and 2.a to the consolidated financial
statements, the margin on these contracts is recognized on a
percentage-of-completion basis. Revenue is recognized as flight
hours are billed, while costs to be recognized are determined
by management based on the estimated percentage margin
on completion of the contract. A provision is set aside for any
losses on completion as soon as such losses are foreseeable.

Forecast contract margins are regularly revised by management.
This approach requires the Group to estimate results on
completion based on forecast future cash flows, taking into
account contractual items and internal estimates of costs to
be incurred.

We deemed the recognition of revenue and margins on
support-by-the-hour contracts to be a key audit matter given
the sensitivity of margins on completion to the estimates and
assumptions used by management.

How our audit addressed this risk

In Group subsidiary Safran Aircraft Engines, which accounts for
most major support-by-the-hour contracts, we:

> analyzed the procedures for forecasting contract revenue
and contract costs;

> reviewed the consistency of the technical model enabling
the in-flight behavior of the engine to be assessed and the
engine servicing schedule to be determined;

> for each major contract, met with the management controllers
responsible for monitoring the contract business plans, and
assessed estimates of contract revenue and costs on completion,
including the degree of uncertainty applied, in particular by
comparing the costs incurred to date with previous estimates;

> analyzed any changes in contracts and the reflection of those
changes in the business plans;

> reviewed, on a test basis, the existence of revenue recognized
through reconciliations with amounts billed by-the-hour.
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Contract liabilities: provisions for performance
warranties and provisions for sales contracts

Notes 1.r, 2.a, 2.b and 19 to the consolidated financial statements

As part of its contractual relations, the Group may recognize
provisions for guarantee commitments given as well as provisions
relating to late deliveries or additional costs (claims received
from customers or exposure to contractual penalties):

> Provisions for performance warranties cover probable future
payments under the various warranties granted by the Group
to its customers in respect of equipment sold. Provisions for
warranties are determined using statistical data regarding
the estimated frequency and cost of probable repairs, and
based on the experience of operational staff.

> Provisions for sales contracts correspond to provisions booked
further to customer claims or when the Group is exposed to
contractual penalties. These provisions are estimated based
on contractual commitments and on an assessment of the
scenarios deemed most probable by operational staff.

These provisions recognized under contract liabilities represented
€1,242 million at December 31, 2017, including €813 million
relating to performance warranties and €429 million relating
to sales contracts.

We deemed this issue to be a key audit matter given the significance
of the amounts in question, the complexity of the assumptions
underlying the estimates, and the degree of judgement required
of management in calculating these provisions.

How our audit addressed this risk

We reviewed the procedures implemented by management to
identify and list all risks relating to contractual commitments.

For each material risk identified, we reviewed the analysis of the
risk by management, along with the corresponding documentation
and any written consultations from external advisors, where
appropriate. Our work involved:

> evaluating the appropriateness of the approach used by
management to estimate the amount of provisions to be
recognized in respect of these risks;

> analyzing the appropriateness of the assumptions used to
estimate provisions for warranties;

> reconciling the estimated cost of repairs used to estimate
provisions for warranties with historical data;

> meeting with managers of the programs for all material
individual provisions;

> analyzing the arithmetic consistency of the calculations made
and reconciling the initial data with contractual data, where
appropriate.

We also analyzed the appropriateness of the related disclosures
provided in the notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Measurement and completeness of foreign
currency derivatives

Notes 1.f, 1.v and 26 to the consolidated financial statements

Most of the revenue generated in the Propulsion and Aircraft
Equipment businesses is denominated in US dollars. The net
excess of revenues over expenses for these activities totaled
USD 7.3 billion for 2017. To protect its operating profitability
against fluctuations in the EUR/USD exchange rate, the Group’s
policy is to hedge its USD exposure using foreign currency
derivatives and to maintain the exchange rate above a guaranteed
hedged rate over a period of four years.

The main derivatives used in this respect are forward sales and
foreign currency options (accumulators and a combination of
optional instruments with or without knock-in options). Options
are used to improve the guaranteed hedged rate with a view to
protecting the Group’s economic performance.

In the balance sheet, the derivatives portfolio is carried at fair
value in accordance with IAS 39, and represented an amount
of €566 million in assets and €805 million in liabilities at
December 31, 2017. Most derivatives are traded over-the-counter
and no guoted prices are available. Consequently, they are
measured using models commonly used by pricing services.

In the income statement, the Group does not apply hedge
accounting as defined by IAS 39 given the nature of the
instruments used. Consequently, all changes in the fair value
of foreign currency derivatives during the year are included in
financial income (loss). In 2017, the amount recorded in financial
income (loss) was €3,476 million.

We deemed the measurement of foreign currency derivatives to
be a key audit matter given the material impacts on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements, the complexity of the valuation
models used and the volume of instruments negotiated.

How our audit addressed this risk

We reviewed Safran SA’s forex strategy and assessed whether the
information given in this regard in Note 26 to the consolidated
financial statements was appropriate.

As part of our internal control review, we analyzed the procedures
put in place by management for approving, contracting and
booking market transactions. We also tested the effectiveness of
key IT controls for the applications used by the Cash Management
department, including the interface with the accounting teams.

To verify that foreign currency derivatives were correctly
accounted for, we:

> checked the reconciliation between Safran SA’s derivatives
portfolio and information received from bank counterparties,
in order to ensure that all transactions were documented;

> checked that there was no material discrepancy between
the value of the derivatives estimated by Safran SA and the
values sent by the bank counterparties;

> carried out a counter-valuation of the derivatives portfolio,
assisted by our experts, in order to validate the amounts
recorded by management in the financial statements.
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Intangible asset impairment tests
(goodwill and programs)

Notes I.c, 1j, 1., 2.a, 9 and 10 to the consolidated financial
Statements

In the context of its creation and development, the Group has
carried out acquisitions resulting in the recognition of goodwill
and intangible assets relating to aerospace programs (Sagem/
Snecma merger and RRTM acquisition). The Group also capitalizes
development costs when it can be demonstrated that they meet
the requisite criteria, as described in Note 1.1 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Gooduwill is tested for impairment at the level of each cash-generating
unit (CGU) at least annually and whenever there is an indication
that it may be impaired. At the end of each annual reporting period,
management also performs impairment tests on assets allocated
to programs (aerospace programs and capitalized development
costs) before they begin to be depreciated/amortized, or if
events or circumstances indicate a risk of impairment.

The recoverable amounts of these assets are chiefly determined
by discounting the future cash flows expected to arise from
the cash-generating units, projects or programs to which the
assets tested relate.

At December 31, 2017, the total amount of goodwill represented
€1,831 million, while total intangible assets represented €5,241 million,
including €904 million relating to aerospace programs and
€2,801 million relating to capitalized development costs.

We deemed the value of these intangible assets to be a key
audit matter given their significance in the consolidated financial
statements and because the calculation of their recoverable
amount requires management to use major estimates and
assumptions.

How our audit addressed this risk

We reviewed the basis for implementing these impairment tests.
In particular, we considered:

> the elements included in the carrying amount of each
cash-generating unit (CGU) and program;

> the appropriateness of the assumptions underlying the
estimates used by management to forecast its future cash
flows, especially:

e the consistency of the volumes and production rates
associated with the products sold in light of information
and forecasts provided by the main contractors and
management’s long-term analyses,

e the appropriateness of the EUR/USD exchange rate
assumption used,

e the consistency of the growth rates used to forecast future
cash flows compared to available independent analyses,

e the appropriateness of the discount rates applied to
estimated future cash flows, verifying in particular that the
various inputs used to calculate the weighted average cost
of capital of each CGU were sufficient to approximate the
return demanded by market participants for similar activities;
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> the analyses performed by management to ascertain the
sensitivity of value in use to reasonably possible changes in
the main assumptions used;

> the consistency of past and future cash flows compared to
management’s most recent estimates, as presented to the
Board of Directors during the budget process.

We also ensured that the disclosures provided in Notes 1.c, 1,
1.1, 2.a, 9 and 10 to the consolidated financial statements were
appropriate.

Verification of the Information
Pertaining to the Group Presented
in the Management Report

As required by law we have also verified in accordance with
professional standards applicable in France the information
pertaining to the Group presented in the management report
of the Board of Directors.

We have no matters to report as to its fair presentation and its
consistency with the consolidated financial statements.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements

Appointment of the Statutory Auditors

We were appointed as statutory auditors of SAFRAN SA by the
Annual General Meeting held on May 28, 2008 for MAZARS and
on May 27, 2010 for ERNST & YOUNG et Autres.

As at December 31,2017, MAZARS and ERNST & YOUNG et Autres
were in the 10th year and 8th year of total uninterrupted
engagement respectively.

Responsibilities of Management

and Those Charged with Governance
for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation
of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the
European Union and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management
is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
it is expected to liquidate the Company or to cease operations.

The Audit and Risk Committee is responsible for monitoring
the financial reporting process and the effectiveness of internal
control and risks management systems and where applicable, its
internal audit, regarding the accounting and financial reporting
procedures.

The consolidated financial statements were approved by
the Board of Directors.
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Statutory Auditors’ Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Objective and audit approach

Our role is to issue a report on the consolidated financial state-
ments. Our objective is to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with professional standards will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these consolidated financial statements.

As specified in Article L.823-10-1 of the French Commercial Code
(Code de commerce), our statutory audit does not include
assurance on the viability of the Company or the quality of
management of the affairs of the Company.

As part of an audit conducted in accordance with professional
standards applicable in France, the statutory auditor exercises
professional judgment throughout the audit and furthermore:

> ldentifies and assesses the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, designs and performs audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtains audit evidence considered to be
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for his opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

> Obtains an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the internal control.

> Evaluates the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management in the consolidated financial
statements.

> Assesses the appropriateness of management’s use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit

evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. This
assessment is based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of his audit report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern. If the statutory auditor concludes that a material
uncertainty exists, there is a requirement to draw attention in
the audit report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are not provided or
inadequate, to modify the opinion expressed therein.

> Evaluates the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements and assesses whether these statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

> Obtains sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. The statutory auditor is responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of
the consolidated financial statements and for the opinion
expressed on these consolidated financial statements.

Report to the Audit and Risk Committee

We submit a report to the Audit and Risk Committee which
includes in particular a description of the scope of the audit
and the audit program implemented, as well as the results
of our audit. We also report, if any, significant deficiencies in
internal control regarding the accounting and financial reporting
procedures that we have identified.

Our report to the Audit and Risk Committee includes the risks of
material misstatement that, in our professional judgment, were
of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and which are therefore the
key audit matters that we are required to describe in this report.

We also provide the Audit and Risk Committee with the declaration
provided for in Article 6 of Regulation (EU) N° 537/2014, confirming
our independence within the meaning of the rules applicable in
France such as they are set in particular by Articles L.822-10 to
L.822-14 of the French Commercial Code (Code de commerce)
and in the French Code of Ethics (code de déontologie) for
statutory auditors. Where appropriate, we discuss with the Audit
and Risk the risks that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and the related safeguards.

Paris-La Défense and Courbevoie, March 27, 2018

The Statutory Auditors

French original signed by

ERNST & YOUNG et Autres

Jean-Roch Varon Nicolas Macé

MAZARS

Gaél Lamant Christophe Berrard
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3.3 PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT DECEMBER 31, 2017

Parent company income statement at December 31, 2017

—— we e [CEECT

Operating income

Revenue 41 525 552
Operating expense transfers 4.2 2 42
Reversal of depreciation, amortization and provisions 24 24
Other income n 13
Operating income (1) 562 631

Operating expenses

Cost of goods sold in the year:

> Raw materials m )
> Sub-contracting purchases - 4)
> Purchases not held in inventory and supplies a4) Qa7)
> External service expenses (307) (314)
Taxes and duties other than income tax Qa7 [@2))

Payroll costs:

> Wages and salaries 141 (145)
> Social security contributions (89) (96)
Charges to depreciation, amortization, provisions and impairment: (68) (64)
> Charges to depreciation, amortization and impairment of non-current assets (38) (33)
> Charges to impairment of current assets [©) -
> Charges to provisions for contingencies and losses (29) (€1))
Other expenses ©) 2)
Operating expenses (2) (638) (665)
Loss from operations (1)-(2) (76) (34)
Financial income 593 1,318
Financial expenses (70) (93)
Financial income 4.3 523 1,225
Profit from ordinary activities before tax 447 1,191
Non-recurring income 1,105 78
Non-recurring expenses (782) (53)
Non-recurring income 4.4 323 25
Income tax benefit 4.6 53 5
Movements in provisions set aside to cover income taxes
of loss-making subsidiaries 4.6 147 m
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 970 1,360
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Parent company balance sheet at December 31, 2017

Assets

Dec. 31, 2017

Depreciation,

Gross amortization

(in € millions) Note LTI VAN carrying amount  and impairment
Intangible assets 3.1 17

> Other intangible assets 17 m 89 22
Property, plant and equipment 3.1 108 203 99 104
Financial assets 3.1 10,697 12,954 134 12,820

> Equity investments 10,131 10,159 56 10,103

> Other financial assets 566 2,795 78 2,717
Total non-current assets 10,822 13,268 322 12,946
Payments on account 3.2 8 6 - 6
Trade receivables 3.2 21 28 1 27
Other receivables 3.2 450 461 1 460
Group current accounts 3.2 3,038 1,753 - 1,753
Marketable securities 3.3 1,170 3,425 = 3,425
Cash at bank and in hand 3.3 650 1,404 = 1,404
Prepayments 3.5 9 68 - 68
Total current assets 5,346 7,145 2 7,143
Redemption premiums 3.6 1 1 - 1
Unrealized foreign exchange losses 3.6 376 131 - 131
TOTAL ASSETS 16,545 20,545 324 20,221
Equity and liabilities
(in € millions) Note Dec. 31, 2016
Share capital 3.7 83 83
Other equity 3.7 6,192 6,822
Tax-driven provisions 3.7 29 24
Profit for the year 3.7 970 1,360
Total equity 7,274 8,289
Provisions for contingencies and losses 3.8 570 468
Bond issue 3.9 850 1,850
USD senior unsecured notes issue 3.9 1138 1,001
Other loans and borrowings 3.9 1,052 1,491
Group current accounts 3.9 4,302 5,994
Trade payables 3.9 183 205
Other liabilities 3.9 935 771
Deferred income 3 29 21
Financial liabilities, operating payables and miscell 1s liabilities 8,489 11,333
Unrealized foreign exchange gains 312 212 131
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 16,545 20,221
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Parent company statement of cash flows

(in € millions) Dec. 31, 2016

Dec. 31, 2017

I. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit for the year 970 1,360
Non-cash income and expenses
Depreciation, amortization, impairment and provisions (150) (75)
Capital gains and losses on asset disposals (291 Qa7)
Other 2 -
Cash flow from operations, before change in working capital 531 1,268
Net change in current accounts* 129 2,978
Net change in other receivables and payables (36) Qa7)
Change in working capital 93 2,961
TOTAL | 624 4,229
Il. CASH FLOW USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Payments for purchases of intangible assets and property, plant
and equipment, net of proceeds (30) @n
Payments for purchases of equity investments, net of proceeds (614) (452)
Payments for purchases of other financial assets, net of proceeds** 250 (1,709)
TOTAL Il (394) (2,182)
I1l. CASH FLOW USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividends paid to shareholders (325) (340)
Interim dividend (287) -
Increase in borrowings - 50
Repayment of borrowings and long-term debt 42) 40)
New bond issue 650 1,000
Change in long-term borrowings*** 36 (138)
Change in short-term borrowings 69 430
TOTAL 1l 101 962
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 1+ +1 331 3,009
Opening cash and cash equivalents 1,489 1,820
Closing cash and cash equivalents 1,820 4,829
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 331 3,009

™ Classified in operating items in view of the nature of the Company’s operations.

% Including €2 billion in money market funds pledged during the tender offer for Zodiac Aerospace, reclassified to other financial assets

(see Note 3.1, “Intangible assets, property, plant and equipment and financial assets”).
% Impact resulting from the translation into euros of USD senior unsecured notes at the closing exchange rate.
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FOREWORD

The data set out below are an integral part of the parent company financial statements. They are expressed in millions of euros

unless otherwise indicated.

The 2017 financial year spans 12 months.

Safran may also be referred to as “the Company” in these notes.

The total balance sheet at December 31, 2017 prior to the appropriation of profit represents €20,221,366,165.76.

Accounting profit for 2017 represents €1,359,762,344.15.

NOTE 1

1.1 Activity of the Company

As the Group’s parent company, Safran performs the following
functions for the Group companies:

> it holds and manages shares in the main Group subsidiaries;

> it steers and develops the Group, determining: Group strategy;
research and technology (R&T) policy; sales policy; legal
and financial policy; human resources policy; personnel
training, retraining and skills matching by Safran University;
communications; and oversight of operations;

> it provides:

e support on legal, taxation and financial matters, essentially in
the following areas: cash pooling as part of the management
of advances and investments between Safran and each Group
company; currency risk management policy as part of efforts
to protect companies and reduce uncertainty regarding the
economic performance of operating subsidiaries resulting
from fluctuations in exchange rates (mainly USD); and tax
consolidation in jurisdictions where Safran is liable for the
entire income tax charge, additional income tax contributions
and the annual minimum tax charge due by the tax group
comprising itself and its tax-consolidated subsidiaries, and

e services within the scope of Shared Services Centers in the
following areas: payroll administration and management,
recruitment, non-production purchases, IT, and some
accounting services.

1.2 2017 highlights

On January 19, 2017, Safran announced its intention to acquire
Zodiac Aerospace through an agreed public tender offer and a
subsequent merger, following approval of the main terms and
conditions of the transaction by the Board of Directors of Safran
and the Supervisory Board of Zodiac Aerospace.

On May 24, 2017, Safran and Zodiac Aerospace announced that
they would no longer pursue this transaction structure and had
entered into a new business combination agreement.

Pursuant to this agreement, Safran filed a Tender Offer for Zodiac
Aerospace’s shares on December 7, 2017 (declared compliant
by the AMF on December 21, 2017), consisting of:

> a primary cash offer targeting 100% of Zodiac Aerospace’s
shares (excluding any treasury shares held by Zodiac Aerospace)
at a price of €25 per Zodiac Aerospace share;

> asubsidiary exchange offer pursuant to which Zodiac Aerospace
shareholders would receive a number of Safran preferred
shares determined on the basis of a ratio between a value
of €24 per Zodiac Aerospace share and the market price of
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Safran ordinary shares, within a 5%/-5% collar mechanism,
resulting in an exchange ratio of 0.300 to 0.332 Safran
preferred shares per Zodiac Aerospace share. The number
of Zodiac Aerospace shares that could be tendered to the
subsidiary exchange offer was capped at 88,847,828 shares.

The final exchange ratio was set on January 17, 2018 at 0.300 Safran
preferred share for 1 Zodiac Aerospace share, in accordance with
the terms set out in the Information Memorandum.

Upon completion of the initial Offer period, which ran from
December 27, 2017 to January 31, 2018, 91,414,451 Zodiac
Aerospace shares had been tendered under the Principal
Tender Offer, and 142,249,773 Zodiac Aerospace shares
under the Subsidiary Exchange Offer. As the limit of Zodiac
Aerospace shares which could be tendered to the Subsidiary
Exchange Offer, set at 88,847,828 Zodiac Aerospace shares, was
exceeded, 53,401,945 Zodiac Aerospace shares were carried
over to the Principal Tender Offer. In the overall context of the
Offer, Safran therefore acquired a total of 233,664,224 shares,
representing 79.74% of Zodiac Aerospace’s share capital,
excluding treasury shares. In its declaration submitted to the
AMF on February 7, 2018, Safran stated that it held 88.23% of
the share capital of Zodiac Aerospace considering (i) the shares
tendered to the Offer, (ii) the 12,625,784 treasury shares held
by Zodiac Aerospace, representing 4.31% of the share capital
of Zodiac Aerospace and which were not tendered to the Offer,
and (iii) the remaining Zodiac Aerospace shares covered by
the residual interest undertaking described in section 1.4.3 of
the Information Memorandum prepared by Safran (i.e., around
4.18% of the share capital of Zodiac Aerospace). Since both the
acceptance threshold set at 50% of the share capital or voting
rights of Zodiac Aerospace, and the withdrawal threshold set at
66.67% of the voting rights exercisable at a Zodiac Aerospace
shareholders’ meeting, had been exceeded, the Offer therefore
has a positive outcome.

The settlement of the initial Offer took place on February 13, 2018
and, accordingly, an amount of €3,620 million was paid to
Zodiac Aerospace shareholders in consideration for the
144,816,396 Zodiac Aerospace shares tendered or carried over
to the Principal Tender Offer, and 26,651,058 Safran preferred
shares were issued at a price of €84.18 in consideration for the
88,847,828 Zodiac Aerospace shares effectively tendered to the
Subsidiary Exchange Offer. Accordingly, Safran’s share capital
increased by €5 million from €83 million to €89 million, with
an issue premium of €2,238 million.

The Offer was reopened from February 19, 2018 to March 2, 2018,
to enable Zodiac Aerospace shareholders who had not yet done
so to tender their shares to the Offer.



In the United States, the Tender Offer was open only to qualified
institutional buyers. Outside of France, it was not open in any
jurisdiction where authorization for the Offer would be required.

On June 28, 2017, Safran completed a €1 billion floating rate
notes offering in 2-year and 4-year tranches of €500 million each.

NOTE2 ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1 Accounting rules and methods

2.1.1 Standards applied

The parent company financial statements for the year ended
December 31, 2017 have been prepared in accordance with the
rules and regulations applicable in France pursuant to Regulation
2016-07 of November 4, 2016 and subsequent opinions and
recommendations of the French accounting standard setter
(Autorité des normes comptables - ANC).

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern
basis using the accruals method in accordance with the basic
principle of prudence and with the general rules for preparing
and presenting parent company financial statements, in order to
provide a true and fair value of the Company. Accounting policies
have been applied consistently from one period to the next.

Unless otherwise stated, accounting items are carried at
historical cost.

2.1.2 Change in accounting policies

For reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2017, the
Company applies ANC Regulation 2015-05 on future financial
instruments and hedging transactions. This new regulation had
no impact on the parent company financial statements.

2.2 Intangible assets

All intangible assets are valued at purchase cost.

The gross cost of intangible asset items is amortized over the
expected useful life of these assets using the straight-line method:

> patents and licenses are amortized over the shorter of the
period of legal protection and period of effective use;

> application software is carried at purchase cost plus any
development costs incurred in order to bring it into operation,
and is amortized on a straight-line basis over a period of one
to five years.

Research and development costs are recorded as expenses in
the period in which they are incurred.
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The proceeds of the issue will be used by Safran to meet its
general business needs and could partly help finance the primary
cash offer for Zodiac Aerospace.

Safran purchased the shares of ArianeGroup held by its subsidiary
Safran Transmission Systems for €10 million, giving it a direct
stake of 50% in this joint venture with Airbus.

2.3 Property, plant and equipment

As required by the applicable accounting regulations (Regulation
2004-06 issued by the French accounting standards committee,
Comité de la réglementation comptable - CRC), since January 1,2005
property, plant and equipment have been depreciated over
their useful lives.

Property, plant and equipment are recorded in the balance sheet
at historical purchase cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses.

Purchase cost comprises the purchase price, ancillary fees and
all costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location
and condition ready for its intended use.

Asset